
Document Number: 2169637 V1 

AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER AND ELECTRONICALLY (HYBRID) FROM 
CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, 
ON MONDAY, APRIL 25, 2022 AT 6:00 PM 

 
 

“Live” Broadcast via City Website www.cnv.org/LiveStreaming 
Complete Agenda Package available at www.cnv.org/CouncilMeetings 

 
The City of North Vancouver acknowledges that this Council meeting is held on the 

traditional territories of the Squamish and Tsleil-Waututh Nations. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, April 25, 2022 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, April 11, 2022 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 

Day of Mourning – April 28, 2022 

Youth Week – May 1 to 7, 2022 

Child Care Month – May 2022 

MS Awareness Month – May 2022 
 
PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Item *3 is listed in the Consent Agenda for consideration. 
 
BYLAW – ADOPTION 
 
*3. “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2022, No. 8924” 

(2022 Capital Plan Funding) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – 364 East 14th Street 
 
BYLAWS – THIRD READING 
 
4. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8904” (Karl Wein / 

Bradbury Architecture, 364 East 14th Street, CD-750) 
 
5. “Heritage Designation Bylaw, 2022, No. 8905” (Karl Wein / Bradbury Architecture, 

364 East 14th Street) 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – April 25, 2022 Page 2 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

Fire Department 2021 Annual Report – Public Safety Director and Fire Chief 
 

 Information Report, April 13, 2022 – “Fire Department 2021 Annual Report” 
 
 Information Report, April 13, 2022 – “2021 Bylaw Services Overview” 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

Upper Levels Greenway – Corridor Options and Public Engagement Launch 
– Project Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure 

 
REPORTS 
 
6. Upper Levels Greenway – Public Engagement Launch for Corridor Options 
 
7. 2022 Tax Rates Bylaw 
 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
8. “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2022, No. 8919” 
 
REPORT 
 
9. Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) 

Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc.) 
 
BYLAW – RESCIND SECOND READING 
 
10. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” (Victoria 

Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith Road, 
CD-741) 

 
BYLAW – AMEND SECOND READING AND SECOND READING, AS AMENDED 
 
11. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” (Victoria 

Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith Road, 
CD-741) 

 
BYLAW – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
12. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923” (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp 

Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith Road, CD-741, Rental Housing 
Commitments) 

 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – April 25, 2022 Page 3 
 
REPORT 
 
13. Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd. / 

IBI Group Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 
Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome 
Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 

 
BYLAW – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
14. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8921” (Polygon 

Development 338 Ltd. / IBI Group Architects, 114-132 West 15th Street, CD-752), 
and Text Amendment to Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd 
Street, and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 

 
REPORT 
 
15. Streamlining of Development Variance Permit Requests 
 
PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD  
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – April 25, 2022 Page 4 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, April 25, 2022 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, April 11, 2022 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 

Day of Mourning – April 28, 2022 

Youth Week – May 1 to 7, 2022 

Child Care Month – May 2022 

MS Awareness Month – May 2022 
 
PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 
The Public Input Period is addressed in sections 12.20 to 12.28 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, 
No. 8500.”  The time allotted for each speaker addressing Council during the Public Input Period is 
2 minutes, with the number of speakers set at 5 persons.  Speakers’ comments will be audio 
recorded, as well as live-streamed on the City’s website, and will form part of the public record. 
 
Speakers during the Public Input Period are permitted to join the meeting electronically via Webex 
or in person in the Council Chamber.  
 
There are 2 ways to sign up to speak during the Public Input Period. 

1) Speakers who choose to participate electronically must pre-register by 12:00 noon on the day 
of the Council meeting by completing the online form at cnv.org/PublicInputPeriod, or by 
phoning 604-990-4230 to provide contact information.  Pre-registrants will receive instructions 
via email or phone on the afternoon of the Council meeting, including a request to connect to 
the meeting 15-30 minutes before the meeting start time. 

2) Speakers who choose to participate in person must sign the speaker list located outside the 
Council Chamber between 5:30 and 5:55 pm on the day of the Council meeting. 

 
If a speaker has written material to accompany their comments, the material must be sent to the 
Corporate Officer at clerks@cnv.org no later than 12:00 noon on the day of the Council Meeting. 
 
The Public Input Period offers an opportunity to express comments only; Council is there to listen 
only and questions will not be responded to.  Speakers must comply with the General Rules of 
Conduct set out in section 5.1 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500” and may not speak 
with respect to items listed in section 12.25(2). 
 
Speakers are not to address matters that refer to items from a concluded Public Hearing or Public 
Meeting.  When a Public Hearing or Public Meeting is scheduled on the same evening’s agenda, 
speakers are asked to only provide input when that matter comes forward for discussion on the 
agenda in order for the comments to be considered as part of the particular Public Hearing or Public 
Meeting.  Otherwise the input cannot be considered or form part of the official record. 
 
Please address the Mayor as “Your Worship” or “Mayor, followed by his/her surname”.   
Councillors should be addressed as “Councillor, followed by their surname”.  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – April 25, 2022 Page 5 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Item *3 is listed in the Consent Agenda for consideration. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT the recommendation listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 
START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
BYLAW – ADOPTION 
 
*3. “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2022, No. 8924” 

(2022 Capital Plan Funding) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2022, 
No. 8924” (2022 Capital Plan Funding) be adopted, signed by the Mayor and 
Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – 364 East 14th Street – 6:00 pm 
 
“Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8904” (Karl Wein / 
Bradbury Architecture, 364 East 14th Street, CD-750) and “Heritage Designation Bylaw, 
2022, No. 8905” (Karl Wein / Bradbury Architecture, 364 East 14th Street) would rezone 
the subject property from a One-Unit Residential 1 (RS-1) Zone to a Comprehensive 
Development 750 (CD-750) Zone to permit the development of an infill duplex, to 
support the retention and designation of the existing Heritage ‘A’ building. 
 
Bylaw Nos. 8904 and 8905 to be considered under Items 4 and 5. 
 

AGENDA 
 
Staff presentation 
Applicant presentation 
Representations from the public 
Questions of Council 
Motion to conclude the Public Hearing 

 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – April 25, 2022 Page 6 
 
BYLAWS – THIRD READING 
 
4. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8904” (Karl Wein / 

Bradbury Architecture, 364 East 14th Street, CD-750) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8904” 
(Karl Wein / Bradbury Architecture, 364 East 14th Street, CD-750) be given third 
reading. 

 
5. “Heritage Designation Bylaw, 2022, No. 8905” (Karl Wein / Bradbury Architecture, 

364 East 14th Street) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Heritage Designation Bylaw, 2022, No. 8905” (Karl Wein / Bradbury 
Architecture, 364 East 14th Street) be given third reading. 

 
PRESENTATION 
 

Fire Department 2021 Annual Report – Public Safety Director and Fire Chief 
 

 Information Report, April 13, 2022 – “Fire Department 2021 Annual Report” 
 
 Information Report, April 13, 2022 – “2021 Bylaw Services Overview” 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

Upper Levels Greenway – Corridor Options and Public Engagement Launch 
– Project Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure 

 
 Item 6 refers. 
 
REPORTS 
 
6. Upper Levels Greenway – Public Engagement Launch for Corridor Options 

– File: 16-8350-20-0039/1 
 

Report: Project Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure, April 13, 2022 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Project Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure, 
dated April 13, 2022, entitled “Upper Levels Greenway – Public Engagement 
Launch for Corridor Options”: 
 
THAT the draft project vision for the Upper Levels Greenway, reflecting the key 
priorities of the community, be endorsed; 
 
AND THAT staff be directed to initiate the next public engagement phase. 

 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – April 25, 2022 Page 7 
 
REPORTS – Continued  
 
7. 2022 Tax Rates Bylaw – File: 05-1970-05-0005/2022 
 

Report: Chief Financial Officer, April 13, 2022 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated April 13, 2022, 
entitled “2022 Tax Rates Bylaw”: 
 
THAT “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2022, No. 8919” be considered. 
 
Item 8 refers. 

 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
8. “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2022, No. 8919” 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2022, No. 8919” be given first, second and third 
readings. 

 
REPORT 
 
9. Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) 

Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc.) – File: 08-3400-20-0058/1 
 

Report: Planner 2, April 13, 2022 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated April 13, 2022, entitled “Zoning 
Bylaw Amendment for 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp 
Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc.)”: 
 
THAT second reading of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 
2021, No. 8877” (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture 
Inc., 115 East Keith Road, CD-741) be rescinded; 
 

Continued… 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – April 25, 2022 Page 8 
 
REPORT – Continued  
 
9. Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) 

Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc.) – File: 08-3400-20-0058/1 – Continued 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” 
Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith 
Road, CD-741) be amended in Part B(6)(a), as follows: 
 

 (6) Off-Street Parking and Short-Term and Secure Bicycle Parking  
shall be provided in conformity with the requirements of Division IV, 
Parts 9, and 10A, except that: 

 
(a) A maximum of 39% small car parking spaces may be 

provided; 
 
THAT Part B(6)(b) be deleted; 
 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” 
(Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith 
Road, CD-741), be given second reading, as amended, and referred to a Public 
Hearing; 

 
THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923” (Victoria Park (Denna 
Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith Road, CD-741, Rental 
Housing Commitments) be considered and referred to the same Public Hearing; 
 
THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act; 
 
THAT the community benefits listed in the report section “Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits” be secured through agreements at the applicant’s expense 
and to the satisfaction of staff; 
 
AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the necessary 
documentation to give effect to this motion. 

 
Items 10, 11 and 12 refer. 

 
BYLAW – RESCIND SECOND READING 
 
10. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” (Victoria 

Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith Road, 
CD-741) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT second reading of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 
2021, No. 8877” (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture 
Inc., 115 East Keith Road, CD-741) be rescinded. 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – April 25, 2022 Page 9 
 
BYLAW – AMEND SECOND READING AND SECOND READING, AS AMENDED 
 
11. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” (Victoria 

Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith Road, 
CD-741) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT second reading of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 
2021, No. 8877” (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture 
Inc., 115 East Keith Road, CD-741) be amended and given second reading, as 
amended. 

 
BYLAW – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
12. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923” (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp 

Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith Road, CD-741, Rental Housing 
Commitments) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923” (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) 
GP Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith Road, CD-741, Rental Housing 
Commitments) be given first and second readings. 

 
REPORT 
 
13. Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd. / 

IBI Group Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 
Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome 
Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) – File: 08-3400-20-0060/1 

 
Report: Planner 2, April 13, 2022 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated April 13, 2022, entitled 
“Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd. / 
IBI Group Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 
Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome 
Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165)”: 
 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8921” (Polygon 
Development 338 Ltd. / IBI Group Architects, 114-132 West 15th Street, CD-752), 
and Text Amendment to Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd 
Street, and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) be 
considered and referred to a Public Hearing;  
 

Continued… 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – April 25, 2022 Page 10 
 
REPORT – Continued  
 
13. Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd. / 

IBI Group Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 
Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome 
Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) – File: 08-3400-20-0060/1 – Continued  
 
THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act; 
 
THAT the community benefits listed in the report section “Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits” be secured through agreements at the applicant’s expense 
and to the satisfaction of staff; 

 
THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the necessary 
documentation to permit solar shades, which are permanently affixed to the 
proposed building as an encroachment over City property; 
 
AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign any other 
necessary documentation to give effect to this motion. 
 
Item 14 refers. 

 
BYLAW – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
14. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8921” (Polygon 

Development 338 Ltd. / IBI Group Architects, 114-132 West 15th Street, CD-752), 
and Text Amendment to Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd 
Street, and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8921” 
(Polygon Development 338 Ltd. / IBI Group Architects, 114-132 West 15th Street, 
CD-752), and Text Amendment to Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 
116 East 23rd Street, and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, 
CD-165) be given first and second readings. 

 
REPORT 
 
15. Streamlining of Development Variance Permit Requests – File: 01-0125-01-0001/2022 
 

Report: Director, Planning and Development, April 13, 2022 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, Planning and Development, dated April 
13, 2022, entitled “Streamlining Development Variance Permit Requests”: 
 
THAT staff be directed to bring forward a bylaw to amend the Development 
Procedures Bylaw, with proposed provisions to delegate authority for issuance of 
Development Variance Permits for minor variances. 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – April 25, 2022 Page 11 
 
PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 
The Public Clarification Period is limited to 10 minutes in total and is an opportunity for 
the public to ask a question regarding process or clarification on an item on the Regular 
Council Agenda. The Public Clarification Period concludes after 10 minutes and the 
Regular Council Meeting reconvenes. 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, pursuant 
to the Community Charter, Section 90(1)(e) [land matter]. 

 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
ADJOURN 
 



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 
 
 

Document Number: 1914910 v3 

PUBLIC HEARING / PUBLIC MEETING GUIDELINES 
 
The purpose of Public Hearings is to provide members of the public an opportunity to 
make representations to Council regarding proposed changes to zoning bylaws, 
heritage designations or the Official Community Plan.  Public Hearings are included as 
part of a Regular Council agenda and governed by the provisions of the Local 
Government Act.   
 
The purpose of Public Meetings is to provide members of the public an opportunity to 
make representations to Council regarding various issues and/or proposed changes 
that do not require a Public Hearing, such as a Development Variance Permit or 
Temporary Use Permit. North Vancouver residents can participate in the civic process 
of a Public Meeting that may affect their community, property and interests. 
 
All persons who believe their interest in property is affected by a proposed bylaw or 
permit are afforded a reasonable opportunity to be heard, voice concerns or present 
written submissions regarding matters contained within the bylaw/permit. 
 
All written submissions and representations made at a Public Hearing or Public Meeting 
will form part of the official public record.  Minutes of the Public Hearing/Public Meeting 
and a video recording of the proceedings will be posted on the City’s website at cnv.org. 
 
To provide written input:  All written submissions must include your name and address.  
If this information is not provided, it cannot be included as part of the public record.  
Email submissions sent to the Corporate Officer at input@cnv.org are preferred, and 
hand-delivered or mailed submissions will also be accepted.  The deadline to submit 
written submissions is 12:00 noon on the day of the Public Hearing/Public 
Meeting. 
 
To speak at a Public Hearing or Public Meeting: 
 
Via Webex/phone: Pre-register by completing the online form at cnv.org/PublicHearings, 
or by phoning 604-990-4230 to provide contact details, so call-in instructions can be 
forwarded to you. All Webex/phone pre-registration must be submitted no later 
than 12:00 noon on the day of the Public Hearing/Public Meeting. 
 
In person at City Hall: On the day of the meeting, a sign-up sheet will be available at 
City Hall reception (14th Street entrance) between 9:00am and 4:00pm, and then 
outside the Council Chamber from 5:30pm.  Enter City Hall through the doors at the 
southwest corner of the building (i.e. staff entrance off 13th Street) after 5:30pm. 
 
Non-registered speakers: Speakers who have not pre-registered will also have an 
opportunity to provide input. Once all registered speakers have spoken, the Mayor will 
call for a recess to allow time for additional speakers to phone in or speak in person.  
Call-in details will be displayed on-screen during the livestream at cnv.org/ 
LiveStreaming. 

Continued… 

mailto:input@cnv.org


 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 
 
 

Document Number: 1914910 v3 

PUBLIC HEARING / PUBLIC MEETING GUIDELINES – Continued 
 
Comments from the public must specifically relate to the proposed bylaw/permit or 
subject of the Public Hearing/Public Meeting.  Speakers are asked to avoid repetitive 
comments and not to divert to other matters. 
 
Speakers will be asked to confirm their name and address for the record and will be 
provided one 5-minute opportunity to present their comments.  Everyone will be given a 
reasonable opportunity to be heard and no one should feel discouraged or prevented 
from making their views known. 
 
Procedural rules for the conduct of a Public Hearing/Public Meeting are set at the call of 
the Chair.  Council’s main function is to listen to the views of the public regarding the 
change of land use in the proposed bylaw/permit.  It is not the function of Council to 
debate the merits of an application with speakers.  Questions from members of the 
public and Council must be addressed through the Chair. 
 
Once the Public Hearing/Public Meeting concludes, no further information or 
submissions can be considered by Council. 
 
Following adjournment of the Public Hearing/Public Meeting, the Regular meeting 
reconvenes and the bylaw/permit is discussed and debated by members of Council, 
followed by consideration of third reading of the bylaw or approval of the permit. 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Document Number: 2166887 

 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBER AND ELECTRONICALLY (HYBRID) FROM CITY HALL, 
141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, ON MONDAY,  
APRIL 11, 2022 

 
 
 

PRESENT 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

 
 

STAFF MEMBERS 
 

Mayor L. Buchanan 
Councillor D. Bell 
Councillor A. Girard* 
Councillor T. Hu* 
Councillor J. McIlroy 
Councillor T. Valente 
 
*participated electronically 
 
ABSENT 
 
Councillor H. Back 
 
 
 

L. McCarthy, CAO 
K. Graham, Corporate Officer 
B. Pearce, Deputy CAO / Director, Strategic and Corporate 

Services 
C. Baird, Deputy Corporate Officer 
J. Peters, Assistant City Clerk 
H. Granger, City Solicitor 
L. Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 
L. Garber, Deputy Director, Finance 
M. Epp, Director, Planning and Development 
A. Devlin, Manager, Transportation Planning 
R. de St. Croix, Manager, Long Range and Community Planning 
Y. Zeng, Manager, Development Planning 
B. Underhill, Planner, Transportation 
H. Dang, Planner 
K. Magnusson, Acting Director, Engineering, Parks and 

Environment 
R. Skene, Director, Community and Partner Engagement 
K. Chan, Manager, Information Technology 
J. Roy, Manager, Civic Facilities 
D. Hutchison Koep, Chief Librarian 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, April 11, 2022 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, April 4, 2022  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 
Nil. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 2 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 11, 2022 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT the recommendations listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 

BYLAWS – ADOPTION 
 
*3. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8849” (Karl Wein / 

Bradbury Architecture, 261-263 West 6th Street, CD-736) 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8849” (Karl Wein / 
Bradbury Architecture, 261-263 West 6th Street, CD-736) be adopted, signed by the 
Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
 
*4. “Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2022, No. 

8909” 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT “Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2022, 
No. 8909” be adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the 
corporate seal. 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
 
*5. “Local Area Service Parcel Tax Bylaw, 2022, No. 8913” (Paved lane east of the 1700 

block of Fell Avenue between East 17th Street and the dead end north) 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT “Local Area Service Parcel Tax Bylaw, 2022, No. 8913” (Paved lane east of the 
1700 block of Fell Avenue between East 17th Street and the dead end north) be 
adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate 
seal. 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
 
*6. “Local Area Service Parcel Tax Bylaw, 2022, No. 8914” (Paved lane north of the 600 

block of East Keith Road from Sutherland Avenue to the dead end west) 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT “Local Area Service Parcel Tax Bylaw, 2022, No. 8914” (Paved lane north of the 
600 block of East Keith Road from Sutherland Avenue to the dead end west) be 
adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate 
seal. 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 3 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 11, 2022 

CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 
 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION – Continued  
 
*7. “Drinking Water Conservation Plan Bylaw, 2018, No. 8627, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, 

No. 8915” (Update in Accordance with Metro Vancouver Drinking Water Conservation 
Plan as amended November 1, 2021) 

 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT “Drinking Water Conservation Plan Bylaw, 2018, No. 8627, Amendment Bylaw, 
2022, No. 8915” (Update in Accordance with Metro Vancouver Drinking Water 
Conservation Plan as amended November 1, 2021) be adopted, signed by the Mayor 
and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
 
*8. “Financial Plan for the Years 2022 to 2026 Bylaw, 2022, No. 8918” 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT “Financial Plan for the Years 2022 to 2026 Bylaw, 2022, No. 8918” be adopted, 
signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
*9. Board in Brief, Metro Vancouver Regional District, March 25, 2022 

– File: 01-0400-60-0006/2022 
 
 Re: Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT the correspondence from Metro Vancouver, dated March 25, 2022, regarding 
the “Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief”, be received and filed. 

 
(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – 502 East 5th Street – Continued 
Recessed from April 4, 2022 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT the meeting recess to the Public Hearing regarding “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 
6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8911” (Mehrdad Rahbar / Vernacular Studio Inc., 
502 East 5th Street, RS-2). 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 4 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 11, 2022 

The meeting recessed to the Public Hearing at 6:01 pm and reconvened at 6:24 pm.  
 
BYLAW – THIRD READING 
 
10. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8911” (Mehrdad 

Rahbar / Vernacular Studio Inc., 502 East 5th Street, RS-2) 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8911” (Mehrdad 
Rahbar / Vernacular Studio Inc., 502 East 5th Street, RS-2) be given third reading. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
MOTION 
 
11. Development Variance Permit No. PLN2021-00006 (502 East 5th Street) 

– File:  08-3400-20-0050/1 
 

Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 
THAT Development Variance Permit No. PLN2021-00006 (502 East 5th Street) be 
issued to 1008681 B.C. LTD., in accordance with Section 490 of the Local 
Government Act; 
 
AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign Development 
Variance Permit No. PLN2021-00006, following adoption of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 
6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8911” (Mehrdad Rahbar / Vernacular Studio Inc., 
502 East 5th Street, RS-2). 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

REPORT 
 
12. 2022 Appropriations #1 – File: 05-1705-30-0019/2022 
 

Report: Chief Financial Officer, March 30, 2022 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated March 30, 2022, entitled 
“2022 Appropriations #1”: 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2207) an amount of $3,206,029 be appropriated from 
the General Capital Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2022 Capital Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2208) an amount of $35,000 be appropriated from the 
Fire Equipment Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2022 Capital Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2209) an amount of $65,000 be appropriated from the 
Carbon Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2022 Capital Plan;  

Continued… 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 5 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 11, 2022 

REPORT – Continued  
 
12. 2022 Appropriations #1 – File: 05-1705-30-0019/2022 – Continued  
 

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2210) an amount of $551,500 be appropriated from the 
Civic Amenity Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2022 Capital Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2211) an amount of $500,000 be appropriated from the 
Infrastructure Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2022 Capital Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2212) an amount of $500,000 be appropriated from the 
Tax Sale Land Interest Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2022 Capital Plan; 
 
THAT “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2022, No. 
8924” (2022 Capital Plan Funding), a Bylaw to appropriate an amount of $148,500 
from the DCC (Transportation) Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the 2022 
Capital Plan, be considered; 
 
AND THAT should any of the amounts remain unexpended as at December 31, 2025, 
the unexpended balances shall be returned to the credit of the respective fund. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
13. “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2022, No. 8924” 

(2022 Capital Plan Funding) 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2022, No. 
8924” (2022 Capital Plan Funding) be given first, second and third readings. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

REPORTS 
 
14. 2022 Property Tax Increase Distribution Options – File: 05-1970-05-0005/2022 
 

Report: Chief Financial Officer, March 30, 2022 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated March 30, 2022, entitled 
“2022 Property Tax Increase Distribution Options”: 
 
THAT an across the board 2022 Property Tax Increase of 3.75% be endorsed; 
 
AND THAT staff be directed to bring forward a Tax Rate Bylaw (2022) that must be 
adopted before May 15, 2022, in accordance with the Community Charter. 

 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 6 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 11, 2022 

REPORTS – Continued  
 
15. UBCM 2022 Strengthening Communities’ Services Program – North Shore Application 

– File: 05-1855-20-0051/1 
 

Report: Manager, Long Range and Community Planning, March 30, 2022 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Mayor Buchanan 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the, Manager, Long Range and Community Planning, 
dated March 30, 2022, entitled “UBCM 2022 Strengthening Communities’ Services 
Program – North Shore Application”: 
 
THAT staff be directed to work with the District of North Vancouver and the District of 
West Vancouver to submit a joint regional application for the North Shore to secure 
funding under the Union of British Columbia Municipalities’ (UBCM’s) 2022 
Strengthening Communities’ Services Program; 
 
THAT Council endorse the City of North Vancouver as the applicant for the North 
Shore application, to apply for, receive and manage the 2022 UBCM Strengthening 
Communities’ Services grant funding on behalf of the North Shore municipalities;  
 
AND THAT should the grant funding be approved and received, staff be directed to 
implement the project. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

City of North Vancouver Mobility Strategy – Manager, Transportation Planning 
 
The Manager, Transportation Planning provided a PowerPoint presentation regarding the 
City of North Vancouver Mobility Strategy and responded to questions of Council. 
 
REPORT 
 
16. City of North Vancouver Mobility Strategy – File: 16-8350-20-0036/1 
 

Report: Planner 2, Transportation, March 30, 2022 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated March 30, 2022, entitled “City of 
North Vancouver Mobility Strategy”: 
 
THAT the “City of North Vancouver Mobility Strategy” be endorsed; 
 
AND THAT staff report back to Council with annual updates regarding progress toward 
achieving the vision, goals and actions outlined in the Strategy, starting in 2023. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 7 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 11, 2022 

PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 
Nil. 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
Nil. 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
Nil. 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
Nil. 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, pursuant to the 
Community Charter, Section 90(1)(e) [land matter] and 90(1)(k) [proposed service]. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

The meeting recessed to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, at 7:36 pm and 
reconvened at 8:05 pm. 
 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
17. Closure and Disposition of Road Adjacent to 1345 Delbruck Avenue 
 – File: 06-2260-01-0001/2022 
 

Report: Manager, Real Estate, and Manager, Development Planning, March 24, 
2022  

 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, Real Estate, and the Manager, 
Development Planning, dated March 24, 2022, entitled “Closure and Disposition of 
Road Adjacent to 1345 Delbruck Avenue”: 
 
THAT staff be directed to bring forward a bylaw to stop up, close and raise title to a 
portion of the street adjacent to 1345 Delbruck Avenue (the “Street”); 
 
THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to execute a Purchase and Sale 
Agreement with the owners of 1345 Delbruck Avenue for $120,000 for the sale of 
approximately 880.2 square feet (81.8 square metres) of roadway, including raising 
title to the Street, subject to consolidation with the property at 1345 Delbruck Avenue; 

 

Continued… 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 8 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 11, 2022 

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) – Continued  
 
17. Closure and Disposition of Road Adjacent to 1345 Delbruck Avenue 
 – File: 06-2260-01-0001/2022 – Continued  
 

THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign any other necessary 
documentation to give effect to this motion; 
 
THAT notice of the highway closure, removal of highway dedication and Notice of 
Disposition be given in accordance with the Community Charter; 
 
AND THAT the report of the Manager, Real Estate, and the Manager, Development 
Planning, dated March 24, 2022, entitled “Closure and Disposition of Road Adjacent to 
1345 Delbruck Avenue”, remain in the Closed session. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

18. Preliminary Report – Consideration of Lonsdale Energy Corporation Mini-Plant as In-
Kind Amenity – 114-132 West 15th Street Rezoning Application (Polygon Development 
338 Ltd. / IBI Group Architects) – File: 08-3400-20-0060/1 

 
Report: Planner 2, March 30, 2022  

 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated March 30, 2022, entitled “Preliminary 
Report – Consideration of Lonsdale Energy Corporation Mini-Plant as In-Kind Amenity 
– 114-132 West 15th Street Rezoning Application (Polygon Development 338 Ltd. / IBI 
Group Architects)”: 
 
THAT staff be directed to continue processing the rezoning application for the 
properties located at 114-132 West 15th Street and to negotiate an on-site community 
benefit contribution in the form of a Lonsdale Energy Corp. mini-plant room, as 
outlined in the report; 
 
THAT staff be directed to explore options for cost recovery with Lonsdale Energy 
Corp.; 

 
AND THAT the report of the Planner 2, dated March 30, 2022, entitled “Preliminary 
Report – Consideration of Lonsdale Energy Corporation Mini-Plant as In-Kind Amenity 
– 114-132 West 15th Street Rezoning Application (Polygon Development 338 Ltd. / IBI 
Group Architects)”, remain in the Closed session. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 9 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 11, 2022 

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) – Continued  
 
19. Cloverley Elementary School – Proposed Child Care Update  

– File: 10-4750-01-0001/2022 
 

Report: Director, Planning and Development, April 11, 2022  
 

Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 
PURSUANT to the report of the Director, Planning and Development, dated April 
11, 2022, entitled “Cloverley Elementary School – Proposed Childcare Update”: 
 
THAT Council support a grant application to the Ministry of Children and Family 
Development’s New Spaces Fund, seeking a capital contribution for a substantial 
new child care facility to be integrated within a new Cloverley Elementary School; 
 
AND THAT the report of the Director, Planning and Development, dated April 11, 
2022, entitled “Cloverley Elementary School – Proposed Child Care Update”, remain in 
the Closed session. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 
 THAT the meeting adjourn. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:06 pm. 
 
 
“Certified Correct by the Corporate Officer” 
____________________________________ 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Office of the Mayor 
  

CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 

BRITISH COLUMBIA 
 

cÜÉvÄtÅtà|ÉÇ 
 

 

DAY OF MOURNING 
 

j{xÜxtá  the Parliament of Canada passed the Workers Mourning Day Act in 

1991, making April 28 an official Day of Mourning; 

j{xÜxtá  in British Columbia alone, 161 workers lost their lives in 2021 as a 

result of workplace injury and occupational disease;  

j{xÜxtá  annual observance of this day provides an opportunity to raise public 

awareness of occupational health and safety and strengthen our 

resolve for the business community to establish safe and healthy 

conditions in the workplace; and  

j{xÜxtá  the Day of Mourning honours the memory of those who have lost their 

lives, been injured or suffered from work related incidents or disease; 

aÉã g{xÜxyÉÜx  I, Linda Buchanan, Mayor of the City of North Vancouver, do hereby 

proclaim April 28, 2022 as Day of Mourning in the City of North 

Vancouver, the traditional territories of the Squamish and Tsleil‐

Waututh Nations. 

 
 

So proclaimed on Monday, April 25, 2022 

 

__________________________________ 

Mayor Linda Buchanan 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Office of the Mayor 
  

CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 

BRITISH COLUMBIA 
 

cÜÉvÄtÅtà|ÉÇ 
 

 

YOUTH WEEK 
 

j{xÜxtá  BC Youth Week has been a provincial celebration since 1995, to 

promote connections between youth and their communities; 

j{xÜxtá  youth in the City of North Vancouver are valued members of our 

community who, through their energy, involvement and enthusiasm, 

contribute to the well‐being of our city; and 

j{xÜxtá  the celebration of youth in the City of North Vancouver and in  

municipalities across British Columbia during Youth Week will 

encourage youth participation in positive activities and will encourage 

a greater understanding and acceptance of youth issues, 

accomplishments and diversity; 

aÉã g{xÜxyÉÜx  I, Linda Buchanan, Mayor of the City of North Vancouver, do hereby 

proclaim May 1 to 7, 2022 as Youth Week in the City of North 

Vancouver, the traditional territories of the Squamish and Tsleil‐

Waututh Nations. 

 
 

So proclaimed on Monday, April 25, 2022 

 

__________________________________ 

Mayor Linda Buchanan 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Office of the Mayor 
  

CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 

BRITISH COLUMBIA 
 

cÜÉvÄtÅtà|ÉÇ 
 

 

CHILD CARE MONTH 
 

j{xÜxtá  many individuals, organizations and municipalities throughout British 

Columbia have, since 1982, recognized May as Child Care Month with 

organized events to highlight the role that quality child care plays in 

communities; 

j{xÜxtá  child care is an essential community service that supports healthy 

families and a healthy economy; 

j{xÜxtá  quality early child care and learning programs contribute to healthy 

childhood development and readiness to learn; and 

j{xÜxtá  the importance of quality, affordable and accessible child care services 

are recognized through City programs, policies, strategies and ongoing 

collaboration with agencies and groups that support and provide child 

care throughout our community; 

aÉã g{xÜxyÉÜx  I, Linda Buchanan, Mayor of the City of North Vancouver, do hereby 

proclaim May 2022 as Child Care Month in the City of North 

Vancouver, the traditional territories of the Squamish and Tsleil‐

Waututh Nations. 

 
 

So proclaimed on Monday, April 25, 2022 

 

__________________________________ 

Mayor Linda Buchanan 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Office of the Mayor 
  

CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 

BRITISH COLUMBIA 
 

cÜÉvÄtÅtà|ÉÇ 
 

 

MS AWARENESS MONTH 
 

j{xÜxtá  Multiple Sclerosis (MS) is a chronic, often disabling neurological 

disease for which there is no known cause, prevention or cure, and 

symptoms may include problems with numbness, coordination, vision 

and speech, extreme fatigue and even paralysis; 

j{xÜxtá  Canada has one of the highest rates of MS in the world, with an 

estimated 90,000 Canadians living with the disease, including more 

than 12,000 British Columbians; and 

j{xÜxtá  BC continues to lead the way in MS research and the Multiple Sclerosis 

Society of Canada, founded in 1948, is the only national voluntary 

organization in Canada that supports both MS research and services to 

enhance quality of life and to find a cure for people living with MS; 

aÉã g{xÜxyÉÜx  I, Linda Buchanan, Mayor of the City of North Vancouver, do hereby 

proclaim May 2022 as MS Awareness Month in the City of North 

Vancouver, the traditional territories of the Squamish and Tsleil‐

Waututh Nations. 

 
 

So proclaimed on Monday, April 25, 2022 

 

__________________________________ 

Mayor Linda Buchanan 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8924 Document: 2162647-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8924 

A Bylaw to authorize the expenditure of monies from the 
Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund 

for the 2022 Capital Plan Appropriations. 

WHEREAS the entire City is listed in “Development Cost Charges Bylaw, 2016, No. 8471” as an 
area where development cost charges for transportation will be levied; 
 
AND WHEREAS the development of highway facilities, other than off street parking, is a capital 
cost permitted to be paid using Development Cost Charge funds under Section 566 of the Local 
Government Act; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Development Cost Charge 

(Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2022, No. 8924” (2022 Capital Plan Funding). 
 
2. The following amount is hereby appropriated from the Development Cost Charge 

(Transportation) Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding: 
 

A. $ 148,500 for the “New Sidewalks to Complete the Pedestrian Network” project. 
 
 

READ a first time on the 11th day of April, 2022. 

READ a second time on the 11th day of April, 
2022. 

READ a third time on the 11th day of April, 
2022. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



fr ✓4—^
HTCTT

Department
Manager

Director CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Matthew Menzel, Planner 2

Subject: REZONING APPLICATION AND HERITAGE DESIGNATION - 364 EAST
14th  STREET (KARL WEIN / BRADBURY ARCHITECTURE)

Date: March 16,2022 File No: 08-3400-20-0001/1

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated March 16, 2022, entitled 
“Rezoning Application and Heritage Designation - 364 East 14th Street (Karl 
Wein / Bradbury Architecture)”:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8904” (Karl 
Wein / Bradbury Architecture, 364 East 14th Street, CD-750) be considered and 
referred to a public hearing;

That “Heritage Designation Bylaw, 2022, No. 8905” (Karl Wein / Bradbury 
Architecture, 364 East 14th Street) be considered and referred to the same public 
hearing;

AND THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government 
Act.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Context Map (CityDocs 2125020)
2. Architectural Drawings dated 23 February, 2022 (CityDocs 2151246)
3. Landscape Plan, dated 18 October, 2021 (CityDocs 2110720)
4. Tree Retention Plan, dated October 19, 2021 (CityDocs 2110721)
5. Conservation Plan (CityDocs 1916290)
6. Heritage Advisory Committee Resolution, dated December 16, 2019 (CityDocs 

2127025)

Document Number: 2124931: V7



REPORT: Rezoning Application for 364 East 14th Street (Karl Wein/Bradbury Architecture)
Date: March 16, 2022

7. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8904” (CityDocs 
2127018)

8. “Heritage Designation Bylaw, 2022, No. 8905” (CityDocs 2134624)

SUMMARY

This report seeks Council approval for a heritage retention and infill development. The 
proposal includes a Heritage Designation Bylaw to protect the existing Heritage ‘A’ 
building on the site in perpetuity.

BACKGROUND

Applicant: Karl Wein, Karl Wein and Associates
Architect: Bradbury Architecture
Official Community
Plan Designation:

Residential Level 2 (R2)

Existing Zoning: RS-1
Applicable Guidelines: N/A

DISCUSSION 

Site Context

This 817.5-square metre (8,800 square feet) site is located on the northwest corner of 
East 14th Street and Ridgeway Avenue in the Central Lonsdale neighbourhood. The site 
has a frontage of 18.3 metres (60 feet) along 14th Street and 44.7 metres (146.7 feet) 
along Ridgeway Avenue and is relatively flat.

Heritage Designation

Heritage Value of Buildinp

Located on site is a heritage building identified on the City’s heritage register as 
MacLeod House. The building is A-listed and has been recognized as having significant 
heritage value. See figure 1 below.

Figure 1: Heritage Register entry for MacLeod House

MacLEOD RESIDENCE 
364 East 14th Street 
1921
REGISTER RANKING: A

B
uilt on «i speculative basis by D.P. Clark, the first residents of this home were World 
War One veteran William Ray MacLeod {1892-1934), a schoolteacher and later 
school inspector, and his wife, Bejulah Rossland (n£e Champion, 1896-1978); the 
MacLeods were married in 1921. This attractive bungalow illustrates the persistence of the 

popular Craftsman style after the end of the war. One-and-one-half storeys in height, the 
house features a side-gabled roof, inset front verandah and a central shed-roofed dormer. 
The verandah columns display the tapering effect that is one of the characteristics of the 
Craftsman style, and the unique openwork balustrade is an original feature.

Page 2 of 7



REPORT: Rezoning Application for 364 East 14th Street (Karl Wein/Bradbury Architecture)
Date: March 16, 2022

Compatibility of Conservation with Area and Property

The surrounding area consists of detached houses and duplexes, with some large multi- 
residential development to the west along East 14th Street. The buildings and uses 
immediately surrounding the subject site are described and shown in Table 1 below.

Table 1. Surrounding Uses
Direction Address Description Zoning

North 367 East 15th Street Detached house RS-1

South 364 East 14th
Street Three (3) strata units CD-673

East 400 East 14th Street Detached house RS-1

West 358 East 14th Street Detached house CD-471

Planning Analysis

Heritage Conservation - Building Condition and Viability

The applicant’s Heritage Conservation Plan (Attachment #5) outlines the proposed 
conservation strategy to ensure the retention and rehabilitation of the Craftsman 
architectural style of the MacLeod House.

It is intended that the existing heritage house be retained as a single family dwelling. 

Minor works will be made to the house, including:

• removal of a window at the basement level, which will be infilled with materials 
that match the existing building;

• removal of the existing deck at the rear;
• removal of some windows and siding to create a new opening along the western 

elevation; and
• construction of a new deck to the western side.

Staff have reviewed the minor work proposed and support the work as they do not result 
in any significant alteration to the existing heritage building. Worth noting is the new 
deck on the west side of the building is to replace an existing deck at the rear of the 
building. It is proposed to be designed compatibly with the existing style of the house. 
Further, existing mature landscaping between the site and neighbor to the west will 
ensure privacy.

As part of this application, the ongoing protection of the house will be secured through a 
Heritage Designation Bylaw (Attachment #8). Any future alteration to the house will 
need to be authorized by a heritage alteration permit and done in accordance with the 
Heritage Conservation Plan (Attachment #5) which will be registered on title through a 
Heritage Conservation Covenant (Section 219).

Page 3 of 7



REPORT: Rezoning Application for 364 East 14th Street (Karl Wein/Bradbury Architecture)
Date: March 16, 2022

Infill Duplex

To help offset the costs associated with the heritage conservation efforts, including 
upgrades and securing a heritage designation of the property, the proposal includes a 
new infill duplex building at the rear of the site.

The proposed infill building has been oriented towards Ridgeway Avenue, with main 
entrances to the two units directly off of Ridgeway. Directly adjacent to the laneway are 
four surface parking spaces to serve the entire development.

The two-storey structure is designed to be compatible with the main house, 
incorporating several architectural features that are present in the MacLeod House, 
such as the shed roof, the veranda, similar building materials and colour palette.

Two accessory suites (i.e. secondary suites) are proposed, one for each of the primary 
units in the duplex. These suites will be accessed from the sides of the duplex, as well 
as internally to the units.

Siting of the new infill building has been considered so as to balance the positioning of 
the heritage building, while achieving a suitable rear boundary setback to the northern 
laneway. Given the existing heritage building has such a significant front boundary 
setback to East 14th Street, the proposal will involve a minor variation to the rear 
boundary setback requirement to ensure a suitable separation distance is achieved.

The new infill has been designed with a 4.8 metre building separation to the existing 
heritage building. The proposed separation will facilitate an adequate break in the form 
between the two buildings. Furthermore, the two existing significant landscaping trees 
will be retained along the frontage will further reduce the visual impacts of the 
development on the streetscape.

A summary of minor zoning variances are listed below and supported by staff:
Table 2. Requested Changes to the Zoning Bylaw

Current
Designation/Regulation (RT-1)

Proposed Designation/Regulation 
(CD-736)

Principal
Use

Two-Unit Residential Use Three principal dwelling units

Two Accessory suites
Principal
Building

One per lot Two per lot

GFA Combined an in total, shall not 
exceed 0.35 time the Lot Area 
plus 92.9 square metres (1,000 
square feet)

Combined and in total, shall not 
exceed 0.5 FSR

Garbage and recycling storage 
provided for private use shall be 
excluded

Page 4 of 7



REPORT: Rezoning Application for 364 East 14th Street (Karl Wein/Bradbury Architecture)
Date: March 16, 2022

Current
Designation/Regulation (RT-1)

Proposed Designation/Regulation 
(CD-736)

Lot
Coverage

35% 36.5%

Setbacks
(Principal
Buildings)

Principal Buildings shall be sited 
not less than 8 metres (26.2 feet) 
from the rear lot line.

Principal Building shall be sited not 
less than 6.8 metres (22.3 feet) from 
the rear lot line

Setbacks
(Accessory
Buildings)

Accessory Buildings shall be 
sited not less than 0.61 metres (2 
feet) from the Interior Side Lot
Line.

Accessory Buildings shall be sited 
not less than 0.2 metres (0.66 feet) 
from the Interior Side Lot Line.

Advisory Committees Review

Heritage Advisory Commission

The proposal was presented to the Heritage Advisory Commission in December 16, 
2019. The Commission supported the project subject to the following recommendations:

a. Ensure consistency between the Heritage Conversation Plan, landscape plan 
and architectural plans;

b. Confirm that there is adequate privacy achieved between the upper storey 
bedrooms of each building;

c. Further explore the colour palette for the infill building, perhaps by referring to the 
Benjamin Moore colour palette, so that a lighter palette and complementary 
colour for the infill building can be achieved.

With the current submission, staff are generally satisfied that the applicant has 
addressed the above recommendations.

Community Consultation

A Developer’s Information Session was held on October 8, 2019. Seven people 
attended. A total of four comment forms were submitted from the attendees; all of which 
were opposed to the development.

The main concerns were:
• Scale, form and density of the project;
• Impacts on privacy;
• Provision of car parking;
• Limited upgrades to the existing heritage building; and
• Vegetation removal and lack of greenspace.

As the proposal involves a Heritage Designation Bylaw, the proposed development is 
required to be referred to a Public Hearing under the provisions of the Local 
Government Act. It is also recommended that the Zoning Bylaw amendment also be 
referred to a Public Hearing.

Page 5 of 7



REPORT: Rezoning Application for 364 East 14th Street (Karl Wein/Bradbury Architecture)
Date: March 16, 2022

Staff responses:
The proposed development has been designed with an appropriate density of 0.5 FSR, 
as anticipated by the OCR and RT-1 zone, and has a modest site coverage of 36.5%. 
The proposed infill has been appropriately sited to ensure it will sensitively integrate 
with the existing heritage building, and result in an appropriate setback to the laneway.

Mitigating privacy concerns has been an important discussion point between staff and 
the applicant. The proposed development has been designed to mitigate potential 
overlooking of adjoining residents to the west, through the following design measures:

• orientation of the windows in the upper level bedrooms to the north and south;
• installation of frosted glazing to the west-facing windows in the upper level 

bathrooms;
• integration of a 6-foot-high, frosted glazing panel to the suspended decks of the 

new infill units; and
• Introduction of a landscaped screening buffer along the western boundary.

The proposal has also provided one additional car parking space compared to the 
zoning requirements to reduce the potential of on-street car parking.

Minor upgrades and restorative works are proposed to the MacLeod House to ensure its 
continued preservation and modern usage. These upgrades will also bring the heritage 
building up to current building code standards. Ongoing maintenance and alteration to 
the house will be managed through the Heritage Conservation Covenant.

Finally, the proposed development retains the majority of significant trees on site, along 
the Ridgeway frontage. The removal of a White Oak tree at the rear of the lot is 
necessary to accommodate parking. The retention of significant landscape trees on the 
site, along with the new landscaping treatments throughout the site, will enhance the 
streetscape character of the new infill duplex, and soften the built form elements.

Legal Documents

Should Council approve the proposal, the following legal documents would be required 
to be completed prior to final adoption of the Bylaw:

• Development Covenant;
• Servicing Agreement;
• Good Neighbour Agreement;
• Flooding Covenant; and
• Heritage Conservation Covenant (Section 219).

Page 6 of 7



REPORT: Rezoning Application for 364 East 14th Street (Karl Wein/Bradbury Architecture)
Date: March 16, 2022

CONCLUSION

This application would facilitate the long term protection of an important heritage asset 
and allow the increase and diversification of residential housing stock within the city. 
The proposal has been designed to be compatible with the neighborhood context and 
staff consider the design responses to address privacy concerns supportable.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Matthew Menzel 
Planner 2

Page 7 of 7



R
id

ge
w

ay
 A

ve

E 14th St E 14th St

E 15th St E 15th St

3
5

9

3
6

53 1 9

3
4

2

3
3

8

4
2

4

3
3

3

4
1

8

3
6

4

4
2

3

4
3

2

4
1

2

3
5

5

3
3

2

4
4

5

4
0

9

3
5

8

4
1

9

4
4

3

4
3

9

4
2

8

4
2

5

3
4

3

3
5

2

4
0

0
4

0
3

3
3

9

3
5

1

3
5

7

4
4

2

4
3

5

3
4

8

1
4

6
8

4
2

5

3
3

9

4
1

7

4
2

9

4
0

8

3 5 0

4
3

3

4
1

3

3
4

7

4
2

7

3
2

8

3
6

7

3
4

3

4
1

5

3
4

9

3
0

7

4
1

1

4
3

8

Context Map: 364 East 14th Street
Subject Site
Legal_Parcels
RoadCenterline

Aerial 2020

RGB
Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3

Attachment 1



P
P

S
IG

N

S
IG

N

S
IG

N

P
P

P
P

R
IM

 E
LE

V
=

371.3
M

H
  B

C
H

 (C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

)

S
IG

N

W
V

R
IM

 E
LE

V
=

368.2
M

H
  (C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
)

R
IM

 E
LE

V
=

368.4
M

H
  (C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
)

R
IM

 E
LE

V
=

367.5
M

H
 S

T
O

R
M

R
IM

 E
LE

V
=

369.8
M

H
 #2

R
IM

 E
LE

V
=

361.8
M

H

R
IM

E
LE

V
361

8
M

H

R
IM

 E
LE

V
=

365.5
M

H
R

IM
 E

LE
V

=
367.6

M
H

 #4

S
IG

N

100

LE
A

D
 P

L U
G

IR
O

N
 P

O
S

T

108

203

402

IRON POST

IR
O

N
 P

O
S

T

IR
O

N
 P

O
S

T

368.3

368.2
368.0

368.1
368.1

369.1

368.9

371.2

369.1
1"Ø

 C
O

N

368.3
10"Ø

 D
E

C

368.3
24"Ø

 D
E

C
369.3
18"Ø

 D
E

C

368.5
12"Ø

 D
E

C

368.3
6"Ø

 D
E

C

368.2
16"Ø

 D
E

C

372.0
39"Ø

 D
E

C

371.8
10"Ø

 D
E

C

372.4
16"Ø

 C
O

N

372.1
4"Ø

 D
E

C

370.0
12"Ø

 D
E

C

369.7
11"Ø

 D
E

C

3.6

DN

DN

DN

B

C

D

621

A2

A1

A

E

372.00

369.50

368.35

PROPOSED SETBACK

6.48 m (21.26')

PROPOSED BUILDING WIDTH

13.89 m (45.58')

BUILDING SEPARATION

4.60 m (15.08')

EXISTING BUILDING DEPTH

11.30 m (37.08')

EXISTING SETBACK

8.44 m (27.70')

369.20
371.37

369.24

8' - 9 3/4"
8' - 9 3/4"

34
' -

 0
 3

/8
"

34
' -

 0
 3

/8
"

R @ 0' - 7 1/2"10

33' - 3 3/8"
33' - 3 3/8"

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

6.
02

 m
 (

19
.7

5'
)

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 W
ID

T
H

7.
63

 m
 (

25
.0

4'
)

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

4.
63

 m
 (

15
.2

0'
)

15
' -

 2
 3

/8
"

15
' -

 2
 3

/8
"

P.L.   146.71'   (44.72 m)

P.L.   146.71'   (44.72 m)

P.
L.

   
59

.9
9'

   
(1

8.
28

 m
)

SETBACK

4.59 m (15.06')

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

4.
58

 m
 (

15
.0

1'
)

(8
' -

 6
")

2.
59

 m

(8
' -

 6
")

2.
59

 m

(8
' -

 6
")

2.
59

 m

(8
' -

 6
")

2.
59

 m

(18' - 0")

5.49 m

3
9

4 5 7
8

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

1.
67

 m
 (

5.
48

')

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 D
E

P
T

H

14
.2

1 
m

 (
46

.6
2'

)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

2.
40

 m
 (

7.
88

')

P.
L.

   
59

.9
9'

   
(1

8.
28

 m
)

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1/8" = 1'-0"
1 SITE  PLAN

DRAWING LIST

Sheet Sheet Name

A0.00 COVER SHEET
A1.00 HERITAGE HOUSE - EXISTING PLANS
A1.01 BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN - PROPOSED
A1.02 MAIN FLOOR PLAN - PROPOSED
A1.03 UPPER FLOOR PLAN - PROPOSED
A1.04 ROOF PLAN - PROPOSED
A1.05 AREA CALCULATIONS (G.F.A)
A1.06 SHADOW IMPACT STUDY
A2.00 INFILL - N & S ELEVATIONS
A2.01 INFILL & EXISTING H.H - E & W ELEVATIONS
A2.02 EXISTING H.H. - S & N ELEVATIONS
A2.03 INFILL - S & W ELEVATIONS (LDC)
A2.04 INFILL- E & N ELEVATIONS (LDC)
A3.00 SECTIONS
A4.00 DETAILS
A4.01 DETAILS
A4.02 DETAILS
A4.03 WINDOW & DOOR SCHEDULES

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27
2 OVERSIGHT COMMENTS 2022-02-23

12" = 1'-0"
CONTEXT PLAN

2 3D VIEW - EXISTING HERITAGE HOUSE & PROPOSED DUPLEX INFILL

jpeters�
Square
Attachment 2�



W
HW D

UP

121110987654321 REF.

DN

UP

DN

21

A2

A1

11
' -

 4
"

2'
 -

 1
1 

3/
4"

8'
 -

 6
"

10' - 1 1/8" 17' - 7 1/2"

11
' -

 3
 3

/4
"

4'
 -

 0
"

7'
 -

 1
 3

/4
"

8' - 7 1/8"

7' - 2" 7' - 0 1/2"13' - 1 7/8"

2'
 -

 1
0 

3/
4"

9'
 -

 0
"

11
' -

 3
 3

/4
"

R @ 0' - 8"12

2' - 9 3/4" 8' - 11"

2'
 -

 6
 1

/4
"

27' - 6 1/2" 2' - 5"

16
' -

 3
"

8'
 -

 9
 1

/2
"

7' - 3 3/4"15' - 4"7' - 3 3/4"

6' - 5"

24
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

7'
 -

 4
"

4'
 -

 0
"

7' - 5 1/8" 2' - 8" 2' - 8" 7' - 11" 7' - 0 1/2"

369.31

369.31

369.31

8' - 4 3/4"

4'
 -

 5
"

5'
 -

 9
"

14
' -

 1
0 

1/
2"

R @ 0' - 7 1/2"10

7' - 0 1/4" 29' - 11 1/2"

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

37' - 2 1/8"  (CLAD TO CLAD)

29' - 11 1/2"7' - 0 1/4"

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

25
' -

 3
" 

 (
C

LA
D

 T
O

 C
LA

D
)

37' - 2 1/8"  (CLAD TO CLAD)

25
' -

 3
" 

 (
C

LA
D

 T
O

 C
LA

D
)

2' - 3"

21

A2

A1

14
' -

 3
 3

/4
"

5'
 -

 9
"

3'
 -

 3
"

13' - 7 3/4" 14' - 5"

2'
 -

 1
"

7'
 -

 9
"

1'
 -

 8
"

12
' -

 2
 1

/2
"

13' - 11"

3' - 4 1/2" 7' - 4" 4' - 0" 6' - 0" 5' - 10" 2' - 1"

4'
 -

 5
"

2'
 -

 1
"

377.31

377.31

377.31

377.31

12' - 3 7/8" 2' - 1"

R @ 0' - 7 1/2"10

R @ 0' - 6 3/4"14

4'
 -

 5
"

5'
 -

 9
"

14
' -

 1
0 

1/
2"

8' - 3"

8'
 -

 3
"

16
' -

 9
 1

/2
"

6' - 2"3' - 3"13' - 6"7' - 0 1/2"

7'
 -

 0
"

8'
 -

 1
0"

3'
 -

 4
"

5'
 -

 1
0 

1/
2"

8' - 8"2' - 7"18' - 8 1/2"

7' - 1 1/2" 29' - 11 1/2"

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

7' - 1 1/2" 29' - 11 1/2"

25
' -

 3
" 

 (
C

LA
D

 T
O

 C
LA

D
)

30' - 2"  (CLAD TO CLAD)

0' - 11"

30' - 2"  (CLAD TO CLAD)

0' - 11"

21

A2

A1

6'
 -

 3
"

10
' -

 5
 1

/2
"

6'
 -

 1
"

4' - 8 1/8" 4' - 4" 9' - 8" 3' - 4"

11
' -

 0
 1

/8
"

1'
 -

 3
"

4'
 -

 3
 3

/8
"

6'
 -

 0
 5

/8
"

10
' -

 6
 3

/8
"

9' - 4 5/8"

5' - 5 1/8"

2'
 -

 5
"

3' - 10 1/2" 6' - 1 7/8"

8' - 7 7/8"

9' - 1 7/8"
3' - 0 7/8"7' - 4"3' - 4 1/2"

11' - 4"

5'
 -

 0
 1

/8
"

R @ 0' - 6 3/4"14

10' - 11"2' - 10 1/2"3' - 3"12' - 11"

17' - 2"12' - 9 1/2"

12
' -

 6
 1

/4
"

12
' -

 6
 1

/4
"

6'
 -

 7
 3

/4
"

5'
 -

 1
0 

1/
2"

5'
 -

 1
0 

1/
2"

6'
 -

 7
 3

/4
"

3'
 -

 1
 1

/2
"

3'
 -

 8
"

386.90

386.90

25
' -

 3
" 

 (
C

LA
D

 T
O

 C
LA

D
)

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

25
' -

 3
" 

 (
C

LA
D

 T
O

 C
LA

D
)

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

29' - 11 1/2"

29' - 11 1/2"

30' - 2"  (CLAD TO CLAD)

6'
 -

 4
 1

/2
"

21

A2

A1

401.33

OVERHANG

1' - 6 1/2"29' - 11 1/2"7' - 1 1/2"

OVERHANG

1' - 4 3/4"

40' - 0 1/4"  (TOTAL ROOF LENGTH)

O
V

E
R

H
A

N
G

1'
 -

 9
 3

/4
"

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

O
V

E
R

H
A

N
G

2'
 -

 3
 3

/4
"

29
' -

 2
" 

 (
T

O
T

A
L 

R
O

O
F

 W
ID

T
H

)

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1/4" = 1'-0"
1 HERITAGE HOUSE - EXISTING BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN

1/4" = 1'-0"
2 HERITAGE HOUSE - EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN

1/4" = 1'-0"
3 HERITAGE HOUSE - EXISTING SECOND FLOOR PLAN

1/4" = 1'-0"
4 HERITAGE HOUSE - EXISTING ROOF PLAN

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27



W
HW D

UP

UP

DW
REF.

DW

R
E

F
.

WW

DN

UP

6

5

4

3

2

1

UP

3 2 1

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

6

5

4

3

2

1

54321 5 4 3 2 1

9

8

7

6

321

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

B

C

D

621

A2

A1

A

2

A3.00

E

1

A3.00

14' - 11 7/8"

370.27

2' - 6"

4'
 -

 0
"

5'
 -

 9
"

4' - 9 1/2"12' - 8 7/8" 3' - 3" 3' - 3" 12' - 8 7/8"4' - 9 1/2"

5'
 -

 0
"

2'
 -

 4
 1

/2
"

11
' -

 4
"

11
' -

 6
"

8' - 5"2' - 0"9' - 11 7/8"

3'
 -

 6
"

8'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0" 17' - 1 7/8"

9'
 -

 1
1"

8'
 -

 6
"

5'
 -

 1
 1

/2
"

6'
 -

 0
"

7' - 10"

7'
 -

 0
 1

/2
"

9' - 0" 7' - 10"

10
' -

 3
"

8'
 -

 6
"

5'
 -

 1
 1

/2
"

7'
 -

 0
 1

/2
"

11
' -

 6
"

8' - 5"

3'
 -

 6
"

8'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 8
"

13
' -

 8
 1

/2
"

12' - 1 7/8"8' - 8"

2' - 0" 9' - 11 7/8"

7' - 4"

7'
 -

 0
 1

/2
"

5'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 8
"

3'
 -

 7
 7

/8
"

5'
 -

 3
"

3'
 -

 9
 1

/2
"

5'
 -

 0
"

2'
 -

 1
1"

4'
 -

 0
"

14
' -

 1
0"

10
' -

 5
 1

/2
"

17
' -

 2
 1

/2
"

5'
 -

 0
"

43' - 8"

4'
 -

 3
"

2'
 -

 6
 1

/2
"

2'
 -

 6
"

0'
 -

 1
1"

4' - 1 3/4"3' - 0 1/4"

4' - 2" 3' - 0"

4'
 -

 0
"

5' - 4"

368.35

364.83

367.94

368.35

365.00365.00

364.83

368.35

4'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

8'
 -

 1
0 

1/
2"

8'
 -

 1
0 

1/
2"

3' - 0 1/2" 4' - 0"

3'
 -

 9
 1

/2
"

3'
 -

 3
"

7' - 0 1/2"

4' - 6"3' - 6" 4'
 -

 4
 1

/2
"

3' - 6" 3' - 9" 3' - 9" 3' - 6"

3'
 -

 6
"

2'
 -

 7
 1

/2
"

R
 @

0'
 -

6 
3/

4"
5

11
' -

 4
"

2'
 -

 1
1 

3/
4"

8'
 -

 6
"

10' - 1 1/8" 17' - 7 1/2"

11
' -

 3
 3

/4
"

4'
 -

 0
"

7'
 -

 1
 3

/4
"

8' - 7 1/8"

13' - 1 7/8"

2'
 -

 1
0 

3/
4"

9'
 -

 0
"

11
' -

 3
 3

/4
"

2' - 9 3/4" 8' - 11"

27' - 6 1/2" 2' - 5"

7' - 3 5/8"15' - 4"7' - 3 3/4"

6' - 5"

24
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

5' - 0"13' - 8"

14' - 4"0' - 8"3' - 4"

4'
 -

 8
"

3'
 -

 5
"

6'
 -

 0
"

7'
 -

 4
"

4'
 -

 0
"

7' - 5 1/8" 2' - 8" 2' - 8" 7' - 11" 6' - 11 3/8"

369.06

369.31

369.31

369.31

4'
 -

 5
"

5'
 -

 9
"

14
' -

 1
0 

1/
2"

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

29' - 11 1/2"7' - 0 1/4"

37' - 2 1/8"  (CLAD TO CLAD)

7' - 0 1/2"

2' - 3"

25
' -

 3
" 

 -
 (

C
LA

D
 T

O
 C

LA
D

)

P.L.   146.71'   (44.72 m)

P.L.   146.71'   (44.72 m)

8' - 4 3/4"

29' - 11 1/2"7' - 0 1/4"

14
' -

 5
"

18' - 8"

3 94 5 7 8

4' - 0" 9' - 8" 8' - 6" 8' - 6" 5' - 8" 8' - 0"

29' - 11 1/2" 15' - 8 1/2" 44' - 4"

8'
 -

 0
"

5'
 -

 0
"

26
' -

 1
0"

5'
 -

 1
1 

1/
2"

45
' -

 9
 1

/2
"

8' - 8"

6'
 -

 0
"

2' - 0"

3' - 6 1/2"1' - 9"3' - 1 1/2"3' - 6 1/2" 4' - 10 1/2"

9' - 11 1/2" 3' - 4"

2'
 -

 8
"

1'
 -

 5
 7

/8
"

3'
 -

 6
"

4'
 -

 1
1 

7/
8"

7' - 2"7' - 3 7/8"

2' - 6" 3' - 4" 2' - 2"

2' - 11" 2' - 9"3' - 1" 6' - 7"

27
' -

 8
"

2'
 -

 4
"

2'
 -

 4
"

2'
 -

 5
"

2'
 -

 7
"

8'
 -

 1
0"

9'
 -

 7
"

8'
 -

 5
"

9' - 11 1/2"

3' - 3"

3'
 -

 6
"

3'
 -

 6
"

1'
 -

 1
1 

1/
2"

5' - 0"

2'
 -

 0
"

4.
02

 m
 (

13
.2

0'
)

5.79 m (18.99')

W10 W10

W1

W8

W8

W1

W1W1

W3

W3

W2

W8

W8

W8W8

W8

W7

W8 W8

W8W8

W2

W2

W2

W2

W2

W2

W2

W2

W1
W3

W3

W2

W2
W1

W2

W1

W1

W10W10

W7

W2
W2

W2

W10W10

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1/4" = 1'-0"
1 BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN - EXISTING HERITAGE HOUSE & PROPOSED DUPLEX

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27



DN

UP

DN

DN

DN

R
E

F
.

D
W

R
E

F
.

D
W

DN

DN

REF.

DN

3

2

1

DN
DN

2 1

5

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

UP
18171615

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

18 17 16 15

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

UP

13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

B

C

D

621

A2

A1

A

2

A3.00

E

1

A3.00

3'
 -

 0
"

7'
 -

 6
"

14
' -

 6
 1

/2
"

4'
 -

 1
0"

1'
 -

 3
"

2' - 0" 4' - 0"10' - 6 1/4"4' - 6 3/8"

3' - 7 1/2"1' - 11"6' - 9 5/8"3' - 0"4' - 0"2' - 1"

17' - 9 5/8"

14' - 11" 3' - 9" 3' - 9" 13' - 6"

8'
 -

 0
 1

/8
"

8'
 -

 0
 1

/8
"

5' - 0"

3'
 -

 6
"

2'
 -

 7
 1

/2
"

5'
 -

 2
 5

/8
"

2'
 -

 1
0 

3/
4"

3' - 7 1/2" 1' - 11" 6' - 9 5/8" 3' - 0" 4' - 0" 2' - 1"

17' - 9 5/8"

5' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

7'
 -

 6
"

20
' -

 7
 1

/2
"

4' - 6 1/2" 14' - 6 1/8"

9' - 1" 6' - 9 5/8" 9' - 1"6' - 9 5/8"

374.02

373.69

371.06

371.04

370.77

370.02

2' - 0"

5'
 -

 4
 1

/4
"

377.06

18' - 8"

14
' -

 3
 3

/4
"

5'
 -

 9
"

3'
 -

 3
"

13' - 7 3/4" 14' - 5"

2'
 -

 1
"

7'
 -

 9
"

1'
 -

 8
"

12
' -

 2
 1

/2
"

13' - 11"

3' - 4 1/2" 7' - 4" 4' - 0" 6' - 0" 5' - 10" 2' - 1"

4'
 -

 5
"

2'
 -

 1
"

377.31

377.31

377.31

377.31

12' - 3 7/8" 2' - 1"

8' - 3"

8'
 -

 3
"

16
' -

 9
 1

/2
"

6' - 2"3' - 3"13' - 6"7' - 0 1/2"

7'
 -

 0
"

8'
 -

 1
0"

3'
 -

 4
"

5'
 -

 1
0 

1/
2"

20' - 6 1/2" 9' - 5"

29' - 11 1/2"7' - 1 1/2"

CLAD TO CLAD

30' - 2"

4'
 -

 5
"

5'
 -

 9
"

14
' -

 1
0 

1/
2"

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

C
LA

D
 T

O
 C

LA
D

.

25
' -

 3
"

P.L.   146.71'   (44.72 m)

P.L.   146.71'   (44.72 m)

373.69

0' - 11"

18' - 8"

18' - 8"

14
' -

 5
"

(5
' -

 4
")

1.
62

 m

3 94 5 7 8

4' - 0" 9' - 8" 8' - 6" 8' - 6" 5' - 8" 8' - 0"

44' - 4"15' - 8 1/2"29' - 11 1/2"

8'
 -

 0
"

5'
 -

 0
"

26
' -

 1
0"

5'
 -

 1
1 

1/
2"

45
' -

 9
 1

/2
"

3'
 -

 3
"

5'
 -

 0
"

2'
 -

 1
0 

3/
4"

11
' -

 1
0 

1/
2"

18' - 2" 16' - 10"

1' - 3" 3' - 6" 3' - 9" 3' - 9" 3' - 6" 1' - 3"

13' - 11" 8' - 6" 12' - 7"

6' - 10" 6' - 2" 9' - 2" 9' - 2" 5' - 8" 7' - 4"

368.35 368.35

367.94

5'
 -

 9
"

9'
 -

 9
 7

/8
"

6'
 -

 8
"

8'
 -

 1
0"

0'
 -

 9
 1

/8
"

5'
 -

 1
1 

1/
2"

3'
 -

 3
"

5'
 -

 0
"

11
' -

 1
0 

1/
2"

3' - 3" 3' - 3"

2' - 4" 4' - 0" 15' - 10" 2' - 3" 4' - 0" 2' - 3" 13' - 8"

14' - 6 1/4"

6' - 5" 16' - 2 1/2" 6' - 0" 15' - 8 1/2"

4' - 8" 1' - 9" 3' - 0" 4' - 9" 8' - 5 1/2" 4' - 2" 1' - 10" 6' - 4" 4' - 9" 4' - 7 1/2"

368.35

3' - 8 3/8"

3'
 -

 9
"

374.02

5'
 -

 9
"

4'
 -

 2
"

3'
 -

 1
0"

5'
 -

 2
"

3'
 -

 4
"

6'
 -

 8
"

2'
 -

 1
1"

1' - 4"

1' - 4"

4.
06

 m
 (

13
.3

3'
)

2.30 m (7.56')2.30 m (7.56')

W7
W4W4W4

W4
W4

W4

W4W4

W4

W7

W11 W11

W4

W9
W9

W9 W9

W8W8

W8

W4W4

W8

W8

6'
 -

 7
 1

/4
"

W9

373.73373.73

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1/4" = 1'-0"
1 MAIN FLOOR PLAN - EXISTING HERITAGE HOUSE & PROPOSED DUPLEX

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27
2 OVERSIGHT COMMENTS 2022-02-23



W W

DN

DN DN30

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

B

C

D

621

A2

A1

A

2

A3.00

E

1

A3.00

10
' -

 8
 1

/2
"

5'
 -

 1
 3

/4
"

384.02384.02

6'
 -

 3
"

10
' -

 5
 1

/2
"

6'
 -

 1
"

4' - 8 1/8" 4' - 4" 9' - 8" 3' - 4"

11
' -

 0
 1

/8
"

1'
 -

 3
"

4'
 -

 3
 3

/8
"

6'
 -

 0
 5

/8
"

10
' -

 6
 3

/8
"

9' - 4 5/8"

6' - 4 1/8"

2'
 -

 5
"

3' - 10 1/2" 6' - 1 7/8"

8' - 7 7/8"

9' - 1 7/8"3' - 0 7/8"7' - 4"3' - 4 1/2"

11' - 4"

5'
 -

 0
 1

/8
"

CLOSET

R @ 0' - 6 3/4"14

VO
ID

10' - 11"2' - 10 1/2"3' - 3"12' - 11"

17' - 2"12' - 9 1/2"

12
' -

 6
 1

/4
"

12
' -

 6
 1

/4
"

6'
 -

 7
 3

/4
"

5'
 -

 1
0 

1/
2"

5'
 -

 1
0 

1/
2"

6'
 -

 7
 3

/4
"

3'
 -

 1
 1

/2
"

3'
 -

 8
"

386.90

386.90

386.90

386.90

386.90

29' - 11 1/2"

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

25
' -

 3
" 

 (
C

LA
D

 T
O

 C
LA

D
)

29' - 11 1/2"

30' - 2"  (CLAD TO CLAD)

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

25
' -

 3
" 

 (
C

LA
D

 T
O

 C
LA

D
)

6'
 -

 4
 1

/2
"

377.06

3 94 5 7 8

P.L.   146.71'   (44.72 m)

P.L.   146.71'   (44.72 m)

44' - 4"15' - 8 1/2"29' - 11 1/2"

4' - 0" 9' - 8" 8' - 6" 8' - 6" 5' - 8" 8' - 0"

R
 @

0'
 -

7 
1/

2"
16

R
 @

0'
 -

7 
1/

2"
16

373.69
373.69

371.06 371.04
370.02

370.77

367.94

368.35
368.35

368.35

W7

W8

W8 W8W4W4

W5

W8

W8

W8

W7

W11

W11

W5

W5

W4W4

W5

W8

W8

W8

W8

W8

W6W6

W6 W6

W4
W4

W4W4

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1/4" = 1'-0"
1 UPPER FLOOR PLAN - EXISTING HERITAGE HOUSE & PROPOSED DUPLEX

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27
2 OVERSIGHT COMMENTS 2022-02-23



B

C

D

621

A2

A1

A

2

A3.00

E

1

A3.00

401.33
399.14

378.79 378.81

377.06

373.69 373.69

OVERHANG

1' - 6 1/2"29' - 11 1/2"7' - 1 1/2"

OVERHANG

1' - 4 3/4"

40' - 0 1/4"  (TOTAL ROOF LENGTH)

O
V

E
R

H
A

N
G

1'
 -

 9
 3

/4
"

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

O
V

E
R

H
A

N
G

2'
 -

 3
 3

/4
"

29
' -

 2
" 

 (
T

O
T

A
L 

R
O

O
F

 W
ID

T
H

)

3 94 5 7 8

44' - 4"15' - 8 1/2"29' - 11 1/2"

4' - 0" 9' - 8" 8' - 6" 8' - 6" 5' - 8" 8' - 0"

8'
 -

 0
"

5'
 -

 0
"

26
' -

 1
0"

5'
 -

 1
1 

1/
2"

45
' -

 9
 1

/2
"

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

367.94

368.35 368.35

370.77

371.06
371.04 370.02

P.L.   146.71'   (44.72 m)

P.L.   146.71'   (44.72 m)

37
' -

 9
 1

/2
"

1'
 -

 1
1 

3/
4"

40' - 4" 3' - 0"

40
' -

 9
 5

/8
"

1'
 -

 1
1 

3/
4"

397.23 397.23

3' - 0"44' - 4"3' - 0"
TOTAL ROOF LENGTH

50' - 4"

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1/4" = 1'-0"
1 ROOF PLAN

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27



UP

DN

DN

DN

DN

UP

WH

GARBAGE

MECH. RM. #1

MECH. RM. #2

UNIT 1 - BASEMENT

UNIT 2 - BASEMENT

2.50'

13
.7

9'

7.71' 5.00' 28.08'

4.
00

'
9.

96
'

8.
83

'
8.

83
'

5.
96

'
8.

00
'

22
.7

9'
22

.7
9'

40.79'

DECK 1

DECK 2

PORCH

UNIT 1 - MAIN FLOOR

UNIT 2 - MAIN FLOOR

8.01' 32.81' 5.97'

6.67'

1.
33

'

3.
99

'
14

.9
2'

3.
75

'
3.

75
'

13
.5

0'
5.

41
'

6.67'

1.
33

'

45
.3

1'

6.
91

'

1.25'

6.
00

'

1.25'

22
.6

6'
22

.6
6'

5.22'

STAIR 1

STAIR 2

UNIT 1-2ND FLOOR

UNIT 2-2ND FLOOR

HOUSE BASEMENT

MECH

PATIO

PROPOSED GARBAGE RM.

STORAGE

4.67' 9.65'

4.00' 5.65' 25.25'

30
.1

7'

4.
00

'
9.

67
'

5.
00

'

18
.6

7'

14.31'

3.00'
5.

50
'

4.00'

7.
17

'

ENTRY PORCH

HOUSE MAIN FLOOR

25.25'

30
.1

7'
7.

02
'

- -

HOUSE SECOND FLOOR

6.75' 11.75' 6.75'

25.25'

30
.1

7'

24
.5

8'
5.

58
'

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1/8" = 1'-0"
4 DUPLEX INFILL - BASEMENT FLOOR AREA PLAN 1/8" = 1'-0"

5 DUPLEX INFILL - MAIN FLOOR AREA PLAN
1/8" = 1'-0"

6 DUPLEX INFILL - UPPER FLOOR AREA PLAN

1/8" = 1'-0"
1 H.H - BASEMENT FLOOR  AREA PLAN

1/8" = 1'-0"
2 H.H - MAIN FLOOR AREA PLAN

1/8" = 1'-0"
3 H.H. - UPPER FLOOR AREA PLAN

UNIT 1 DUPLEX INFILL - AREA SCHEDULE

UNIT 1 - BASEMENT 733.94 SF 68.19 m²
MECH. RM. #1 68.11 SF 6.33 m²
BASEMENT 802.05 SF 74.51 m²

UNIT 1 - MAIN FLOOR 743.60 SF 69.08 m²
DECK 1 139.09 SF 12.92 m²
MAIN FLOOR 882.70 SF 82.01 m²

UNIT 1-2ND FLOOR 719.35 SF 66.83 m²
STAIR 1 31.28 SF 2.91 m²
UPPER FLOOR 750.63 SF 69.74 m²
UNIT #1 - TOTAL AREA = 2435.38 SF 226.25 m²

UNIT 2 DUPLEX INFILL - AREA SCHEDULE

UNIT 2 - BASEMENT 713.96 SF 66.33 m²
MECH. RM. #2 68.11 SF 6.33 m²

782.08 SF 72.66 m²

UNIT 2 - MAIN FLOOR 744.74 SF 69.19 m²
DECK 2 127.74 SF 11.87 m²

872.48 SF 81.06 m²

UNIT 2-2ND FLOOR 719.18 SF 66.81 m²
STAIR 2 31.28 SF 2.91 m²

750.46 SF 69.72 m²
UNIT #2 - TOTAL AREA = 2405.02 SF 223.43 m²

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27
2 OVERSIGHT COMMENTS 2022-02-23

1/16" = 1'-0"
7 LOT COVERAGE - KEY PLAN



350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

MAR 21ST, 10 AM MAR 21ST, 12 PM MAR 21ST, 2 PM

JUN 21ST, 10 AM JUN 21ST, 12 PM JUN 21ST, 2 PM

DEC 21ST, 10 AM DEC 21ST, 12 PM DEC 21ST, 2 PM

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27



BCD AE 1

A3.00

WEST P.L. TO GRIDLINE

1.77 m (5.82')

EAST P.L. TO GRIDLINE

2.55 m (8.38')

368.85 (T.O.W)

371.02 (T.O.W)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

.

8.
87

 m
 (

29
.1

0'
)

O/H

1' - 6"

OVERHANG

3' - 0 1/8"

OVERHANG

1' - 6"

8'
 -

 0
"

O/H

1' - 0"

O/H

2' - 0"

5' - 11 1/2" 26' - 10" 5' - 0" 8' - 0"

45' - 9 1/2"

373.36

372.77

T
O

T
A

L 
H

T
.

1.
52

 m
 (

5.
00

')

368.35

B C DA E
1

A3.00

WEST P.L. TO GRIDLINE

1.77 m (5.82')

EAST P.L. TO GRIDLINE

2.55 m (8.38')

R
A

IL
IN

G
 H

E
IG

H
T

3'
 -

 6
"

O/H

1' - 0"

O/H

2' - 0"

O/H

1' - 6"

OVERHANG

3' - 0 1/8"

8'
 -

 0
"

8'
 -

 0
"

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

.

8.
87

 m
 (

29
.1

0'
)

371.35 (T.O.W)370.39 (T.O.W)

369.43 (T.O.W)

8' - 0" 5' - 0" 26' - 10" 5' - 11 1/2"

45' - 9 1/2"

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1/4" = 1'-0"
1 NORTH ELEVATION - PROPOSED INFILL

1/4" = 1'-0"
2 SOUTH ELEVATION - PROPOSED INFILL

4 3D VIEW (INFILL) - SOUTH WEST CORNER

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27
2 OVERSIGHT COMMENTS 2022-02-23

3 3D VIEW (INFILL) - NORTH WEST CORNER

5 3D VIEW (INFILL) - SOUTH EAST CORNER



1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

621 2

A3.003 94 5 7 8

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

. (
H

H
)

9.
53

 m
 (

31
.2

7'
)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

.

8.
87

 m
 (

29
.1

0'
)

DORMER WIDTH

12' - 8 1/4"

T
Y

P
IC

A
L

3'
 -

 6
"

R @ 0' - 7 1/8"4
R @ 0' - 7 1/8"5

6'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 2
"

OVERHANG

3' - 0"

OVERHANG

3' - 0"

397.23 397.23

4' - 0" 9' - 8" 8' - 6" 8' - 6" 5' - 8" 8' - 0"

29' - 11 1/2" 15' - 8 1/2" 44' - 4"

O/H

1' - 6"

DORMER WIDTH

12' - 8 1/4"

6 2 1
2

A3.00
39 4578

DORMER WIDTH

39' - 4"

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

.

8.
87

 m
 (

29
.1

0'
)

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

. (
H

H
)

9.
53

 m
 (

31
.2

7'
)

R @ 0' - 7 1/2"9

398.38

O/H

1' - 0"
O/H

1' - 0"

369.51 (T.O.W)

8' - 0" 5' - 8" 8' - 6" 8' - 6" 9' - 8" 4' - 0"

44' - 4" 15' - 8 1/2" 29' - 11 1/2"

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1/4" = 1'-0"
1 EAST ELEVATION - EXISTING HERITAGE HOUSE & PROPOSED INFILL

1/4" = 1'-0"
2 WEST ELEVATION - EXISTING HERITAGE HOUSE & PROPOSED INFILL

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27
2 OVERSIGHT COMMENTS 2022-02-23



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

A2 A1

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

.

9.
75

 m
 (

32
.0

0'
)

P.L. TO GRIDLINE

6.02 m (19.75')
P.L. TO GRIDLINE

4.63 m (15.20')

25' - 0 1/2"

A2A1

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

.

9.
53

 m
 (

31
.2

7'
)

R @ 0' - 7 1/2"10

25' - 0 1/2"

A2 A1

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

.

9.
53

 m
 (

31
.2

7'
)

25' - 0 1/2"

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1/4" = 1'-0"
1 NORTH ELEVATION - EXISTING HERITAGE HOUSE

1/4" = 1'-0"
2 SOUTH ELEVATION - EXISTING HERITAGE HOUSE

1/4" = 1'-0"
3 NORTH ELEVATION - EXISTING HERITAGE HOUSE (L.D.C)

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27

4 3D VIEW (H.H.) - SOUTH EAST CORNER5 3D VIEW (H.H.) - SOUTH WEST CORNER

7 3D VIEW (H.H & INFILL) - EAST ELEVATION



8

9

B C DA E
1

A3.00

WEST P.L. TO GRIDLINE

1.77 m (5.82')

EAST P.L. TO GRIDLINE

2.55 m (8.38')

R
A

IL
IN

G
 H

E
IG

H
T

3'
 -

 6
"

O/H

1' - 0"

O/H

2' - 0"

O/H

1' - 6"

OVERHANG

3' - 0 1/8"

8'
 -

 0
"

8'
 -

 0
"

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

.

8.
87

 m
 (

29
.1

0'
)

371.35 (T.O.W)

8' - 0" 5' - 0" 26' - 10" 5' - 11 1/2"

45' - 9 1/2"

6
2

A3.00
39 4578

DORMER WIDTH

39' - 4"

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

.

8.
87

 m
 (

29
.1

0'
)

R @ 0' - 7 1/2"9

398.38

O/H

1' - 0"
O/H

1' - 0"

8' - 0" 5' - 8" 8' - 6" 8' - 6" 9' - 8" 4' - 0"

44' - 4"

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27
2 OVERSIGHT COMMENTS 2022-02-23

1/4" = 1'-0"
3 SOUTH ELEVATION - PROPOSED INFILL (LDC)

1/4" = 1'-0"
4 WEST ELEVATION - EXISTING HERITAGE HOUSE & PROPOSED INFILL (LDC)



1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

62

A3.003 94 5 7 8

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

.

8.
87

 m
 (

29
.1

0'
)

DORMER WIDTH

12' - 8 1/4"

T
Y

P
IC

A
L

3'
 -

 6
"

R @ 0' - 7 1/8"4
R @ 0' - 7 1/8"5

6'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 2
"

OVERHANG

3' - 0"

OVERHANG

3' - 0"

397.23 397.23

4' - 0" 9' - 8" 8' - 6" 8' - 6" 5' - 8" 8' - 0"

44' - 4"

O/H

1' - 6"

DORMER WIDTH

12' - 8 1/4"

BCD AE 1

A3.00

WEST P.L. TO GRIDLINE

1.77 m (5.82')

EAST P.L. TO GRIDLINE

2.55 m (8.38')

368.85 (T.O.W)

371.02 (T.O.W)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

.

8.
87

 m
 (

29
.1

0'
)

O/H

1' - 6"

OVERHANG

3' - 0 1/8"

OVERHANG

1' - 6"

8'
 -

 0
"

O/H

1' - 0"

O/H

2' - 0"

5' - 11 1/2" 26' - 10" 5' - 0" 8' - 0"

45' - 9 1/2"

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27
2 OVERSIGHT COMMENTS 2022-02-23

1/4" = 1'-0"
1 EAST ELEVATION -  PROPOSED INFILL(LDC)

1/4" = 1'-0"
2 NORTH ELEVATION - PROPOSED INFILL (LDC)



4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

1

2

3

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

6
2

A3.003 94 5 7 8

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

.

8.
87

 m
 (

29
.1

0'
)

4' - 0" 9' - 8" 8' - 6" 8' - 6" 5' - 8" 8' - 0"

44' - 4"

C
E

IL
IN

G
 H

T
.

8'
 -

 0
"

O/H

1' - 6"

O/H

3' - 0"

O/H

3' - 0"

O/H

1' - 6"

C
E

IL
IN

G
 H

T
.

8'
 -

 1
0 

7/
8"

C
E

IL
IN

G
 H

T
.

8'
 -

 0
"

5'
 -

 0
"

O/H

1' - 0"

W5

W1

W4

W5

W4

W10 W10

W7

W7

W11

W11

W4 W4

W1

W7

BCD AE 1

A3.00

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
T

.

8.
87

 m
 (

29
.1

0'
)

5' - 11 1/2" 26' - 10" 5' - 0" 8' - 0"

45' - 9 1/2"

R @ 0' - 7 3/4"14

R
A

IL
IN

G
 H

E
IG

H
T

3'
 -

 6
"

C
E

IL
IN

G
 H

T
.

8'
 -

 0
"

C
E

IL
IN

G
 H

T
.

8'
 -

 1
0 

3/
8"

C
E

IL
IN

G
 H

T
.

7'
 -

 1
0 

3/
8"

373.69 373.69

8'
 -

 0
"

R @ 0' - 7 1/2"9

W4

W8

W8 W8

W4

W1

W10

W8W8

W8W1 W10

W9

W9

0'
 -

 4
 1

/2
"

0'
 -

 3
"

0'
 -

 8
"

0'
 -

 3
"

0'
 -

 1
"

0'
 -

 9
 1

/4
"

0'
 -

 8
 1

/2
"

0'
 -

 1
0"

0'
 -

 1
0"

0'
 -

 6
"

0'
 -

 8
"

0'
 -

 4
 3

/4
"

0'
 -

 6
 1

/2
"

ATTIC 

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1/4" = 1'-0"
1 SECTION 1

1/4" = 1'-0"
2 SECTION 2

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27
2 OVERSIGHT COMMENTS 2022-02-23



INTERIOR - MAIN LEVEL

INTERIOR - MAIN LEVEL

INTERIOR - UPPER LEVEL

INTERIOR - MAIN LEVEL

BASEMENT

BASEMENTBASEMENT

EXTERIOR

ATTIC SPACE
(UNHEATED)

INTERIOR

EXTERIOR

ATTIC SPACE 
(UNHEATED)

INTERIOR

BASEMENT

INTERIOR MAIN LEVEL

EXTERIOR

BASEMENT

INTERIOR

EXTERIOR DECK

EXTERIOR BASEMENT

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1 1/2" = 1'-0"
1 PARTY WALL DETAIL

1 1/2" = 1'-0"
2 PARTY WALL DETAIL - ROOF

1 1/2" = 1'-0"
3 T.O. FOUNDATION WALL TO MAIN FLOOR CONNECTION DETAIL

1 1/2" = 1'-0"
4 BASEMENT FLOOR DETAIL

1 1/2" = 1'-0"
5 ICF FOUNDATION FOUNDATION WALL DETAIL

1 1/2" = 1'-0"
6 INTERIOR TO EXTERIOR DECK TRANSITION DETAIL

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27



INTERIOR

EXTERIORINTERIOR

8' - 0"

EXTERIOR

INTERIOR

EXTERIOR

INTERIOR

5' - 11 1/2"

EXTERIOR

EXTERIOR

INTERIOREXTERIOR

ATTIC 
(UNHEATED)

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1 1/2" = 1'-0"
1 TRELLIS TO CANTILIVERED  FLOOR CONNECTION

1 1/2" = 1'-0"
2 PORCH ROOF DETAIL

1 1/2" = 1'-0"
3 DORMER DETAIL

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27



INTERIOR

INTERIOR

EXTERIOR

ATTIC 
(UNHEATED)

ATTIC VOID SPACE
(UNHEATED)

INTERIOR

EXTERIOR
BASEMENT

EXTERIOR

INTERIOR

EXTERIOR

WINDOW WELL

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

1 1/2" = 1'-0"
1 ATTIC SPACE DETAIL

1 1/2" = 1'-0"
2 FIREPLACE & LIGHT WELL DETAIL

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27



1'
 -

 0
"

6'
 -

 0
"

5' - 0"

1'
 -

 0
"

6'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0"2' - 6"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0"

2'
 -

 0
"

5'
 -

 0
"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

3' - 0"
4' - 0"

5'
 -

 0
"

2'
 -

 0
"

3' - 0" 3' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

3' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

3' - 0" 3' - 0"

5'
 -

 0
"

2'
 -

 0
"

2' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

2' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

3' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 1
0"

3'
 -

 0
"

3' - 0"

4'
 -

 1
0"

3'
 -

 0
"

3' - 0"

4'
 -

 1
0"

3'
 -

 0
"

3' - 0"

4'
 -

 1
0"

3'
 -

 0
"

3' - 0"

7'
 -

 0
"

3' - 0"

6'
 -

 8
"

4' - 0"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6" 2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6" 6' - 0"

6'
 -

 8
"

7'
 -

 0
"

3' - 0" 2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

6' - 0"

6'
 -

 8
"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 8" 2' - 8"

6'
 -

 8
"

4'
 -

 0
"

2' - 6" 2' - 6"

4'
 -

 0
"

2' - 6"

4'
 -

 0
"

2' - 6"

4'
 -

 0
"

6'
 -

 0
"

2' - 6"

6' - 0"

7'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0"

6'
 -

 8
"

3' - 0"

7'
 -

 0
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

6' - 0"

7'
 -

 0
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

4' - 0"

6'
 -

 8
"

3' - 0"

7'
 -

 0
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

6' - 0"

7'
 -

 0
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6" 2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 0
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

5' - 0"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6" 2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 0
"

2' - 6"

6'
 -

 8
"

5' - 0"

6'
 -

 8
"

350-440 W Hastings Steet, 
Vancouver, B.C. Canada, V6B 1L1

info@bradburyarchitecture.ca
604-731-7227

KARL WEIN ASSOCIATES
135/2 1451 MARINE DV

WEST VANCOUVER
778-280-3670

KARLWEIN@GMAIL.COM

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

1 REVISED AS PER CITY COMMENTS - DP 2021-10-27
2 OVERSIGHT COMMENTS 2022-02-23

WINDOW SCHEDULE - PROPOSED INFILL

Mark Panels Sill HeightWidth Height

109 SINGLE HUNG 4' - 0" 4' - 0" 2' - 8"
110 SINGLE HUNG 4' - 0" 4' - 0" 2' - 8"
111 SINGLE HUNG 3' - 0" 2' - 0" 5' - 0"
UPPER FLOOR
201 SINGLE HUNG 2' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"
202 SINGLE HUNG 2' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"
203 SINGLE HUNG 3' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"
204 SINGLE HUNG 4' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"
205 SINGLE HUNG 3' - 0" 3' - 0" 4' - 10"
206 SINGLE HUNG 3' - 0" 3' - 0" 4' - 10"
207 SINGLE HUNG 3' - 0" 3' - 0" 4' - 10"
208 SINGLE HUNG 3' - 0" 3' - 0" 4' - 10"
209 SINGLE HUNG 4' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"
210 SINGLE HUNG 3' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"

WINDOW SCHEDULE - PROPOSED INFILL

Mark Panels Sill HeightWidth Height

BASEMENT
001 SINGLE HUNG 4' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"
002 SINGLE HUNG 4' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"
003 FIXED 2' - 6" 5' - 0" 2' - 0"
004 SINGLE HUNG 4' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"
005 SINGLE HUNG 4' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"
006 SINGLE HUNG 4' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"
MAIN FLOOR
101 FIXED 5' - 0" 6' - 0" 1' - 0"
102 FIXED 4' - 0" 6' - 0" 1' - 0"
103 SINGLE HUNG 3' - 0" 2' - 0" 5' - 0"
104 SINGLE HUNG 3' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"
105 SINGLE HUNG 3' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"
106 SINGLE HUNG 3' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 0"
107 SINGLE HUNG 4' - 0" 4' - 0" 2' - 8"
108 SINGLE HUNG 4' - 0" 4' - 0" 2' - 8"

DOOR SCHEDULE - PROPOSED INFILL

Mark Description Width HeightAccess

BASEMENT
001 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR ENTRY (1b) 3' - 0" 7' - 0"
002 TWO PANEL SLIDING DOOR CLOSET (1b) 3' - 0" 6' - 8"
003 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR LAUNDRY (1b) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
004 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR BEDROOM (1b) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
005 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR BATHROOM (1b) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
006 TWO PANEL SLIDING DOOR CL. (1b) 6' - 0" 6' - 8"
007 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR ENTRY (2b) 3' - 0" 7' - 0"
008 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR LAUNDRY (2b) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
009 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR BEDROOM (2b) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
010 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR BATHROOM (2b) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
011 TWO PANEL SLIDING DOOR CL. (2b) 6' - 0" 6' - 8"
012 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR MECH. RM (1) 2' - 8" 6' - 8"
013 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR MECH. RM (2) 2' - 8" 6' - 8"
GROUND
014 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR GARBAGE ENCLOSURE 2' - 6" 4' - 0"
015 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR GARBAGE ENCLOSURE 2' - 6" 4' - 0"
016 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR GARBAGE ENCLOSURE 2' - 6" 4' - 0"
017 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR GARBAGE ENCLOSURE 2' - 6" 4' - 0"
HH - BASEMENT LEVEL
N10 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR GARBAGE ENCLOSURE 2' - 6" 6' - 0"
HH - MAIN FLOOR LEVEL
N16 DOUBLE SLIDING GLASS DOOR KITCHEN 6' - 0" 6' - 8"
MAIN FLOOR
101 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR ENTRY (1) 3' - 0" 7' - 0"
102 TWO PANEL SLIDING DOOR CL. (1) 4' - 0" 6' - 8"
103 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR STAIRS (1) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
104 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR POWDER RM (1) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
105 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR PANTRY (1) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
106 DOUBLE SLIDING GLASS DOOR DECK (1) 6' - 0" 7' - 0"
107 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR ENTRY (2) 3' - 0" 7' - 0"
108 TWO PANEL SLIDING DOOR CL. (2) 4' - 0" 6' - 8"
109 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR STAIRS (2) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
110 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR POWDER RM (2) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
111 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR PANTRY (2) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
112 DOUBLE SLIDING GLASS DOOR DECK (2) 6' - 0" 7' - 0"
UPPER FLOOR
201 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR CL. #1 (1) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
202 TWO PANEL SLIDING DOOR CL (1) 6' - 0" 6' - 8"
203 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR MASTER BEDROOM (1) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
204 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR BEDROOM #2 (1) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
205 TWO PANEL SLIDING DOOR CL #2 (1) 5' - 0" 6' - 8"
206 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR BATHROOM (1) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
207 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR BEDROOM #3 (1) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
208 TWO PANEL SLIDING DOOR CL. #3 (1) 4' - 0" 6' - 8"
209 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR STORAGE SPACE (1) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
210 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR W/D (1) 2' - 6" 6' - 0"
211 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR CL. #1 (1) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
212 TWO PANEL SLIDING DOOR CL (2) 6' - 0" 6' - 8"
213 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR MASTER BEDROOM (2) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
214 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR BEDROOM #2 (2) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
215 TWO PANEL SLIDING DOOR CL #2 (2) 5' - 0" 6' - 8"
216 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR BATHROOM (2) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
217 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR BEDROOM #3 (2) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
218 TWO PANEL SLIDING DOOR CL. #3 (2) 4' - 0" 6' - 8"
219 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR STORAGE SPACE (2) 2' - 6" 6' - 8"
220 SINGLE FLUSH DOOR W/D (2) 2' - 6" 6' - 0"

1/4" = 1'-0"
WINDOW ELEVATIONS

1/4" = 1'-0"
DOOR ELEVATIONS



 3
69

' -
 0
" 369' - 0"  369'

 - 0"
 369' - 0"

 3
69

' -
 0
" 370' - 0"

 3
70

' -
 0
"

 3
68

' -
 0

"

 368' - 0"

 369' - 0"

 370' - 0"

 371' - 0"

 372
' - 0

"

 36
9' 

- 0
" 369' - 0"
 36

9' 
- 0

"

 3

 370' - 0"

 371' - 0"

 372' - 0"

 3
69
' -

 0
"

 370' - 0"

 371' - 0"

001
48"x48"

005
48"x47.24"

006
48"x47.24"

004
48"x47.24"

002
48"x48"

003
27.56"x78.74"

001
36"x84"

014
30"x48"

015
30"x48"

016
30"x48"

017
30"x48"

009
36"x80"

010
60"x80"

005
36"x80"

011
60"x80"

008
30"x80"

004
30"x80"

007
30"x80"

003
30"x80"

013
30"x80"

012
30"x80"

002
42"x80"

006
36"x84"

jpeters�
FreeText
Attachment 3�



 3
69

' -
 0
" 369' - 0"  369'

 - 0"
 369' - 0"

 3
69

' -
 0
" 370' - 0"

 3
70

' -
 0
"

 3
68

' -
 0

"

 368' - 0"

 369' - 0"

 370' - 0"

 371' - 0"

 372
' - 0

"

 36
9' 

- 0
" 369' - 0"
 36

9' 
- 0

"

 3
70

' -
 0

 370' - 0"

 371' - 0"

 372' - 0"

 3
69
' -

 0
"

 370' - 0"

 371' - 0"

001
48"x48"

005
48"x47.24"

006
48"x47.24"

004
48"x47.24"

002
48"x48"

003
27.56"x78.74"

001
36"x84"

014
30"x48"

015
30"x48"

016
30"x48"

017
30"x48"

009
36"x80"

010
60"x80"

005
36"x80"

011
60"x80"

008
30"x80"

004
30"x80"

007
30"x80"

003
30"x80"

013
30"x80"

012
30"x80"

002
42"x80"

006
36"x84"

jpeters
FreeText
Attachment 4�



DRAFT
MACLEOD RESIDENCE 

364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER BC  

CONSERVATION PLAN
JUNE 2019

jpeters�
FreeText
Attachment 5�



TABLE OF CONTENTS

DONALD LUXTON AND ASSOCIATES INC
1030 - 470 GRANVILLE STREET VANCOUVER BC V6C 1V5

info@donaldluxton.com 604 688 1216 www.donaldluxton.com

1. INTRODUCTION .......................................................................................................... 1

2. HISTORIC CONTEXT ................................................................................................... 2
 
3. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE ................................................................................ 12

4. CONSERVATION GUIDELINES ................................................................................... 14
 4.1 Standards and Guidelines ................................................................................... 14
 4.2 Conservation References ..................................................................................... 15
 4.3 General Conservation Strategy ............................................................................ 16
 4.4 Sustainability Strategy ......................................................................................... 16
 4.5 Alternative Compliance ....................................................................................... 17
 4.6 Site Protection .................................................................................................... 19

5. CONSERVATION RECOMMENDATIONS .................................................................... 20
 5.1 Site .................................................................................................................... 20
 5.2 Form, Scale, and Massing .................................................................................... 21
 5.3 Foundations ........................................................................................................ 22
 5.4 Exterior Wood-Frame Walls ................................................................................. 22
 5.5 Verandah/Porch................................................................................................... 23
 5.6 Fenestration ........................................................................................................ 24
  5.6.1 Windows .................................................................................................. 24
  5.6.2 Doors ....................................................................................................... 24
 5.7 Roof ................................................................................................................... 25
  5.7.1 Chimney .................................................................................................. 25

 ........................................................................................................ 26
 5.9 Colour Schedule ................................................................................................. 26

6. MAINTENANCE PLAN ............................................................................................... 27
 6.1 Maintenance Guidelines ..................................................................................... 27
 6.2 Permitting ........................................................................................................... 27
 6.3 Routine, Cyclical and Non-Destructive Cleaning ................................................. 27
 6.4 Repairs and Replacement of Deteriorated Materials ............................................. 28
 6.5 Inspections ......................................................................................................... 28
 6.6 Information File .................................................................................................. 28
 6.7 Exterior Maintenance .......................................................................................... 29

7. RESEARCH SUMMARY ............................................................................................. 32





1

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

1.0 INTRODUCTION

NAME:    MACLEOD RESIDENCE
ADDRESS:   364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BRITISH COLUMBIA
ORIGINAL OWNER: DUNCAN P. CLARK
FIRST RESIDENTS: WILLIAM RAY AND BEULAH ROSSLAND MACLEOD
BUILDER:   WILLIAM SMITH
DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1921

The MacLeod Residence, constructed in 1921, is 
an important example of an interwar residential 
building constructed during a period of recovery 
throughout British Columbia, including the Central 
Lonsdale neighbourhood of North Vancouver. 
Designed in the Craftsman architectural style, the 
house was built with local, high quality materials. 
The MacLeod family, including educator and 
war veteran William Ray and his wife, Beulah, 

a century, the MacLeod Residence has stood as a 
reminder of the early history of the Central Lonsdale 
neighbourhood. 

This Conservation Plan is based on Parks Canada’s 
Standards & Guidelines for the Conservation 
of Historic Places in Canada. It outlines the 
preservation, restoration, and rehabilitation that will 
occur as part of the proposed development.



2

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

2.0 HISTORIC CONTEXT

existence, the City of North Vancouver was often 
referred to as ‘The Ambitious City’. This was 
understandable considering the tremendous growth 
and prosperity of those years, but the City’s fortunes 
followed the general booms and busts of the local 
economy. After regular ferry service was established 
in 1903 and the city was incorporated in 1907, North 
Vancouver experienced a period of unprecedented 
growth and prosperity. This construction boom 

1913 halted this ambitious suburban development. 
The MacLeod Residence was constructed in 1921, 
just as the economy was beginning to recover from the 
effects of the First World War. As soldiers, including 

additional housing was required to accommodate 
the increasing population. It was, however, many 
years before the City fully recovered, and the growth 
that was reestablished during the late 1920s was also 
curtailed; this time, due to the onset of the Great 
Depression. During World War Two, the City became 
a hub of wartime industrial production, and after 
the cessation of hostilities, it settled into a period of 
gradual development.

Lower Lonsdale, the commercial core of North 
Vancouver, is also the earliest and most historic area 
on the North Shore of Burrard Inlet, and contains 
many of the City’s oldest commercial buildings. The 
streetcar, ferry to Vancouver and the PGE railway 
converged at the southern foot of Lonsdale Avenue, 
the major transportation hub on the North Shore. The 
area represents a formative period in B.C.’s economy, 
driven at the time by major industries including 
logging and shipbuilding. Located to the north of 
the Lower Lonsdale area, the siting of the MacLeod 
Residence, along East 14th Street, several blocks east 
of Lonsdale Avenue, was a popular and convenient 
area for local residents; close enough to services and 
transportation hubs, but far enough removed to enjoy 
a tranquil lifestyle. 

The following is an excerpt from the 1921 Wrigley’s 
British Columbia Directory, written the year the 
MacLeod Residence was constructed:

The North Shore of Burrard Inlet is divided 
into three municipalities; The District of North 
Vancouver, which at one time embraced the 
whole area between the North Arm of the Inlet 

is now restricted to the area outside of the city, 
bounded by the Capilano River on the west and 
the North Arm on the east; the City of North 
Vancouver, embracing a central area of about 
3,500 acres; and the District of West Vancouver, 
extending from the Capilano River on the east to 

The North Shore industries include the following: 
Wallace Shipyards, Ltd., North Shore Shingles, 
Ltd., E. C. Walsh Lumber Co., Ltd., McNair 

Shingle Mill all within the city; Vancouver 
Creosoting Works, Capilano Timber Co., Ltd., 
Robert Dollar Timber Co., Ltd., Vancouver 
Lumber Co., Ltd., Cedars Ltd., Lynn Valley 
Lumber Co., Ltd., and the D. Bailey Mill Co., 
all in the District of North Vancouver; and the 
Vedder River Shingle Co. and the Askew Shingle 
Mill, in the District of West Vancouver. There are 
excellent summer resorts at Woodlands, Deep 
Cove and other points on the North Arm, and 
at many different points between Ambleside 
Ferry Landing on the east and Whitecliff at the 
terminus of a local branch of the P.G.E. Railway 
on the west. 

At present all transportation to outside points 
from these municipalities is by ferry boats. A 
ferry service is operated between the cities 
of Vancouver and North Vancouver, owned 
by the latter city, and carries upwards of 
3,000,000 passengers annually and a large 
number of vehicles of all kinds, loaded and 
unloaded. Efforts are now being put forth to 



3

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

have this service made a joint charge on all the 
municipalities interested and to reduce the ferry 
charges to a lower rate. 

West Vancouver is connected with the North 
Vancouver ferry by means of the P.G.E. Railway, 
but the Municipal Council also operates a 
ferry service from Ambleside to Vancouver for 
passengers and freight, but not for vehicles. In 
1920 they carried over 900,000 passengers. 
The eastern end of the North Vancouver District 
is served by ferry boats from Vancouver to 
different points on the North Arm. Strenuous 
efforts are now being put forth to have a large 

Second Narrows. The carrying out of this work 
would at once open up thousands of acres of 
land admirably adapted for industrial sites, and 
about 20 miles of deep-water frontage suitable 
for docks and works of all kinds. Considerable 

of a car ferry to bring freight cars from the 
Government docks to connect with the P.G.E 
Railway on the North Shore. Suitable barges and 
docks are not being constructed. 

The Capilano Timber Company have constructed 
a railway up the side of Capilano River to give 
access to extensive timber limits there.

There are several well developed copper and 
zinc claims near the source of the Lynn Creek, 
and it is claimed that very valuable iron deposits 
exist near the headwaters of the Seymour River.

The North Shore is famous for the number of 
beautiful mountains adjoining, including the 
Lions (6,500 ft.). Mount Crown (5,450 ft.), and 
Grouse Mountain (4,500 ft.)

The North Shore possesses a number of beautiful 

and industrial purposes. The principal of these 
are the Capilano and the Seymour rivers, both 
of which have been tapped to supply the City 
of Vancouver and its suburbs with water for all 
requirements, and the Lynn Creek, which is the 
source whence the City of North Vancouver 
takes its water service. 

and in summer they are visited by many 
thousands of tourists from all parts of the world. 
Notable canyons are on all the streams, but 
certainly the most notable are those on the 
Capilano River. 

The population on the North Shore is 
approximately from 12,000 to 15,000. 



4

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

City of North Vancouver, 1907, Library and Archives Canada e011202289, Block 52, future location of the MacLeod 
Residence, circled in red



5

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

Ferry Landing, 1910, Foot of Lonsdale in North Vancouver, City of Vancouver Archives (CVA) 371-2133



6

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

Lower Lonsdale 1913, North Vancouver Museum and Archives 10822



7

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

North Vancouver waterfront, 1919, CVA 1123-8



8

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

Ferry line-up on Lonsdale Avenue up to Eighth Street, 1931, CVA Br P75.2



9

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

Ferry Slip at the foot of Lonsdale, 1958, CVA 288-072.2



10

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

Library & Archives Canada: Soldiers of the First World War CEF: MACLEOD, WILLIAM RAY; Regimental number(s): 
911908, Reference: RG 150, Accession 1992-93/166, Box 7097 – 26; Date of Birth: 25/06/1892



11

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

The Daily Province, April 21, 1934, page 18



12

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

3.0 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Description of the Historic Place
The MacLeod Residence, located at 364 East 14th 
Street in North Vancouver’s historic Central Lonsdale 
neighbourhood, is a wood-frame interwar house with 

height, the house is characterized by its prominent 
side-gabled roof, central shed roof dormer, and full-
width verandah.  

Heritage Value of the Historic Place
Constructed in 1921, the MacLeod Residence is 

recovery of the interwar period in North Vancouver, 
and for its Craftsman architecture.  

During the early 1900s, the City of North Vancouver 
was often referred to as ‘The Ambitious City’, a 
name attributed to its tremendous growth and early 
prosperity. Lonsdale, the historic commercial core 
of North Vancouver, grew explosively, establishing 
a streetcar, ferry service to Vancouver, and the PGE 
railway, all of which converged at the foot of Lonsdale 
Avenue. Growth and development continued from the 

depression in 1913 halted the ambitious construction 
of the previous years. The MacLeod Residence is valued 
as an example of residential architecture constructed 
shortly after the First World War, as the community’s 
economy was still in recovery. Construction of the 
house was commissioned in 1921 by the principal of 

NAME:    MacLeod Residence
ADDRESS:   364 East 14th Street, North Vancouver, British Columbia
ORIGINAL OWNER:  Duncan P. Clark
FIRST RESIDENTS:  William Ray and Beulah Rossland MacLeod
BUILDER:   William Smith
DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1921

Lonsdale School, Duncan Clark, and was constructed 
by local contractor William Smith. The house was sold 
to fellow educator William Ray MacLeod, a World 

and his new wife Beulah; the couple remained in the 
home until 1924. Following the MacLeods, the house 
was owned by a series of working professionals, 
including the treasurer of a logging company, an 
accountant, and another school teacher. The MacLeod 
Residence represents the type of housing built during 
the interwar period when smaller-scale one and one-
half storey houses in traditional styles were built on 
vacant lots.

The MacLeod Residence is valued as a very good 

most popular housing style in the Lower Mainland in 
the early twentieth century. The Craftsman style was 

materials and a mix of traditional design elements 
inspired by the Arts and Crafts movement, such as 

textural contrast of siding and shingles. Characteristic 
of the style, the design of this house includes an 
uninterrupted verandah with tapered verandah 
piers, exposed raftertails, triangular eave brackets 
and a variety of wooden siding types. The MacLeod 
Residence illustrates the gradual economic recovery 
that followed the end of the First World War, and also 
the persistence of the Craftsman style.



13

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

the MacLeod residence are its:
• original location on East 14th Street in the 

Central Lonsdale neighbourhood of North 
Vancouver;

• siting on a corner lot with mature landscaping;
• continuous residential use since 1921; 
• residential form, scale and massing as expressed 

by its: one and one-half storey height with 
prominent side-gabled roof, and full-width 

• wood-frame construction with a variety of siding 
types including cedar shingles and narrow 
lapped wooden siding; 

• features of the Craftsman architectural style 
including: overhanging eaves with exposed 
raftertails and triangular eave brackets; pointed 
bargeboards; full-width front verandah with 
square wooden columns at each corner and 
square newel posts on either side of the staircase; 
shingle clad tapered verandah piers; decorative 
open verandah balustrade; closed low stair 
balustrade; central shed roof dormer on front 
elevation and central shed roof wall dormer on 
rear elevation; wooden bellyband; and bellcast 
cedar shingle cladding of the main body with 
narrow lapped wooden siding on the foundation 
level; 

• wooden-sash and frame windows including: 
single, paired, and tripartite casement and 
double-hung assemblies with bellcast shingles 
above each frame on the main body; and

• masonry elements including its concrete 
foundation, and internal central red brick 
chimney.



14

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

4.0 CONSERVATION GUIDELINES

4.1 STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES

The MacLeod Residence is an A-listed building on 

historical resource in the City of North Vancouver 
The Parks Canada’s Standards & Guidelines for 
the Conservation of Historic Places in Canada is 
the source used to assess the appropriate level of 
conservation and intervention. Under the Standards 
& Guidelines, the work proposed for the MacLeod 
Residence includes aspects of preservation, 
rehabilitation and restoration.

Preservation: the action or process of 
protecting, maintaining, and/or stabilizing 
the existing materials, form, and integrity 
of a historic place or of an individual 
component, while protecting its heritage 
value.
 
Restoration: the action or process of 
accurately revealing, recovering or 
representing the state of a historic place or 
of an individual component, as it appeared 
at a particular period in its history, while 
protecting its heritage value.
 
Rehabilitation: the action or process 
of making possible a continuing or 
compatible contemporary use of a historic 
place or an individual component, through 
repair, alterations, and/or additions, while 
protecting its heritage value.

Interventions to the MacLeod Residence should be 
based upon the Standards outlined in the Standards 
& Guidelines, which are conservation principles 
of best practice. The following General Standards 
should be followed when carrying out any work to 
an historic property.

STANDARDS

Standards relating to all Conservation Projects
1. Conserve the heritage value of a historic place. 

Do not remove, replace, or substantially alter 

elements. Do not move a part of a historic 
place if its current location is a character-

2. Conserve changes to a historic place, which 

elements in their own right.
3. Conserve heritage value by adopting an 

approach calling for minimal intervention.
4. Recognize each historic place as a physical 

record of its time, place and use. Do not create 
a false sense of historical development by 
adding elements from other historic places or 
other properties or by combining features of 
the same property that never coexisted.

5. Find a use for a historic place that requires 

elements.
6. Protect and, if necessary, stabilize a historic 

place until any subsequent intervention 
is undertaken. Protect and preserve 
archaeological resources in place. Where there 
is potential for disturbance of archaeological 
resources, take mitigation measures to limit 
damage and loss of information.

7. Evaluate the existing condition of character-

intervention needed. Use the gentlest means 
possible for any intervention. Respect heritage 
value when undertaking an intervention.

8. 

elements by reinforcing the materials using 
recognized conservation methods. Replace in 
kind any extensively deteriorated or missing 

there are surviving prototypes.
9. Make any intervention needed to preserve 

visually compatible with the historic place and 

any intervention for future reference.



15

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

4.0 CONSERVATION GUIDELINES

Additional Standards relating to Rehabilitation
10. 

are too severely deteriorated to repair, and 

replace them with new elements that match 
the forms, materials and detailing of sound 
versions of the same elements. Where there is 

material and detailing of the new elements 
compatible with the character of the historic 
place.

11. Conserve the heritage value and character-

additions to a historic place and any related 
new construction. Make the new work 
physically and visually compatible with, 
subordinate to and distinguishable from the 
historic place.

12. Create any new additions or related new 
construction so that the essential form and 
integrity of a historic place will not be 
impaired if the new work is removed in the 
future.

Additional Standards relating to Restoration
13. 

elements from the restoration period. Where 

physical evidence exists, replace them with 
new elements that match the forms, materials 
and detailing of sound versions of the same 
elements.

14. Replace missing features from the restoration 
period with new features whose forms, 

physical, documentary and/or oral evidence.

4.2 CONSERVATION REFERENCES

The proposed work entails the preservation, 
restoration and rehabilitation of the exterior of 
the MacLeod Residence and the rehabilitation of 
the surrounding site. The following conservation 
resources should be referred to:

Standards and Guidelines for the Conservation of 
Historic Places in Canada, Parks Canada, 2010.
http://www.historicplaces.ca/en/pages/standards-
normes/document.aspx

National Park Service, Technical Preservation 
Services. Preservation Briefs:

Preservation Brief 6: Dangers of Abrasive Cleaning 
to Historic Buildings.
http://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/briefs/6-
dangers-abrasive-cleaning.htm

Preservation Brief 10: Exterior Paint Problems on 
Historic Woodwork.
http://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/
briefs/10-paint-problems.htm

Preservation Brief 14: New Exterior Additions to 
Historic Buildings: Preservation Concerns.
http://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/
briefs/14-exterior-additions.htm

Preservation Brief 37: Appropriate Methods of 
Reducing Lead-Paint Hazards in Historic Housing.
http://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/
briefs/37-lead-paint-hazards.htm

Preservation Brief 39: Holding the Line: Controlling 
Unwanted Moisture in Historic Buildings. 
http://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/
briefs/39-control-unwanted-moisture.htm

Preservation Brief 45: Preserving Historic Wooden 
Porches.
http://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/
briefs/45-wooden-porches.htm



16

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

4.3 GENERAL CONSERVATION 
STRATEGY

The primary intent is to preserve the existing historic 
structure, while undertaking a rehabilitation of the 
exterior balconies and surrounding site to increase 
the site’s functionality for continued residential use. 

elements will be preserved, while missing or 

structure is proposed to the rear of the historic 
residence, and the original garage will be removed.

The development scheme for this property has been 
prepared by Bradbury Architecture and Karl Wein 
Associates. The major proposed interventions of the 
overall project are to:
• preserve the historic structure in-place;
• 
• rehabilitate the front balcony by extending to 

the west; and
• demolish the existing garage to accommodate 

the rear of the site.

all new visible construction will be considered 
a modern addition to the historic structure. The 
Standards & Guidelines list recommendations for 
new additions to historic places. The proposed 
design scheme should follow these principles:

• Designing a new addition in a manner that 
draws a clear distinction between what is 
historic and what is new.

• Design for the new work may be contemporary 
or may reference design motifs from the 
historic place. In either case, it should be 
compatible in terms of mass, materials, 
relationship of solids to voids, and colour, yet 
be distinguishable from the historic place.

• The new additions should be physically and 
visually compatible with, subordinate to and 
distinguishable from the preserved historic 
façade.

An addition should be subordinate to the historic 
place. This is best understood to mean that the 
addition must not detract from the historic place 
or impair its heritage value. Subordination is not 
a question of size; a small, ill-conceived addition 
could adversely affect an historic place more than a 
large, well-designed addition. 

Additions or new construction should be visually 
compatible with, yet distinguishable from, the 
historic place. To accomplish this, an appropriate 
balance must be struck between mere imitation 
of the existing form and pointed contrast, thus 
complementing the historic place in a manner that 
respects its heritage value.

4.4 SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

can go hand in hand with the mutual effort of all 
stakeholders. In a practical context, the conservation 
and re-use of historic and existing structures 
contributes to environmental sustainability by 
reducing solid waste disposal, saving embodied 
energy, and conserving historic materials that are 
often less consumptive of energy than many new 
replacement materials. 

In 2016, the Federal Provincial Territorial Ministers of 

a document entitled, Building Resilience: Practical 

Buildings in Canada that is “intended to establish 
a common pan-Canadian ‘how-to’ approach for 
practitioners, professionals, building owners, and 
operators alike.” 

The following is an excerpt from the introduction of 
the document: 

[Building Resilience] is intended to 
serve as a “sustainable building toolkit” 
that will enhance understanding of 

conservation and of the strong 
interrelationship between natural and 
built heritage conservation. Intended as a 

4.0 CONSERVATION GUIDELINES



17

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

4.5 ALTERNATE COMPLIANCE

Register, the MacLeod Residence may be eligible for 
heritage variances that will enable a higher degree 
of heritage conservation and retention of original 
material, including considerations available under 
the following municipal legislation.

4.5.1 BRITISH COLUMBIA BUILDING CODE

Building Code upgrading ensures life safety and 
long-term protection for historic resources. It is 
important to consider heritage buildings on a case-
by-case basis, as the blanket application of Code 
requirements do not recognize the individual 
requirements and inherent strengths of each 

equivalencies have been developed and adopted 
in the British Columbia Building Code that enable 
more sensitive and appropriate heritage building 
upgrades. For example, the use of sprinklers in a 

and exiting requirements. Table A-1.1.1.1., found in 
Appendix A of the Code, outlines the “Alternative 

factor in the conservation of heritage buildings, the 
most important consideration is to provide viable 
economic methods of achieving building upgrades. 
In addition to the equivalencies offered under the 
current Code, the City can also accept the report of 
a Building Code Engineer as to acceptable levels of 
code performance.

4.5.2 ENERGY EFFICIENCY ACT

2009 to exempt buildings protected through heritage 
designation or listed on a community heritage 
register from compliance with the regulations. 

windows, glazing products, door slabs or products 
installed in heritage buildings. This means that 
exemptions can be allowed to energy upgrading 
measures that would destroy heritage character-

doors.

useful set of best practices, the guidelines 
in Building Resilience can be applied 
to existing and traditionally constructed 
buildings as well as formally recognized 
heritage places.

These guidelines are primarily aimed at 
assisting designers, owners, and builders in 
providing existing buildings with increased 
levels of sustainability while protecting 

their heritage value. The guidelines are 
also intended for a broader audience of 
architects, building developers, owners, 
custodians and managers, contractors, 
crafts and trades people, energy 
advisers and sustainability specialists, 
engineers, heritage professionals, and 

and the existing built environment at all 
jurisdictional levels.

Building Resilience is not meant to 

intended to provide guidance with some 

every scenario and the realities of projects 
where buildings may contain inherently 
sustainable elements but limited or no 
heritage value. All interventions must be 
evaluated based on their unique context, 
on a case-by-case basis, by experts 
equipped with the necessary knowledge 
and experience to ensure a balanced 
consideration of heritage value and 
sustainable rehabilitation measures.

Building Resilience can be read as a stand-
alone document, but it may also further 
illustrate and build on the sustainability 
considerations in the Standards and 
Guidelines for the Conservation of Historic 
Places in Canada.

4.0 CONSERVATION GUIDELINES



18

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

These provisions do not preclude that heritage 

but they do allow a more sensitive approach of 
alternate compliance to individual situations and a 
higher degree of retained integrity. Increased energy 
performance can be provided through non-intrusive 
methods of alternate compliance, such as improved 
insulation and mechanical systems. Please refer to 
the Standards & Guidelines for the Conservation of 
Historic Places in Canada for further detail about 

4.5.4 HOMEOWNER PROTECTION ACT

1998 as a means to strengthen consumer protection 
for the purchase of new homes. The act was passed 
following a commission of enquiry into the leaky 
condo crisis, and was intended on protecting 
homeowners by ensuring home warranty insurance 
was provided on new construction, covering two 

building envelope and 10 years on the structure 
of the home. As the Act was intended to regulate 
new construction, considerations were not taken of 
buildings that have remained in sound condition for 
a many number of years that already far exceeded 

home. The act did not take into consideration the 
protection of heritage projects, and consequently 

through the requirement of new windows and 
rainscreen wall assemblies on residential heritage 
rehabilitation projects. An example being the 
requirement to remove original wooden siding 
that has successfully protected the building for 100 
years, and replace it with a rainscreen assembly 

valuable heritage fabric lost, but new materials will 
likely not last nearly as long as the original. 

Regulation made in 2010 allow for exemptions for 
heritage sites from the need to fully conform to the 
BC Building Code under certain conditions, thus 
removing some of the barriers to compliance that 

standards and guidelines. The changes comprised: 
1. 

Act Regulation, BC Reg. 29/99 that allows a 
warranty provider, in the case of a commercial 
to residential conversion, to exclude 
components of the building that have heritage 
value from the requirement for a warranty, and  

2. 

that 75% of a home must be reconstructed 
for it to be considered a ‘new home’ under 

single-family dwelling to multi-family and 
strata conversions with a maximum of 75% 
reconstruction to be exempt from home 

building is consistent with that under the 

The MacLeod Residence falls into the second 
category, as the proposed project involves retaining 
a high degree of the original structure and less 
than 75% of the house will be reconstructed.  
Consequently, this project is not considered a 
substantial reconstruction as per the amended 

will be exempt from the requirement of a warranty. 
This amendment will enable a higher degree of 
retention and preservation of original fenestration, 
siding and woodwork. 

4.0 CONSERVATION GUIDELINES



19

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

4.6 SITE PROTECTION & STABILIZATION

It is the responsibility of the owner to ensure the heritage 
resource is protected from damage at all times. At any 
time that the building is left vacant, it should be secured 
against unauthorized access or damage through the 
use of appropriate fencing and security measures. 
Additional measures to be taken include:

• 
• Are wall openings boarded up and exterior 

doors securely fastened once the building is 

• 
interior: trash, hazardous materials such as 

The building should be protected at all timers during 
construction work. Install monitoring devices to 
document and assess cracks and possible settlement 
of the facades, as required.

4.0 CONSERVATION GUIDELINES



20

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

A condition review of the MacLeod Residence was 
carried out during a site visit on May 28, 2019. The 
recommendations for the preservation, restoration 
and rehabilitation of the historic site are based on 
the site review and archival research that provide 
valuable information about the original appearance 
of the historic building. 

The following chapter describes the materials, 
physical condition and recommended conservation 
strategy for the MacLeod Residence  based on Parks 
Canada Standards & Guidelines for the Conservation 
of Historic Places in Canada.

5.0 CONSERVATION RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 SITE

The McLeod Residence sits on a prominent corner 
lot at East 14th Street and Ridgeway Avenue in the 
City of North Vancouver. The house is recognized 
as a category A heritage resource on the Municipal 

the site, the historic residence will be preserved 
in its original location and the rear garage will be 
demolished to accommodate construction of the 

the house will be rehabilitated to accommodate  the 

east and south sides of the house will be preserved. 

All heritage resources within the site should be 
protected from damage or destruction at all times. 
Reference Section 4.6: Site Protection for further 
information.



21

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

Conservation Strategy: Rehabilitation
• Preserve the original location of the building. 

All rehabilitation work should occur within 
the property lines. Retain the main frontage on 
East 14th Street.

• Any drainage issues should be addressed 
through the provision of adequate site drainage 
measures.

• Carefully salvage relevant material from 
original garage for use on main house prior to 
demolition.

• 
the historic struture that is “physically and 
visually compatible with, subordinate to, and 
distinguishable from the historic place” as 
recommended in Standard 11.

5.2 FORM, SCALE & MASSING

The MacLeod Residence features a residential form, 
scale and massing as expressed by its one and one-
half storey height with prominent side-gabled roof, 

steps. As part of the scope of work, the overall form, 
scale and massing of the historic residence.

Conservation Strategy: Preservation
• Preserve the overall form, scale and massing of 

the building.

5.0 CONSERVATION RECOMMENDATIONS



22

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

5.3 FOUNDATIONS

The historic residence sits on original concrete 
foundations, which will be retained in place as part 
of the redevelopment scheme. Careful attention 
should be executed to ensure the foundations are 
not damaged during adjacent construction work. 

Conservation Strategy: Preservation
• Existing foundations should be preserved.
• If foundations are to be rehabilitated or 

new foundations are proposed in the future, 
concrete is a suitable material. New material 
should match original in appearance, as 
viewed from the exterior.

• In the event of any structural rehabilitation 
of the historic house, foundations should 
be reviewed by a Structural Engineer. 

5.4 EXTERIOR WOOD-FRAME WALLS

The MacLeod house has been maintained in good 
condition and features a Craftsman architectural 

the overhanging eaves with exposed raftertails and 
triangular eave brackets pointed bargeboards, full-
width front verandah with square wooden columns 

at each corner and square newel posts on either 
side of the staircase, shingle clad tapered verandah 
piers, decorative open verandah balustrade, closed 
low stair balustrade, central shed roof dormer on 
front elevation and central shed roof wall dormer 
on rear elevation, wooden bellyband, and bellcast 
cedar shingle cladding of the main body with 
narrow lapped wooden siding on the foundation 
level. As part of the scope of work, character-

where required. Exterior siding on the rear elevation 
below deck and where deck will be removed should 
be restored to match existing. 

Conservation Strategy: Preservation
• Due to the integrity of wood frame structure, 

the exterior walls should be preserved through 
retention and in-situ repair work.

• Preserve the original wood-frame structure of 
the historic building.

• Preserve original siding on all elevations.
Exterior siding on the rear elevation below 
deck and where deck will be removed should 
be restored to match existing.

• Replace any damaged siding to match existing 

salvaged shingles from garage, where possible.
• At time of repainting, clean siding using 

approved heritage cleaning procedures. 
• Cleaning procedures should be undertaken 

with non-destructive methods. Areas with 
biological growth should be cleaned using 
a soft, natural bristle brush, without water, 
to remove dirt and other material. If a more 
intense cleaning is required, this can be 
accomplished with warm water, mild detergent 
(such as D/2 Biological Solution®) and a soft 

abrasive cleaning or sandblasting should not 
be allowed under any circumstances.

5.4.1 WOOD TRIM 

The house features original painted wood trim, 
which is in good condition and will be preserved. In 
locations where trim may be damaged or missing, 
new wood trim to match original in kind will be 
installed and painted to match existing.

5.0 CONSERVATION RECOMMENDATIONS



23

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

Conservation Strategy: Preservation
• Any existing trim should be preserved, and 

new material that is visually physically 
compatible with the original should be 
reinstated when original fabric is missing. 
Combed and/or textured lumber is not 

boards are not acceptable

5.5 VERANDAH/ PORCH

front verandah with original detailing. As part of the 
proposed redevelopment, the front verandah will be 
extended to the west and wrapped around the side 
of the house. Railing design should be compatible 
with but distinguishable from historic original.

approximately 24” in height. To ensure the heritage 
character of the house is preserved, the restored 

balustrade height, alternate compliance measures 
should be explored, such as the use of metal pipe 
rail and glass panels to make up the remaining 
height to meet code requirements. 

Conservation Strategy: Rehabilitation
• Existing balustrade should be preserved.
• Existing low height of the balustrade should be 

retained, with alternate compliance methods 
utilized to achieve code height, if required.

• New possible alternative materials may be 
glass panels, metal pipe rails or a combination 
of both.

• New balustrade on west verandah extension 
should be compatible yet distinguishable 
from the historic original. To be reviewed by 
heritage consultant.

5.0 CONSERVATION RECOMMENDATIONS



24

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

5.6 FENESTRATION

Windows, doors and storefronts are 
among the most conspicuous feature of 
any building. In addition to their function 
— providing light, views, fresh air and 
access to the building — their arrangement 
and design is fundamental to the building’s 
appearance and heritage value. Each 
element of fenestration is, in itself, a 
complex assembly whose function and 
operation must be considered as part of its 
conservation.  
– Standards and Guidelines for the 
Conservation of Historic Places in Canada.

5.6.1 WINDOWS

All windows on the MacLeod residence have 
previously been rehabilitated and appear to be 
in good condition. As part of the scope of work, 
windows will be preserved and repaired, as 
required. Any alterations or proposed new windows 
to be reviewed by heritage consultant.

Conservation Strategy: Preservation
• Inspect for condition and complete detailed 

inventory to determine condition of all 
windows.

• Retain existing window sashes; repair as 
required; install replacement matching sashes 
where missing or beyond repair.

• Preserve and repair as required, using in kind 
repair techniques where feasible.

• Prime and repaint as required in appropriate 
colour, based on colour schedule devised by 

5.6.2 DOORS

All existing doors will be preserved with the 
exception of the rear patio door, which may be 
converted into a window.

Conservation Strategy: Preservation and 
Rehabilitation
• Retain the door openings in their existing 

locations, and preserve and repair all existing 
doors. 

• Rehabilitate rear main-level door following 
removal of deck. Replace with window, as 
desired. Consider utilizing original window 
salvaged from garage.

• Any new doors should be visually compatible 
with the historic character of the building. 

5.0 CONSERVATION RECOMMENDATIONS



25

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

5.0 CONSERVATION RECOMMENDATIONS

5.7 ROOF

The MacLeod Residence features a prominent 
side-gabled roof with front and rear shed-roofed 

retained, including all original trim and detailing. If 
desired, cedar shingles may be reinstated at time of 
roof replacement.

• Preserve the roof structure in its current 

shed-roofed dormers.
• 

replacement in the future, cedar shingles are 
the preferred material, but Duroid shingles 
or Aged Cedar Enviroshingles™ are also 
acceptable.  

• Retain the original bargeboards and fascia 

elements.
• Ensure adequate rainwater disposal system and 

proper drainage from the site is maintained.

5.7.1 CHIMNEY

The house features one internal red brick chimney, 
which will be preserved.

• Preserve the chimney in its original 

• Investigate condition of brickwork. If required, 
brickwork may be repointed and cleaned 
using a natural bristle brush and mild rinse 
detergent.



26

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

5.8 INFILL HOUSE

of the site, facing Ridgeway Avenue. The new 
construction is distinguishable in form from the 
main house and features a compatible material 
palette.

Conservation Strategy: New
• 

appearance of the main house, and should be 
distinguishable. 

• Asphalt shingles are acceptable for new 
construction, and should be grey or black 
3-tab shingles, preferably.

• Colour scheme should be compatible with, 
but different from, the historic MacLeod 
Residence.

5.9 COLOUR SCHEDULE

The house has been repainted, which appears to 
be in good condition. A restoration colour scheme 
will be developed in conjunction with the project 
architect, and may be adopted at time of repainting, 
if desired.

The building displays areas where there was 

be based on a colour palette that will be determined 

access is available, and paint samples assessed by 
microscopic analysis in order to reveal the original 
colour scheme of the structure.

Conservation Strategy: Restoration
• Determine an appropriate historic colour 



27

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

A Maintenance Plan should be adopted by the 
property owner, who is responsible for the long-term 
protection of the heritage features of the MacLeod 
Residence. The Maintenance Plan should include 
provisions for:
• Copies of the Maintenance Plan and this 

Conservation Report to be incorporated into 
the terms of reference for the management and 
maintenance contract for the building;

• Cyclical maintenance procedures to be 
adopted as outlined below;

• Record drawings and photos of the building 
to be kept by the management / maintenance 
contractor; and

• Records of all maintenance procedures to be 
kept by the owner.

A thorough maintenance plan will ensure the 
integrity of the MacLeod Residence is preserved. 
If existing materials are regularly maintained and 

the integrity of materials and workmanship of the 
building will be protected. Proper maintenance is 
the most cost effective method of extending the life 

elements. The survival of historic buildings in good 
condition is primarily due to regular upkeep and the 
preservation of historic materials. 

6.1 MAINTENANCE GUIDELINES 

A maintenance schedule should be formulated 
that adheres to the Standards & Guidelines for 
the Conservation of Historic Places in Canada. As 

Standards & Guidelines, maintenance 

Routine, cyclical, non-destructive actions 
necessary to slow the deterioration 
of a historic place. It entails periodic 
inspection; routine, cyclical, non-
destructive cleaning; minor repair and 

damaged or deteriorated materials that are 
impractical to save. 

The assumption that newly renovated buildings 
become immune to deterioration and require 

less maintenance is a falsehood. Rather, newly 
renovated buildings require heightened vigilance to 
spot errors in construction where previous problems 
had not occurred, and where deterioration may gain 
a foothold.

Routine maintenance keeps water out of the 
building, which is the single most damaging element 
to a heritage building. Maintenance also prevents 
damage by sun, wind, snow, frost and all weather; 
prevents damage by insects and vermin; and 
aids in protecting all parts of the building against 
deterioration. The effort and expense expended on 
an aggressive maintenance will not only lead to a 
higher degree of preservation, but also over time 
potentially save large amount of money otherwise 
required for later repairs. 

6.2 PERMITTING

Repair activities, such as simple in-kind repair of 
materials, or repainting in the same colour, should 

intensive activities will require the issuance of a 

6.3 ROUTINE, CYCLICAL AND NON-
DESTRUCTIVE CLEANING

Following the Standards & Guidelines for the 
Conservation of Historic Places in Canada, be 
mindful of the principle that recommends “using 
the gentlest means possible”. Any cleaning 
procedures should be undertaken on a routine basis 
and should be undertaken with non-destructive 
methods. Cleaning should be limited to the exterior 
material such as concrete and stucco wall surfaces 
and wood elements such as storefront frames. All of 
these elements are usually easily cleaned, simply 
with a soft, natural bristle brush, without water, to 
remove dirt and other material. If a more intensive 
cleaning is required, this can be accomplished 
with warm water, mild detergent and a soft bristle 

abrasive cleaning should not be undertaken under 
any circumstances.

6.0 MAINTENANCE PLAN



28

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

6.4 REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENT OF 
DETERIORATED MATERIALS

Interventions such as repairs and replacements 
must conform to the Standards & Guidelines for 
the Conservation of Historic Places in Canada. 

characteristics of the building that contribute to its 

etc. - must be conserved, referencing the following 
principles to guide interventions:
• An approach of minimal intervention must be 

adopted - where intervention is carried out it 
will be by the least intrusive and most gentle 
means possible.

• 
elements.

• 
recognized conservation methods.

• Replace ‘in kind’ extensively deteriorated or 

• Make interventions physically and visually 
compatible with the historic place.

6.5 INSPECTIONS

Inspections are a key element in the maintenance 

assessment of heritage buildings. These inspections 
should be conducted on a regular and timely 
schedule. The inspection should address all aspects 
of the building including exterior, interior and 
site conditions. It makes good sense to inspect a 
building in wet weather, as well as in dry, in order 

From this inspection, an inspection report should 
be compiled that will include notes, sketches and 
observations. It is helpful for the inspector to have 
copies of the building’s elevation drawings on which 
to mark areas of concern such as cracks, staining and 
rot. These observations can then be included in the 
report. The report need not be overly complicated 
or formal, but must be thorough, clear and concise. 
Issues of concern, taken from the report should then 
be entered in a log book so that corrective action 

can be documented and tracked. Major issues of 
concern should be extracted from the report by the 
property manager.

An appropriate schedule for regular, periodic 
inspections would be twice a year, preferably 
during spring and fall. The spring inspection should 
be more rigorous since in spring moisture-related 
deterioration is most visible, and because needed 
work, such as painting, can be completed during 
the good weather in summer. The fall inspection 
should focus on seasonal issues such as weather-
sealants, mechanical (heating) systems and drainage 
issues. Comprehensive inspections should occur at 

inspections and the original work, particularly in 
monitoring structural movement and durability of 
utilities. Inspections should also occur after major 
storms. 

6.6 INFORMATION FILE 

should also contain the log book that itemizes 
problems and corrective action. Additionally, this 

heritage reports, photographs and other relevant 
documentation so that a complete understanding of 
the building and its evolution is readily available, 
which will aid in determining appropriate 
interventions when needed.

detailing where they are available (store, supplier). 
The building owner should keep on hand a stock of 
spare materials for minor repairs. 

6.6.1 LOG BOOK

The maintenance log book is an important 
maintenance tool that should be kept to record 
all maintenance activities, recurring problems 
and building observations and will assist in the 
overall maintenance planning of the building. 

6.0 MAINTENANCE PLAN



29

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

Routine maintenance work should be noted in the 
maintenance log to keep track of past and plan 
future activities. All items noted on the maintenance 
log should indicate the date, problem, type of repair, 
location and all other observations and information 

Each log should include the full list of recommended 
maintenance and inspection areas noted in this 
Maintenance Plan, to ensure a record of all activities 
is maintained. A full record of these activities will 
help in planning future repairs and provide valuable 
building information for all parties involved in the 
overall maintenance and operation of the building, 
and will provide essential information for long term 
programming and determining of future budgets. 
It will also serve as a reminded to amend the 
maintenance and inspection activities should new 
issues be discovered or previous recommendations 
prove inaccurate. 

The log book will also indicate unexpectedly 
repeated repairs, which may help in solving more 
serious problems that may arise in the historic 
building. The log book is a living document that will 
require constant adding to, and should be kept in 

noted in section 6.6 Information File. 

6.7 EXTERIOR MAINTENANCE

Water, in all its forms and sources (rain, snow, frost, 
rising ground water, leaking pipes, back-splash, 
etc.) is the single most damaging element to historic 
buildings. 

The most common place for water to enter a 
building is through the roof. Keeping roofs repaired 
or renewed is the most cost-effective maintenance 
option. Evidence of a small interior leak should 
be viewed as a warning for a much larger and 
worrisome water damage problem elsewhere and 

6.7.1 INSPECTION CHECKLIST

The following checklist considers a wide range 

Residence, such as water/moisture penetration, 
material deterioration and structural deterioration. 
This does not include interior inspections.

EXTERIOR INSPECTION

Site Inspection:
 ☐

 ☐

Foundation
 ☐
 ☐ Is there back splashing from ground to struc-

 ☐
 ☐

 ☐
 ☐
 ☐
 ☐
 ☐
 ☐
 ☐

 ☐
damp, rain penetration, condensation moisture 
from plants, water run-off from roof, sills, or 

 ☐
 ☐ -

 ☐

 ☐

 ☐ Is any wood surface damaged from UV radia-

 ☐
 ☐
 ☐
 ☐

6.0 MAINTENANCE PLAN



30

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

Condition of Exterior Painted Materials
 ☐ Paint shows: blistering, sagging or wrinkling, 

 ☐ Paint has the following stains: rust, bleeding 

 ☐

Verandahs / Porches:
 ☐
 ☐ Do any support columns show rot at their 

 ☐

Windows
 ☐
 ☐
 ☐ If the glazing is puttied has it gone brittle and 

 ☐ If the glass is secured by beading, are the 

 ☐ Is there condensation or water damage to the 

 ☐

 ☐
 ☐
 ☐ -

 ☐ Is the caulking between the frame and the 

Doors
 ☐
 ☐
 ☐
 ☐

 ☐

 ☐

 ☐

Gutters and Downspouts
 ☐

 ☐ Are downspouts complete without any missing 

 ☐ Is the water being effectively carried away 

 ☐

Roof
 ☐
 ☐
 ☐

moss, birds, insects)
 ☐
 ☐ -

6.7.2 MAINTENANCE PROGRAMME 

INSPECTION CYCLE:

Daily
• 

damp, dripping pipes; malfunctioning 
hardware; etc.) to be noted in log book or 

• Semi-annual inspection and report with 
special focus on seasonal issues.

• Thorough cleaning of drainage system to cope 
with winter rains and summer storms

• Check condition of weather sealants (Fall).
• Clean the exterior using a soft bristle broom/

brush.

6.0 MAINTENANCE PLAN



31

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

Annually (Spring)
• Inspect concrete for cracks, deterioration. 
• Inspect metal elements, especially in areas that 

may trap water. 
• Inspect windows for paint and glazing 

compound failure, corrosion and wood decay 
and proper operation.

• Complete annual inspection and report.
• Clean out of all perimeter drains and rainwater 

systems.
• Touch up worn paint on the building’s exterior.
• Check for plant, insect or animal infestation.
• Routine cleaning, as required.

Five-Year Cycle
• A full inspection report should be undertaken 

previous inspections and the original work, 
particularly monitoring structural movement 
and durability of utilities.

• 

Ten-Year Cycle
• Check condition of roof every ten years after 

last replacement.

Twenty-Year Cycle
• 

lifespan. Replace when required.

Major Maintenance Work (as required)
• Thorough repainting, downspout and drain 

replacement; replacement of deteriorated 
building materials; etc.

6.0 MAINTENANCE PLAN



32

MACLEOD RESIDENCE: 364 EAST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC
DRAFT CONSERVATION PLAN  |  JUNE 2019  |  DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES

APPENDIX A: RESEARCH SUMMARY

Name: MacLeod Residence
Address: 364 East 14th Street, North Vancouver, British Columbia

First Residents: William Ray and Beulah Rossland MacLeod
Builder: William Smith
Date of Construction: 1921

Building Permit: 
• 

Directories:
1921:   no entry
1922 - 1924:  MacLeod William Ray

1927 - 1929:  J.S. McKenzie, accountant, Capilano Timber

1931:   vacant
1932 - 1933:  T.D. Edwards
1934:   vacant
1935 - 1937:  Mrs. C. A. Adams
1938 - 1939:  Arthur P. Croker, district rep. BCER

Vital Events:
• Death Registration: William Ray MacLeod; April 14, 1934; Pouce Coupe; BC Archives Reg. #1934-09-

495916
• Death Registration: Beulah Roseline Macleod; March 19, 1978; North Vancouver; BC Archives Reg. 

#1978-09-005140
• 

Archives Reg. #1921-09-235386

Attestation Papers:
• 



jpeters
FreeText
Attachment 6�



Public Hearing 
Presentation for 
364 East 14th St
Bylaw No. 8904 and 8905

Presented April 25, 2022
Development Planning

Location

2

Site

E 14TH STREET

RI
DG

EW
AY

 A
VE

N
UE



Land Use and 
Zoning

3

• OCP

– Residential Level 2

– 0.5 FSR density

• Current Zoning

– One-Unit Residential
1 (RS-1)

R2 R1

R2

R2

R1

R1

R4A

R3
INST

R1

Proposal: Heritage 
Protection

4



Proposal: Form and 
Design

5

Proposed Development

• Two Principal Buildings
• Three Principal units
• Two lock-off suites within the new infill duplex
• Density: 0.5 FSR

– No additional density beyond OCP sought

• Height – two storeys
• Site Coverage – 36.5%
• Parking – four stalls

6



Policy Analysis: 
OCP and Strategic Plan

• The proposal complies with the OCP
• Heritage Conservation
• Meets the Strategic Plan as a City for People and a

Vibrant City

7

Advisory Body Review

• Heritage Advisory Committee review on December 16,
2019

• Project unanimously endorsed, with some
recommendations, including:

– Ensure consistency between the Heritage Conversation Plan, landscape plan
and architectural plans;

– Confirm that there is adequate privacy achieved between the upper storey
bedrooms of each building;

– Further explore the colour palette for the infill building, perhaps by referring to the
Benjamin Moore colour palette, so that a lighter palette and complementary
colour for the infill building can be achieved.

8



Public Engagement
• A Developer’s Information Session on October 8, 2019

with seven attendees.
• Comments submitted:

– 4 expressing opposition

• Main concerns:
– Scale, form and density;

– Privacy impacts;

– Car parking;

– Proposed upgrades to the existing heritage building; and

– Vegetation removal and lack of greenspace.

9

Scale and Form

10



Privacy Impacts

11

Frosted glazing 
treatment to 
west facing 
bathrooms 
windows

Habitable room 
windows 

oriented away 
from western 
side boundary

Level 2 Plan – Infill Duplex

Western Boundary

Privacy Impacts

12

6 foot high 
frosted glass 

panels provided 
to elevated decks

Frosted glazing 
treatment to 
west facing 
bathrooms 
windows

Western Elevation – Infill Duplex



Privacy Impacts

13

20m

Traffic Impacts

14

• Sufficient on-site car parking

• Required bicycle parking spaces

• Excellent access to Lonsdale Regional City Centre, and nearby
transit routes



Heritage Conservation

15

• Heritage Designation Bylaw to protect building in perpetuity.

• Development Covenant
• Conservation Plan, including implementing conservation recommendations.

• Require structural upgrades (determined at the Building Permit stage).

• Ongoing maintenance to be managed through the recommendations of the
Conservation Plan.

Tree Retention 

16

Existing White 
Oak to be 
removed

Oak tree to be 
Retained (Tree #6)

Spruce Tree to be 
retained (Tree #7)

Flowering 
Dogwood to be 

retained (Tree #8)

No change to 
existing trees at 

front of property 
(Trees #1 & #2)

Cherry Tree to 
be removed

New street trees 
to be provided



Tree Retention

17

Tree Retention

18



Conclusion

• The proposal complies with the OCP and Strategic Plan.

• Ensures ongoing protection of a heritage asset in the City.

• Establishes an appropriately scaled infill development.

• The site proximity to existing amenities, commercial areas, public
transit and active transportation facilities makes it an appropriate
location for the proposal.

19

20

Thank you.

















From: Enza Eppich 
Sent: April-11-22 9:19 AM
To: Submissions; City Council; Matthew Menzel
Subject: Zoning Amendment and Heritage Designation for 364 East 14th Street

To:  Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council, Matthew Menzel 

My name is Enza Eppich and I live at 358 East 14th Street, North Vancouver, and built in 2004 and my 
property shares the property line on the west side of this property 364 East 14th Street.  We are one 
family living in our house. 

I attended the Development Information Open House for the above property on Oct. 9, 2019. I am very 
disappointed and not satisfied with the information meeting regarding the proposed rezoning. 

I asked Karl Wein the Applicants contact  and the owner Sarah many  specific questions regarding the 
proposed building and only received evasive answers.   
The property's current classification is Single family Residential, and I asked Mr. Wein what classification 
is the intended rezoning, and was given no answer other than the plan reflects rezoning. This is no 
answer at all.  Any question I asked Mr. Wien, he evaded answering or giving information.  I asked how 
many square feet the buildings covered the lot and was given a shrug of the shoulders.  I asked how 
many square feet the existing house was, and was told I don't know.  I asked if the existing house would 
be renovated and taken care of to comply with the heritage character of the house, as they would like to 
say it is Heritage, and was told I don't know.  

Also, I was told that the fixing up or bringing the original house up to Heritage standard  is NOT part of 
the  proposal.  My understanding is that if you want to have Heritage rating to get the extra square 
footage on the property then you need to maintain the architectural integrity and upkeep of the house. If 
this designation is to be given without first completing all work to restore the house and yard, I believe 
the work will never get done, as no work to the house has occurred in over 8 years. I have attached 
photos of the property. The unkept yard and home show lack of care the owners have for the property. 
An example is the original development sign from 2019 fell to the ground about one year ago and is still 
sitting on the boulevard.  Picture attached was taken April 10, 2022. 

I asked if the overgrown trees along the border lot line would be maintained and was told that he wasn't 
sure. The existing trees are currently well above the roof line and extend over the fence and property 
line by at least 7 feet. I have them cut to the property line yearly. The trees and shrubs would have to 
have a major cut back to bring a healthy state.  My neighbour has not repaired the exterior of the house 
and done proper maintenance in the  garden or  on property for many years.  Even cutting the lawn is 
done rarely. I have asked them to maintain the bordering trees, but received the answer, "we like our 
house as is."   

I am, also, concerned about the Oak trees on the property located on the north east side of the lot near 
the lane.  The Oak trees, on the property, are some of the rarest and oldest Oak trees 
in North Vancouver. I believe that the city of North Vancouver passed a bylaw in November of  2021 to 
protect such trees.  
I asked what ratio of the lot was going to be left for green space and was told people should not expect 
to have any green space in the City of North Vancouver on their residential lots.  This, again, is not my 
understanding of the city's mandates. 

Page 1 of 7

Received April 11, 2022
PH 364 East 14th St.



I asked about privacy and was told that I should not expect to have privacy in the city. They felt I would 
not lose it, but this is clearly not the truth as the elevated decks with glass sliding doors spanning the 
entire back of the house and above the existing 6 foot fence would  look directly onto my  back yard and 
into my kitchen, family room and bedroom windows.  This certainly would cause a loss of privacy. This 
side of the proposed duplex borders the shared property line and would be approximately 7ft by 30ft of 
glass(which is a series of glass sliding doors and windows). From the plan shown to us the glazing ratio 
for the side of the house on the property line is not being observed and is excessive. When I asked the 
designer about the window ratio along the property line,  I was told NO ratio was necessary.  I was told 
the sliding doors and windows on the three decks of the proposed buildings would be exempt of any 
ratio.  

I find these answers to be evasive at best and could not believe the city building code, and  regulations 
are being maintained. I do not understand how most or all building codes and ratios are being 
unobserved. 

I was told that 4 car parks was enough for 5 family units. When I built my house, I had to have minimum 
3 parking spots for the Single family home.  Also, any new construction on our street has had to give a 
minimum of one parking spot per unit. All other construction on our street has respected all the city  by 
laws and codes.  As well, all other owners and contractors have taken the time to address concerns of 
the neighbours.  We are being given any notice at the very last moment, and no thought of what we 
would like to see as per OCP is even considered.  

As it is, we live on a high density street.  We share the street with the Hospice, St. Andrews Complex, 
Kiwanis Elderly home, and across the street the Hospital and Evergreen. We get a lot of  guests and 
medical workers parking along our street daily. The city has addressed this issue by assigning 
designated residential parking on our street.   Also, the complex at the end of the road that was built on 
Hospital lands with over 90 units.  The average units on our street exceeds ten fold any other  in the city 
that is designated a single family lot on the OCP.  We do not live within the first two blocks of Lonsdale 
and a special exemption was made for the hospital lands.  In fact, the transition from Duplex to single 
family lot mid block was only decided a few years ago.  The city's reasoning was that we needed to have 
a flow and transition smoothly from single family lot to duplex.  The neighbourhood wanted to keep as 
many single family lot as possible to keep the integrity of the community. 

I have a 3 car garage and two parking stalls on the lane side of my lot, I pay for 3 parking permits 
because on occasion I park on the street to unload groceries and such, and would otherwise get 
ticketed.  This allotment of 4 parking stalls is way too low for 5 units. (In fact it is 6 units as there is 
a basement suite in the existing house. 

When I built my home and the current OCP designates this 364 East 14th Street as Single Family 
residential.  I am not against a lane house being  put on existing property.  Or a duplex put on the 
property in place of the original house with a lane house.  But a green space ratio needs to be 
maintained and window ration for privacy needs to be maintained.   

We have many duplex with lane houses in our neighbourhood.  All have kept  green space ratios. All 
have complied with the lot set back codes.   The proposed 3 feet is way too close, and on top of that the 
nearness of the building has an elevated deck looking into my house and backyard.  The positioning of 
the units from Ridgeway entrance instead of 14 Street entrance, mean that the house is situated 
sideways on the property making the back of the proposed duplex to be facing towards the property line. 
Meaning the glazing ratio for privacy needs to be maintained for privacy.  

 Also, the proposed lot coverage seems to be unlimited. With the oversided duplex and existing house 
on the property, all sun will be blocked on my property.  

Page 2 of 7



It is important that we maintain quality of life in North Vancouver.  But our street has been 
particularly affected by density. We have  accommodated the complex on 14th Street and St. Andrews , 
Kiwanis House, Hospice. Also, most homes have added lane houses or converted to duplexes. To go 
from single family zoning to  5 or 6 units seems excessive.  

I was born at Lions Gate Hospital and have lived here on the North Shore for 57 years. I want to see the 
city maintain the quality of community and neighbourhood.  I am not opposed to development, but there 
are limits.  We have an OCP that accounts for densification.  People have chosen to live here as per the 
OCP.  If we wanted to live next to a small apartment complex type lot, we would have chosen such a 
location as per the OCP. We have not moved here to be living in a single family home neighbourhood, 
and a few years later to have a proposal to build  5 or 6 units on a single family lot.  This is 
excessive.  We have made choices to live in this area as the city OCP is a guide for a sustainable 
community.  We do not want to lose this in our community. 

I would like to have you give me a call for some answers, and want to 

Regards, 
Enza Eppich 
358 East 14th Street, North Vancouver 

Page 3 of 7



   

  

Page 4 of 7

:!

Lii6 t:'r |
*i.mm i■ -% .V

i*

w® vwvw. rwmm
**-

S:

: ; v .:-. -- ,

•*

EilElliU %1*

| :.
> -

••'•*? *Zsr— ■
'* *.

«*
*

-- v ^ r * ’.*? y. v.- ' JV>-esg-®>f• «!. 9j $P?i•*i C*?r £<4;vi> K< MF n«-

f»»4^ '3
4 * — F'-?- ■>:•f'"' ;T'

o^V)fe2,•
*9^#‘ ‘'*v*s?



  

  

Page 5 of 7

/

7

'd'
■ m 7,. iv

J' '•«

<•

Srr
_ ^-V

‘i H

/✓
<*

:
. .a-.:y^

ISil, . ..
j

\
**.w *wV>

-■(
r». A* <’‘7*

. 3_<y ' .7^/. <v•’
/T' ;

rl' f



  

  

Page 6 of 7

t\ >:■ •.
4'

..a;
.'Vi

->
^v! -m*?:i

-

- •v

/ H
»

'mm ■ yml .;■mm ;'■

>>w®mSKI BH*>:htt«K :.•■\ >'- v.^
<

ii I a a
* /

r<x

M3
V?

'-
:«■- 5

v *Wte.
<

'■>'wm
:

-

SraS«5raSBHBM



 

Page 7 of 7

.

<

- •

V-.»I I

Mi
iiW

fr
V'

»£-&i%/"II (v
_ *(l«

.~-i>

S,
I»-'

V — —rt"mm

% ■

-■

5?tf

*A‘
■ *y.v'

0V'A •-
.
»4 mmM ■i.



Peter Lister & Lisa Ryan 
408 14th Street East 
North Vancouver, BC  V7L 2N8 

April 18, 2022 

CNV Major and Council 
City of North Vancouver 
141 West 14th Street 
North Vancouver, BC V7M 1H9 

Sent via e-mail to:   CityCouncil@cnv.org and planning@cnv.org 

Dear CNV Major and Council: 

Re:  364 14th Street East – Application for Development 

We are writing to you regarding the proposed development at 364 14th Street East, North Vancouver 
because we have serious concerns about the project. 

In 2019 we attended the developer’s information meeting.  We note that in the most recent application, 
only very minor changes have been made to the 2019 proposal.  The current application, being justified 
under the guise of heritage conservation, is well outside of current zoning guidelines, will not contribute 
to the preservation of the existing heritage house, and results in 5 or possibly 6 units of the property, 
which is completely unacceptable for an RS-1 zoned property.   

We are strongly opposed to the application for the following reasons: 

• The property is zoned RS-1, allowing a maximum lot coverage of 50% for the main residence and
a potential coach house.  The current proposal appears to significantly exceed this lot coverage.

• The proposal includes an infill duplex unit with basement suites for a total of 4 additional units.
Five households (and possibly six if a suite was added to the main house in the future) is simply
too much for an RS-1 property, regardless of any heritage considerations.

• While the application is being made on the pretext of preserving a heritage building, there is no
apparent plan to repair/restore the existing house as part of this proposal.  The application
package shows the existing deck will be relocated to the west side of the house to make room
for the new duplex, but it appears that no other upgrades are being planned to the heritage
building.  We are very familiar with this house and have been inside it several times.  Contrary to
the developer’s heritage report, we would rate the house as in no better than “fair” condition.
No upgrades or significant repairs have been made to the house over the many years the
current owners have had the property, and during this time the condition of the house and yard
have deteriorated significantly.  Considerable investment is required to repalce original wiring
and plumbing, repair exterior siding, trim and front porch elements, and repat the exterior.
None of these improvements or outlined in the application.   Given that the variance for
increased density is being justified by the heritage aspect of the existing house, restoring and
upgrading the existing house must considered an essential requirement for any application of
this nature.

Page 1 of 2

Received April 19, 2022 
PH 364 East 14th St.

mailto:CityCouncil@cnv.org
mailto:planning@cnv.org


• The property contains two mature White Oak trees at the rear of the property.  These trees are 
unique in North Vancouver.  The proposed duplex would require the removal of one of these 
trees (for parking), and the close proximity to the buildings and landscape construction could 
easily damage the root system of the second tree irreparably compromise its health.   Any 
acceptable proposal must retain and protect both trees. 

• The proposed separation between the rear wall of the existing house and the new duplex is only 
3m, and will require the rear deck of the existing house to be demolished.  The result will be two 
buildings that are very close together, creating a large visual mass facing Ridgeway that is not 
consistent with the RS-1 zoning.  In addition, the proximity of the two buildings provides limited 
green space on the lot and limited possibilities for landscape plantings that would help to 
reduce visual mass and blend the buildings into the existing neighbourhood.  The proposed 
duplex will also tower over backyard of the adjacent property to the immediate west, thus 
impacting the owner’s privacy and enjoyment of their backyard. 
 

 
In 1997 we purchased a heritage house at 408 East 14th St. and over many years have fully restored and 
preserved the property ensuring retention for future generations.  As a result, we appreciate that the 
house at 364 East 14th St. has significant historical and social value and should be retained.   
Unfortunately, based on the lack of basic maintenance we have observed since the current owners have 
had the property and the fact that no improvements are being planned as part of this application, we 
have absolutely no confidence that approving this application will result in any significant actions to 
perverse this heritage-listed house.   
 
We feel that the existing RS-1 zoning, which permits a coach house, provides a more that adequate 
opportunity for the property owners to create rental income from their property.  In addition, we would 
like the Oak trees to be retained and protected because these trees are unique in North Vancouver and 
add interest and green space to the neighbourhood.  To be clear, we are not opposed to development 
per se and would be agreeable to the addition of a coach house and basement suite (two additional 
units)  provided this increase in density was accompanied by a requirement to upgrade and restore the 
heritage house and retaining the Oak trees 
 
In its current form, we strongly oppose the application and are disappointed that the current 
application essentially regurgitates the unacceptable 2019 plan.  We urge CNV Council to reject the 
application and encourage the owners and developer to create an alternative proposal that respects the 
RS-1 zoning, upgrades and restores the existing heritage house, and retains/protects the unique Oak 
trees. 
 
 
Sincerely yours, 
 

 
 
Peter Lister & Lisa Ryan 
 
 
Cc: CNV Planning Department via planning@cnv.org 

Page 2 of 2

mailto:planning@cnv.org


141 WEST 14TH STREET / NORTH VANCOUVER / BC / V7M 1H9

T 604 985 7761 / F 604 985 9417 / CNV.ORG     

Purpose:  To rezone the subject property from a One-
Unit Residential 1 (RS-1) Zone to a Comprehensive 
Development 750 (CD-750) Zone to permit the 

To provide written input:

and address and should be sent to the Corporate 

no later than 12:00 noon on Monday, April 25, 2022

To speak at the Public Hearing:
Via Webex/phone:

All Webex/phone pre-registration must be submitted no later 
than 12:00 noon on Monday, April 25, 2022.
In person at City Hall:

th

Non-registered speakers:

To view the documents:

Questions?

PUBLIC HEARING
Monday, April 25, 2022 at 6:00 pm

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 8904 and Heritage Designation 
Bylaw No. 8905 for 364 East 14th Street

View the meeting online at cnv.org/LiveStreaming
Or in person at City Hall, 141 West 14th Street

35
9

36
5

34
2

43
8

33
8

42
4

33
3

41
836

4

42
3

43
2

41
2

33
2

35
5

40
8

43
8

42
8

33
2

40
2

34
8

40
9

43
2

35
8

41
9

41
234
2

43
9

42
8

42
5

34
3

35
2

40
0

42
2

40
3

40
833
4

33
9

1521

35
1

35
7

33
4

41
8

34
6

43
5

34
8

33
6

14
68

34
2

42
5

41
8

34
8

42
0

13
09

35
6

33
9

41
7

42
9

40
8

42
4

350

43
3

41
3

34
7

42
7

41
4

43
2

40
4

36
7

34
3

35
2

41
5

1513

42
8

34
9

41
1

43
8

R
id

ge
w

ay
 A

ve

E  14th St

E  15th St364 E14th Street



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8904 Document: 2127018-v2 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8904 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8904” (Karl Wein / Bradbury Architecture, 364 East 14th 
Street, CD-750). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lots as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of CD-750 (Comprehensive Development 750 Zone): 

 
 Lots Block D.L. Plan 
 
 14 52 550 1363 from RS-1 
 
3. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning 

Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Adding the following section to Section 1100, thereof, after the designation “CD-749 
Comprehensive Development 749 Zone”: 

 
“CD-750 Comprehensive Development 750 Zone” 

 
B. Adding the following to Section 1101, thereof, after the “CD-749 Comprehensive 

Development 749 Zone”: 
 

“CD-750 Comprehensive Development 750 Zone” 
 

In the CD-750 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for 
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking 
shall be as in the RT-1 Zone, except that: 

 
(1) Two Principal Buildings shall be permitted on one Lot;  
 
(2)  Gross Floor Area:  
 

(a)  Shall not exceed 0.5 times the Lot Area; 
 
(b) Recycling and garbage storage for private use and held in private 

ownership may be excluded from Gross Floor Area (one-Unit and Two-Unit 
Residential); 

 
(3) Three Primary dwelling units shall be permitted on the Lot; 
 
(4) Two Accessory Secondary Suite uses are permitted on the Lot;  
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8904 Document: 2127018-v2 

(5)  Lot Coverage shall not exceed 37%; 
 
(6)  Principal Buildings shall be sited as in the RT-1 zone, except that: 
 

(a) The Principal Buildings shall be sited not less than 6.48 metres (21.26 feet) 
from the rear lot line (northern boundary); 

 
(7) Accessory buildings shall be sited per section 514 (5), except that: 
  

(a) the Accessory buildings shall not be sited less than 0.2m (0.6 feet) from the 
interior Side Lot Line.  

 
(8) Section 906(3)(b), Parking Space setback from Lot Lines, shall be waived.  

 
 

READ a first time on the 28th day of March, 
2022. 

READ a second time on the 28th day of March, 
2022. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8905 Document: 2134624-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8905 

A Bylaw to Designate a Municipal Heritage Site 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Heritage Designation Bylaw, 

2022, No. 8905” (Karl Wein / Bradbury Architecture, 364 East 14th Street). 
 
2. Pursuant to the Local Government Act, the following lands, buildings and structures are, in 

their entirety, designated as a protected heritage property: 
 

Street Address: 364 East 14th Street, North Vancouver 
 

Common Name / Description: MacLeod Residence 
 

Legal Description: LOT 14, EXCEPT THE NORTH 10 FEET NOW 
LANE, BLOCK 52 DISTRICT LOT 550 PLAN 1363 

 PID 009-773-797 
 

3. Pursuant to the Local Government Act, this bylaw requires adherence to the City of North 
Vancouver’s “Heritage Conservation Procedures Bylaw, 2013, No. 8292”. 

 
 

READ a first time on the 28th day of March, 
2022. 

READ a second time on the 28th day of March, 
2022. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Fire Department
2021 Annual 
Report

Presented April 25, 2022
North Vancouver City Fire Department

Navigating through 
2021

• COVID-19
• Extreme Weather 

Events

2

Cooling Mist Stations

Warming the Homeless – Warming Kits



Investing in our 
Resources

• Health and Wellness
• Training and 

Development
• New Fire Apparatus

3

Reducing Risk through 
Fire Prevention 

• Fire Inspections
• Coordinated Fire

Bylaw
• Pubic Education

4



Community Outreach 
and Public Education

• Advancing our Virtual 
Presence

• Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan

5

Responding to 
Incidents

6

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000

MESA

ALARMS

FIRES

ASSIST

HAZ

RESCUE

MVA

STANDBY

OTHER

TOTAL

2019 - 2021 INCIDENT RESPONSES

2021 2020 2019



Incident Response 
and Performance

• Operational 
Effectiveness through 
Performance Metrics

7

1:58 1:48 1:49

4:46 4:23 4:19

6:14
5:38 5:38

T O T A L  2 0 2 0 M E D I C A L  2 0 2 1 F I R E / O T H E R  2 0 2 1

PERFORMANCE BY CALL TYPE 
2020 TO 2021

Turnout Time Travel Time Total Response Time

Looking Ahead 2022

• Coordinated Public Safety 
Approach

• Broadening Community 
Outreach

8



9

Thank you



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

o,PaL, 9(iS-L l&1__ 
CAO 

Manager Director 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

INFORMATION REPORT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Greg Schalk, Public Safety Director and Fire Chief 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 2021 ANNUAL REPORT 

April 13, 2022 File No: 14-7000-01-0001/2022 

Message from the Fire Chief 

On behalf of the men and women who proudly represent the North Vancouver City Fire 
Department it is my distinct honor to present our 2021 Annual Report. 

This past year was once again one that challenged our staff to be agile and adaptive in how we 
planned and conducted our day to day operations. While we continued to navigate through the 
COVID-19 pandemic and the escalating opioid crisis we also found ourselves faced with new 
challenges in the form of extreme weather events including the unprecedented heat dome. 

Through it all our members demonstrated tremendous resilience and professionalism. Our 
commitment to providing the highest level of service was prioritized with a persistent focus on 
both our member's health, wellness and safety as well as the publics' for which we proudly serve. 

While much of this report highlights what we accomplished in the past year with respect to our 
core functions in emergency response, fire prevention and public education it also touches on 
how we as a public safety agency are striving to evolve in our role as a community service 
resource. We recognize that our community's needs are ever changing and the public safety 
needs of those who live, work and play on the North Shore require a broader and more 
coordinated perspective. 

To help shape our journey, in 2021 we embarked on a wholesome engagement process that 
helped us produce our inaugural Strategic Service Priority Plan . Within the plan, we were able to 
redefine our mission statement, identify our core values and collaborate on four key service 
priorities and associated objectives that will guide us in our efforts to achieve the City's vision of 
"A City for the People, A Healthy City for All". 

As we move forward into a new year, we are again excited about what lies ahead. We will continue 
to be dedicated in our efforts and strive to be excellent in all that we do. We will be innovative and 

Document: 2168501 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

progressive in our approaches and continue to invest in our relationships with our community 
partners that will enhance our abilities as a public service provider. 

In closing, I cannot express how proud I am to represent such a fine organization . The men and 
women of the NVCFD are compassionate professionals who are highly trained, solution
orientated and dedicated to their craft and I am humbled and honored to serve alongside them. I 
am also greatly appreciative of the support that our department receives from city council and the 
residents of the City of North Vancouver and appreciate the trust and confidence that everyone 
has in us each and every day. 

Sincerely, 

Greg Schalk 

Fire Chief and Public Safety Director 

North Vancouver City Fire Department 

Lead with Integrity * Never Compromise Safety * Serve with Compassion 

Page 2 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

COVI D-19 Global Pandemic 

The North Vancouver City Fire Department (NVCFD) continues to adapt to the ever-changing 
environment due to the COVID-19 global pandemic. Protective measures along with agile 
approach to COVID related policies and procedures implemented early on in the pandemic 
helped to protect our members as well as the public throughout 2021. 

Our professional and dedicated staff continue to deliver exceptional services to the citizens and 
visitors of the City of North Vancouver even with the challenges that continued over the past 
year. 

Page 3 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Emergency Management and Planning 

Heat Dome 

This significant climate event brought extra challenges to emergency services across the region. 
The NVCFD was quick to adapt and respond to the dramatic increase in medical related calls to 
help serve the res idents of and visitors to the City of North 
Vancouver. 

Additionally the NVCFD coordinated with North Shore 
Emergency Management (NSEM) , the City Library, 
community centers, and other partner organizations in 
establishing and staffing "cooling stations" throughout the 
City of North Vancouver to offer a safe environment for 
those who were in need for the duration of the events. 

Extreme Cold Weather Coolin9 Mist Stations 

The NVCFD in collaboration with NSEM, Emergency Social Services (ESS) staff, and other 
departments within the City of North Vancouver, established a warming centre for those 
requiring assistance during the extreme cold event in December. Our first responders also 
continued to partner with the North Vancouver RCMP and Warming the Homeless organization 
on provided warming kits to the vulnerable and unhoused within our community. 

In collaboration with NSEM the fire department's public safety team is working with NSEM on a 
comprehensive review process to the extreme weather events of 2021 to help formulate 
operational readiness plans as part of an updated Extreme Weather Strategy. 

Major Emergency Operation Plan (MEOP) 

The North Shore Fire Services exercised its Major Emergency Operations Plan (MEOP) in the 
fall of 2021 as part of on-going efforts to ensure operational readiness and preparedness in the 
event of a major disaster. Part of this preparedness work included prioritized distribution of 
emergency supplies to departments throughout the City of North Vancouver. 

Warming the Homeless - Warming Kits 

Page 4 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Health and Wellness 

Firefighter Resiliency Training 

In 2021 the NVCFD took part in a first of its kind pilot for firefighter resiliency training . 

A health care professional who 
specializes in the treatment of post
trauma reactions as well as supporting 
resilience led the training . 

This training equips fire fighters and 
teams with the knowledge and skills 
needed to strengthen and retain optimal 
resilience and well-being under 
operational load. 

Moving forward, the NVCFD is working 
proactively to adopt resiliency practices 
and put the proper knowledge, skills , and 
abilities in place to enhance the coping 

capacity and continue to build resilience of both the individual and the team. 

The NVCFD is in the beginning stages of developing a peer-to-peer support group where 
colleagues meet in person or virtually as equals to provide connection and support on a 
reciprocal basis. 

The NVCFD is continually building on the Critical Incident 
Stress Management and Resilient Minds programs 

Minimizing any adverse impacts on members with the help 
of an external practitioner is a priority. 

Cardiology Study 

For the second consecutive year the NVCFD, in collaboration with Local 296 of the International 
Association of Firefighters (IAFF), the NVCFD Health and Wellness Committee, and the 
Delbrook Community Recreation Centre, partnered with the District of North Vancouver Fire and 
Rescue Services (DNVFRS) and Sports Cardiology BC to provide a comprehensive 
cardiovascular screening for our members as part of a two year research project. 

Cardiac events remain the number one cause of line of duty deaths within the fire service, and 
this project studied the prevalence of cardiac risk factors and disease in firefighters and 
assessed the efficacy of screenings and medical consultations on changing the risk factors. 

Page 5 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Training and Development 

As an "All Hazards" response organization, our firefighters must engage regularly in specialized 
discipline specific training to ensure we maintain our high standards and competency 
requirements. In 2021, the NVCFD completed 14,681 hours of scheduled specialized training. 

2021 Specialized Training 
· Focused Areas 

Fire Officer Training 

Fire Behaviour 

Confined Space Rescue 

High Angle Rescue 

Tower Crane Rescue 

Swift Water Rescue 

First Medical Responder (FMR) 

Auto Extrication 

Wildfire 

Fire Ground Operations 

Hazardous Materials 

14,681 
hours 

Specialized 
Training 

Emergency Medical Responder (EMR) 

Incident Command Strategies and Tactics 

High Rise Firefighting 

Major Emergency Operatio,ns Plan (MEOP) 

Page 6 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

In addition to specialized training, NVCFD members regularly engage in company level training 
to maintain their foundational skills and to ensure compliance with the BC Office of the Fire 
Commissioner's Fire Service Structure Firefighters Competency and Training Playbook. 

As part of their on-going professional development, NVCFD members also regularly engage in 
external training opportunities, workshops and conferences. 

2021 Company Level and External Training 

• Structural Collapse 

• Resilient Minds Training 

• Emergency Planning 

• Radiation Detection Training 

• Aeroclave Training 

• Marina and Industrial Facilities Familiarization 

• Rapid Intervention Team (RIT) Training 

• Resiliency Training with Dr. Shields 

• Hazardous Materials Technician Courses 

• North Shore Tri-Municipal Autism Training 

• Blue Card Instructor - Incident Commander Training 

• Overdose Awareness Training in collaboration with Vancouver Coastal Health (VCH) 

• Reconciliation Awareness Training - 4 Seasons of Reconciliation 

Page 7 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Replacement of Aging Fire Apparatus 

The NVCFD placed an order for (1) new triple combination pumper (Engine) and (1) new aerial 
ladder truck. The anticipated delivery for both trucks is spring of 2022. Both apparatus are 
equipped with anti-idle reduction technology that will not only reduce greenhouse gases but will 
help reduce fuel costs. 

----=-·- -~· 

Page 8 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Fire Prevention 

Our Fire Prevention Division plays an integral role in our ability to provide the citizens of the City 
of North Vancouver the highest level of public safety and education possible. The expectation of 
Fire Prevention Officers is to manage the responsibilities associated with the following: 

❖ Conducting Building Inspections 
❖ Ensuring Fire Safety Code Enforcement 
❖ Conducting Fire Investigations 
❖ Reviewing Building Plans 
❖ Pre-planning buildings 
❖ Delivering public education 
❖ Overseeing Fire Department Communication and Technology systems 
❖ Food Truck Inspections 

lnspectable 
Properties 

Increase of 6% 

The total number of inspectable properties currently sits at 3831, a 6% increase from 2020 
which had 3622 total. 

The Fire Prevention Office continues to be exceptionally busy with routine annual inspections, 
business licenses, complaints, and new buildings occupancy inspections. Fire Prevention Staff 
play a vital role in the new development process, from Re-Zoning, to Building Permit issuance 
and Occupancy acceptance. 

This requires involvement in reviewing building plans, 
Construction Fire Safety Plans and Protection of Adjacent 
Building reports as well as extensive functional testing to 
ensure the life safety systems are operational. 

Revenue generated from the 
Fire Plan Check Fee in 2021 was 

$154,000.00 

The Fire Prevention Office is also responsible for creating comfort letters and reviewing 
occupant loads. A comfort letter is a fee-based service that provides inspection information on 
any property in the City. The department issued 86 comfort letters in 2021 along with 6 
Occupant Load Certificates . 

Fire Inspection Revenue generated $11,000.00 for a total revenue in 2021 of $165,000.00. 

$165,000.00 

Total 
Revenue 

$154,000.00 
--

Fire Plan 
Check Fee Fire 

Inspection 
Revenue 

Page 9 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

In 2021 the City's Fire Bylaw was updated, and reflects a cooperative effort between the City 
and the Districts of North and West Vancouver. Having a common Bylaw across the North 
Shore allows for a more consistent approach to fire safety, along with the alignment of fees and 
fines. Significant changes to the Bylaw include restricting cooking fires, clarified requirements 
regarding storage in parkades, stepped fines for false alarms and improved updates to general 
clarification of requirements . These changes provide City Inspectors with an improved ability to 
ensure that inspectable buildings in the City are maintained in a safe condition 

Fire investigations comprise a significant component of Fire Department activity. 90 fires were 
investigated in 2021 , which were largely balanced between structure fires and outdoor fires, with 
a small number of vehicle fires. 

25 Structure Fires 

2021 FIRE INVESTIGATIONS 

8% 

Outdoor Fires 
64% 

58 Outdoor Fires 

2021 
Total fire loss incurred $388,501 

Potential fire loss $198,965,922 

7 Vehicle Fires 

Page 10 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Public Education and Outreach 

One of the most significant non-emergency roles the Fire Department plays is in continual 
community engagement. Covid-19 had a significant impact on our ability to deliver many of our 
typical annual events. Some of our most anticipated events such as Fire Prevention Week, Hot 
Summer Nights and Fire Hall Tours along with many of the charitable events such as Bright 
Nights were cancelled or significantly altered. 

Community engagement shifted significantly from in person delivery to online and virtual social 
media platforms such as Twitter, Facebook and lnstagram. This has been an extremely 
successful shift for our online exposure and we have been able to engage many followers 
through these platforms. 

0 

Twitter - 178 posts 111.11!11"• 
1509 Followers ••.117

,-

Average of 715 impressions per day 

lnstagram - 182 posts '"* 1593 Followers 
Best post reached 2,645 people (168 
engagements with the High angle rescue
training image) 

Facebook-182 posts 11¥4 
1366 Followers - •••-
1015 Likes *an increase of 51 % 

Social Media Statistics 

Twitter =----~ lnstagram Facebook 

In 2021 , the NVCFD conducted three virtual public education events with Impact North Shore 
(formerly North Shore Multicultural Society), participated in the Grand Boulevard Halloween 
Pumpkin Walk and conducted several building safety sessions and fire drills. 

The City of North Vancouver successfully obtained a BC 
FireSmart grant in 2021, which allowed the City to prepare 
a Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) . 

Part of the grant allowed for Fire Prevention Staff to design 
and hand deliver door hangers to over 500 homes in the 
City located within close proximity to the urban wildland 
interface. 

Fire Prevention Staff also engaged the community through 
two FireSmart events held at the Shipyards and 
maintained a static display at the City Library. 

Page 11 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Respond ing to Incidents 

The NVCFD is an "all hazards" response agency servicing the community by responding to all 
types of emergency and non-emergency incidents. 

We pride ourselves on providing the highest level of customer service and ensuring we are 
embracing industry best practices and being at the forefront of service delivery. 

There were 3,758 calls for service in 2021 

NVCFD 2021 Calls for Service 

*Specialty- Hazardous Materials and Technical Rescue Calls 

Page 12 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Performance Metrics 

In 2020 the NVCFD adopted the NFPA 1710 Standard for Response Time Measurement by 
moving from measuring performance based on the average response times to the measuring 
our response performance as it relates to the 90th percentile. 

Based on this model our 2021 response times were: 

2021 NVCFD RESPONSE TIMES 

• Turnout • Travel • Total Response 

SPECIAL TY 4:44 6:29 

MVA 4::ilO 5:43 

ALARMS 4)f)4 5:28 

FIRES 4~57 6:02 

MESA (MEDICAL) I 
4:2:4 5:18 

TOTAL 2021 4:22 5:38 

*specialty - technical rescues and hazardous materials 

*turnout time - time from when call gets dispatched to when fire apparatus is on route 

*travel time - time from when apparatus is on route to when it arrives on scene 

Page 13 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Service Priority Plan - Looking Ahead 2022 

The North Vancouver City Fire Department's (NVCFD) Service Priorities Plan (SPP) is an agile 
plan that will help guide the Fire Department over the next few years . The SPP aligns with 
Council's Strategic Plan and with the City of North Vancouver's Corporate Business Plan . The 
SPP, comprised of four service priorities inspired by the City of North Vancouver's vision of "A 
City for People, A Healthy City for All", provides opportunities for residents to engage with their 
community as a steward of the environment. The service priorities focus on the NVCFD's aim to 
make a measurable difference in life safety outcomes and service to the community, while 
maintaining critically important fire suppression response times and performance. 

Objective 1. 1 

In 2021, the Fire Prevention Office delivered three virtual presentations through Impact North 
Shore, to new residents . This program will continue in 2022 with the aim of moving to an in 
person format with follow up e_ducational opportunities. 

Objective 1. 2 

Continued advanced conversations with the Squamish Nation on developing a more 
coordinated approach to delivering public safety messaging as well as creating a collaborative 
working arrangement to conduct fire prevention initiatives on nation land. 

Objective 1. 3 

Planning is well underway on developing a volunteer based program that will facilitate the 
delivery of fire prevention and emergency preparedness education to residents . The hope is to 
have the program up and running by the end of 02 of 2022. 

Objective 1. 4 

Public Safety is working on a number of initiatives with various external agencies to increase the 
level of support that the fire department can provide to the vulnerable populations within our 
community. This includes working closely with the North Shore Overdose Outreach Team and 
training our staff in trauma informed practice. 

Objective 1. 5 

To establish an annual life safety program in School District (NVSD) 44 secondary schools. In 
collaboration with the NVSD 44 the NVCFD is pleased to announce a joint pilot program to 
instruct and certify high school students in cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) . This pilot 
program will begin in the spring of 2022 and will focus on Sutherland and Carson Secondary 
schools to start with the intention of broadening to other schools in the future . The Red Cross 
certified comprehensive 5-hour course covers the following topics: 

• Preparing to respond 
• The EMS system 
• Check, Call, Care 
• Airway emergencies 
• Breathing and Circulation emergencies 
• First aid for respiratory and cardiac arrest 
• Wound care 

Page 14 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Utilizing NVCFD firefighters to instruct these life-saving skills, enhances the relationship and 
awareness of fire services in the community and better equips students with the knowledge and 
skills to make a difference in the event of an emergency. 

Objective 2. 1 

To streamline the inspection process and move towards a 12-month inspection cycle, the Fire 
Prevention Division updated our inspections sections using occupancy, geography and risk 
assessments. 

Objective 2. 2 

Fire Prevention Staff have completed the development work for lnfor integration and are 
working on a transition plan. Following a completed staffing review, measures are under review 
to facilitate balance with the increased workload in respect to building permit and occupancy 
reviews. 

Objective 3. 1 

The NVCFD continues to utilize technology while collaborating with other Departments within 
the City to identify trends, priority response routes and associated "heat maps". The NVCFD 
tracks numerous areas and records the data for a means of continuous improvement (e.g. 
improved turnout times) through education and awareness. Shared monthly stats with our staff 
increase the overall awareness and understanding on the importance of evidence based 
decision-making. 

Objective 3. 2 

The NVCFD has begun to develop a risk assessment and training needs assessment for special 
operations, including Wildfire and Emergency Medical Services (EMS). Wildfire gear and 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) was procured and training completed. 

The NVCFD additionally certified four members in Emergency Medical Responder (EMR) who 
will complete their licensing requirements in Q1 of 2022. 

Objective 3. 3 

In March of 2022, the three North Shore Fire Departments renewed their Cooperative Fire and 
Rescue Services Agreement for another five years. This progressive agreement commits the 
north shore fire departments to providing the highest level of coordinated service to all residents 
with a focus on safety, collaboration, risk mitigation and fiscal responsibility. 

Objective 4. 1 

Fire Prevention hosted two FireSmart community events at the Shipyards in 2021, maintained a 
static display in the City Library, and hand delivered over 500 door hangers to North Vancouver 
City homes located within close proximity to the urban wildland interface. In 2022, the Fire 
Department will continue to coordinate with the Parks Department on advancing the work of the 
CWPP enhanced through a joint grant proposal. 

Page 15 of 16 



INFORMATION REPORT: Fire Department 2021 Annual Report 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Objective 4.2 

The NVCFD placed an order for one new Triple Combination Pumper (Engine) and one new 
Aerial Ladder Truck. The anticipated delivery for both trucks is spring of 2022. Both apparatus 
are equipped with anti-idle reduction technology that will not only reduce greenhouse gases but 
will help reduce fuel costs. Plans are also underway to procure a plug in electric support vehicle 
for our Fire Prevention Office (FPO) . 

Objective 5. 1 

Discussions are underway with North Shore partners to refresh the tri-municipal recruitment 
process and campaign with the intention of appealing to diverse applicants. In collaboration with 
School District 44 (SD44) and the DNVFRS, high school students from North Vancouver will 
attend alongside our recruit firefighters while they complete their recruit orientation training. 

Planning is underway with our North Shore fire partners, SD44, and the First Nations 
Emergency Services Society (FNESS) to host a youth academy program in North Vancouver in 
October of 2022. 

Objective 5. 3 

The NVCFD has committed to a number of employee health and wellness initiatives moving 
forward. 

The NVCFD took part in a first of its kind pilot for firefighter resiliency training in 2021. A health 
care professional who specializes in the treatment of post-trauma reactions as well as 
supporting resilience led the training. This training equips fire fighters and teams with the 
knowledge and skills needed to strengthen and retain optimal resilience and well-being under 
operational load. Moving forward, the NVCFD is working proactively to adopt resiliency 
practices and put the proper knowledge, skills, and abilities in place to enhance the coping 
capacity and continue to build resilience of both the individual and the team. 

The NVCFD is in the beginning stages of developing a peer-to-peer support group where 
colleagues meet in person or virtually as equals to provide connection and support on a 
reciprocal basis. 

Following the Cardiology Study the NVCFD submitted a capital request for funding to establish 
a triennial program that involves conducting a Cardiopulmonary Risk Assessment for all our 
firefighters. The program will include a comprehensive Exercise Testing Process (CPET). The 
CPET comprises of an electrocardiogram (ECG), spirometry (lung function and pulmonary 
function test), an exercise stress test and cardiopulmonary related blood analysis. The goal of 
this program, to ensure our staff are physically/medically fit to perform their strenuous duties at 
emergency incidents, will assist the NVCFD in providing a safe and secure community while 
ensuring that homes and businesses are well protected. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Greg Schalk 
Public Safety Director and Fire Chief 

Page 16 of 16 



To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

PURPOSE 

O~nt 

9<7.5;-:.-1,_ Vt;\ 
, _:,./ 

Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
BYLAW SERVICES/ PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT 

INFORMATION REPORT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Paul Duffy, Manager, Bylaw Services 

2021 BYLAW SERVICES OVERVIEW 

April 13, 2022 File No: 09-3900-01 -0001 /2022 

This report provides Council with an overview on Bylaw Enforcement activities in 2021. 
The goal of Bylaw Enforcement is to achieve compliance with municipal bylaws through 
fair, consistent, transparent and reasonable enforcement practices that support building 
a healthy, safe and prosperous community. 

2021 OVERVIEW 

The year 2021 provided ongoing challenges and new opportunities as we navigated 
through new variants of COVID-19. Bylaw Services continued to respond to bylaw 
complaints, educate members of the public and gain compliance by assisting residents 
and businesses to make informed decisions based on the evolving Public Health 
Orders. With more residents working from home and the uncertainty caused by the 
pandemic, an increase in complaints were received. In 2021, 3,450 complaints were 
investigated, compared to 2,887 in 2020. The additional workload impacted the City's 
proactive parking statistics, as staff normally assigned to parking enforcement were 
redirected to Provincial Health Order and additional parking complaints. 

Document Number 2150518-v1 



REPORT: 2021 Bylaw Services Overview 
Date: April 13, 2022 

BYLAW SERVICES 

Bylaw Services consists of four categories of employees; each assigned different 
functions within the department. In addition to the Manager, Bylaw Services, there are 
nine full-time employees, two full-time Bylaw support/screening staff, two full -time 
parking enforcement staff, four full-time Bylaw Enforcement Officers and a Bylaw 
Supervisor. One temporary full-time position and a small pool of auxiliary staff 
supplement parking enforcement. Staff utilize two automatic licence plate reader 
vehicles that assist with parking enforcement and four additional vehicles that support 
the remaining staff. 

BYLAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER HOURS OF OPERATION 

Since 2016, Bylaw Enforcement Officers have provided enforcement services seven 
days per week, with extended hours ranging from 6:30am to 9:00pm. Bylaw support 
staff continue to provide services during standard City Hall operating hours, Monday to 
Friday from 8:30am to 5:00pm. The expanded coverage has enhanced staff response to 
a number of investigations, such as Sunday and after-hour construction complaints, on
street over-sized vehicle and recreational vehicle parking and animal control issues. 
After-hour complaints are monitored by the Manager, Bylaw Services, and addressed 
on a priority basis. 

PARKING ENFORCEMENT 

The City continues to see an increase in competition for curb space. Rapid Bus lanes, 
mobility lanes, ride-sharing, electric charging stations, curbside deliveries, scooters and 
e-bikes all compete for curb space, along with personal vehicles. In the past five years, 
Bylaw Services evolved by taking on additional enforcement roles, including a 
construction ambassador and a property use inspector. These changes impacted pro
active parking enforcement and contribute to a reduction in parking enforcement 
revenue. 

Parking enforcement continues to account for a significant portion of the Bylaw 
Enforcement Officers' regular workload. In addition to routine parking enforcement of 
time and zone restricted areas, response to parking complaints from the public occurs 
on a daily basis. In 2021, Parking Enforcement Officers attended to 1,973 parking 
complaints; an increase of 33% from 1,476 parking complaints in 2020. 

Page 2 of 6 



REPORT: 2021 Bylaw Services Overview 
Date: April 13, 2022 

PARKING RELATED STATISTICS 

Table 1 provides data from parking related tickets issued in 2019, 2020 and 2021. 

T bl 1 P k" R I t d T k t D t 2021 a e ar inQ eae IC e aa 
Bylaw Tickets Details 2019 2020 2021 
Warning Tickets Issued 4,520 3,326 2,739 

Total Tickets Issued Under Street and 
18,300 10,261 12,847 

Traffic Bylaw 

Total Tickets Issued Under Other Bylaws 175 263 220 

Total Number of Bylaw Notices Issued 
18,475 10,524 13,067 (Tickets) 

Total Bylaw Notices Paid 11,854 5,547 8,564 

Total Bylaw Notices Unpaid 4,400 4,074 4,790 

Total Tickets Voided (Errors/Lack of 
2,221 903 1,465 Evidence) 

Percentage of Bylaw Notices Paid 64.2% 57.6% 76.8% 

Revenue Received from Collections 1 $8,738.83 $12,415.62 $65,081.96 

BYLAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER 

Bylaw Enforcement Officers enforce several different bylaws, along with the Street and 
Traffic Bylaw. Calls for service relate to any one of the following bylaws: 

• Construction Regulation; 
• Zoning (use of property, including structures and unapproved suites); 
• Nuisance Abatement (unsightly and unsanitary conditions); 
• Business Licence (assist Licence Inspector as required); 
• Minimum Maintenance Standards (exterior physical condition of private property); 
• Rental Premises Standards of Maintenance and Prevention of Nuisances (interior 

condition of residential rental properties and measures to mitigate rental property 
impacts on a neighbourhood); 

• Rodent Control; 
• Noise Control; 
• Parks Regulation (animals at large, camps); 
• Solid Waste Management Service (garbage pick-up, bins); 
• Environmental Issues regulated through the Sewerage and Drainage Utility and 

the Stream and Drainage System Protection Bylaws (substances poured or 
draining into the City's catch basins); 

• Wharf Regulation (crab traps, other activities); 
• Smoking Regulation; and 
• Real Property Regulation. 

1 Any tickets not paid after 34 days are forwarded to the collection agency. 
Page 3 of 6 



REPORT: 2021 Bylaw Services Overview 
Date: April 13, 2022 

BYLAW COMPLAINTS INVESTIGATED 

Table 2 provides data on bylaw complaints investigated in 2019, 2020 and 2021. 

a e iyaw T bl 2 B I C om )ain aa I . t D t 
Call-for-Service Description 2019 2020 2021 
Minimum Maintenance (Fence in disrepair) 4 3 0 

Graffiti 18 27 27 

Noise (Other than construction) 71 90 130 

Construction Noise 121 166 172 

Nuisance Abatement (Debris/untidy) 254 254 306 

Parks (41 homeless camps in 2020 vs 73 in 2021) 19 64 110 

2nd Cooking Facility/Unapproved Suites 70 58 71 

Stream & Drainage 10 18 28 

Standard of Maintenance 23 23 24 

Sprinkling/Water 21 17 34 

Street & City Land (Sidewalk obstructions) 236 224 163 

COVID Complaints n/a 183 120 

Wharf Bylaw 1 5 2 

Zoning Bylaw (Structures/setback) 9 10 13 

Business Licences (Operating without a licence) 1 15 5 

Total 858 1,157 1,205 

ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES 

Animal Control Services is regulated by the City through several bylaws (i.e. Dog Tax 
Regulation Bylaw, Small Creatures Limitation Bylaw and the Parks Regulation Bylaw). 
The majority of calls for service for animal control infractions relate to contraventions of 
the Dog Tax Regulation Bylaw, which regulates the keeping of dogs within the 
municipality. Animal Control Services deals almost exclusively with dogs. 

Page 4 of 6 



REPORT: 2021 Bylaw Services Overview 
Date: April 13, 2022 

ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 

Table 3 provides data on animal related complaints that were responded to by Bylaw 
staff in 2019, 2020 and 2021 . 

T bl 3 A . IC a e rnma I . t D t ompam aa 
Call-for-Service Description 2019 2020 2021 
Stray Dogs Picked Up 12 9 9 
Dogs Returned 11 8 7 
Adopted Dogs 1 1 2 
Dogs Euthanized 0 0 0 
Off-Leash Education Interactions 40 55 48 
(City promotional doq leash provided) 

Written Warning Tickets 3 2 8 
Verbal Warnings 185 275 256 
Tickets Issued 26 22 41 
Dog Attack/Bites 39 37 42 
Dogs Declared as Vicious 3 2 1 
Noisy Dog Complaints 20 17 18 
Dead Animal Picked Up 93 84 99 
Chicken Complaints 0 1 0 
TOTAL 433 513 531 

An imal Control staff have been documenting their attendance at the 50+ parks within 
the City - in 2021, 1,185 patrols were recorded, 1,530 patrols in 2020 and 845 in 2019. 
Added patrols conducted on electric bicycles has extended and increased coverage. 

BYLAW SUPPORT/SCREENING STAFF 

Two Bylaw support/screening staff working at City Hall receive and respond to all email 
and phone calls from the public, create follow-up files for Bylaw Officers and conduct an 
initial review (screening) of any tickets that are in dispute. In 2021, staff worked through 
478 ticket screenings, compared to 323 in 2020. 

BYLAW ADJUDICATION REGISTRY 

The City of North Vancouver utilizes a Bylaw Adjudication System that allows for the 
resolution of minor bylaw disputes at the local level, rather than through the Provincial 
Court system. Previously, anyone wishing to dispute a bylaw ticket had to appear in a 
BC Provincial Court, which can be an expensive, intimidating and time-consuming 
process. With the Bylaw Adjudication System, a provincially appointed adjudicator, 
centrally located at City Hall, hears all disputes. In 2021, the City held three adjudication 
hearings for 55 ticket disputes. This is an increase from 18 ticket disputes in 2020 due 
to the pandemic. 

Page 5 of 6 



REPORT: 2021 Bylaw Services Overview 
Date: April 13, 2022 

IMPLICATIONS 

The general goal of bylaw enforcement is compliance; ticket and fine revenue is a by
product of bylaw enforcement. Bylaw Services' role has changed significantly since 
2016 when the duties were primarily parking enforcement and nuisance related. Bylaw 
staff, with the additional role of acting as construction ambassadors, also investigate 
zoning complaints. These additional duties have impacted ticket revenue and, while 
ticket revenue is not considered a primary goal, it does assist in off-setting enforcement 
costs. 

INTERDEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

Bylaw Services staff work in collaboration with all of the City's internal departments and 
external agencies, utilizing a measured approach in addressing any issues that arise. 
Our partnerships include, but are not limited to: 

• Building Inspections and Engineering Development Services staff, through the 
Construction Ambassador in a collective team approach, effectively manage the 
large construction sites in the City. This position has been very effective in 
dealing with the impacts of construction activity; 

• Environment on initiatives/issues, including responding to dumping complaints 
near drainage systems, catch basins and creek; 

• Engineering on traffic control efforts, with street occupancy/use data collection, 
date entry, monitoring of the Resident Exempt parking program and participating 
in the coordinated elementary school traffic safety campaigns; 

• Planning Division staff when responding to Land Use or other Zoning Bylaw 
issues; 

• Parks on complaints related to homeless camp clean-ups, off-leash dogs, etc.; 
• Support for large festivals/events in the City; and, 
• RCMP on homelessness, nuisance properties and COVID-19 Provincial Health 

Orders. 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

As the City continues to grow, there is an increased need to keep up with the pace of 
change and provide infrastructure that allows residents to move about as freely and 
seamlessly as possible. Bylaw staff continue to support the following City's priorities 
under the current Strategic Plan . 

• "A Prosperous City" where parking management supports new and existing 
businesses. 

• "A Connected City" where parking management enables a sustainable way for 
goods and services to move within the City. 

• "A City for the People" which is accessi9 a~ .• n~ -

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: ~~ 
Paul Duffy 
Manager, Bylaw Services 

Page 6 of 6 



Upper Levels Greenway
Corridor Options and Public Engagement Launch

Presented April 25, 2022
Engineering, Parks and Environment

Background



Project Milestones

Initiation
Q4 2021 -
Q1 2022

Alternatives 
Analysis 
Q1 2022

Concept 
Design

Q2 2022

Detailed 
Design

Q3-Q4 2022

Construction
2023 (TBC)

We are here

14%

15%

18%

21%

30%

39%

39%

59%

19%

21%

29%

20%

33%

27%

37%

26%

25%

27%

20%

27%

20%

14%

14%

6%

23%

21%

21%

18%

10%

10%

5%

4%

19%

16%

13%

15%

7%

10%

4%

5%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

It includes places to rest or meet with others

It is the most direct path for where I need to go

It connects to existing amenities and destinations

It avoids steep hills

It emphasizes and incorporates natural features along the route

It connects to other greenways or bike routes

It provides a pleasant experience for recreation and/or getting around

It feels safe/minimizes risk from vehicle traffic

Very important Important Moderately important Somewhat important Not at all important

What We Heard
Key Themes (900+ survey responses)
• Concerns about safety
• Desired greenway features
• Concerns about traffic
• Need for separation of users



Draft Project Vision
“The Upper Levels 

Greenway will be an active
and healthy mobility corridor 

that celebrates 
connections to nature; 

provides a safe, 
comfortable and pleasant 
experience for people of all 
ages and abilities to walk, 

roll and cycle; and connects 
to other greenways and 

routes.”

Evaluation Priorities

SAFETY CONNECTION

EXPERIENCE FEATURES



Design Approaches

MULTI-USE PATHWAY

WIDE SIDEWALK & 
PROTECTED BICYCLE LANE

Design Approaches

NATURAL SURFACE 
PATHWAY

WIDE SIDEWALK & LOCAL 
STREET BIKEWAY



Neighbourhood Context

Comparative Evaluation

There is no single 
option that is strongly 
preferred over the 
others when 
considering the full 
range of public priorities 
and technical 
constraints



Phase 2 - Public 
Engagement

April 27 – May 20, 2022
• Let’s Talk & survey
• Open house & pop-up 

events
• Print signs, postcards, 

advertisements
• Digital and social 

media campaign

Thank you

ULG@cnv.org



To: 

From: 

_f!!__ ~ wr 
Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
ENGINEERING, PARKS & ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT 

REPORT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Mo Bot, Project Manager - Public Realm Infrastructure 

Subject: UPPER LEVELS GREENWAY - PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LAUNCH FOR 
CORRIDOR OPTIONS 

Date: April 13, 2022 File No: 16-8350-20-0039/1 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Project Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure, 
dated April 13, 2022, entitled "Upper Levels Greenway - Public Engagement 
Launch for Corridor Options": 

THAT the draft vision for the Upper Levels Greenway, reflecting the key priorities 
of the community, be endorsed; 

AND THAT staff be directed to initiate the next public engagement phase. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. "Upper Levels Greenway - Engagement Summary Report" (CD#2168624} 

2. "Upper Levels Greenway- Phase 1 Engagement Summary Report" (CD#2158924} 

3. "Upper Levels Greenway- Design Approaches, Benefits and Constraints 
(CD#2168341 ) 

4. "Upper Levels Greenway- Comparative Route Evaluation (CD#2168459} 

SUMMARY 

The Upper Levels Greenway project team has completed preliminary engagement with 
the community to inform the development of the draft project vision and three (3) route 
options for the project to traverse the Upper Levels Neighbourhoods of Tempe and 
Westview. The team is ready to proceed to the next phase of public engagement. 

Document Number: 2167144 V3 



REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Public Engagement Launch For Corridor Options 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Staff recommend that the project advance to public discussion to gather feedback on the 
vision and the options in order to inform the selection of a preferred concept. Staff will 
report back to Council in early summer with details on what has been heard from the 
community on the options and how that feedback has informed the next steps in concept 
development. 

BACKGROUND 

The Upper Levels Greenway is being developed as part of the City's commitment to 
provide active transportation and recreation options that support and enhance the health 
and well-being of all community members. The Upper Levels Greenway will stretch from 
Lynn Valley Road to Westview Drive and will be approximately three (3) kilometres long. 
Once complete, it will give people more choice in how they move around the City by 
enhancing access to parks, recreation spaces, community amenities and other 
destinations, such as schools and commercial areas. 

Without an established preferred corridor, this project presents many opportunities to 
work with the community to understand their needs and collaborate on delivering a 
responsive design that addresses issues and leverages opportunities. The engagement 
process has been designed with multiple community touch points to allow for 
incorporation of public and stakeholder feedback into the design and to demonstrate how 
community input informs decision-making. 

Initiation 

Q4 2021-
Ql 2022 

DISCUSSION 

What We Heard 

Alternatives 
Analysis 

Ql 2022 

t We are here 

Concept 
Design 

Q2 2022 

Detailed 
Design 

Q3-Q4 2022 

Construction 

2023 (TBC) 

In February, staff reached out to the community about our plans to begin designing the 
Upper Levels Greenway. The purpose of this initial outreach was to introduce the 
community to the project and to explore the following topics: 

1. How do you enjoy spending time in the Westview and Tempe neighbourhoods? 
2. What do you appreciate most about these areas? 
3. What is important when choosing a greenway route? 
4. Are there any neighbourhood issues, concerns, or challenges to address to help 

us develop greenway options and offer possible design solutions? 

In response, over 2,400 people visited the Let's Talk Page and 925 individual survey 
responses were received . 

Page 2 of 11 



REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Public Engagement Launch For Corridor Options 
Date: April 13, 2022 

The community raised a number of issues, opportunities, and design 
considerations that helped the project team focus our efforts on important themes. 

The top sentiments shared were organized around four key themes: 

1. Concerns about safety: Seeking improvements to crossings at major streets, 
safe space provision for all modes, and perceptions that greenways could 
increase crime. 

2. Desired greenway features: Seeking more green spaces, dog walking space 
and amenities, lighting, public realm improvements including wider sidewalks and 
more seating, safety and wayfinding signage, and public washrooms. 

3. Concerns about traffic: Identification of disruptive noise from the highway, 
traffic congestion and speeding issues, a need for targeted traffic calming to 
address traffic short cuts , and a desire to ensure vehicle traffic flow is not unduly 
impacted. 

4. Separation of users: Desire to see separation of active modes from vehicle 
traffic, separation between people walking, rolling, and cycling, and wide enough 
paths to comfortably and safely accommodate all users regardless of mode of 
choice. 

Please reference Attachments 1 and 2 for the March 16, 2022, Engagement Summary 
Information Report and the full Phase 1, What We Heard Engagement Summary Report. 

Draft Project Vision 

Informed by what we heard from during the first phase of engagement, the project team 
developed the following draft vision statement for the Upper Levels Greenway. 

"The Upper Levels Greenway will be an active and healthy mobility 
corridor that celebrates connections to nature; provides a safe, 
comfortable and pleasant experience for people of all ages and 
abilities to walk, roll and cycle; and connects to other greenways 
and routes." 

The project team will be confirming this vision with the public during the upcoming 
engagement. Once confirmed, the vision statement will continue to guide the design 
choices we make through the project development process. 

Neighbourhood Design Zones 

Drawing from the draft vision and community feedback, we have developed three (3) 
different route options that each travel through four different zones. Each zone has unique 
characteristics to consider and incorporate into the design. This means the greenway may 
look different depending on which zone it is travelling through. 

Page 3 of 11 



REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Public Engagement Launch For Corridor Options 
Date: April 13, 2022 

/ I ,), 

Moun1.alnal:I• 
5t tonduy 

$ , ' I r' I(,, 

Ii, tJ 

t'.,,, 

e ·.t v.~:~~~c~'~n~~~~ Hi ll 
o, 1bo,• I. Zone 1 o,·,n 1 •'J ,,:,m• •.;. ,u: .-...1 ,. ·~ Zone 2 o-:~'.Fl' .T ru •: '•H I H "Ar1cnJv11 

l ,ul'l'•fflllnilr . • I "' 

I'.. ,11,, llltJY OJ;,1C1HHW,~CC".JvEn g _, , , lfo l:,Trlnlly 1, r.i rv Cf NGRIHVN l:.ou\'W 
• , ' .. -, ._a111 St ,'. El1m1n~ , , · ... , ... ·-~\l~----·----·:. -aaiTl~ [-- °i 

· · ' Urun • • 

~:: ; • ~ 'I • ...., El: m; n~111 • t : 2l, 11, S I W : • • • • • • • • • 26!h SI ,. 
c. 111 , • • • • • • • • • • • 

e • : ~ ,I :;;,111 S l \'I ;a,u1 ~~ I l ._ _ _..___..._.,_~-:.L __ - . - . - •--- - -------~ -.-----..--
0 ... .,pu, --· ...,, 

J.lu,quilo 
C, " N ,., 

HERE, Esri 

0 

6 
.:,' 

<:,\,:,'? 

..:,l~;-' '9 

C11runO r1h1m 
S.Coodary 

2•11 11 S I V, Ctn lt nnl, 1 
ThOlllfCI 

• • tJ.i1ryJ1u1m, 
Comm1.1nl1yCt nl11 

" .i; lit ! :;1 I; 

f 
{!; ;l(l\11 SI E 

LEGEND - - Orange Route • • • • Blue Route - • - Purple Roule 

2Jrd 31 

Ouun,bury 
El1m1n1ary 

~ 

Commercial Area 

Ctol• 
Boundlr)' 

Ehmu1luy 

~ 

Green Space 

• Zone 1 - The area between Lonsdale Avenue and Westview Drive, between 25th 

and 29th Avenues, at the west end of the study area. This zone is predominantly 
low density residential with quiet local streets, low traffic volumes and features 
the Jones Overpass. 

• Zone 2 - The area between Lonsdale and Tempe Heights Park, between 25th 

and 29th Avenues and Tempe Crescent. This zone is predominantly low density 
residential with moderately higher traffic volumes than Zone 1. This zone has 
areas known to experience driver short cutting. 

• Zone 3 - The main Tempe Heights Park area including the playground, pond , 
and forested area. The forest is home to several natural surface pathways with 
many exposed roots and a large tree canopy showing signs of deteriorating 
health. 

• Zone 4 - The eastern edge of the study area, including Tempe Heights Park 
Sports Courts and the pathway to Lynn Valley Road between Highway 1 and 
Tempe Knoll Drive. This zone is primarily natural space with low-density housing 
and suburban character local streets. 

Evaluation Priorities 

In order to assess the various options across the different neighbourhood zones, the 
project team developed four priority evaluation categories that align with the themes 
voiced by the community. These evaluation priorities are: 

Safety 

The option feels safe and minimizes risk from vehicle traffic 
for people of all ages and abilities. The Safety criterion 
considers traffic volumes and speeds, comfort for people 
walking and cycling, and street lighting levels. 

Page 4 of 11 



REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Public Engagement Launch For Corridor Options 
Date: April 13, 2022 

@ Connection 

~ Experience 

@ Features 

The option connects to other greenways, routes and places 
people want to go. The Connection criterion considers route 
directness along the corridor, access to nature, access to 
destinations like businesses and schools, and overall 
connections to the broader mobility network in the City. 

The option provides a pleasant and comfortable experience 
for recreation and/or getting around. The Experience criterion 
considers topography, environmental noise, and accessibility 
for people of all ages and abilities. 

The option provides opportunities to emphasize and 
incorporate natural features and community amenities. The 
Features criterion considers existing amenities and places of 
interest, views to celebrate, placemaking potential along the 
route, and how the greenway could fit with the neighbourhood 
character. 

We also heard concerns around impacts to parking, privacy, and potential for noise. 
These impacts have been taken into consideration, along with additional criteria such as 
known technical constraints, to help us develop route options for the Upper Levels 
Greenway. 

Design Approaches 

In order to respond to the different neighbourhood zones and design challenges, it is 
recognized that the greenway may take different forms along the corridor. There are four 
(4) main infrastructure design approaches that would be considered feasible and 
appropriate to deliver a new community greenway. 

These design approaches include: 

Design 
A roach 
Multi-Use 
Pathway 

Description 

Off-street pathways that are 
physically separated from motor 
vehicle traffic and can be shared 
by people using active modes 
including walking, cycling, 
skateboarding, scootering, and 
in-line skating. 

Typically carries two-way active 
transportation modes on one 
side of the street. 

Example 

Page 5 of 11 



REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Public Engagement Launch For Corridor Options 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Design 
A roach 
Wide 
Sidewalk 
& 
Protected 
Bicycle 
Lane 

Wide 
Sidewalk 
& Local 
Street 
Bikeway 

Natural 
Surface 
Pathway* 

Description 

Separated bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities that are 
similar to multi-use pathways. 
The key difference is that people 
cycling , skating, or scootering 
are separated from pedestrians 
by a painted line or other 
physical barrier treatments. 

The facilities can be one-way on 
both sides of a road or a two-way 
facility on one side. 

Streets with low motor vehicle 
volumes and speeds, often with 
traffic calming treatments, that 
are comfortable for people 
cycling to share the road with 
motor vehicles. 

Local streets provide a more 
enjoyable and comfortable 
walking experience through 
separation of modes and slowing 
of vehicle traffic. 

Off-street pathways through 
under-developed areas, such as 
parks, can use gravel or other 
natural materials as a cost
effective alternative. 

The facilities are typically two
way for active transportation 
modes, and can be on one side 
of the street or through a park. 

*Natural surface pathways are 
not appropriate to deliver a fully 
accessible All Ages and Abilities 
facility. This design approach 
would only be considered 
appropriate if an accessible 
pathway is not achievable due to 
other constraints. 

Example 

Page 6 of 11 



REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Public Engagement Launch For Corridor Options 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Each of these design approaches has benefits and constraints - primarily related to: 

• how much separation there is to protect different users; 
• how much right-of-way is required to achieve the design and what parking 

impacts or other encroachment removals may be needed; and 
• how accessible the design could be for people of all ages and abilities. 

See Attachment 3 for a full description of the benefits and constraints associated with 
different greenway design approaches. 

Route Options 

The Orange, Blue, and Purple routes shown here are all feasible pathways for the Upper 
Levels Greenway. Every option has a different set of defining characteristics, 
opportunities (white icons), and design constraints (black icons). Each of the constraints 
noted is something that could be addressed through design. 

Mountaln1ld• 
St<ond,ry 

e 

281\1 St 'N 
Holy Trinity 
Et,m,nluy 

I.-. ~ , s~ ._ 
~ Lu,on 
"'- Et,m, nt, ry 

e - - ---
26th St\\' 

" Unique area for 
public realm 
improvements 
where 27th 
Street meets 
Tempe Crescent 

25th SI W 251h SI E 

Steepest hill of all options means ,.,, 
more opportunities to rest and ~~ 

Mosquilo pause must be designed in r~ 

24 lh St W c, ntennb l 
Thu1, , 

• • cr.,k :: v 

@ 'J,'ii; <-.o'"" 
HuryJuomo 

Tree removal 
likely required 
to achieve an 

HERE, Esri 

LEGEND 

,❖ s e Highest vehicle 
C•~::~:;;~"m volumes of all options, 

Community Conlr• 

~ accessible 
., 21, 1, pathway on 

Commercial 
Area 

requires fully protected • 
infrastructure for I 
walking and cycling ·•• 

"' the steep hill 

£ 20th S! E 

0 • ® © ® @ Green 
Space Opportunity Design Challenge Safety Connection Experience Features 

® 
Impact 

Page 7 of 11 



REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Public Engagement Launch For Corridor Options 
Date: April 13, 2022 

i=iM§@nti 

• 

Slowly climbs grades 
by alternating between 
short steep then flat 
sections 

•; u1., r, p I 

Mt:Wll;t!naid• 
Sttond,uy 

-e, 

fa.cl • And,t-Piol:t l 
-e, 

D•lbr.-i"a. Zone 1 
Com"u.m,t:r 

·~''"i,' 
.;~l H'(, lfY. l li' IW• 1/A·:LOt>/1 r; 

c:i1,'orr1CRlH'll'INCOJV II r: 
,; 

Ola trkl c l l/<1 rl h 
V1M.011>1 1 l.nlttplil 11111 

Holy Trinily 
Ele m, nl ,'H)' 

.-, L• r•on 

I/ Ill S! 'N ................ . . 
-e, 

-.l,,, n 

lm 

Opportunity for parklet with traffic 
diversions around mature conifer 
trees that currently constrain the 
street between Lonsdale Avenue 
and St. Georges Avenue 

27 th S: I:: 

•t:::,;. : Wullo •1 ...,_ El: n~ n~u , 
. 

•• 21, lh 8 1 \'.' 
. . . . ·········t!~~~ ---

c_ ___ ..:•..:•:...=.• _,•:...•::....:e•..:•e_ __ 1F'-2_s_11_, s_·,_1·_, ---------' I 

HERE. Eori 

LEGEND 

' ,, 
:'•:'?, 

~~.:~:.~t ~-

• Ha, ry J t•lmo 
C11mmu nh>· '.;tnlro 

e. 

2J,cl ::ii F 

lmplemenling on-street 
facility would likely 
require removal of 
trees/ encroachments/ 
parking 

Achieving an all ages and 
abilities path could require 
tree removal depending on 
tree health 

<~ 10111 S ! E 

0 • ® 

Potential to include 
parklet amenities al 
Wilding Way cul-de-sac 

@ 

tcot, 
Dotindll l)' 

El• m•nl..1 ,y 

-e, 

® Commercial 
Area 

Green 
Space Opportunity Design Challenge Safely Connection Experience Features Impact 

W flh O 'f 
:na,p • 

t;11 111 , 

Mo.qu;10 
C:1 u k 
(ti 

HERE. Eori 

LEGEND 

f.loun t11!n1ld • 
S•comJuy 

'9 

Most direct east-west @) · 
route, but will require ~ 
design consideration to 
connect to schools safely 

Opportunity for parklet 
and traffic diversions 
between Mahon Avenue 
and Chesterfield 
Avenue near views of 
downtown Vancouver 

''l,f1 

a 
l .~ 

,(,' 
,\' 

, t1.,. 

Commercial 
Area 

:nn, ::.10.,·, 

Ob o!c l l'f I lltl h 
'lar.couV•r Mun lp.1 \ ll t ll • 

21.lt h SI\'/ 

lb\f :3t !,'/ 

H11lyTrlnlly 
Et,m• nlAry 

-e, 

Zone 2 

Flattest east-west grades, but CM ti!nnl.i l 
Thu h-1 

at bottom of a steep north-south 
slope to arrive at other 
neighbourhood destinations 

• • /h rr y Jororne 

-e, 
C:ir1onOnham 

S-co11d 11 ry 

Green 
Space 

Commun!l)"Ctnlre 

Challenging crossing 
to design at 25 th 

Street and Lonsdale 

0 • 
Opportunity Design Challenge 

'I 

Lowest vehicle 
volumes or all routes 

C1 IY Cf liORTH VMlCCUvrn 

(,'-:)' .~ 
q,' 

Steep and narrow 
path will be difficult 
to achieve an all 
ages and abilities 
pathway along 

@ 
Safely Connection Experience 

@ ® 
Features Impact 

Page 8 of 11 



REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Public Engagement Launch For Corridor Options 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Initial Evaluation and Design Possibilities 

The project team has compared the different routes against each other and across the 
various priority categories to determine what is most feasible across each route, and to 
identify what types of design choices may be appropriate to address both opportunities 
and constraints. 

The comparative evaluation was conducted on a spectrum to help assess the level of 
significance of the challenge or opportunity presented . 

Moderate 
Challenge 

Moderate 
Opportunity - ---~-' 

Significant ......... 
The routes are primarily assessed against the existing conditions along each option 
expect in the case of placemaking, which was evaluated based on the potential to 
incorporate park and public realm improvements. 

There is no single option that is strongly preferred over the others when 
considering the full range of public priorities and technical constraints. 

See Attachment 4 for a break down of the comparative evaluation across the priority 
categories, examples of which design approaches could be feasible, and a preliminary 
assessment of what might not be feasible in specific zones on each route given the 
context and constraints. 

Public Realm Opportunities 

Each of the route options presents similar but different opportunities for expanded public 
realm infrastructure. This could include a range of potential designs such as linear parklet 
space with seating and places to rest and socialize, traffic diversions or street closures to 
create small park areas, and space for public art. Once the preferred route is selected, 
more detail will be developed around appropriate public realm improvements that best 
respond to the specific conditions found along the route. Council and the public will have 
opportunities to provide feedback on public realm designs in a future public engagement 
period. 

Public and Stakeholder Engagement 

Public engagement on the project vision and route options will begin April 27, 2022, and 
run until May 20, 2022. The public engagement will be gathering input on what people 
like, or are concerned about, with the different route options and potential design 
approaches for the greenway. The survey will seek to confirm the project vision and 
further confirm how different respondents see themselves using the greenway. This 
information will be used to narrow the project down to a single preferred concept 
alignment that will best respond to the context and needs of the community. 

Page 9 of 11 



REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Public Engagement Launch For Corridor Options 
Date: April 13, 2022 

The project team will be utilizing a range of tactics to achieve broad outreach including: 

• Let's Talk and Survey: The Let's Talk page will continue to be the leading 
source of information for the project. All people engaging with the project team 
will be encouraged to complete the full survey on Let's Talk. 

• Open House and Pop-Up Events: An in-person Open House will be held May 
10, 2022, at Larson Elementary School. A number of pop-up events are 
scheduled to reach future users of the greenway, including youth at CityFest, 
other schools in the project area, and active mobility patrons along other City 
greenways and trails. 

• City Website: The City website will host a graphic banner on the homepage and 
highlight under the City News and Events section. Information posted on the 
project webpage (cnv.org/ULG) links to the Let's Talk page during the 
engagement period. 

• Postcard: Postcards will be delivered via Canada Post to all addresses in the 
project area. 

• Print Ad: A colour ad will appear in the North Shore News during the 
engagement period. 

• On-site Signage: Project signs targeting people walking, rolling, cycling, and 
driving will be installed through the area for the engagement period. 

• Info Bulletin: Project launch will include a direct bulletin delivered to Mailchimp 
subscribers. 

• CityView eNewsletter: Information about the ongoing survey will be included in 
CityView during the engagement period. 

• Social Media: Posts on Facebook, Twitter, and lnstagram will be used to direct 
people to Let's Talk during the survey engagement period . 

Staff have initiated engagement requests with Squamish Nation and Tsleil-Waututh 
Nation to understand interests they have in the project and to ensure the project is scoped 
to accommodate Indigenous requirements as we prepare for more detailed design 
activities later in 2022. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The total preliminary estimated cost for design and construction of the Upper Levels 
Greenway is $6,665,000, as a balance of external and City funding with the majority of 
City funds identified for Council consideration in the 2023 and 2024 capital plan years. 
Actual project costs and delivery approach will be refined through the planning and design 
process. 

As with past active mobility projects, the project team will be pursuing external funding 
from a variety of funding from senior government infrastructure grants. The City has been 
successful in accessing these grants for similar projects in the past, and staff will continue 
to pursue all external funding opportunities. 

Page 10 of 11 



REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Public Engagement Launch For Corridor Options 
Date: April 13, 2022 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

As the Upper Levels Greenway involves a variety of technical components including parks 
design, transportation planning, and overall road works coordination, the project will be 
delivered through the Public Realm Infrastructure group with a multi-department team 
from Parks, Environment, Engineering Design , Development Planning, Transportation 
Planning, Communications, and Finance contributing throughout the process. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

This project supports a Connected City, provides active and sustainable ways for people 
to move to, from and within the City safely and efficiently and will result in the increase of 
active transportation mode share, while also supporting the health and well-being of all. 

In addition , the development and implementation of the City's Priority Mobility Network 
Project aligns with and advances key principles of the Mobility Strategy, Safe Mobility 
Strategy, WalkCNV, and established City goals and objectives. Specific OCP objectives 
include: 

• Objective 2.1 : Prioritize walking, cycling, transit and goods movement over single
occupancy vehicles; 

• Objective 3.1: Enhance well-being and quality of life for all community members; 
and 

• Objective 5.2: Support, enhance and maintain recreation as a vital aspect of a 
healthy community. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Mo Bot 
Project Manager - Public Realm Infrastructure 

Page 11 of 11 



The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
ENGINEERING, PARKS & ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

INFORMATION REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Mo Bot, Project Manager - Public Realm Infrastructure

Subject: UPPER LEVELS GREENWAY - ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT

Date: March 16,2022 File No: 16-8350-20-0039/1

ATTACHMENT

1. Upper Levels Greenway Engagement Summary Report (CD#2158924)

DISCUSSION

This report is to provide Council with a summary of the preliminary public feedback that 
was gathered in the project launch phase for the Upper Levels Greenway.

The Upper Levels Greenway is being developed as part of the City’s commitment to 
provide active transportation and recreation options that support and enhance the health 
and well-being of all community members. The Upper Levels Greenway will stretch from 
Lynn Valley Road to Westview Drive and will be approximately 3 kilometres long. Once 
complete, it will give people more choice in how they move around the City by enhancing 
access to parks, recreation spaces, community amenities and destinations.

Without an established preferred corridor, this project presents many opportunities to 
work with the community to understand their needs and collaborate on delivering a 
responsive design that addresses issues and leverages opportunities. The engagement 
process has been designed with multiple community touch points to allow for 
incorporation of public and stakeholder feedback into the design and to demonstrate how 
community input informs decision-making. Engagement activities for future phases will 
be refined to respond to any gaps in outreach, leverage approaches that the community 
responds positively to, and to respect evolving COVID-19 public health 
recommendations.

Document Number: 2158318 VI

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 1�



INFORMATION REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Engagement Summary Report
Date: March 16, 2022

What We Heard
In February, staff reached out to the community about our plans to begin designing the 
Upper Levels Greenway. The purpose of this initial outreach was to introduce the 
community to the project and to explore the following topics:

1. How do you enjoy spending time in the Westview and Tempe neighbourhoods?
2. What do you appreciate most about these areas?
3. What is important when choosing a greenway route?
4. Are there any neighbourhood issues, concerns, or challenges to address, to help 

us develop greenway options and offer possible design solutions?

In response, over 2,400 people visited the Let’s Talk Page and 925 individual survey 
responses were received.

Engagement response was strongly represented by people who live and spend 
time in the area.

I live in the area 

I pass through the area 

I visit the parks in the area

I shop in the area

I go to school in the area / my children go 
to school in the area

I work in the area

Other

I own a business in the area

No connection

■ 5%

I 2%

I 1%

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900

Count of Responses

Page 2 of 6



INFORMATION REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Engagement Summary Report
Date: March 16, 2022

People spending time in the Westview and Tempe Neighbourhoods reported a high 
proportion of passive recreation activities including walking, running, and visiting 
parks.

Walking / running 

Visiting parks 

Visiting local businesses 

Cycling

Socializing with friends 

Recreational activities 

Relaxing 

Attending school 

Other 

Rolling

75%

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900

Count of Responses

Community members indicated an appreciation for the neighbourhood’s access to 
nature and greenery as well as local shops and services in the community. There 
is some interest in the social spaces and views that the topography and geography 
of the area provide.

Greenery/trees/access to nature 

Being close to food/shops/services

Access to recreational facilities

Places to socialize/public space/parks

Views/sunset

Other | 7%

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900

Count of Responses

Page 3 of 6



INFORMATION REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Engagement Summary Report
Date: March 16, 2022

When designing a greenway, respondents indicated that creating a safe and 
pleasant experience were the most important considerations and avoiding steep 
hills was less important - a condition that is difficult to avoid in this area.

It feels safe/minimizes risk from vehicle traffic

It provides a pleasant experience for recreation 
and/or getting around

It connects to other greenways or bike routes

It emphasizes and incorporates natural features 
along the route

It avoids steep hills

30% 33% 20% 7%

21% 20% 27%

It connects to existing amenities and 
destinations

It is the most direct path for where I need to go 

It includes places to rest or meet with others

18% 29%______ 20% il miVm 13%

15% 21%______27%_____________ 16%

14% 19% 25%______________ 19%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

■ Very important
■ Important
■ Moderately important
■ Somewhat important
■ Not at all important

The community raised a number of issues, opportunities and design 
considerations that will help the project team focus our efforts on important 
themes.

The top sentiments shared are organized around four key themes:

1. Concerns about safety: Seeking improvements to crossings at major streets, 
safe space provision for all modes, and perceptions that greenways could 
increase crime.

2. Desired greenway features: Seeking more green spaces, dog walking space 
and amenities, lighting, public realm improvements including wider sidewalks and 
more seating, safety and wayfinding signage, and public washrooms.

3. Concerns about traffic: Identification of disruptive noise from the highway, 
traffic congestion and speeding issues, a need for targeted traffic calming to 
address traffic short cuts, and a desire to ensure vehicle traffic flow is not unduly 
impacted.

4. Separation of users: Desire to see separation of active modes from vehicle 
traffic, separation between people walking, rolling, and cycling, and wide enough 
paths to comfortably and safely accommodate all users regardless of mode of 
choice.

Page 4 of 6



INFORMATION REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Engagement Summary Report
Date: March 16, 2022

All feedback will be considered as project options are developed. The project team will 
reflect back the themes gathered during this phase during future engagement periods to 
support an open conversation with the community around project trade-offs and 
opportunities. To read the full engagement summary report please see Attachment 1.

Engagement Approach
The project team’s objective is to reach a broad audience with a wide variety of outreach 
methods that provide project information in an accessible and digestible format for all. To 
achieve this, the following outreach tactics were used in the initiation phase:

• Let’s Talk and Survey: The Let’s Talk page is the leading source of information 
for the project. The digital survey was hosted through Let’s Talk from February 1st 
- 25th, 2022.

• City Website: The City website supported the Let’s Talk page with a graphic 
banner on the homepage and highlight under the City News & Events space from 
February 1st - 25th. Information posted on the project webpage (cnv.org/ULG) 
links to the Let’s Talk project page during this design and engagement process.

• Postcard: 1,850 postcards were delivered via Canada Post to all addresses in 
the project area.

• Print Ad: A quarter page full colour ad appeared in the North Shore News on 
February 16th.

• On-site Signage: 11 large project signs targeting people walking, rolling, 
cycling, and driving were installed throughout the project area during the entire 
engagement period.

• Info Bulletin: Project launch on February 1st included a direct bulletin delivered 
to over 1,200 Mailchimp subscribers.

• CityView eNewsletter: Information about the ongoing survey was included in the 
February 4, 10, 17, and 24 issues of CityView, delivered to over 1,200 
subscribers.

• Social Media: Between February 1st - 25th, seven Facebook posts reached 
64,144 people, six Twitter posts gathered 5,588 impressions, and two posts and 
four stories were shared on Instagram.

Analysis of the survey respondents' reported demographics reveals that the sample of 
residents engaged was not representative, and that residents who own their own home, 
are between the ages of 35-64, have household incomes over $200,000 and are of 
Caucasian descent were over-represented. Full analysis of the survey respondents' 
demographics is available in Attachment 1.

In addition to broad public engagement, staff is hosting discussions throughout the project 
development process with Squamish Nation and Tsleil-Waututh Nation. Targeted 
stakeholder meetings will be held with groups including the North Shore Advisory 
Committee on Disability Issues, the Seniors Action Table, the Integrated Transportation 
Committee, the North Shore Young Citizens’ Forum, RCMP, Fire services, and youth and 
parents from the schools within and near the project area.

Page 5 of 6



INFORMATION REPORT: Upper Levels Greenway - Engagement Summary Report
Date: March 16, 2022 ____

The District of North Vancouver is actively participating in Project Team working sessions 
to inform how the City and District mobility network plans can effectively integrate to serve 
residents and visitors to the North Shore.

During future engagement periods, similar digital and physical outreach tactics will be 
utilized in partnership with in-person engagement events. Staff will be reviewing the 
demographic information from the initial engagement to help direct outreach toward 
under-represented groups.

The project team would like to invite Council to share anything they are hearing from the 
community to help us respond to questions and concerns. The project email account 
ULG@cnv.org is monitored daily and responded to promptly.

The project team is currently developing project alternatives for consideration by 
Council and the community.

The next engagement period is planned for May 2022 and will include different greenway 
options and trade offs, reflecting the different considerations that have been raised. The 
project team will return to Council to present and receive feedback on the developing 
project ideas before the next engagement period launches.

Feedback received from Council and the public during Phase 2 of engagement, will inform 
the development of a preferred concept design.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Mo Bot
Project Manager - Public Realm Infrastructure

Page 6 of 6



 

 

 

 

 

City of North Vancouver 
Upper Levels Greenway 
Online Engagement Summary, March 2022 
  

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 2�



 

Table of Contents 
Introduction and Overview ..................................................................................... 3 

About the Project ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Project Timeline .............................................................................................................................................. 3 

Community Engagement ......................................................................................... 4 

Purpose ........................................................................................................................................................... 4 

What We Asked ............................................................................................................................................... 4 

What Was Heard ....................................................................................................... 5 

Survey Results ................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Mapping......................................................................................................................................................... 16 

Demographic Information .......................................................................................................................... 17 

Quick Polling ................................................................................................................................................. 25 

For More Information & Next Steps .......................................................................................................... 25 

 

  



 

Introduction and Overview 

About the Project  
The City of North Vancouver is beginning to plan and design a new greenway in the Westview and 
Tempe neighbourhoods, located north of Highway 1. The Upper Levels Greenway is being developed 
as part of the City’s commitment to provide active transportation and recreation options that 
support and enhance the health and well-being of all community members. 

The Upper Levels Greenway will stretch from Lynn Valley Road to Westview Drive and will be 
approximately 3km long. Once complete, it will give people more choice in how they move around 
the City by enhancing access to parks, recreation spaces, community amenities and destinations. 

 

A preferred route or design has not yet been established and will be determined based on input 
from the community. 

The Upper Levels Greenway was originally endorsed in the City’s Parks and Greenways Strategic Plan 
in 2002. It has been prioritized in the current Council Strategic Plan and supports several key 
priorities including A Vibrant City, A Connected City and A City for People. 

Project Timeline  
Phase 1: Winter 2022 
Introduce the project to the community and stakeholders. Gather input on their experiences and 
needs. 

Phase 2: Spring 2022 
Share what we heard in Phase 1. Present options for a preferred greenway route. Gather input on 
design options. 

Phase 3: Summer 2022 
Share what we heard in Phase 2. Present the final route. Gather feedback to inform detailed design. 



 

Phase 4: Fall-Winter 2023 
Share what we heard in Phase 3. Present detailed design. Make refinements based on community 
feedback. 

Community Engagement  

Purpose  
This phase of engagement sought to understand the public’s experience in the Westview and Tempe 
neighbourhoods. This information will be used to better understand what matters to the public by 
highlighting any concerns or opportunities in this area. The input shared will support the 
development of options for a preferred route that considers the local neighbourhood context and 
provides a greenway that is safe, comfortable, and accessible for all. 

What We Asked 
The City asked for feedback and a level of community support on the following topics:  

1. How do you enjoy spending time in the Westview and Tempe neighbourhoods? What do you 
appreciate most about these areas?  

2. What is important when choosing a greenway route?  
3. Are there any neighbourhood issues, concerns, or challenges to help us develop greenway 

options and offer possible solutions?  

  



 

What Was Heard 

Survey Results  
The survey was open between February 1st and February 25th, 2022 and received 925 responses. It 
should be noted that not all respondents answered every question, as some questions were 
optional. Additionally, the views represented in the survey results reflect the priorities and concerns 
of the respondents only and may not be representative of the general public. Respondents elected 
to take the survey, and so their responses do not reflect a random sample. 

While only the top themes have been included in this report, the City of North Vancouver has read 
and will consider all feedback. Survey responses include responses that were sent directly to the City 
of North Vancouver.   

1. What is your connection to the Westview and Tempe neighbourhoods? 
(select all that apply) 

 

Total responses: 925 

The most common connections to the Westview and Tempe neighbourhoods include:  

• Live in the area (548)  
• Passing through the area (505)  
• Visiting the parks in the area (491)  

Forty-two respondents chose other. The main connections that emerged from these responses are: 

• Live near the area or have family in the area (22 comments)  

1%

2%

5%

11%

15%

44%

53%

55%

59%

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900

No connection

I own a business in the area

Other

I work in the area

I go to school in the area / my…

I shop in the area

I visit the parks in the area

I pass through the area

I live in the area

Count of Responses



 

• Walk through the area (4 comments)  
• Used to live in the area (4 comments)  

2. How often do you spend time in the Westview and Tempe 
neighbourhoods? 

 

Total responses: 925  

Respondents most often spend time in the Westview and Tempe neighbourhood:  

• Daily (468)  
• Weekly (267)  
• Monthly (95)  

51%

29%

10%

7%

2% 1% 1%

Daily Weekly

Monthly Every few months

I’ve only visited the area a few times Never

Other



 

3. How do you enjoy spending time in Westview and Tempe 
neighbourhoods? (select all that apply) 

 

Total Responses: 925 

Based on the responses to the survey, the most common ways that respondents spend time in the 
Westview and Tempe neighbourhoods is:  

• Walking or running (691)  
• Visiting parks (512)  
• Visiting local businesses (468)  

Seventy respondents chose other. The additional main ways of spending time in these 
neighbourhoods are:  

• Dog walking (18 comments)  
• Live in the area (14 comments)  
• Driving through the area (11 comments)  
• Work in the area (7 comments)  
• Shopping in the area (6 comments)  

7%

8%

10%

29%

35%

36%

45%

51%

55%

75%

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900

Rolling

Other

Attending school

Relaxing

Recreational activities

Socializing with friends

Cycling

Visiting local businesses

Visiting parks

Walking / running

Count of Responses



 

4. What do you appreciate most about the Westview and Tempe 
neighbourhoods? (select up to 3) 

 

Total Responses: 925  

The most appreciated features within the Westview and Tempe neighbourhoods include:  

• Greenery, trees, and access to nature (700)  
• Being close to food, shops, and services (495)  
• Access to recreational facilities (325)  

Sixty-seven respondents chose other. The most appreciated features that emerged from these 
responses are: 

• Quiet atmosphere (14 comments)  
• Easy to access other areas (8 comments)  
• Existing active transportation opportunities (6 comments)  
• The sense of community (5 comments)  
• Nothing (5 comments) 
• The privacy (5 comments) 
• The proximity to outdoor recreation (5 comments)  
• Access to the highway (5 comments)  

5. If you were walking or rolling between the two red circles shown on the 
map, how important are the following when choosing your route? 

Participants were shown the following map to reference:   

7%

24%

26%

35%

54%

76%

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900

Other

Views/sunset

Places to socialize/public
space/parks

Access to recreational facilities

Being close to food/shops/services

Greenery/trees/access to nature

Count of Responses



 

 

 

Total Responses: 925  

Respondents indicated that the most important features when choosing a route are:  

• That it feels safe and has minimized the risks from vehicle traffic (786 indicated this was very 
important or important)  

14%

15%

18%

21%

30%

39%

39%

59%

19%

21%

29%

20%

33%

27%

37%

26%

25%

27%

20%

27%

20%

14%

14%

6%

23%

21%

21%

18%

10%

10%

5%

4%

19%

16%

13%

15%

7%

10%

4%

5%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

It includes places to rest or meet with others

It is the most direct path for where I need to go

It connects to existing amenities and
destinations

It avoids steep hills

It emphasizes and incorporates natural features
along the route

It connects to other greenways or bike routes

It provides a pleasant experience for recreation
and/or getting around

It feels safe/minimizes risk from vehicle traffic

Very important
Important
Moderately important
Somewhat important
Not at all important



 

• That it provides a pleasant experience for recreation and/or getting around (710 indicated 
this was very important or important)  

• That it connects to other greenways or bike routes (615 indicated this was very important or 
important) 

6. We’d like to understand any neighbourhood issues, concerns or 
challenges to help us develop greenway options and offer possible 
solutions. What are some things we should know? 

Participants provided 509 comments in response to this survey question. All comments were read 
and themed. Some comments included more than one sentiment or idea. In those cases, each 
sentiment was themed. 

A cross-tabulation analysis was then conducted to highlight the top sentiments for each 
neighbourhood1. While all sentiments have been reviewed by the City, only the most common 
themes for each neighbourhood are represented below. Singular sentiments for each theme have 
been omitted from this summary report.  

General themes  

A. Concerns about Safety (129 mentions):  
• Safe crossing at Lonsdale (40) / Safe crossing at highway (19)  
• Perceived potential safety issues from the greenway (crime, break-ins) (17)  
• Safety concerns on Westview Drive (13)  
• Prioritize safety for all users on the greenway (12)  
• Safety concerns on Jones Overpass (9) 
• Safety concerns at crosswalks / stop signs (15) 
• Safety concerns on Queens Road (4)  

B. Desired Greenway Features (102 mentions)  
• Prioritize greenery and greenspaces (22)  
• More dog walking areas and doggie bins (31) 
• Lighting along the pathway (20) 
• Garbage cans (8) 
• Public realm improvements including wider sidewalks and more seating (13) 
• Signage for safety and wayfinding (4) 
• Washrooms (4) 

C. Concerns about Traffic  
• Traffic noise from highway is disruptive (25) 
• Traffic congestion (24) 
• Traffic speeds (19) 
• Traffic and safety concerns on 29th Ave (11) 
• Do not disrupt traffic flow (11) 

 
1 There were no significant themes for those who lived in Metro Vancouver or those who lived in 
Moodyville.  



 

• Unsafe traffic bypassing other routes (9) 
• Traffic calming needed (9)  

D. Desire to Separate Users (66 mentions):  
• Separate users from traffic (36) 
• Separate pedestrians from bikes (22) 
• Wider pathways to accommodate all users (8)  

Tempe:  

A. Concerns about Safety (45 mentions):  
• Safe crossing at Lonsdale (17) / Need for a safe highway crossing (7)  
• Perceived potential safety issues from the greenway (crime, break-ins) (12)  
• Prioritize safety for all users on the greenway (4)  
• Safety concerns on busy routes (29th Avenue, Westview Drive)  

B. Concerns over Potential Changes in the Community (39 mentions):  
• Concerns more people will visit the neighbourhood to use the greenway (17)  
• Concerns over loss of privacy for residents (14)  
• Concerns over noise from greenway (8)  

C. Desire to Protect Greenery / Natural Environment (25 mentions):  
• Protect the natural beauty of the Tempe Heights Park Berm (12)  
• Prioritize and protect greenery, greenspaces, forests, trails, and views (3)  

D. Preserve Parking (19 mentions):  
• Protect residential parking (17)  
• Protect parking throughout the community (2)  

E. Ensure the Greenway is Well-Connected (15 mentions):  
• Connect to community centres (4)  
• Connect to the Green Necklace (4) / other cycling connections (2)  
• Connect to Lynn Valley (2)  
• Connect to local parks (2)  

Westview:   

A. Concerns about Traffic (28 mentions)  
• Traffic congestion (11)  
• Traffic noise from highway is disruptive (8)  
• Traffic speeds (traffic calming needed) (7)  
• Unsafe traffic uses area to bypass other routes (3)  
• Oppose to disrupting traffic flow for the greenway (2)  

B. Concerns about Safety (22 mentions):  
• Safe crossing at Lonsdale (9) / Need for a safe highway crossing (3)  
• Safety concerns on Westview Drive (6)  
• Safety concerns on the Jones Overpass (3)  

C. Prioritize Schools and Students (12 mentions):  
• Design the Greenway with youth/children in mind (8)  
• Ensure the Greenway connects to schools (Larson Elementary) (4)  



 

D. Preserve Parking (10 mentions): 
• Protect residential parking (7)  
• Protect parking throughout the community (3)  

E. Ensure the Greenway is Well-Connected (10 mentions):  
• Connect to Westview (4)  
• Connect to Lynn Valley (2)  
• Connect to community centres (2)  

All Other City Neighbourhoods (Central Lonsdale, Lower Lonsdale, Grand Boulevard, Marine-
Hamilton, Mahon, and Cedar Village)  

A. Concerns about Safety (27 mentions): 
• Safe crossing at Lonsdale (8) / Need for a safe highway crossing (8)  
• Prioritize safety for all users on the greenway (3)  
• Safety concerns on busy routes (2)  

B. Ensure the Greenway is Well-Connected (18 mentions):  
• Connect to other cycling connections (6) / Connect to the Green Necklace (2) 
• Connect to local parks (2)  
• Connect to Edgemont (2)  
• Connect to Westview (4)  
•  Connect to Lynn Valley (2)  

C. Desire to Separate Users (15 mentions):  
• Separate greenway users from traffic (13)  
• Separate all greenway user types (2)  

D. Concerns About Traffic (13 mentions):  
• Traffic speeds (4)  
• Traffic calming needed (4)  
• Traffic noise from highway is disruptive (3)  
• Oppose to disrupting traffic flow for the greenway (2)  

E. Separate the Route from the Highway (12 mentions):  
• Oppose to a greenway route along the highway (noise, air pollution, safety) (12)  

Neighbouring Community in the North Shore:  

A. Concerns about Safety (23 mentions):  
• Safety concerns on Westview Drive (5)  
• Safe crossing at Lonsdale (4) / Need for a safe highway crossing (4)  
• Prioritize community safety (crosswalks, safe greenway routes) (7)  
• Safety concerns on Queens Road (3)  

B. Concerns about Traffic (17 mentions):  
• Traffic congestion (5) / Concerns with congestion on 29th Ave (4)  
• Traffic calming needed (5)  
• Oppose to disruption of traffic flow for Greenway (2)  

C. Desire to Separate Greenway Users (13 mentions):  
• Separate users from traffic (7) 



 

• Separate pedestrians from bikes (5) 
D. Ensure the Greenway is Well-Connected (11 mentions):  

• Connect to other cycling networks such as Mosquito Creek (4)  
• Connect to Edgemont (2)  
• Connect to Lynn Valley (2)  

E. Prioritize Accessibility (7 mentions):  
• Prioritize accessibility for all ages and abilities (4)  
• Use accessible materials (for strollers) (3)  

A cross-tabulation analysis was also conducted to highlight the top sentiments for those who 
identified as having a disability, and those who have children or dependents under 18 at home. 
While all sentiments have been shared with the City, only the most common themes for each group 
are represented below. Singular sentiments for each theme have been omitted. 

Respondents who identified as having a disability 

A.  Concerns About Traffic (8 mentions):  
• Traffic calming needed (2)  
• Unsafe traffic in area trying to bypass other routes (2)  
• Traffic noise from highway is disruptive (3)  

B. Prioritize Accessibility (8 mentions)   
• Plan for those with mobility issues (accessible parking, transit connections, no 

elevation changes) (4)  
• Be accessible for multiple users (wide enough pathways, high quality surface 

materials) (4)  
C. Protect Residential Park ing (6 mentions)  
D. Greenway Features (5 mentions)  

• Seating will be (and currently is) needed in the area (3)  
• Prioritize greenery and greenspaces (2)  

Respondents who identified as having children or dependents under the age of 18 at home  

A. Concerns about Safety (39 mentions)  
• Safe crossing at Lonsdale (19) / Need for a safe highway crossing (8)  
• Potential safety issues from the Greenway (crime, break-ins) (6) 
• Prioritize safety when selecting a route (6)  

B. Accessible routes (37 mentions) 
• Design for kids and young families (23 mentions)  
• Avoid challenging topography (14 mentions)  

C. Ensure the Greenway is Well-Connected (32 mentions)  
• Connect to other cycling networks (12) 
• Connect to schools (6 mentions)  
• Connect to Lynn Valley (6) 
• Connect to parks (4)  
• Connect to community centres (4)  



 

7. Is there anything else you would like to share to help inform the early 
planning for the Upper Levels Greenway? 

Participants provided 402 comments in response to this survey question. All comments were read 
and themed. Some comments included more than one sentiment or idea. In those cases, each 
sentiment was themed. 

While all sentiments have been shared with the City, only the most common themes are 
represented below. Across all neighbourhoods, there were no significant differences in themes, with 
the exception of the Tempe neighbourhood. As such, themes have been included for that 
neighbourhood below.  Singular mentions for each theme have been omitted. 

A. Well-Connected (68 mentions)  
• Connections to other active transportation networks and the Green Necklace (21) 
• Connect Westview Drive and Shopping Centre (11) 
• Connect to parks and Mosquito Creek (13) 
• Connect to current and future recreation centres and other amenities (10) 
• Connect to urban centres including Lynn Valley and Lonsdale (9) 

B. Route Suggestions (61 mentions)  
• Support for a route along 25th Ave (14) / Other route suggestions (9) 
• Select a route that avoids hills (11) 
• Learn from mistakes made on 29th Ave (9) 
• Use existing lane on 29th Ave and build on already existing routes (11) 
• Expand the routes beyond project area (4) 
• Preference for an off-road path (3) 

C. Greenway Features (60 mentions) 
• Protect/prioritize greenery and greenspaces (25)  
• Include dog areas and doggie bins (18) 
• Features such as trail lighting (5) / washrooms (5) / garbage cans (3) / covered spaces 

& seating (3) 
D. Opposition to the Project (49 mentions)  

• Concern over costs / taxes (15) 
• Project is not needed / there are more important priorities (16) 
• Many mistakes were made on 29th Ave, fear of repetition (9) 
• More engagement needed with residents to address concerns (6) 

Tempe Neighbourhood  

In analyzing and theming the survey respondents by neighbourhood, Tempe was the only 
neighbourhood to have themes that significantly differed from the overarching themes. Comments 
most often expressed concerns with anticipated changes that would accompany the introduction of 
a greenway in this area. 

A. Concerns over Potential Changes in the Community (44 mentions):  
• Concerns more people will visit the neighbourhood to use the greenway (10) 
• Protect and prioritize greenery and greenspaces (9) 



 

• Concerns over loss of privacy for residents (10)  
• Concerns over noise from greenway (5)  
• Concerns over potential for increased safety concerns from greenway (crime, break-

ins) (5)  
• More engagement needed with residents (5)  

  



 

Mapping  
Using an interactive mapping tool on Lets Talk CNV, participants were asked the following questions:  

• Where do you visit most frequently?  
• Where are your favourite locations in the Westview and Tempe neighbourhoods? 

They were invited to drop up to 5 pins in response to the two questions above. While some 
answered the questions directly, many opted to provide more general feedback about the 
Greenway. In total, the map received 174 pins. The main themes that correspond to the favourite 
and most visited locations fell into three key categories: How the location is used, concerns about 
the location, and suggestions to improve. These are summarized in the two maps below:  

Map 1: Where do you visit most frequently?  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

Map 2: Where are your favourite locations in the Westview and Tempe neighbourhoods? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Demographic Information  
The City is constantly striving to improve engagement with our entire community in a way that 
encourages good representation in our designs and policies and as part of our ongoing Diversity, 
Equity and Inclusion initiatives.  

It is important that we hear from a balanced and diverse group of people and perspectives to inform 
our decision-making. These questions help us understand who we’re hearing from so we can design 
future engagement events to ensure that a broad range of perspectives are being represented. 



 

8. Which City of North Vancouver neighbourhood or other area do you live 
in? 

 

Total Responses: 924 

Most survey respondents lived in the following neighbourhoods or areas:  

• Tempe (202) 
• A neighbouring community (in the North Shore) (180)  
• Westview (180)  

Twenty-nine respondents chose other. The neighbourhoods most often indicated in these 
responses were: 

• Upper Lonsdale (13 comments)  
• Lynn Valley (4 comments)  
• Delbrook (3 comments)  

22%

19%

16%

13%

9%

8%

3%
3%

2%
2% 2% 1%

Tempe I live in a neighbouring community

Westview Central Lonsdale

Lower Lonsdale Grand Boulevard

Other Marine-Hamilton

Mahon Cedar Village

Moodyville I live in Metro Vancouver



 

9. What is your age range? 

 
Total Responses: 920 

The most common age groups for respondents include:  

• 35-44 years of age (214)  
• 55-64 years of age (206)  
• 45-54 years of age (203)  

When compared to the 2016 city-wide census results, younger populations are underrepresented in 
this survey (12 or under, and 19-24 years of age), while those between the ages of 35-64 are 
overrepresented.  

1% 2%

11%

23%

22%

22%

18%

12 or younger 13 – 18 years 19 – 24 years
25 – 34 years 35 – 44 years 45 – 54 years
55 – 64 years 65+ years



 

10. How do you describe your gender? 

 

Total Responses: 917 

Five hundred and twenty-six survey respondents were female, while 344 were male, and 34 
preferred not to answer. In addition, five identified as non-binary/gender diverse. If participants 
selected none of the above, they were invited to provide an optional comment to specify.  

When compared to the 2016 city-wide census data, people identifying as male were 
underrepresented in the survey as they make up over 48% of the population. It should be noted that 
the census does not ask for information on gender identity beyond male or female, and therefore 
no comparisons can be made for those who identify as non-binary or gender diverse.  

11. Do you identify as a person with a disability? 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

57%

38%

4% 1%

Female Male

Prefer not to answer Non-binary/gender diverse

None of the above

6%

92%

3%

Yes No Prefer not to say



 

 

Total Responses: 913 

The majority (837) of respondents did not identify as someone with a disability, while 52 did.  

12. What do you consider your main ethnic origin or that of your ancestors? 
(select all that apply) 

 

Total Responses: 917 

The most common ethnic origins for respondents to the survey are listed below. If participants 
selected none of the above, they were invited to provide an optional comment to specify. 

• Caucasian (715)  
• Asian (44)  
• Middle Eastern (16)  

 

Several ethnic origins were underrepresented in this survey including East and Southeast Asian (16% 
of the population), Middle Eastern (11% of the population) and South Asian (4% of the population). 
Those who identified as Caucasian were overrepresented, as they represent 65% of the 2016 city-
wide census population.   

0%

0%

1%

1%

1%

2%

4%

5%

10%

76%

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900

Oceanian

Caribbean

South Asian

Indigenous (First Nations, Metis,…

Central/South American

Middle Eastern

None of the above

Asian

Prefer not to say

Caucasian

Count of Responses



 

13. What is your total household income per year before taxes? 

 

Total Responses: 918 

The most common income range was between $100,000-$200,000 (303), followed by $200,000 or 
more (176).   

Compared to the 2016 city-wide census, those who earned $200,000 in household income before 
taxes were overrepresented in this survey, as they represent 7% of the population. Those who make 
$25,000 – under $50,000 (21% of the population) and $50,000- under $100,000 (32% of the 
population) were both underrepresented.  

19%

33%
15%

5%
1%

27%

$200,000 or more $100,000 to under $200,000

$50,000 to under $100,000 $25,000 to under $50,000

Under $25,000 Prefer not to say



 

14. What type of housing do you live in? 

 

Total Responses: 919 

The most common types of housing that respondents live in include:  

• Single-family home (564)  
• Condo or apartment (193)  
• Duplex, triplex, or fourplex (63)  

Those who live in a single-family home were overrepresented in this survey, as they make up 12% of 
the city-wide population. Those who live in a condo or apartment housing are underrepresented, as 
they make up 64% of the city-wide population.  

 

61%
21%

7%

4%
4% 3%

Single-family home Condo or apartment

Duplex, triplex, fourplex Prefer not to say

Secondary suite or coach house Other



 

15. Do you own your own home? 

 

Total Responses: 914 

The majority (726) of respondents to the survey indicated that they own their own home, while 135 
do not. Fifty-three preferred not to say.  

Homeowners are overrepresented in this survey, as they make up 53% of the population.  

16. Do you have children/dependents under the age of 18 living with you at 
home? 

 

79%

15%

6%

Yes No Prefer not to say

38%

54%

8%

1%

Yes
No
I have children OVER the age of 18 living at home



 

Total Responses: 907 

Four hundred and eighty-six respondents indicated that they did not have children or dependents 
under the age of 18 living with them, while 345 did. Seventy respondents have children or 
dependents over the age of 18 living at home.  

 

Quick Polling  
In addition to the survey and the interactive map, Let’s Talk CNV hosted a quick poll that asked:  

• What do you appreciate most about the Westview & Tempe neighbourhoods? 

In total, this poll received 97 responses. 

 

The top response received was Greenery, trees, and access to nature (50).  

 

For More Information & Next Steps 
The City will use the feedback received to help develop routing options for the Upper Levels 
Greenway which will be presented to stakeholders and the public in the next round of public 
engagement in Spring 2022. 

For more information: 

• Visit the project webpage at www.cnv.org/ULG 
• Contact the Project Team at cnv.org/ULG or 604-983-7333 

3%

6%

10%

11%

18%

52%

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90

Something else...

 Places to socialize/public space/parks

Views/sunset

Access to recreational facilities

Being close to food/shops/services

Greenery/trees/access to nature

http://www.cnv.org/ULG


 

 

Upper Levels Greenway – Design Approaches, Benefits, and Constraints 

 

 

 

MULTI-USE PATHWAY 
WIDENED SIDEWALK & 

PROTECTED BICYCLE LANE 

WIDENED SIDEWALK &  

LOCAL STREET BIKEWAY 
NATURAL SURFACE PATHWAY 

EXAMPLES 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

 

 
 

 

DESCRIPTION 
Off-street pathways that are physically 

separated from motor vehicle traffic and 

can be shared by people using active modes 

including walking, cycling, skateboarding, 

scootering, and in-line skating.   

 

Typically carries two-way active 

transportation modes on one side of the 

street. 

Separated bicycle and pedestrian 

facilities that are similar to multi-use 

pathways. The key difference is that 

people cycling, skating, or scootering are 

separated from pedestrians by a painted 

line or other physical barrier treatments.  

 

The facilities can be one-way on both 

sides of a road or a two-way facility on 

one side. 

 

Streets with low motor vehicle volumes and 

speeds, often with traffic calming 

treatments, that are comfortable for 

people cycling to share the road with 

motor vehicles.  

 

Local streets provide a more enjoyable and 

comfortable walking experience through 

separation of modes and slowing of vehicle 

traffic. 

Off-street pathways through under-

developed areas, such as parks, can use 

gravel or other natural materials as a 

cost-effective alternative. 

 

The facilities are typically two-way for 

active transportation modes, and can be on 

one side of the street or through a park. 

 

BENEFITS • Suitable for people of all ages and 

abilities.  

• People walking, wheeling, or rolling 

are physically separated from traffic.  

• Requires less space than wider 

sidewalks and protected bicycle lanes 

side by side. 

• Can be adapted and adjusted to a park 

setting (width, lighting, etc.) 

• Suitable for people of all ages and 

abilities.  

• People walking, wheeling, or rolling 

are physically separated from traffic.  

• People cycling are physically separated 

from other active users.  This creates 

a more comfortable environment and 

minimizes the potential safety 

conflicts between people walking and 

faster-moving users. 

• May be more attractive to people 

cycling for commuter purposes than a 

multi-use pathway. 

 

• Suitable for people of all ages and 

abilities. 

• People cycling on the street are 

separated from people walking on the 

sidewalk.   

• Does not require additional space for 

dedicated infrastructure.  

• Slow the speed down on the street 

leading to increased safety for all 

users. 

• May be more attractive to people 

cycling for commuter purposes than a 

multi-use pathway. 

• Appropriate for environmentally 

sensitive areas. 

• More cost-effective. 

• May allows for future improvements such 

as paving if desired.  

• Maintains the natural look and feel of 

natural settings such as a park or 

forested area. 

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 3�



 

 

 

 

 

MULTI-USE PATHWAY 
WIDENED SIDEWALK & 

PROTECTED BICYCLE LANE 

WIDENED SIDEWALK &  

LOCAL STREET BIKEWAY 
NATURAL SURFACE PATHWAY 

CONSTRAINTS • There is a mix of users and speeds 

travelling in both directions, which 

creates potential for conflicts and may 

be a less comfortable environment for 

some. 

• May be less attractive to people 

cycling for commuter purposes 

• Requires more space than multi-use 

pathways or local street bikeways. 

• People cycling share the road with 

motor vehicles with no physical 

separation.  This may not feel 

comfortable for less confident or 

experienced cyclists 

• Less intuitive for cyclists and drivers 

than designated facilities with clear 

space allocated to each user. 

• Not considered appropriate for all ages 

and abilities. 

• Gravel pathways are inaccessible for 

certain user groups, including 

skateboarders and in-line skaters. 

• Gravel pathways may also be more 

difficult to navigate for people 

cycling and people using mobility 

devices. 

 

IMPACTS • On-street parking is typically 

impacted.  

• Encroachments within the City right-of-

way may need to be removed. 

• Tree removal may be required to 

accommodate paving and path widening. 

• Limited impacts to traffic operations.  

 

• On-street parking is typically 

impacted. Impacts may be more 

significant than a multi-use pathway 

due to the space required.  

• Encroachments within the City right-of-

way may need to be removed. 

• Tree removal may be required to 

accommodate paving and path widening. 

• Limited impacts to traffic operations. 

 

• Limited impacts to on-street parking.  

• Traffic calming and/or diversion may be 

required to reduce traffic speeds and 

volumes, which may have impacts on 

vehicle access and circulation.   

• Limited impacts in natural spaces, 

however slope stabilization and tree 

removal may be required depending on 

the ground conditions. 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Upper Levels Greenway – Initial Route Options Evaluation 

A preliminary comparative evaluation of the three options was conducted on a spectrum to help assess the level of significance of the challenge or 

opportunity presented. 

Significant 

Challenge 

Moderate 

Challenge 

Moderate 

Opportunity 

Significant 

Opportunity 

    

 

The routes are primarily assessed against the existing conditions along each option expect in the case of placemaking which was evaluated based on the 

potential to incorporate park and public realm improvements.  

 

 EVALUATION ORANGE ROUTE BLUE ROUTE PURPLE ROUTE 

SAFETY 

TRAFFIC VOLUMES / 

SPEEDS 
   

PEDESTRIAN / CYCLIST 

COMFORT 

   

LIGHTING    

CONNECTION 

DIRECTNESS    

ACCESS TO NATURE     

ACCESS TO BUSINESSES / 

SCHOOLS 

   

NETWORK CONNECTIVITY    

EXPERIENCE 

NOISE    

ACCESSIBILITY    

TOPOGRAPHY    

FEATURES 

PLACEMAKING POTENTIAL    

AMENITIES    

PLACES OF INTEREST    

VIEWS    

CHARACTER    

 

WHAT IS NOT 

FEASIBLE? 

 Zone 1/2: On-street, non-separated 

facilities on some blocks as climbing 

cyclists cannot keep up with the speed of 

traffic 

  

 Zone 1/2: Multi-use pathway would not be 

appropriate on some blocks for downhill 

direction due to cyclist speeds 

  

 Zone 1/2: On-street, non-separated 

facilities on some blocks as climbing 

cyclists cannot keep up with the speed of 

traffic 

  

 Zone 1/2: Multi-use pathway would not 

be appropriate on some blocks for 

downhill direction due to cyclist speeds 

 Zone 4: Path may require geotechnical 

assessment along berm. 

WHAT COULD 

THIS LOOK LIKE? 

 Widened sidewalk and protected bicycle 

lane 

 

  

 Off-street multi-use pathway through 

parking reduction or widening sidewalk 

towards property line 

 

  

 Local street bikeway with moderate traffic 

calming  

 

 

 

 Widened sidewalk and protected bicycle 

lane 

 

  

 Off-street multi-use pathway through 

parking reduction or widening sidewalk 

towards property line 

 

  

 Local street bikeway with moderate traffic 

calming  

 

  

 Paved multi-use pathway upgrade 

through short park section 

  

 Road space reallocation and/or conversion 

to one-way street. 

 

  

 Local street bikeway with moderate traffic 

calming  

 

  

 Paved or gravel multi-use pathway 

upgrade through short park section 

 

 

 

 

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 4�



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



- $ {,A,{ 
Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Larry Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 

2022 TAX RATES BYLAW 

REPORT 

Date: April 13, 2022 File No: 05-1970-05-0005/2022 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated April 13, 2022, 
entitled "2022 Tax Rates Bylaw": 

THAT 'Tax Rates Bylaw, 2022, No. 8919" be considered . 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Proposed "Tax Rates Bylaw, 2022, No. 8919" (CityDocs 2166563) 

DISCUSSION 

The purpose of this report is to seek Council approval for the 2022 Tax Rates Bylaw. 

The Community Charter requires the preparation and adoption of a Tax Rates Bylaw, 
after adoption of the financial plan but before May 15th each year. The property tax rates 
are set each year to enable the City to collect the tax levy that is required in the 
Financial Plan. 

The Tax Rate Bylaw presented for endorsement reflects the 3.75% tax rate increase 
approved by Council at the March 28, 2022 Regular Council meeting and the tax rate 
distribution option endorsed by Council at the April 11, 2022 Regular Council meeting . 

Document: Number: 2167741-v1 



REPORT: 2022 Tax Rates Bylaw 
Date: April 13, 2022 

The 2022 Tax Rates Bylaw contains the following schedules: 

Schedule A - Rates required for the City's total general municipal tax revenue 
Schedule B - Rates required for the City's storm drainage levy 
Schedule C - Rates required for the City's eco levy 
Schedule D - Rates required for the Metro Vancouver Regional District tax 

Note that the other governmental agencies (School, Translink, BC Assessment and 
Municipal Finance Authority) will set their own respective rates. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Financial implications have been addressed in detail during the 2022 - 2026 Financial 
Planning process. 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPLICATIONS 

The preparation and approval of a Tax Rates Bylaw is a critical step in the City's 
financial planning process. The property taxes collected through the bylaw will provide 
funding for programs and projects in support of the vision and priorities of the 2018-
2022 Council Strategic Plan. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Larry Sawrenko 
Chief Financial Officer 

Page 2 of 2 



The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8919 Document: 2166563-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 

BYLAW NO. 8919 
 

A bylaw for imposing property value taxes on land and improvements 
in the City of North Vancouver for the year 2022. 

WHEREAS it is provided under Section 197(1) of the Community Charter being, that the Council 
must, each year after adoption of the financial plan but before the 15th day of May, subject to the 
provisions and restrictions of the Community Charter contained, pass a bylaw to impose property 
value taxes on all land and improvements according to the assessed value thereof, for the 
purpose enumerated and set forth in Section 197(1) of the Community Charter; 

WHEREAS the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver deems it necessary 
and expedient to pass a bylaw for imposing a property value tax on all taxable land and 
improvements, according to the assessed value thereof, on the last Revised Assessment roll for 
The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, the rates thereinafter imposed and levied for 
purpose hereinafter stated; 

WHEREAS for General and Debt purposes, according to the last Revised Assessment Roll of the 
City, the amount of the assessed value of the taxable land and taxable improvements is 
$30,291,273,363; 

AND WHEREAS for the Regional Hospital purposes, according to the last Revised Assessment 
roll of the City, the amount of the assessed value of the taxable land and taxable improvements 
is $30,313,368,963; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2022, No. 
8919”. 

2. The following rates are hereby imposed and levied for the year 2022: 

A. For all lawful general purposes of the municipality on the assessed value of land and 
improvements taxable for general municipal purposes, rates appearing on Schedule 
“A” attached hereto and forming a part hereof. 

B. For the storm drainage purposes on the assessed value of land and improvements 
taxable for general municipal purposes, rates appearing on Schedule “B” attached 
hereto and forming a part hereof. 

C. For the eco levy purposes on the assessed value of land and improvements taxable 
for general municipal purposes, rates appearing on Schedule “C” attached hereto and 
forming a part hereof. 

D. For the City’s appropriate share of the monies required for the operating fund of the 
Metro Vancouver Regional District for the year 2022, on the assessed value of land 
and improvements taxable for Regional Hospital District purposes, rates appearing on 
Schedule “D” attached hereto and forming a part hereof. 



The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8919 Document: 2166563-v1 

3. The minimum amount of taxation upon a parcel of real property shall be One Hundred 
Dollars ($100.00) for property owners 65 years of age and over and Three Hundred and 
Fifty Dollars ($350.00) for property owners under 65 years of age. 

 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2022. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 

 
  



The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8919 Document: 2166563-v1 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

2022 Tax Rates ($’s of tax per $1,000 taxable value) 
 
 

 
Property Class     Municipal General 
 
 
1. Residential       1.59647 
 
2. Utilities     37.94062 
 
4. Major Industry    26.08418 
 
4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap) 26.08418 
 
4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap 21.34160 
 for new investment) 
 
5. Light Industry      5.10874 
 
6. Business       5.10874 
 
8. Recreation/Non Profit     1.78447 
 
  



The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8919 Document: 2166563-v1 

SCHEDULE “B” 
 

2022 Tax Rates ($’s of tax per $1,000 taxable value) 
 
 

 
Property Class Storm Drainage 
 
 
1. Residential     0.05764 
 
2. Utilities     1.36974 
 
4. Major Industry    0.94170 
 
4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap) 0.94170 
 
4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap        0.77048 

for new investment) 
 
5. Light Industrial     0.18444 
 
6. Business     0.18444 
 
8. Recreation/Non Profit   0.06442 
 
 
  



The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 5 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8919 Document: 2166563-v1 

SCHEDULE “C” 
 

2022 Tax Rates ($’s of tax per $1,000 taxable value) 
 
 

 
Property Class     Eco Levy 
 
 
1. Residential     0.02902 
 
2. Utilities     0.68964 
 
4. Major Industry    0.47413 
 
4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap) 0.47413 
 
4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap 0.38792 
 for new investment) 
 
5. Light Industry     0.09286 
 
6. Business     0.09286 
 
8. Recreation/Non Profit   0.03244 
 
 
  



The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 6 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8919 Document: 2166563-v1 

SCHEDULE “D” 
 

2022 Tax Rates ($’s of tax per $1,000 taxable value) 
 
 

 
Property Class                            Metro Vancouver Regional District 
 
 
       
 
1. Residential     0.05297 
 
2. Utilities     0.18639 
 
4. Major Industry    0.18009 
 
5. Light Industry     0.18009 
 
6. Business     0.12977 
 
8. Recreation/Non Profit   0.05297 
 
 



To: 

From: 

•ll, A€ U1 
Director CAO 

Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Emma Chow, Planner 2 

REPORT 

Subject: ZONING BYLAW AMENDMENT FOR 115 EAST KEITH ROAD 
(VICTORIA PARK (DENNA HOMES) GP LTD./ INTEGRA 
ARCHITECTURE INC.) 

Date: April 13, 2022 File No: 08-3400-20-0058/1 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated April 13, 2022, entitled "Zoning 
Bylaw Amendment for 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp 
Ltd. / lntegra Architecture Inc.)": 

THAT second reading of "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 
2021, No. 8877" (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd./ lntegra Architecture 
Inc., 115 East Keith Road, CD-741) be rescinded; 

THAT "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877" 
Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd./ lntegra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith 
Road, CD-741) be amended as follows: 

• (6) Off-Street Parking and Short-Term and Secure Bicycle Parking 
shall be provided in conformity with the requirements of Division IV, 
Parts 9, and 10A, except that: 

(a) A maximum of 39% small car parking spaces may be 
provided; 

THAT "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877", as 
amended, be referred to a Public Hearing; 

Document Number: 2160853 V3 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / lntegra 
Architecture Inc.) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

THAT "Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923 "(Victoria Park (Denna 
Homes) Gp Ltd./ lntegra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith Road, CD-741, 
Rental Housing Commitments) be considered and referred to the same Public 
Hearing; 

THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act; 

THAT the community benefits listed in the. report section "Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits" be secured through agreements at the applicant's 
expense and to the satisfaction of staff; 

AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the 
necessary documentation to give effect to this motion. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Staff Report, dated October 6, 2021 (CityDocs 2082820) 

2. Architectural and Landscape Plans, dated March 25, 2022 (CityDocs 2163117 & 
2163123) 

3. Tenant Relocation Update and Revised Plan (CityDocs 2163418) 

4. Proposed "Zoning Bylaw (tracked changes), 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 
2021 , No. 8877 (CityDocs 2082819 V2) 

5. Proposed "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877" 
(CityDocs 2082819 V3) 

6. Proposed "Housing Agreement Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, 
No. 8923" (CityDocs 2162520) 

SUMMARY 

This report presents for Council consideration a rezoning application for the subject 
property. As a pilot process of the Balanced Housing Lab, a preliminary version of the 
proposal was considered by Council on October 18, 2021. This rezoning application has 
satisfied project conditions set out in the staff report dated October 6, 2021 (Attachment 
1) and is being brought back to Council for consideration of third reading. Staff 
recommend that Council refer this application to a Public Hearing. 

BACKGROUND 

This proposal was selected for the pilot of an exploratory alternative development 
approval process, which was an action identified in the Balanced Housing Lab. The pilot 
includes early community consultation and earlier Council consideration to help better 
inform detailed design of the proposal. 

At the regular meeting of October 18, 2021, a preliminary concept for a six-storey rental 
apartment building was presented to Council. Council gave first and second readings to 
the draft rezoning bylaw and directed staff to proceed with detailed design review to 
ensure that specific conditions were met, including: 

Page 2 of 8 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd./ lntegra 
Architecture Inc.) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

• Compliance with City policies, practices and applicable codes and bylaws 
• Commitment to any necessary off-site works 
• Review by the Advisory Design Panel 
• Progress update on the Tenant Relocation Plan 
• Submission of a Transportation Study and incorporation of recommended 

Transportation Demand Management (TOM) measures into proposal 
• Incorporation of tree retention measures, as recommended within a tree study 

completed by a qualified arborist 
• Enter into a Housing Agreement to secure rental housing commitments, 

including a provision for a non-profit third party to be engaged to screen 
applicants for the mid-market rental units 

DISCUSSION 

Project Description 

The proposal is consistent with the concept presented at the regular meeting of October 
18, 2021 in terms of general massing, siting and use. The detailed design provides 74 
residential rental units, as well as 44 vehicle parking spaces and 119 bicycle parking 
spaces over two underground levels. Proposed vehicle access is off East 6th Street and 
the main residential entry is off East Keith Road. The proposed building presents as 
six-storeys on East Keith Road and seven-storeys on East 6th Street, with a building 
height of 23 metres, as measured from the average building grade at the north property 
line, which is consistent with how heights are measured in CD zones in the City. 

Eight units are proposed as mid-market rental units that would be secured through a 
Housing Agreement for the life of the building. Twenty-one of the total units (28%) meet 
Level 2 of the Adaptable Design guidelines. Nine of the total units (12%) have three or 
more bedrooms. The proposed mix of units is as follows: 

Table 1. Proposed Unit Breakdown 

Unit Type Number of Units Size 
Studio 30 400-490 square feet 
One-bedroom 19 428-618 square feet 
Two-bedroom 16 642-1,032 square feet 
Three-bed room 8 1, 103-1,423 square feet 
Four-bedroom 1 1,434 square feet 

The proposal provides approximately 100 square metres of indoor amenity space (room 
for gatherings and bike wash area) and an outdoor rooftop amenity space with 
gardening plots, lounge areas and play space. 

To allow the proposed massing, the rezoning bylaw would vary the RH-1 zone FSR, 
setbacks, lot coverage, building width and length, and minimum tower separation 
requirements. 

Page 3 of 8 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd./ lntegra 
Architecture Inc.) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Table 2. Summary of Proposed Zoning Changes 

Zoning 

Permitted Principal 
Uses 

Maximum Density 

Lot Coverage 

Maximum Building 
Width and Lenqth 

Setbacks 

Minimum Tower 
Separation Above Four 
Storeys 

Off-Street Parking 

PLANNING ANALYSIS 

Policy Alignment 

Base Zone Requirements 

RH-1 Zone 

Various Residential Uses 

2.6 Floor Space Ratio (FSR) 

Maximum 50 percent 

Maximum 30.48 m (100 feet) 
above the third storey. 

Front: 7.62 m / 25 ft. 
Rear: 7.62 m / 25 ft. 

Interior Side: 7.62 m I 25 ft. 

24.38 m I 80 ft. 

44 

Proposal 

CD-741 (RH-1 base) 

Rental Apartment Residential Use 

3.3 Floor Space Ratio (FSR) 

57 percent 

(waived) 

Front: 4.57 m / 15 ft. 
Rear: 4.57 m / 15 ft. 

West Interior Side: 3.2 m / 10.5 ft. 
East Interior Side: 3.05 m I 1 Oft. 

(waived) 

44 

The proposal is consistent with the OCP land use designation and density limit for the 
site. The proposed building height of 23 metres is well within the OCP height limit of 46 
metres. Located within a block of the Lonsdale commercial corridor, the proposal is in 
alignment with a number of OCP goals and objectives to have higher density rental 
housing that is within the Lonsdale Regional City Centre and close to shops, services, 
public transit and employment opportunities. 

The proposed mix of unit types meets requirements of the Housing Action Plan for a 
minimum 10% mid-market rental units and a minimum of 10% three-bedroom units to 
support families. Also, the proposed secured rental housing of 74 units meets a priority 
of the Council Strategic Plan to protect and expand rental housing stock. 

The proposal exceeds the Zoning Bylaw minimum requirement for 25% of units to meet 
Level 2 Adaptable Design . The proposal addresses the Active Design Guidelines with 
thoughtful design of stairways and provision of indoor and outdoor amenity spaces. 

Lot Coverage and Building Setbacks 

Lot coverage has been slightly reduced to 57% from the preliminary concept, while 
building setbacks and tower separation remained the same. Setback and tower 
separation distances required in the RH-1 Zone are intended for taller buildings. The 
proposed setbacks and tower separation (18.3 metres) are adequate for the lower 
height of the proposed building. A shadow study shows minimal impact to Victoria Park 
and surrounding neighbours. Also, the proposed massing with increasing setbacks to 
the west further mitigates view impacts and allow for adequate solar access. 

Page 4 of 8 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd./ lntegra 
Architecture Inc.) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Parking 

The proposed vehicle and bicycle parking spaces of 44 and 119, respectively, meet the 
minimum requirements (44 and 118) of the Zoning Bylaw. All vehicle and bicycle 
parking spaces have EV-ready infrastructure. However, the 17 proposed small car 
spaces has exceeded the maximum 15 allowed by two spaces. A variance to 
accommodate the increased small car spaces is supported by staff. A transportation 
study was completed for the proposal, which outlines Transportation Demand 
Management measures to reduce vehicle-reliance and promote active transportation . 
These measures have been incorporated into the proposal. 

Infrastructure and Servicing 

The proposal will require new utility service connections, including a water main 
upgrade from Lonsdale Avenue, as well as improvements along both frontages. In 
addition to meeting road work and streetscape standards, the improvements will include 
a bus stop upgrade with shelter and new sidewalk from site to bus stop. 

Tree Retention 

An arborist report identified one tree on-site and eleven trees in the proximity off-site. 
Four trees, all assessed as unsuitable for retention, are proposed for removal (one on
site and three off-site) . Trees to be retained will be protected as prescribed in the Tree 
Management Plan detailed in the arborist report. Sixteen new trees are proposed on
site, as well as five new street trees along the frontages. 

Density Bonus and Community Benefits 

The maximum density bonus of 1.0 FSR may be considered for this site through 
provision of 100% secured rental housing, of which at least 10% must be mid-market 
rental units. The value of the bonus density may be roughly calculated by using the 
standard cash contribution amount for areas within the Lonsdale City Centre, $190 per 
square foot of bonus floor area. 

Legal Agreements 

Should Council support this rezoning, the following legal agreements should be 
prepared prior to final adoption: 

• Housing Agreement 
• Servicing Agreement 
• Community Good Neighbour Agreement 
• Shoring, Crane Swing, and Staging License Agreement 
• Flooding Covenant 
• Community Energy Agreement 

Page 5 of 8 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd./ lntegra 
Architecture Inc.) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

ADVISORY BODY INPUT 

Advisory Design Panel 

The application was reviewed by the Advisory Design Panel (ADP) on November 17, 
2021. 

The Panel unanimously endorsed the proposal subject to addressing the following 
issues to the satisfaction of the Development Planner: 

• Increase size of rooftop amenity and enhance design 
• Ensure roof overhangs provide shelter to all balconies 
• Increase the articulation of the main entrance 
• Further examination of the entry to the elevators on the typical floors 
• Further design development to maintain the lot coverage required by the Zoning 

Bylaw and to mitigate or maintain the existing setbacks to the west 

Revised designs were submitted since the ADP meeting that address the above 
concerns to the satisfaction of City staff. 

TENANT RELOCATION 

As of March 22, 2022, the applicant has revised the Tenant Relocation Plan 
(Attachment 3) to be in compliance with the 2021 Residential Tenant Displacement 
Policy. Compared with the original, the revised Tenant Relocation Plan provides 
additional compensation for long-term tenancies (over five years), calculated in 
accordance with the 2021 Policy. All other aspects of the original Tenant Relocation 
Plan meet the requirements of the 2021 Policy. 

The tenants were first informed of the Tenant Relocation Plan in June 2021, shortly 
following the submission of the rezoning application. Tenants were provided with a 
relocation update in November 2021, and the revised Tenant Relocation Plan on March 
22, 2022. Communications were carried out through mail and email, as well as posted 
in public spaces within the building. A third-party Tenant Relocation Coordinator was 
available throughout the process to assist tenants. 

At the time of application submission, the 23 existing units were all occupied. At the 
time of writing this report, nine of the units have been vacated. All eligible tenants, 
including those that have already vacated, will be receiving the additional long-term 
tenancy financial compensation. 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 

The early public engagement under the pilot was more extensive than the typical 
process and was made up of four components: 1) a Co-Creation Workshop; 2) a Visual 
Preference Survey; 3) Developer Information Session; 4) online engagement. 

Page 6 of 8 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd./ lntegra 
Architecture Inc.) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Engagement details and findings, as well as lessons for the future, are referenced in the 
attached staff report (Attachment 1 ). 

Key concerns from public engagement were primarily regarding relocation of the 
existing tenants and the affordability and livability of the units in the proposed building. 
Other themes of discussion included sustainability and accessibility elements of the 
proposal, and unit size and mix were also discussed. Throughout the application 
process, numerous complaints were received regarding aspects of the Tenant 
Relocation Plan, especially for timely and transparent communications and the amount 
of financial compensation offered. The applicant has recently revised the Tenant 
Relocation Plan, outlined in the section above, and addressed the majority of related 
concerns received . 

Overall, the proposal responds well to concerns heard throughout the engagement 
process, particularly with respect to massing impacts on neighbouring development, 
livability of units, provision of adequate rooftop amenities and facilitating transportation 
alternatives. 

NEXT STEPS 

The proposed bylaw will require an amendment to allow for the small increase in 
proportion of small car spaces permitted, as described in the 'Planning Analysis' section 
above. Under the Local Government Act, minor changes can be incorporated after the 
bylaw receives first and second readings, as long as there is no change to the use and 
density. Therefore, staff are bringing the amended bylaw (Attachment 1) forward for 
Council's consideration, with staff recommendation that Council rescind second reading 
of the version of bylaw as of October 18, 2021, and that Council give second reading to 
the current version of the bylaw. 

In addition, staff are bringing a Housing Agreement Bylaw forward for consideration, 
including provisions as directed by Council for a non-profit third party to be engaged to 
review the selection of initial prospective tenants for the mid-market rental units. 

Option 1: Public Hearing (Recommended) 
A Public Hearing is recommended, as there has been a relatively high level of public 
participation related to this application. And, while the Tenant Relocation Plan was 
revised to address most of the concerns, the changes were made quite recently and 
may not be well known or fully understood by the public and existing tenants. A Public 
Hearing would allow for thorough discussion of the revised Tenant Relocation Plan and 
more opportunity for Council to hear directly from the public. 

Option 2: No Public Hearing 
Staff could support moving forward without a Public Hearing because the proposal is 
OCP compliant and the applicant has done early community engagement in order to 
inform the proposal and they also have recently revised the Tenant Relocation Plan to 
be in compliance with the 2021 Residential Tenant Displacement Policy, addressing 
majority of concerns identified. 

Page 7 of 8 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd./ lntegra 
Architecture Inc.) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no financial cost implications for the City relating to the development project. 
The development would provide secured rental housing, at least 10% of which would be 
mid-market rental units. The approximate value of this Community Benefit Contribution 
is $1.86 Million. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff support the detailed design of this proposal, as it has demonstrated policy 
compliance and a good contextual fit. The earlier engagement and Council 
consideration of the pilot process have resulted in meaningful feedback that the 
applicant has incorporated into the detailed design of the proposal. The design 
outcome is mindful of impacts on neighbours and Victoria Park, while facilitating 
sustainable transportation patterns and providing 7 4 rental units with quality amenity 
spaces. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Planner 2 

Page 8 of 8 



IM-
Department
Manager

Director CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Emily Macdonald, Planner 2

Subject: REZONING APPLICATION: 115 EAST KEITH ROAD (VICTORIA PARK
(DENNA HOMES) GP LTD. / INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC., CD-741)

Date: October 6,2021 File No: 08-3400-20-0058/1

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated October 6, 2021, entitled 
“Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp 
Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., CD-741)”:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” 
(Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith 
Road, CD-741) be considered and referred to Public Hearing;

THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act,

THAT staff be directed to receive and review detailed drawings for the proposal;

THAT all conditions noted in the report section, Project Conditions, be addressed 
prior to the scheduling of a Public Hearing;

THAT the community benefits listed in the report section, Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits, be secured through agreements at the applicant’s 
expense and to the satisfaction of staff;

AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the 
necessary documentation to give effect to this motion.

Document Number: 2082820 V5

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 1�



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

ATTACHMENTS

1. Context Map (CityDocs 2096545)
2. Conceptual Drawings Dated August 31, 2021 (CityDocs 2094624)
3. Co-Creation Workshop Summary and Design Response (CityDocs 2077485)
4. PIS Summary (CityDocs 2094789)
5. Let’s Talk Survey on Development Application (CityDocs 2077448)
6. Tenant Relocation Plan (CityDocs 2094784)
7. Proposed Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877 

(CityDocs 2082819)

SUMMARY

This report presents, for Council’s consideration, a rezoning proposal for the property at 
115 East Keith Road. This proposal was selected as a pilot of a new Development 
Approvals Process, which was an action identified in the Balanced Housing Lab. The 
pilot approval process includes early community consultation and earlier Council 
consideration. An accompanying report provides background on the pilot process as 
well as an overview of the public engagement outcomes for this project.

Under this pilot approval process, the application is being processed in two stages: the 
first stage would review the project at the concept and present to Council (the subject of 
this report); the second stage will include more detailed application drawings for staff 
review (this would follow should Council direct staff to proceed). Staff recommend 
Council refer this application to a public hearing, and for the application to proceed to 
detailed design development for staff review.

SITE CONTEXT

This double-fronting site is located directly south of Victoria Park and fronts on East 
Keith Road and East 6th Street. The building directly to the west, at 616 Lonsdale 
Avenue, is a 5-storey strata building, and directly to the east, at 123 East Keith Road, is 
a 17-storey strata building. To the south, across East 6th Street are a mix of rental and 
strata buildings ranging from two to nine storeys in height.

Table 1. Site Context
Direction Address Description Zoning

North - Victoria Park (East) Public Use and Assembly 1 
(P-1)

East 123 East Keith
Rd. 17-storey strata building Comprehensive Development 

155 (CD-155)

West 616 Lonsdale
Ave. Five-storey strata building High Density Apartment 

Residential 1 (RH-1)

South

115 East 6th
Street

540 Lonsdale
Ave.

Four-storey rental 
residential building

Nine-storey strata 
residential building

Comprehensive Development 
316 (CD-316)

High Density Apartment 
Residential 1 (RH-1)

Page 2 of 9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

119 East 6th St.

123 East 6th St.

Two-storey strata 
residential building

Three-storey strata 
residential building

Comprehensive Development 
324 (CD-324)

Medium Density Apartment 
Residential 1 (RM-1)_______

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

A conceptual design is presented at this time (Attachment 2). In accordance with the 
Pilot Development Approvals Process, full reviews of the detailed application will be 
completed after Introduction.

The proposed development is six storeys from East Keith road and eight storeys from 
East 6th Street. There are seven full storeys of rental units on top of two levels of 
parking and storage. Elevators and stairs provide access to a common amenity area on 
the rooftop.

Proposed setbacks are 4.57 metres (15 feet) from both the front and rear property lines, 
3.05 metres (10 feet) from the east property line, and from the west property line, the 
setback is 3.2 metres (10.5 feet) at the north end of the building, increasing to 4.45 
metres (14.6 feet) at the south end. In comparison to the adjacent properties, the 
proposed development would be two storeys taller than the existing building to the west 
and eleven storeys shorter than the building to the east.

To allow the proposed massing, the proposed bylaw would vary the standard RH-1 
Zone FSR, setbacks, lot coverage, building width and length, and minimum tower 
separation requirements.

Table 2. Summary of Zoning Changes
Base Zone Requirements Proposal

Zoning RH-1 Zone CD-741 (RH-1 base)
Permitted Principal
Uses Various Residential Uses Rental Apartment Residential Use

Maximum Density 2.6 Floor Space Ratio (FSR) 3.3 Floor Space Ratio (FSR)

Lot Coverage Maximum 50 percent 65 percent

Maximum Building
Width and Length

Maximum 30.48 m (100 feet) 
above the third storey. (waived)

Setbacks
Front: 7.62 m / 25 ft.
Rear: 7.62 m / 25 ft. 

Interior Side: 7.62 m / 25 ft.

Front: 4.57 m /15 ft.
Rear: 4.57 m /15 ft.

West Interior Side: 3.2 m /10.5 ft. 
East Interior Side: 3.05 m /10 ft.

Minimum Tower 
Separation Above Four 
Storeys

24.38 m / 80 ft. (waived)

Off-Street Parking 48 46

Page 3 of 9



/

REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

The proposed Bylaw would limit the permitted principal uses to rental apartment 
residential and, in addition to the variances relating to massing, would allow for a 
parking variance of two vehicle parking spaces. The bylaw is expected to remain 
unchanged going forward, however, should changes be required, the bylaw would need 
to be amended at a Council meeting. This scenario is outlined further in the Next Steps 
section of this report.

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

The purpose of the pilot project has been to test a new approvals process that includes 
early public engagement and early Council consideration. With public engagement 
happening early in the process, input can be more meaningfully incorporated into the 
project design early on and prior to staff and advisory body reviews, which typically 
make up the longest portion of the rezoning process timeline. Further details on the 
public engagement completed for this project are provided in the accompanying 
information report and a brief summary is provided below.

The early public engagement under the pilot was more extensive than the typical 
process and was made up of four components: 1) a Co-Creation Workshop; 2) a Visual 
Preference Survey; 3) Developer Information Session; 4) online engagement. The Co- 
Creation Workshop was attended by residents across North Vancouver as well as 
representatives from the adjacent buildings and a tenant currently living at 115 East 
Keith Road. A number of topics were discussed, oriented around four themes:

• Building height, setbacks, and massing;
• Parking, traffic and site access;
• Amenities, public realm and landscaping;
• Other ideas, hopes and concerns.

The public engagement consultant prepared a summary of the workshop discussion, 
which is attached to the accompanying report. The applicant has used the summary as 
a framework for their design response (Attachment 3), which describes how the final 
conceptual design addresses the input received at the workshop.

The proposed design is referred to in the Pilot Development Approvals Process as the 
Project Brief. This includes the conceptual drawings and supplemental materials like a 
survey and the tenant relocation plan. After the Project Brief was submitted, a 
Developer’s Information Session (DIS) was held, hosted by the applicant, following 
standard CNV requirements for public engagement for rezoning applications. This 
session was open to the general public and was advertised via mail-out, newspaper ad, 
and signage posted on site.

A summary of the DIS is included with this report as Attachment 4. Attendees were 
encouraged to provide input regarding the proposal through the CNV Let’s Talk portal. 
The Let’s Talk project page was open to the public before the DIS and during the two 
weeks following; it provided information about the proposed project and included a 
survey.

Page 4 of 9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

A summary of the survey responses is included in this report as Attachment 5. In total, 
there were 33 completed surveys, with the following responses:

• 22 in support
• 7 opposed
• 3 mixed
• 1 don’t know

Key concerns heard at the DIS and in the comments provided in the Let’s Talk survey 
were primarily regarding relocation of the tenants in the existing building and the 
affordability and livability of the units in the proposed building. Other themes of 
discussion included sustainability and accessibility elements of the proposal, and unit 
size and mix were also discussed. The applicant’s proposed Tenant Relocation Plan is 
outlined in the section below. The topics of livability, sustainability and accessibility are 
guided by City policies including the Sustainable Development Guidelines, Adaptable 
Design requirements and Active Design Guidelines, which will all be considered during 
the full review stage.

TENANT RELOCATION PLAN

The existing building is a three storey rental apartment building with a total of 23 units, 
all currently occupied as of the date of this report. The 23 units consist of 1 two- 
bedroom unit, three studio units, and 19 one-bedroom units. Of all the tenancies, nine 
have been in the building less than five years, three are between five and ten years, and 
eleven have been in the building for ten years or more.

The application (Project Brief) was submitted in early June 2021 after completion of the 
Co-Creation Workshop. Because this precedes the latest amendment of the Residential 
Tenant Relocation Policy, the applicant is expected to meet the requirements set out in 
the 2015 version of the Policy, including finding comparable units for the existing 
tenants at rental rates that are within 10 percent of either their current rent, or 10 
percent of the CMHC average market rents, whichever is greater. Compensation 
equivalent to three months’ rent, and an unspecified amount of funds for moving costs 
are also expected, and tenants must be given first right of refusal for the mid-market 
units to be provided in the new development.

The applicant has prepared a Tenant Relocation Plan (Attachment 6) that satisfies the 
requirements of the 2015 Policy as well as some of the new requirements that have 
been added in the 2021 amendment. These include moving expenses of $1000 to 
$1500 depending on unit size, and compensation equivalent to four months’ rent 
instead of three.

PLANNING ANALYSIS

The proposal is consistent with the OCP with 3.3 FSR of proposed density and 
approximately seven storeys of height. The proposed height is well under the maximum 
that can be considered under the OCP, which allows up to 46 metres, or approximately 
15 storeys, for residential developments around Victoria Park. Some variances are

Page 5 of 9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

needed to enable redevelopment of the site, and to achieve the full density identified in 
the OCR. The main variances are to the required minimum setbacks and tower 
separation requirements. Minor variances to Lot Coverage and Parking are proposed as 
well.

An analysis of the proposed massing has been completed as part of a preliminary 
review of the proposal. Setback and tower separation distances as written in the current 
RH-1 Zone are generally designed to consider tall buildings similar to the 17-storey 
residential building at 123 East Keith Road rather than mid-rise buildings such as the 
one proposed in the conceptual drawings. The standard zoning requirement for 
setbacks is 7.62 metres (25 feet), with a tower separation distance of 24.38 metres (80 
feet). As a mid-rise building of six to eight storeys, impacts such as shadowing on 
adjacent buildings and public space - in this case, Victoria Park - are less concerning. 
The shadow study provided shows that the shadow impact on Victoria Park would be 
minimal. The proposed tower separation distance is approximately 59 feet from 123 
East Keith Road to the east, and 20 feet from 616 Lonsdale Avenue to the west. At 6 to 
8 storeys, a reduction in the standard 80-foot separation distance is considered 
reasonable. 59 feet should provide adequate distance to ensure shadow and view 
impacts on 123 East Keith Road will not be significantly impacted. Due to a relatively 
minimal separation distance from 616 Lonsdale Avenue, there is a greater risk of view 
and shadow impacts to occur for that building. Responding to this concern, the 
proposed massing incorporates an increasing setback along the west side of the 
building, with a distance of 24 feet at the south end. This increasing setback helps by 
allowing solar access and mitigating view impacts for 616 Lonsdale Avenue.

The preliminary review also considered how the conceptual design responds to input 
provided at the co-creation workshop. A summary of the input as well as the applicant’s 
response is provided as Attachment 3. This document was prepared and submitted by 
the applicant based on the Co-Creation Workshop Summary prepared by the 
engagement consultant, which is not included with this report but is included as an 
attachment to the accompanying report on the Pilot Development Approvals Process.

The concept design responds well to concerns that were heard at the Co-Creation 
Workshop regarding the relationship to the adjacent buildings, particularly the building 
directly to the west. Though the proposed side setbacks are relatively narrow, the 
massing of the building is set back a greater distance toward the south end, allowing for 
greater solar access for the building to the west. This approach serves to orient the 
building massing on the west side along a north-south axis, helping to preserve solar 
access as well as views from the adjacent building and from Victoria Park.

Though details are not shown, the proposed design allows for various rooftop amenities 
to be considered and potentially accommodated; provision of adequate rooftop 
amenities was an important discussion item among the Co-Creation Workshop 
participants. An interior amenity spaces is also proposed. A number of suggestions 
were made regarding transportation alternatives. With a requested variance of two 
parking spaces, the applicant will be required to provide a transportation study that will 
consider alternative transportation options such as car share and e-bike share program 
for tenants. Sustainable design was another comment made by several attendees. The

Page 6 of 9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. I Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

proposal would meet Step 3 of the Step Code, as required by the Construction 
Regulation Bylaw.

Further assessment of the items mentioned above will be completed once detailed 
drawings are submitted for review. Further to these items, the Project Conditions listed 
below will also be reviewed.

PROJECT CONDITIONS

Comments were provided by various departments prior to submission of the Project 
Brief. No major concerns were identified at the preliminary stage that would significantly 
impact the feasibility of the redevelopment of the site. Full reviews to be completed 
would identify items to be addressed by the applicant through the rezoning process.

Prior to the project being brought back to Council for Public Flearing and Third Reading 
of the Bylaw, the following conditions must be met:

• The applicant provides drawings and other information required for staff to 
conduct full reviews of the proposed development;

• A thorough Planning review is completed and all concerns are addressed by the 
applicant, including, but not limited to: urban design, transportation issues, 
livability, sustainability, any topics relating to City policies as well as any other 
practices or design elements deemed relevant to the proposal;

• All other relevant departments review the detailed drawings of the proposal and 
are satisfied that applicable codes and bylaws can be met;

• The applicant commits to any off-site works that are deemed, through staff 
reviews, to be required by bylaw or other parameters to accommodate the 
proposed development;

• The detailed proposal is presented to the Advisory Design Panel and other 
advisory bodies as needed for their review and recommendation;

• The applicant continues to follow their Tenant Relocation Plan and provides an 
update on the progress;

• The applicant completes a Transportation Study and incorporates transportation 
demand management (TDM) features into the proposed project to support 
sustainable transportation and offset the parking variance. TDM measures may 
include subsidized transit passes and/or credits toward car share use;

• The applicant provides a tree study from a qualified arborist including a survey 
and health assessment of all private and public trees and recommendations for 
retention or removal;

Page 7 of 9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

• The applicant provides summaries indicating compliance with CNV policies, 
including the Sustainable Development Guidelines, Active Design Guidelines, 
and the Housing Action Plan;

• The applicant agrees to a Housing Agreement that secures the rental housing 
and a minimum of 10 percent mid-market units, in perpetuity, in accordance with 
the Housing Action Plan.

DENSITY BONUS AND COMMUNITY BENEFITS

The City’s Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy, in conjunction with the 
Official Community Plan, allows for density bonuses in the Residential Level 6 
designation, up to a maximum of 3.3 FSR.

A bonus beyond the maximum FSR currently permitted in the RH-1 Zone (2.6 FSR) is 
proposed. The total proposed bonus is 0.7 FSR, or 9797.9 square feet, which is to be 
achieved through the provision of secured rental and mid-market units. As the existing 
building on site is a rental apartment building, policies do not support a benefit other 
than new rental housing. The value of the bonus density can be roughly calculated by 
using the standard cash contribution amount for areas within the Lonsdale City Centre, 
$190 per square foot of bonus floor area.

Table 3. Estimated Value of Community Benefits through Density Bonusing
Density Value Calculation Value
Density Bonus to 3.3 FSR (@ $190 / sq. ft.) $1,861,601
Total Value of Community Benefits $1,861,601

Works beyond standard bylaw requirements may be warranted, to accommodate the 
new development. The specific works would be determined through a full review of the 
application and would be secured through legal agreements. In accordance with the 
Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy, these works would not be considered as 
community benefits, but as essential works to support the development.

NEXT STEPS

Should Council support this project moving forward, staff would direct the applicant to 
submit full drawings and materials required for the proposal to be fully reviewed. The 
project would also be presented to relevant advisory bodies (e.g. Advisory Design 
Panel). Public Engagement stages for this project have been completed and no formal 
events would be scheduled going forward. As is general practice, inquiries regarding the 
project would be addressed by staff and the applicant on an ongoing basis. During the 
review stage, the applicant would continue to follow their Tenant Relocation Strategy.

Once full reviews have been completed, staff would advise City Clerks to schedule a 
Public Hearing and prepare notifications. The process from this point would be the 
same as standard practice. After Third Reading, legal agreements would be drafted and 
signed by the applicant, and Fourth Reading would be scheduled once that process is 
complete.

Page 8 of 9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

Should there be a need to revise the proposed bylaw after full reviews are complete, 
staff would prepare a brief report to Council before the Public Hearing is scheduled so 
the bylaw can be amended. After the bylaw is amended by Council, the Public Hearing 
would then be scheduled and notifications completed.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial cost implications for the City relating to the development project. 
The development would provide secured rental housing, at least 10 percent of which 
would be mid-market units. The approximate value of this Community Benefit 
Contribution is $1.86 Million.

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

Should Council direct staff to receive detailed drawings for review, the process moving 
forward will follow standard practices, including reviews by Planning, Building, Fire, 
Engineering, Environment and Transportation staff.

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The Pilot Development Approvals Process aims to gather learnings and 
recommendations on how the standard rezoning process could be improved, 
particularly as it relates to public influence to shape projects at early stages. This goal is 
in keeping with the City’s Strategic Plan as public participation and delivering better 
buildings within an efficient timeline are important City objectives. These learnings and 
recommendations will be presented to Council separately when they are available. At 
this time, direction is being sought regarding the development project itself, which is in 
keeping with the OCP.

CONCLUSION

Presented in this report is an early conceptual proposal for a rezoning application on 
this site. It is the result of early engagement with the community and will be further 
developed and subject to full staff review if Council were to refer the application to a 
public hearing. Staff support the proposal as shown as it has generally demonstrated 
policy compliance and a good contextual fit. Staff recommend this application be 
referred to a public hearing - this would allow the applicant to fully develop their plans 
and fulfill all conditions as a result of a more thorough staff review.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Emily Macdonald 
Planner 2

Page 9 of 9



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

 

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 2�



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

400.5 2,002.5 186.0
3.8 1 .2 5.5



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



L1.0

Drawing Title:

21-029

MP

TH

Landscape Plan
Ground Level / Level 1

KKeith Road
Project Title:

COPYRIGHT RESERVED
This  drawing  is  and  shall  remain  the  property  of  R. 
Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.,   and   R.   Kim   Perry   & 
Associates  Inc.  shall  retain  the  copyright  therein.  This 
document   shall   not   be   reproduced   or   used   for 
additions   or   alterations   to   the   project   or   for   the 
purpose   of   any   other   project   without   the   prior 
written   consent   of   R.   Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.

Date

Client:

3/32" = 1'-0"

Sheet No.:

Scale:

Project North: Drawn By:

Checked By:

Job No.:

Revision No.

  

2021/06/041
Issued for Project Brief 
Application

2021/11/082 Issued for ADP

2021/11/193
Issued for Rezoning /
Development Permit

2022/03/254 Re-Issued for Rezoning

U

W
LW

L

WL

WL
WL

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE
PARKADE BELOW

PMT

EAST 6TH STREET

EAST KEITH ROAD

3

3

3

1

7

9

8

8

6

6

6

INTAKE

EXHAUST U

WWW
LLWWW

L

WWWWWWWWWWLLLLLL

WL
WL

PPROOOPPEERRTTYY LIINNNE
PARRKKKKKKKKKAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAADDDDDDDDDDEEEEEEEEE BBBBBBEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEELLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLOOOOOOOOOOOOOW

EAST KEITH ROAD

EEEEEXXXXXXXXXXXHHHHHAAAAAAAAAAAUUUUUSSSSSSSTTTT
U

W
LW

L

WL

WL
WL

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE
PARKADE BELOW

PMT

EAST 6TH STREET

EAST KEITH ROAD

10 2

1

1

5

7 6

INTAKE

EXHAUST

PR
O

PE
R

TY
LI

N
E

PPMMMTT

EAST 6TH STREET

INNNNNNNTTTTTTAAAAAAKKKKKKKKEEE

LEVEL 1 LANDSCAPE PLAN
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

115 East Keith Road
NORTH VANCOUVER, BCClass B Bike Rack

Gravel Strip at 
Building Edge

Hydrapressed Slab
Paving

Concrete Unit Paving

Potting Bench

Harvest Table

CIP Concrete Paving
(Pedestrian)

Artificial Turf

Outdoor Lounge 
Seating

Bench

Urban Agriculture
Raised Planters

Modular Planter Pot

Concrete Wall

Trellis (by others)

BBQ

Concrete Stairs
with Tactile Warning

Metal Guard Rail

Privacy Screen

KEY LEGEND:

1

2

5

6

7

8

9

3

4

14

15

16

17

18

13

12

11

10

SHRUB PLANTING

HEDGE PLANTING

LAWN

CIP CONCRETE
PAVING

CONCRETE UNIT 
PAVING

TACTILE 
WARNING

HYDRAPRESSED 
SLAB PAVING

MATERIALS LEGEND:

LINE TYPE LEGEND:

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE
LINE OF PARKADE (BELOW)

GUARD

HANDRAILS

CONCRETE WALL

DECORATIVE BOLLARD LIGHT

U

WL

UP LIGHT, FROSTED LENS 
WITH TIMER

STEP LIGHT / WALL LIGHT, 
SHIELDED  MAX 
ILLUMINATION 5'-0

LIGHTING LEGEND:

DOWN LIGHT, TBCDL

GROUND LEVEL LANDSCAPE PLAN
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"



ARTIFICIAL TURF 
/ FLEX SPACE

LOUNGE
SEATING

RAISED PLANTER RAISED PLANTER

LINE OF ROOF BELOW

LINE OF ROOF BELOW

Non climbable
planters

Non climbable
planters

RAISED PLANTER

RAISED PLANTER

HARVEST
TABLE

WL

W
L

W
L

DL

DL

DL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE
PARKADE BELOW

ROOF
DECK

ELEV.

ELEV.
BBQ

PMT

EAST 6TH STREET

EAST KEITH ROAD

3

411

13

16

1514

17

12

18

INTAKE

EXHAUST

L1.1

Drawing Title:

21-029

MP

TH

Landscape Plan
Roof Level

KKeith Road
Project Title:

COPYRIGHT RESERVED
This  drawing  is  and  shall  remain  the  property  of  R. 
Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.,   and   R.   Kim   Perry   & 
Associates  Inc.  shall  retain  the  copyright  therein.  This 
document   shall   not   be   reproduced   or   used   for 
additions   or   alterations   to   the   project   or   for   the 
purpose   of   any   other   project   without   the   prior 
written   consent   of   R.   Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.

Date

Client:

3/32" = 1'-0"

Sheet No.:

Scale:

Project North: Drawn By:

Checked By:

Job No.:

Revision No.

  

2021/06/041
Issued for Project Brief 
Application

2021/11/082 Issued for ADP

2021/11/193
Issued for Rezoning /
Development Permit

2022/03/254 Re-Issued for Rezoning

ROOF LEVEL LANDSCAPE PLAN
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

115 East Keith Road
NORTH VANCOUVER, BCClass B Bike Rack

Gravel Strip at 
Building Edge

Hydrapressed Slab
Paving

Concrete Unit Paving

Potting Bench

Harvest Table

CIP Concrete Paving
(Pedestrian)

Artificial Turf

Outdoor Lounge 
Seating

Bench

Urban Agriculture
Raised Planters

Modular Planter Pot

Concrete Wall

Trellis (by others)

BBQ

Concrete Stairs
with Tactile Warning

Metal Guard Rail

Privacy Screen

KEY LEGEND:

1

2

5

6

7

8

9

3

4

14

15

16

17

18

13

12

11

10

SHRUB PLANTING

HEDGE PLANTING

LAWN

CIP CONCRETE
PAVING

CONCRETE UNIT 
PAVING

TACTILE 
WARNING

HYDRAPRESSED 
SLAB PAVING

MATERIALS LEGEND:

LINE TYPE LEGEND:

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE
LINE OF PARKADE (BELOW)

GUARD

HANDRAILS

CONCRETE WALL

DECORATIVE BOLLARD LIGHT

U

WL

UP LIGHT, FROSTED LENS 
WITH TIMER

STEP LIGHT / WALL LIGHT, 
SHIELDED  MAX 
ILLUMINATION 5'-0

LIGHTING LEGEND:

DOWN LIGHT, TBCDL



L1.2

Drawing Title:

21-029

MP

TH

Tree Management Plan

KKeith Road
Project Title:

COPYRIGHT RESERVED
This  drawing  is  and  shall  remain  the  property  of  R. 
Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.,   and   R.   Kim   Perry   & 
Associates  Inc.  shall  retain  the  copyright  therein.  This 
document   shall   not   be   reproduced   or   used   for 
additions   or   alterations   to   the   project   or   for   the 
purpose   of   any   other   project   without   the   prior 
written   consent   of   R.   Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.

Date

Client:

3/32" = 1'-0"

Sheet No.:

Scale:

Project North: Drawn By:

Checked By:

Job No.:

Revision No.

  

2021/06/041
Issued for Project Brief 
Application

2021/11/082 Issued for ADP

2021/11/193
Issued for Rezoning /
Development Permit

2022/03/254 Re-Issued for Rezoning

℄

℄

T9

T1
2

T1
3

T1 T2

T3

T4

T7
T1

0

T1
1

T8
T6

T5

T1
4

PRUNE BACK HEDGE ENCROACHMENT
AS APPROPRIATE ACCORDING TO

I.S.A. PRUNING BEST PRACTICES

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 H

ED
G

E 
TO

 R
ET

A
IN

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 H

ED
G

E 
TO

 R
ET

A
IN

Cedar Hedge
To Retain

1.22 1.22

1.
22

1.
22

1.
22

1.
22

1.22 1.22

1.
22

1.
22

1.22 1.22

3.66 3.66

0.3

0.
3

2.13

2.44

2.
44

1.
83

1.83 1.83

TREES T1-T3 TO BE RETAINED AND 
RELOCATED TO SUIT CNV
 STANDARD BOULEVARD UPGRADES 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE
PARKADE BELOW

PMT

EAST 6TH STREET

EAST KEITH ROAD

INTAKE

EXHAUST

115 East Keith Road
NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

To Be
Removed

To Be
RetainedLEGEND:

Tree Protection Fencing

NOTES:

1. These drawings are to be read in 
conjunction with Arborist Report and Plans, 
Architectural Plans and Civil Plans.

2. Now work is to be performed within the 
Root Protection Zones without the project 
Arborist present to supervise. Arborist 
contact:
Reuben Trapp
Trapp Arborist Services
Phone: (604) 700-9030

3. Tree protection fencing as Tree protection 
gencing as per City of North Vancouver 
standards.



L2.0

Drawing Title:

21-029

MP

TH

Grading Plan
Ground Level / Level 1

KKeith Road
Project Title:

COPYRIGHT RESERVED
This  drawing  is  and  shall  remain  the  property  of  R. 
Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.,   and   R.   Kim   Perry   & 
Associates  Inc.  shall  retain  the  copyright  therein.  This 
document   shall   not   be   reproduced   or   used   for 
additions   or   alterations   to   the   project   or   for   the 
purpose   of   any   other   project   without   the   prior 
written   consent   of   R.   Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.

Date

Client:

3/32" = 1'-0"

Sheet No.:

Scale:

Project North: Drawn By:

Checked By:

Job No.:

Revision No.

  

2021/06/041
Issued for Project Brief 
Application

2021/11/082 Issued for ADP

2021/11/193
Issued for Rezoning /
Development Permit

2022/03/254 Re-Issued for Rezoning

CIV 214.96'

FG 235.08'

TW 230.00'

TW 223.00'

TW 223.00'

TW 225.00'

FG 225.00'

TW 223.50'

EX 225.00'

EX 225.50'

EX 233.70'

EX 233.80'

EX 233.80'

EX 233.80'

FG 225.00'

TW 233.00'

FG 219.00'

FG 218.00'

BW 217.50'

FG 215.40'

TW 223.50'
TW 222.00'

FG 217.00'

TW 230.00'

TW 220.00'

TW 230.00'

TW 235.50'

BW 233.50'

TW 235.00'

TW 230.00'

TW 233.00'

TW 220.00'
TW 218.50'

TW 235.08'

TW 225.00'

FG 235.58'

FG 225.00'
TW 227.00'

TW 225.00'

CIV 214.76'

TW 233.50'
TW 233.00'

TW 227.00'

TW 230.00'

TW 225.00'

CIV 215.32' CIV 216.66'

CIV 233.46'CIV 232.90'

CIV 231.46'

FG 233.53'

FG 225.00' FG 225.00'

FG 225.00'

FG 235.08'

TS 224.75'

FG 220.08'

TW 225.00'

TW 222.00'

TW 219.00'

TW 222.00'

FG 225.00'

FG 225.00'

FG 225.00'

TW 225.00'

TW 225.00'

TW 219.00'

BS 215.42'

U

W
LW

L

WL

WL
WL

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE
PARKADE BELOW

PMT

EAST 6TH STREET

EAST KEITH ROAD

INTAKE

EXHAUST

FFFFFFGG 22333555.0088''

TW
230.0000'

EX 233.80'

EX 233.80'

TTTTTWWWWTTT
233.00'

TTTTWWWWW
2235.50'

BW
233.50'

TW
235.00'

TTTTTWW
230.00'

TTTTTTTWWWWWWWW
233.00'

TTWWW
2235555555.08'

FFFFFFFFGGGGG 22333555.58'

TTTWWWTTTT
233.50'

TTTTTWWWWWWWWWWWW
233.00'

CIV
233.46'CIV 2332.90'

CIV 231.46'

FGGGG 2333.553'

FGG 223355.008'

50
3

U

WWW
LLWWW

L

WWWWWWLLLL

WWWLLL
WL

PPPROOOPPEERRTTYY LIINNNE
PARKKKKAAAAAAAADDDDEEE BBBEEEEELLLLLLLOOOOOW

EAST KEITH ROAD

EEEEEXXXXXXXXXXXXHHHHHAAAAAAAAAAAUUUUUSSSSSSSTTTT

CIV 214.96'

FG 235.08'

TW 230.00'

TW 223.00'

TW 223.00'

TW 225.00'

FG 225.00'

TW 223.50'

EX 225.00'

EX 225.50'

EX 233.70'

EX 233.80'

EX 233.80'

EX 233.80'

FG 225.00'

TW 233.00'

FG 219.00'

FG 218.00'

BW 217.50'

FG 215.40'

TW 223.50'
TW 222.00'

FG 217.00'

TW 230.00'

TW 220.00'

TW 230.00'

TW 235.50'

BW 233.50'

TW 235.00'

TW 230.00'

TW 233.00'

TW 220.00'
TW 218.50'

TW 235.08'

TW 225.00'

FG 235.58'

FG 225.00'
TW 227.00'

TW 225.00'

CIV 214.76'

TW 233.50'
TW 233.00'

TW 227.00'

TW 230.00'

TW 225.00'

CIV 215.32' CIV 216.66'

CIV 233.46'CIV 232.90'

CIV 231.46'

FG 233.53'

FG 225.00' FG 225.00'

FG 225.00'

FG 235.08'

TS 224.75'

FG 220.08'

TW 225.00'

TW 222.00'

TW 219.00'

TW 222.00'

FG 225.00'

FG 225.00'

FG 225.00'

TW 225.00'

TW 225.00'

TW 219.00'

BS 215.42'

U

W
LW

L

WL

WL
WL

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE
PARKADE BELOW

PMT

EAST 6TH STREET

EAST KEITH ROAD

INTAKE

EXHAUST

CIV
214.9966

TWTT
223.0000'

TWTT
223.0000'

WWW
225.00'

FFFFFGGGGGG 22222222255.000000000000''''

TTW
223.50'

EEEEEEEEXXXXXXXXX 225.00'

EX 225.50'

EEEEEEX 233.70'

EX 233.80'

FFG 22225555..000'

FG 219.00'

FG 218.00'

BBBBBWWWWWWWW
2222221111177777....5555000000''

FFGG 21555..400'

TTTTWWW
222222333.5500'

TTTTTTWWWWWWWW
2222222222222222222....00000000000''

FG 217.00'

TTTTWWWWWW
230.00''

TW
220.0000'

TTTTTWWWW
2330.000'

0'
TTTWWW

2211888.5500''

TTWW
22222222222222222225555.00000'

FFG 22222555.00'
TWTT

227.0000'

TWWWW
2225.00''

CIV
214.76'

TTTTTTTTWWWWWWWWWWTTTTT
22222222222227777..00000000'

TTTTWWWWWTTTTT
230.00''

TTTWWWWW
225.00''

CIV
215.3322''' CIV 216.66'

FFG 2255.000000000000000000000000' FFFFFFFFFFFGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG 222222225.000'

FFFGGG 222225.0000'

TSSSS 22222222244.7777777775555'

FGG 222222200.0888'

TTTTTTWWWWW
225.00'

WWW
222.00'

TTTTWWWTTT
2119.00'

TTTTTWWWWWW
2222222.0000'

FFG 225555...0000000'

FG 222222255.000'

FG 222222255.0000'

TW
225.00'

TW
225.00'

TTTTWWWWWWWWWWW
222222211111199.0000''

BBBSSS 215.422'

TW
220.00

TTT

TWWWTWTTTTWWWWTTTT

TTTWWWTTTW

TTTWWTT
222

WWWWTTWWWTTTT

66''

PR
O

PE
R

TY
LI

N
E

PPMMMTT

EAST 6TH STREET

INNNNNNNTTTTTTAAAAAAKKKKKKKKEEE

GROUND LEVEL LANDSCAPE PLAN
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

LEVEL 1 LANDSCAPE PLAN
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

115 East Keith Road
NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

LINE TYPE LEGEND:

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE
LINE OF PARKADE (BELOW)

GUARD

HANDRAILS

CONCRETE WALL

5.0%

TW 45.15m

TC 45.15m

BS 45.15m

TS 45.15m

CIV 45.15m

EX 45.15m

BW 45.15m

GRADING LEGEND:

GRADING NOTES:

EX 45.15m



L3.0

Drawing Title:

21-029

MP

TH

Planting Plan
Ground Level / Level 1

KKeith Road
Project Title:

COPYRIGHT RESERVED
This  drawing  is  and  shall  remain  the  property  of  R. 
Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.,   and   R.   Kim   Perry   & 
Associates  Inc.  shall  retain  the  copyright  therein.  This 
document   shall   not   be   reproduced   or   used   for 
additions   or   alterations   to   the   project   or   for   the 
purpose   of   any   other   project   without   the   prior 
written   consent   of   R.   Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.

Date

Client:

3/32" = 1'-0"

Sheet No.:

Scale:

Project North: Drawn By:

Checked By:

Job No.:

Revision No.

  

2021/06/041
Issued for Project Brief 
Application

2021/11/082 Issued for ADP

2021/11/193
Issued for Rezoning /
Development Permit

2022/03/254 Re-Issued for Rezoning

ToS

ToS

ToS

ToS

ToS

ToS

ToS

EdaEda

EdaEda

TmHTmHTmHTmHTmH TmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmH

TmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmHPm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

MnMnMnMn

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

MnMnMnMn

TmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmH

MnMnMnMnMnMnTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmH

TmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh

Cs Cs Cs Cs Cs CsCsCsCsCsRsK RsK RsK

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh
Sh
Sh
Sh
Sh

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Ma

Ma

Ma

Ma

Ma

Ma

RsK RsK

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

GsGsGsGsGsGs
GsGsGsGsGs

GsGsGsGsGsGs
GsGsGsGsGs

Cs Cs Cs Cs Cs Cs Cs Cs Cs CsEdaEdaEdaEdaEda

MnMnMnMnMn

MnMnMnMn

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH
Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh

SjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWHnWHnWHnW

HnWHnWHnW

GsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGs
PmPmPmPmPmPmPmPmPmPmPm
VoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoS

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Cs

Cs

Cs

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH
TmHTmHTmHTmH

PmPm
MnMnMn

MnMnMn
MnMnMn

VhVhVhVhVhVhVhVhVhVhVhVh

CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE

Sb Sb Sb Sb Sb VhVhVhVhVhVh

PmPmPmPm

MnMnMnMnMnMn

GsGsGsGsGs

SoI

SoI

SoI

SoI

SoIMnMnMnMn

Mn

Mn

Mn

LaMLaMLaMLaMLaMLaMLaMLaMLaM

LaM LaM LaM LaM LaM LaM LaM LaM LaM LaMSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjW

Pm Pm

Pm Pm

Pm Pm
Pm Pm

Pm Pm

Pm Pm

Acc

Acc

Acc

Acc

Acc

St1

St2

Ac

St1

St1 St1 St1

Ac

AcAc

Acc
Ac

St2 St2

AcpB

AcpB

AcpB

MsR MsR
U

W
LW

L

WL

WL
WL

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE
PARKADE BELOW

PMT

EAST 6TH STREET

EAST KEITH ROAD

INTAKE

EXHAUST

MnnMnnnnMMnn

TTmH

TTmH
mHTTmHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH m

Sb

Cs

Cs

MMnMnM

MnMnMn
MMnMMnMMn

TTmHTTHH mHTTHH m TmHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTTTHH mmHHTTTTHHHH mHTTTTHH mmHHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTH m TTmHTTHH mHTTHH mHH

TTmH

TTmH

TTmH

TTmH

MnnMnnMnnMnnMMnn

MnMnnMnnMnn

TmH

TmH

mH

SSShhh SSShhh SShh SShh SShh SShh SShh SShh SShh SShh SShh

SSjWWSjWWSSSSWSjWWSSSSSWSjWWSSSSSWSjWWSSSSSWSjWWSSSSSWSjWWSSSSSWSSjjWWSSSSSWHnWWWHnWWWHnWWW

HnWWWHnWWWHHnnWWWW

GGsGGG GsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGG GGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGGsGG GGsGGGsGGGGsGGGs
PmPPmPmPmPmPm
VVVoSSSVoVVVVoSSVoSSVoSSSSSVVVVoSSVVVoVVoSS

Sb

Sb

TmH

TmH

mH

TmHH

TmHH

H
TT

VVVVhhhhVVVVhhhhVVVhhhhVVVVhhhhVVVhhhhVVVVhhhhVVVhhhhVVVVhhVVhhhhVVVVhhhhVVVVVhhhhhVVVVVVhhhh

C CoE CCoE CCoE CCoE CCoE CCoE CCoE

Sb Sb Sb Sb Sb VVVVhhhhhhVVVVhhhhVVVhhhhVVVVhhhhVVVhhhhhhhVVVVVVhhhhVhhhh

GGGGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGGs

SoII

SoII

I

MMnn

MMnn

TmHTTHH mHTTH m

MMnMnnMnnMn

mHH

Mn

HTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH m

Tm

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

SjWWWWSSSSW

SoII

SoII

SoIIMnMMnMMnMMnnSS

MMnnSS

S

Sb

Sb

Cs

C

TmHH
TTmHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHH

PmPPm
MnMn

So

GsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGsGGGs

oE CCoE CCoE CCoE CCoE CCoE CCoE CCoE CCoE CCoE CC

PmPmPmPm

MnMnMnMnMnnMn

TTmHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH

GsGGsGGGsGGs
PmPmPm

VVVVoSSVoSSSSSVVVVoSSVVoSSoSSSSS

TTmHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH m

sGGsGGGGsGGs

PPmPmm
VoSSSSSVVVoSSSVVVVoSSVoSSSSSoSS

T

T

T
P

MMn

GsG

Pm Pm

Pm Pmm

AAAAAPmmcccccccPP

SSSSSSSStttttt11 SSSSSttttt111 SSSSSSStttt1

SSSSSSSSSSStttttt22222 SSSSSSSSSStttttt22222

APPmmcmmpppPpBPPmm

AAAAccMMccppnnpMMp
MMMMn

BBMMnnB

MPPmmsmmRRRmm MMPPMsPPmmRmm
UUUMMMM

WW
LLWW

L

WWLL

WL
WL

PPROOOPPEERRTTYY LIINNNE
PPGGPPP AAssAGGGGAARRGGssRGGGRPPKKGGssKKKAAGGsAPPAAAA

GGGAADDDGGGGDPP EEssEGGGGEE BBssBGGGGBPP EEssEEEEssEELLGGsLPPLLPPLOOssOGGGGOP WWssWGGGssWPPW

EAST KEITH ROAD

EEEXXXXXXXXXXHHHHHAAAAAAAAAAAUUUUUUSSSSSSSSTTTTTmTTTTTTT

PLANTING NOTES:

1) Contractor is responsible to obtain and be familiar with the relevant project 
specifications.

2) All planting and landscape installation to meet or exceed the CSLA landscape 
standards.

3) As a minimal acceptable standard: 
a) Sizes on the plant list shall be considered minimum sizes
b) Root balls to be free of pernicious weeds

4) Contractor to ensure all plant material delivered to site is from nurseries certified to 
be free from the phytophthora ramorum virus (sudden oak death) removal and 
replacement of plant material found to contain the virus to be at the contractor’s 
expense.

5) All plant material shall be approved at the nursery by the project landscape 
architect.

6) The contractor shall supply all plant materials shown on all drawings.

7) No container grown stock will be accepted if it is root bound. All root wrapping 
material made of synthetics or plastics shall be removed at time of planting.

8) Container grown stock, shall have the container removed and the rootball be 
cleanly scored in two vertical locations.

9) Contractor to submit a representative sample of the proposed topsoil for testing to 
Pacific Soil Analysis. Contractor is responsible for arranging and payment of soil 
analysis and amendments to growing medium as determined. Contractor shall 
instruct soil testing lab to submit results directly to the consultant for approval prior to 
commencement of work. Generic Analysis is not acceptable.

10) Soil depths to be as follows: 
a) Lawn 150mm on grade 300mm on slab
b) Ground cover/perennial 350mm
c) Shrub beds 450mm
d) Trees planting hole to be 1500mm x 1500mm x 900mm deep backfilled 
with approved soil available from Richmond biocycle
e) New top soil should be incorporated by mixing into top 300mm of 
native soil 

11) Contractor to provide landscape architect a copy of all packing slips received from 
nursery listing names and quantities of all plant stock supplied to site prior to planting

12) The contractor shall locate and verify the existence of all utilities prior to starting 
work.

13) All planting beds to have min 75 mm depth of 25mm minus screened composted 
bark mulch  (not on groundcover areas).

14) All plants shall be watered thoroughly twice during the first 24-hour period after 
planting. All plants shall then be watered as necessary.

15) The landscape contractor shall refer to the contract specifications for additional 
requirements.

16) Plant Search area to include BC, WA , OR & CA. 

GENERAL NOTES:

1.) All landscape is to be irrigated. Including offsite landscape. 

ToS

ToS

ToS

ToS

ToS

ToS

ToS

EdaEda

EdaEda

TmHTmHTmHTmHTmH TmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmH

TmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmHPm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

MnMnMnMn

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

CoE

MnMnMnMn

TmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmH

MnMnMnMnMnMnTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmH

TmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmHTmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh

Cs Cs Cs Cs Cs CsCsCsCsCsRsK RsK RsK

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh
Sh
Sh
Sh
Sh

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Ma

Ma

Ma

Ma

Ma

Ma

RsK RsK

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

GsGsGsGsGsGs
GsGsGsGsGs

GsGsGsGsGsGs
GsGsGsGsGs

Cs Cs Cs Cs Cs Cs Cs Cs Cs CsEdaEdaEdaEdaEda

MnMnMnMnMn

MnMnMnMn

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH
Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh

SjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWHnWHnWHnW

HnWHnWHnW

GsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGsGs
PmPmPmPmPmPmPmPmPmPmPm
VoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoSVoS

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Cs

Cs

Cs

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH
TmHTmHTmHTmH

PmPm
MnMnMn

MnMnMn
MnMnMn

VhVhVhVhVhVhVhVhVhVhVhVh

CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE CoE

Sb Sb Sb Sb Sb VhVhVhVhVhVh

PmPmPmPm

MnMnMnMnMnMn

GsGsGsGsGs

SoI

SoI

SoI

SoI

SoIMnMnMnMn

Mn

Mn

Mn

LaMLaMLaMLaMLaMLaMLaMLaMLaM

LaM LaM LaM LaM LaM LaM LaM LaM LaM LaMSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjW

Pm Pm

Pm Pm

Pm Pm
Pm Pm

Pm Pm

Pm Pm

Acc

Acc

Acc

Acc

Acc

St1

St2

Ac

St1

St1 St1 St1

Ac

AcAc

Acc
Ac

St2 St2

AcpB

AcpB

AcpB

MsR MsR
U

W
LW

L

WL

WL
WL

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE
PARKADE BELOW

PMT

EAST 6TH STREET

EAST KEITH ROAD

INTAKE

EXHAUST

TTo

TTo

TToS

TToS

TToS

TToS

EEdaEda

EEdaEda

TTmHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mH TTmHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH m

HTTH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

H

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

H

H

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

H

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

PP

PPm

PPm

PPm

PPm

PPm

PPm

PPm

MM

CCoEE

CCoEEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEEE

CCoEE
TT

CCoEETT

CCoEETT
CCoEEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEE

CCoEEE

MMM

SSShhh SSShhh SSShhh SSShhh SSShhh

Cs Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

SShhh SSShhh SSShhh SSShhh SSShhh SSShh SSShh SSSShhh SSSShhh SSSShhh SSSShh

Sb
M

P

Pm

P

VoS

VoS

GGsGGsG GsGGsGGG

s Cs Cs
LaMLaMLaMLaMLaMLaMLaMLaMLaM

LLaM LLaM LLaM LLaM LLaM LLaM LLaM LLaM LLaM LLaMSSSjWWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSj WWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSjWW

Pm Pm
Pm Pm

CCsRsK RsK RsK

h Sh Sh Sh Sh S

Cs CCs Cs CsEEddaEdaEddaEdaEdda

WWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSjWWWSSWWWWSjW

mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mH

TmH

TmH

TmH

CssCsCss

hhh SSSShhh SSSShhh SSSSShhh SSSShh Shh
SSShhh
SSShhh
SSShhh
SShh

Cs Cs

TmHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTHH

Cs Cs Cs Cs

SSShhh SSShhh SSShh SSShhh SSShhh SSShhh SSShhh SSS

Cs Cs Cs

hhTmH SSSh
sGs

hhh
s

Cs

Cs

Cs
Sb

Sb

Ma

Ma

GGsGGGGsGGGsGGGG
GGsGGGsGGGGsGGGsGGGGs

GGsGGGsGGsGGGsGGGsGGGG
GGsGGsGGGsGGssGGGGGs

GG
TmHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH m

oSS

oS

oSGs oG
m

oG
HTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mHTTHH mH

sK RsK

Tm

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

m

Pm

Pm

VoS

VoS

VoS

s
GGs o

R
ooTTo

TTT

TTG
o

G
s R

H

TmH

TmH

TmH

PPm

Pm

VoS

VoS
Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs

Cs
Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Sb

Ma

Ma

Ma

Ma

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

T

TmH

Pm

Pm

P

VoS

VoS

V S

VoS

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

T

TmH

Pm

Pm

P

VoS

VoS

VoS

V

VoS

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

mHm

PPm

PPm

Pm Pm

Tm

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH

H

TmHPPm

PPm

PPm

m

TmH

TmH

TmH

T H

H

TmHPPm

m

PPm

Tm

TmH

TmH

TmH

TmH
MnMnnMnnMMMnn

MMnMMnnMMnnMnn

Pm Pm

Pm

AAAAAAPPPPmmAcccccccccTmcm ccccccccccccccccHHc

AAAAAAAAAPPPPmmccTTmmcTTmmcccccccccccccHHcHH

AAAAAAAAPPmmAPPPmmccTTmmcTTmccccccccccccccHcHHc

AAMMMMAMMnnAMMnnAPPmmccMMMMcMnnccPPmmccTcTccccnncmm

AAAPPmmAVAVVcccccccVooSScVVooSS cccTTmmHc

SSSSSSSSSSSStttttttttt111111

SSSSSSSSSStttttttt22

SSSSSSSSSttttttttt11

AAARRcssKK

AAAAAACCssAAccccccAAAAAAAAAAACCAAccccc

AAAPPmmAVAVVcccccVooSScVooSS cccTTmmHc
AAAMaa ccSSc

AAGGGA
ssAGGGGcccGGGGc
GGsscppGGspGGGGGpGGBBGGB

ssBGGGG

PR
O

PE
R

TY
LI

N
E

PPPMMMTT

EAST 6TH STREET

INNNNNNNTTTTTTAAAAAAKKKKKKKKEEE

GROUND LEVEL LANDSCAPE PLAN
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

LEVEL 1 LANDSCAPE PLAN
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

115 East Keith Road
NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

Plant List
Symbol Qty. Botanical Name Common Name Scheduled Size Remarks
Trees
Acc 6 Acer circinatum Vine Maple 2.5m ht., B&B native, max 3 stems
AcpB 3 Acer palmatum 'Bloodgood' Bloodgood Japanese Maple 3m ht., 6cm cal., WB Specimen grade
Ac 5 Amelanchier canadensis Shadblow Serviceberry 2.5m ht, B&B native / pollinator
MsR 2 Magnolia stellata 'Royal Star' Royal Star Magnolia 2.5m ht., WB
St1 5 Street Tree 1 Street Tree 1 6cm cal. T.B.C. by the CNV
St2 3 Street Tree 2 Street Tree 2 6cm cal. T.B.C. by the CNV

Shrubs
Cs-1 37 Cornus sericea 'Arctic Fire' 'Arctic Fire' Red Twig Dogwood #3 pot native
Eda 9 Erica x darleyensis Darley Heath #1 pot pollinator
Gs 73 Gaultheria shallon Salal #2 pot native
Ma 6 Mahonia aquifolium Oregon Grape #2 pot native, pollinator
Mn 45 Mahonia nervosa Longleaf Mahonia #2 pot native, pollinator
RsK 5 Ribes sanguineum 'King Edward VII' Flowering Currant #5 pot native, pollinator
Sh 43 Sarcococca hookeriana var. humilis Dwarf Sweet Box #2 pot native
Sb 18 Spiraea betulifolia Birch Leaf Spirea #3 pot pollinator
SjW 27 Spiraea japonica 'Walbuma' Magic Carpet Magic Carpet Spirea #3 pot pollinator
TmH 207 Taxus x media 'Hicksii' (male form) Hicksii Yew (male form) 4' ht Hedge
ToS 7 Thuja occidentalis 'Smaragd' Emerald Green Cedar 6' ht, B&B Hedge
VoS 31 Vaccinium ovatum 'Scarlet Ovation' Scarlet Ovation Evergreen Huckleberry #3 pot native

Groundcovers, Vines, Ferns, Perennials and Grasses
CoE 68 Carex oshimensis 'Evergold' Sedge #1 pot
HnW 6 Hosta Sp Hosta #1 pot
LaM 19 Lavandula angustifolia 'Munstead' English Lavender #1 pot pollinator
Pm 55 Polystichum munitum Western Sword Fern #1 pot native
SoI 5 Salvia officinalis 'Icterina' Golden Common Sage #1 pot pollinator
Vh 18 Vancouveria hexandra White Inside-out Flower #1 pot native



ARTIFICIAL TURF 
/ FLEX SPACE

LOUNGE
SEATING

RAISED PLANTER RAISED PLANTER

LINE OF ROOF BELOW

LINE OF ROOF BELOW

Non climbable
planters

Non climbable
planters

RAISED PLANTER

RAISED PLANTER

HARVEST
TABLE

PlOPlO

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

PlO

PlO

PlO

PlOSjWSjWSjWSjWSjWSjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

PlO

PlO

PlO

PlO

PlO

PlO

SjWSjWSjW

PlOPlOPlOPlO

PlO

PlO

PlO

PlO

PlO

PlO

PlO

PlO

PlO

PlO

PlO

PlO

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

SjW

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS

VoS VoS

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

Pm

MsR

MsR

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE
PARKADE BELOW

ROOF
DECK

ELEV.

ELEV.
BBQ

PMT

EAST 6TH STREET

EAST KEITH ROAD

INTAKE

EXHAUST

L3.1

Drawing Title:

21-029

MP

TH

Planting Plan
Roof Level

KKeith Road
Project Title:

COPYRIGHT RESERVED
This  drawing  is  and  shall  remain  the  property  of  R. 
Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.,   and   R.   Kim   Perry   & 
Associates  Inc.  shall  retain  the  copyright  therein.  This 
document   shall   not   be   reproduced   or   used   for 
additions   or   alterations   to   the   project   or   for   the 
purpose   of   any   other   project   without   the   prior 
written   consent   of   R.   Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.

Date

Client:

3/32" = 1'-0"

Sheet No.:

Scale:

Project North: Drawn By:

Checked By:

Job No.:

Revision No.

  

2021/06/041
Issued for Project Brief 
Application

2021/11/082 Issued for ADP

2021/11/193
Issued for Rezoning /
Development Permit

ROOF LEVEL PLANTING PLAN
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

115 East Keith Road
NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

Roof Level Plant List
Symbol Qty. Botanical Name Common Name Scheduled Size Remarks
Trees
MsR 2 Magnolia stellata 'Royal Star' Royal Star Magnolia 2.5m ht., WB
Shrubs
PlO 28 Prunus laurocerasus 'Otto Luyken' Otto Luyken Laurel #3 pot Hedge
SjW 33 Spiraea japonica 'Walbuma' Magic Carpet Magic Carpet Spirea #3 pot pollinator
VoS 8 Vaccinium ovatum 'Scarlet Ovation' Scarlet Ovation Evergreen Huckleberry #3 pot native
Groundcovers, Vines, Ferns, Perennials and Grasses
Pm 5 Polystichum munitum Western Sword Fern #1 pot native

Total 779



L4.0

Drawing Title:

21-029

MP

TH

Schematic Irrigation Plan
Ground Level / Roof Level

KKeith Road
Project Title:

COPYRIGHT RESERVED
This  drawing  is  and  shall  remain  the  property  of  R. 
Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.,   and   R.   Kim   Perry   & 
Associates  Inc.  shall  retain  the  copyright  therein.  This 
document   shall   not   be   reproduced   or   used   for 
additions   or   alterations   to   the   project   or   for   the 
purpose   of   any   other   project   without   the   prior 
written   consent   of   R.   Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.

Date

Client:

3/32" = 1'-0"

Sheet No.:

Scale:

Project North: Drawn By:

Checked By:

Job No.:

Revision No.

  

2021/06/041
Issued for Project Brief 
Application

2021/11/082 Issued for ADP

2021/11/193
Issued for Rezoning /
Development Permit

2022/03/254 Re-Issued for Rezoning

U

W
LW

L

WL

WL
WL

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE
PARKADE BELOW

PMT

EAST 6TH STREET

EAST KEITH ROAD

INTAKE

EXHAUST

GROUND LEVEL SCHEMATIC IRRIGATION PLAN
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

ROOF SCHEMATIC IRRIGATION PLAN
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

115 East Keith Road
NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

ARTIFICIAL TURF 
/ FLEX SPACE

LOUNGE
SEATING

RAISED PLANTER RAISED PLANTER

LINE OF ROOF BELOW

LINE OF ROOF BELOW

Non climbable
planters

Non climbable
planters

RAISED PLANTER

RAISED PLANTER

HARVEST
TABLE

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE
PARKADE BELOW

ROOF
DECK

ELEV.

ELEV.
BBQ

PMT

EAST 6TH STREET

EAST KEITH ROAD

INTAKE

EXHAUST

1. The irrigation contractor to provide a complete and functioning 
design-build sprinklers irrigation system designed to meet 50% potable water 
use reduction.

2. The irrigation contractor shall confirm on site the locations of the stub-outs 
provided by the Mechanical contractor.

3. The Electrical contractor shall supply a 120v outlet in the water entry room 
and run a 1" conduit with pull string from the water entry room to all 
stub-out locations. See plans.

4. The irrigation contractor shall install the irrigation controller in the water 
entry room and run all low voltage wires to the solenoid valves.

5. Provide rain sensor on system, location to be determined.

6. Flow thru all piping not to exceed 5ft/sec.

7. Irrigation contractor to ensure all sleeves, conduits and location of the rain 
sensor are cooridnated with general contractor.

8. The irrigation drawings shall be read in conjunction with the landscape 
architect's drawings.

9. The irrigation system shall be installed as per the landscape architect's 
specifications and IIABC standards or better.

10. The mechanical contractor shall install the double check valve and a blow 
out connection in the water entry room and run supply lines to all stub out 
locations. See plans.

11. The irrigation contractor shall provide irrigation system for all street trees 
and boulevard to City of North Vancouver standards.

12. The irrigation contractor to submit shop drawings including proof of 50% 
potable water use reduction for approval prior to installation.

13. The irrigation contractor to provide as-built drawings following 
construction.

14. All Irrigation heads to be "Rainbird" brand.

1. All off-site irrigation system to be on a separate controller than the on-site 
irrigation system. Off-site irrigation system controller to be accessible and not 
within the building/strata. All-offsite system to include inground shut off 
valve.

2. Civil to provide irrigation chamber with backflow preventer and area drain 
connected to storm at bottom of chamber. 

2,621 sqft

2,847 sqft

On site area to be covered by automated irrigation.

Off site area to be covered by automated irrigation.

Irrigation Sleeve.

Stub Out: 1.5" Threaded copper pipe. 35 GMP.

IRRIGATION NOTES:

OFF-SITE IRRIGATION NOTES:

LEGEND:



L5.0

Drawing Title:

20-029

MP

TH

Landscape Sections

KKeith Road
Project Title:

COPYRIGHT RESERVED
This  drawing  is  and  shall  remain  the  property  of  R. 
Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.,   and   R.   Kim   Perry   & 
Associates  Inc.  shall  retain  the  copyright  therein.  This 
document   shall   not   be   reproduced   or   used   for 
additions   or   alterations   to   the   project   or   for   the 
purpose   of   any   other   project   without   the   prior 
written   consent   of   R.   Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.

Date

Client:

AS SHOWN

Sheet No.:

Scale:

Project North: Drawn By:

Checked By:

Job No.:

Revision No.

  

2021/06/041
Issued for Project Brief
Application

2021/11/082 Issued for ADP

2021/11/193
Issued for Rezoning /
Development Permit

2022/03/254 Re-Issued for Rezoning



L5.1

Drawing Title:

20-029

MP

TH

Landscape Details
& Precedent Images

KKeith Road
Project Title:

COPYRIGHT RESERVED
This  drawing  is  and  shall  remain  the  property  of  R. 
Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.,   and   R.   Kim   Perry   & 
Associates  Inc.  shall  retain  the  copyright  therein.  This 
document   shall   not   be   reproduced   or   used   for 
additions   or   alterations   to   the   project   or   for   the 
purpose   of   any   other   project   without   the   prior 
written   consent   of   R.   Kim   Perry   &   Associates   Inc.

Date

Client:

AS SHOWN

Sheet No.:

Scale:

Project North: Drawn By:

Checked By:

Job No.:

Revision No.

  

2021/06/041
Issued for Project Brief
Application

2021/11/082 Issued for ADP

2021/11/193
Issued for Rezoning /
Development Permit

2022/03/254 Re-Issued for Rezoning

U
RB

A
N

 A
G

RI
CU

LT
U

RE

PA
TI

O
 W

IT
H

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E

H
A

RV
ES

T 
TA

BL
E

RO
O

FT
O

P 
PA

TI
O

 W
IT

H
 

PA
V
ER
S

O
U

TD
O

O
R 

FU
RN

IT
U

RE
 

A
N

D
 C

O
N

CR
ET

E 
PA

V
ER

S

LO
U

N
G

E 
SE

A
TI

N
G

 
SE

A
TI

N
G

 P
LA

TF
O

RM
 

115 East Keith Road
NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

W
IT

H
 P

LA
N

TE
R 

3/4" minus granular base 
course to 95% mpd.

4" thick 32mpa concrete 
paving w/broom finish.

1/4" wide tooled joints 
minimum as shown on plan, 
no troweled edges.SLOPE TO AREA DRAIN

0.
15

Approved compacted 
sub-base. 

0.
1

AA) ON-GRADE

1/2" clear open graded 
aggregate.  

4" thick 32mpa concrete 
paving w/light broom finish, 
no trowel marks ‘California’. 
6mm wide tooled joints as 
shown on plan, no troweled 
edges.

BB) ON-SLAB

1/4" wide tooled joints 
minimum as shown on plan, 
no troweled edges.

SLOPE TO AREA DRAIN

Concrete slab by architecture. 
Refer to architecture drawings 
for slab drain locations and slab 
elevations. 

Drain mat / protection board 
over waterproofing assembly, by 
others.

Rigid styrofoam voiding as 
required. Refer to structural. 

Filter Fabric.

V
A

R
IE

S
V

A
R

IE
S

A) ON-GRADE

0.
1

Concrete slab by architecture. Refer to 
architecture drawings for slab drain 
locations and slab elevations. 

24" x 24" x 2" Texada HydraPressed 
Slabs for private unit patios.
24" x 12" x 2" Texada HydraPressed 
Slabs for common areas. 
Slabs by Abbotsford Concrete or 
approved equivalent. Colour TBD.

Filter Fabric

1/2" clear open graded aggregate or 
birdseye gravel. As specified by 
structural and envelope consultants. 

Rigid styrofoam voiding as required. 
Refer to structural. V

A
R

IE
S

V
A

R
IE

S

AA) ON-SLAB

24" x 24" x 2" Texada HydraPressed 
Slabs for private unit patios.
24" x 12" x 2" Texada HydraPressed 
Slabs for common areas. 
Slabs by Abbotsford Concrete or 
approved equivalent. Colour TBD.

Installed on rubber shims

2-Ply Sbs Waterproof Membrane – 
Refer to Architecture 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 B

ui
ld

-u
p

Re
fe

r 
to

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e

1/2" Recovery Board – Refer to 
Architecture 

R40 Polyisocyanurate Insulation – Refer 
to Architecture

BB) ON-ROOF

Concrete slab by architecture. Refer to 
architecture drawings for slab drain 
locations and slab elevations. 

12" x 6" x 3.15" California paver by 
Abbotsford Concrete or approved 
equivalent. Colour TBD.

Filter Fabric

Base course – 19mm minus crush 
granular. As specified by structural and 
envelope consultants. 

Rigid styrofoam voiding as required. 
Refer to structural. V

A
R

IE
S

V
A

R
IE

S

Polymeric sand joints.

25mm of bedding sand.

Filter Fabric

BB) ON-SLAB

Foam roll underlay supplied by 
SYNLawn. CSA Approved. Depth varies 
(1", 1.5", and 2") install as required. 

2-Ply Sbs Waterproof Membrane – 
Refer to Architecture 

1/2" Recovery Board – Refer to 
Architecture 

R40 Polyisocyanurate Insulation – Refer 
to Architecture

SYNLawn synthetic grass installed as per 
manufacturer’s specifications.

1/2” thick drainage mat. As per 
SYNLawn installer. 

Attach SYNLawn Artificial Grass to 
Nailer With #8 3/4” SS Pan Head Screws 
4” O.C.

Adjacent Paving as Specified. 

Recycled Plastic Lumber (Rpl) Perimeter 
Nailer Board. Board can be sawn during 
install to suit required depth. Minimum 
size to be 1.5” high by 1” wide. 

Provide L-brackets every 12” to prevent 
board from warping due to pressure. As 
per SYNLawn installer. 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 B

ui
ld

-u
p

Re
fe

r 
to

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e

SECTION

0.2

V
ar

ie
s,

 r
ef

er
 t

o 
gr

ad
in

g 
pl

an

Concrete wall. Reinforce as per Structural.

Planting medium as specified.

NNote:

4" by 4" blockouts @ 6'-0" o.c. for 
drainage and at all low points.

Concrete wall. Reinforce as per Structural.

Min. 2" depth of 1/2" clear open graded 
aggregate. Depth varies, refer to 
Architectural slab plan.

Concrete slab by architecture. Refer to 
architecture drawings for slab drain 
locations and slab elevations. 

Protection board and root barrier (at all 
planting areas) over waterproof assembly 
(refer to Architecture and Envelope 
consultant drawings.

Drain mat (refer to Architectural)

Filter fabric.

Provide planter drain in all planter locations. 

Planting medium as specified.

Wrap drain mat and filter fabric up back of 
wall. Secure to wall w/ PVC edge restraint 
and metal flashing.

Voiding as needed.

Dowel to concrete precurb 
(refer to Architectural).

Growing medium as specified.

0.28 or 12"
Refer to Plan

0.28 or 12"
Refer to Plan

2% Slope Typ

V
ar

ie
s 

re
fe

r 
to

G
ra

di
ng

 P
la

n

0.02
Typ

0.15M
in

0.
46

M
IN

.

R 0.01

Tactile nosings

Paving as specified

Reinforcing as per structural 
engineer.

Min. 100mm of 9mm minus 
compacted granular.

Approved compacted 
subgrade. Refer to 
geotechnical 
recommendations. 

RO
O

F 
LA

W
N

 A
RE

A

BI
K

E 
RA

CK

PR
EC

A
ST

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E 

PA
V

IN
G

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E 

PA
V

IN
G



 

115 E Keith Road North Vancouver 

Updated  

Tenant Relocation Plan 

 

 

 

 

Updated - March 25, 2022 

Pacific Asset Management Corporation  

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 3�



 

P a g e  | 1 

1 Introduction 
Cascadia Green Development originally submitted a Tenant Relocation Plan (“TRP”) based upon the City 

of North Vancouver’s 2015 Tenant Displacement Policy.  Council Amended the  Tenant Displacement 

Policy on July 12th, 2021. Cascadia Green Development had submitted the rezoning application prior to 

July 12, 2021, and therefore the City’s 2015 Tenant Relocation Policy standards apply to this application. 

In an effort of Good Faith, Cascadia updated the original TRP submission In November 2021 to 

incorporate some of the elements of the July 2021 amended Residential Displacement Policy, (except 

the long-term tenant additional compensation) and then in March 2022 Cascadia Green updated the 

TRP for the 115 East Keith Road development, to incorporate ALL THE ELEMENTS of the 2021 amended 

Tenant Displacement Policy. Below is a summary of the updated Tenant Relocation Plan. 

2 Tenant Relocation Plan 

2.1 Overview 
Cascadia Green Development has made application to the City of North Vancouver to redevelop the 

Apartment Building located at 115 East Keith Road removing the existing aging building and developing  

in its place, a seventy-four unit Rental Apartment Building.  

The process currently taking place to bring about this change involves the Re-zoning of the property to 

allow for a larger building on the site. The Re-zoning process has passed second reading with the City 

and Cascadia Green Development is currently working with City officials moving toward third Reading 

and a Public Hearing for the development. The Public Hearing stage provides the public with opportunity 

to express their support or concerns with the development and is expected to occur in spring 2022. 

After the Public Hearing, the Developer will work with City officials to address any concerns presented at 

the public Hearing and once the concerns have been satisfied, the process will be referred to City 

Council for 4th and final reading. Final reading is expected to be heard in late spring 2022.  

After final reading and adoption, the Developer will work toward securing a Demolition Permit for the 

project. Once obtained, the occupants of 115 East Keith Road will be provided with a 4-month Notice to 

End tenancy as per the requirements of the Residential Tenancy Act of B.C.  (“RTA”). It is projected at 

this point that the 4-month Notice to End tenancy will be delivered to the tenants in summer 2022 with 

an effective end of tenancy date being fall 2022. 

While the official Notice to End tenancy has not yet been issued or provided to tenants, 9 tenants have 

already acted on rental opportunities and information provided by the Tenant Relocation  Coordinator 

and vacated the building. These tenants have been paid amounts for the return of their security 

deposits (and pet deposits if applicable), Rental Compensation equal to 4 months’ rent, and a Flat rate 

moving allowance (of $1,000.00 as all units that have been vacated are 1 bedroom units) to assist in 

their transition to their new homes. A spread sheet of the vacated units and their payments is attached. 

Two tenants that has moved (November 5/21 and March 15/22) and one tenant that is moving on 

March 31, 2022 are  eligible for the LONG TERM TENANT ADDITIONAL PAYMENT amount. These 



 

P a g e  | 2 

amounts have not yet been paid, but will be paid once final adoption of the Rezoning Application is 

approved as per the terms of the updated Residential Tenancy Displacement Policy (July 12, 2021). 

2.2 Relocation Assistance 
Cascadia designated Pacific Asset Management Corporation (“PAMC”) as their Tenant Relocation 

Coordinator to support tenants through the relocation process. 

PAMC continues to engage with the tenants of 115 East Keith that have requested and require 

assistance, to help identify and provide up to three comparable rental dwelling units for each eligible 

tenant household. PAMC will use all reasonable efforts to identify comparable units that are of similar 

number of bedrooms that are located in the City of North Vancouver with the maximum rent to be not 

more than the greater of: 

a) 10% above the tenant’s current rent; or 

b) 10% above the most recently published CMHC median rental level, by number of bedrooms, for 

the City of North Vancouver. 

Due to the scarcity of comparable rental accommodation in the City of North Vancouver, PAMC is also 

providing comparable units on the North Shore in the District of North Vancouver as well as West 

Vancouver where possible. 

2.3 Additional Assistances for Low Income Tenants and others Facing Barriers 
Cascadia will be providing individualized support to those tenant households identified as having 

additional needs such as elderly residents on fixed incomes, tenants with low incomes as defined in the 

CNV’s 2021 Displacement Policy, and people with disabilities. Examples of additional supports may 

include, but not be limited to: 

a) Early communication and notification, in person if requested; 

b) Additional support with arranging and attending viewings; 

c) Support with accessing social housing or rent supplements 

d) Connecting with health organizations and non-profit services; and 

e) Free support with activities such as packing  

2.4 Financial Compensation: 
This Tenant Relocation Plan will compensate all eligible tenants with financial assistance equivalent to 4 

months of their current rent. The compensation will be paid to eligible tenants on the day of departure 

from their rental unit. As part of the move out process, Tenants will be expected to leave the premises 

in a clean and clear condition and a move out inspection of the premises will be conducted with the 

tenant as per the Residential Tenancy Act (“RTA”) at the time of departure. Any security deposit or Pet 

deposit held by the Landlord will be processed within 15 days as required under the RTA. 

 



 

P a g e  | 3 

Eligible Long Term Tenants will be paid additional compensation in accordance with the update policy. 

We have identified Fourteen total tenants that would qualify for an additional payment; Two tenants 

have vacated the property (Nov 5/21 and March 15/22); a Third tenant is moving out on March 31st. 

Eleven other tenants have not yet provided notice to end tenancy. As per the terms of the updated 

Policy, these additional compensation amounts will be paid out to tenants upon final approval of the 

Rezoning Application.  

2.5 Moving Cost   
In addition to the Financial Compensation, all tenants will, and have been compensated for moving 

expenses with a flat rate payment based on number of bedrooms according to the CNV’s 2021 

Displacement policy. Payment of moving costs will be made at the time of the tenant’s departure from 

the building. 

a) $1000 for studio and 1 bedroom units; 

b) $1250 for 2 bedroom units.  

c) $1500 for 3 bedroom and larger units 

(One Studio;  Twenty-one 1-Bedroom units, and one 2-bedroom unit exist at 115 East Keith Road). 

2.6 Communications: 
The occupants of 115 East Keith have been engaged by Cascadia and Pacific Asset Management 

Corporation through multiple different communications vehicles. All Tenants of the building have 

provided the property manager with their personal telephone numbers and email addresses for ongoing 

communication with the Landlord. Development update correspondence, occupant notices, and 

informational materials have been sent to the tenants using the email addresses provided by the 

tenants as well as by placing these documents through their personal mail slots in each of their 

individual residential doors (these mail slots are the official Canada Post Mail delivery slots for each 

resident as the building predates Canada Post’s requirement to have a gang mailbox facility in the 

common lobby area of the building). Meetings with individual tenants have been held in person with 

multiple tenants in the office of Cascadia Green Development, while larger meetings have been held in 

Victoria. Development Updates as well as Compensation Update notices have been emailed, delivered 

and posted in the building (copies attached) to update tenants on projected notable dates and policy 

updates. Rental vacancy listings continue to be provided to the Tenants via email for their follow up and 

pursuit. We have selected email for this delivery of communication as the listing are very “perishable” 

and need to be acted upon quickly. We have received four requests for Landlord References and 

Reference letters, which have been accommodated. We will continue to use email, door delivery, and 

posting of notices and information to provide updates to the occupants at 115 East Keith Road.  

2.7 Notice Period: 
All tenants will receive a Four Month-Notice to End tenancy, (after a Demolition Permit is issued for this 

application) in the format required under the RTA. It is projected at this time that the 4-Month Notice to 

End tenancy may delivered to the tenants in Summer 2022 as described in the Overview section of this 

Plan, in accordance with the service requirements under the Residential Tenancy Act. 



 

P a g e  | 4 

2.8 First Right of Refusal:  
All tenants will and have been provided with the first right of refusal to occupy any purpose-built rental 

units in the new building. At this point of the Nine units that have vacated the property, Four Tenants 

have exercised the right of first refusal, Four tenants have declined the right of First Refusal and the 

Tenant leaving on March 31st has neither accepted nor declined the Right at this point (this will be 

provided to this tenant when vacating on March 31st). Further, tenants that meet the eligibility 

requirements to occupy Mid Market Rental (“MMR”) units in the building,  will be referred to a Non-

Profit third party for screening of applications to occupy one of the 8 MMR units proposed in the new 

building. At the time of departure from the building, each tenant will have the opportunity to accept or 

decline the first right of refusal option, by signing an RTB-28 form to exercise their option and providing 

the developer with their forwarding contact information so that they can be contacted when  the units 

are available for occupancy. For transparency, a provision of the Housing Agreement will require the use 

of a non-profit third party to review the eligibility and screen applicants for the MMR units. The use of a 

non-profit third party will apply to the initial occupants only for the MMR units to assist in qualification 

determination of candidates.  

2.9 Recourse: 
Cascadia Green Development will use all reasonable efforts to maintain and execute the spirit of the 

Tenant Relocation Plan with an end to assisting all tenants to identity, acquire, and relocate to new 

accommodations as seamlessly as possible. PAMC will be responsible for the execution the Plan and 

where any issues arise in the relocation process, Rany Ratushny at Pacific Asset Management 

Corporation can be contact as follows to assist in its resolution.  

Pacific Asset Management Corporation  

301 -1124 Lonsdale Avenue,  

North Vancouver, BC. V7M 2H1  

Telephone -  604-980-3889  ext#3 

Email – rany@pamc.ca  

2.10 Cascadia’s Additional Support: 
In addition to the above mentioned items Cascadia will be offering the first right of refusal of the 7 mid-

market units in their 2590 Lonsdale Ave project to the tenants at the 115 East Keith Rd. Former tenants 

at 2590 Lonsdale Ave refused their right to live in the new mid-market units at this development 

already. 

Also, eligible tenants at the 115 East Keith Rd will be having this opportunity to register for the 

Affordable Home Ownership Program (AHOP) units and Rent-To-Own (RTO) units at Cascadia’s Innova 

project. 

Tenants will have the option to enter into any of Cascadia programs for affordable home ownership, 

Rent to Own or market strata and upon approval will receive an additional 4 months of their current 

rent credit, for a total of 8 months of their current credit, towards this purchase.  

mailto:rany@pamc.ca


 

 

 

 

 

Summary of  

VACATED TENANCIES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



115 East Keith - PAYMENT SUMMARY FOR VACATED TENANTS
(as at March 31, 2022)

UNIT # VACANT/ TENANT Tenancy MOVE OUT Tenancy Length Months ADDN'L SEC DEP MOVE EXP RENT TOTAL PAYMENT RIGHT FIRST

OCCUPIED: Start date DATE: Months > 60 COMP DUE REFUNDED PAID COMP PAID PAID TO TENANT REFUSAL

103 vacant Dale Farquhar 1-Oct-20 31-Dec-21 14 767.50$              1,000.00$     7,140.00$       8,907.50$              RECEIVED

104 vacant Derrick Fry 1-Sep-79 15-Mar-22 509 449 11,225$      178.45$              1,000.00$     4,984.60$       6,163.05$              RECEIVED

107 vacant Barbara Trace 1-Jun-20 31-Jul-21 13 575.00$              1,000.00$     5,600.00$       7,175.00$              DECLINE

201 vacant D. Gibbons -L. Smith 1-Dec-20 1-Dec-21 12 775.00$              1,000.00$     7,200.00$       8,975.00$              DECLINE

203 vacant Mona Y. Mofarah 1-Oct-19 20-Aug-21 27 675.00$              1,000.00$     6,400.00$       8,075.00$              RECEIVED

205 vacant ** Susie Getson 15-Jan-08 31-Mar-22 169 109 2,725$         450.00$              1,000.00$     5,212.60$       6,662.60$              

206 vacant Mahtob Kamalfar 1-Jul-18 28-Feb-22 42 600.00$              1,000.00$     5,800.00$       7,400.00$              DECLINE

208 vacant * Kate Neill 1-Sep-19 15-Jul-21 22 *no S/D on file -$                 

303 vacant Jaleh Kalantar 1-Apr-16 5-Nov-21 67 7 175$            525.00$              1,000.00$     5,464.28$       6,989.28$              RECEIVED

Total Amount paid to departed tenants to March 31, 2022 4,545.95$           8,000.00$    47,801.48$     60,347.43$           

Additional Compensation Amount to be paid upon Final Adoption of Rezoning Bylaw 14,125$      

*Unit 208 Kate Neill - moved to Australia/gave 2 week notice/no forwarding address provided/Tenant vacated without returning keys or move out inspection.

* No Security Deposit provided by tenant

** Unit 205 Tenant still Occupies unit - move out will occur on March 31 at which time final inspection will be conducted and payment for Security deposit, Move expense and Rent Compensation will be made.

Additional Compensation for Long Term Tenants - Additional Compensation has not yet been paid to Tenants - Payments will be made upon Final Adoption of Rezoning Bylaw.

Rent Compensation, security deposit, and Moving Expense payments have been paid to these three Long Term Tenants.



 

 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY OF  

OCCUPIED and VACATED 

TENANCIES 

 

 

 

 

 

 



115 East Keith - TENANT RELOCATION STATUS
(as at March 25, 2022) Calculated 

As at

31-Mar-22

UNIT # VACANT/ TENANT TENANCY MOVE OUT TENANCY Months **ADDNL MOVE EXP RENT COMP SEC DEP RIGHT FIRST

OCCUPIED Bedrooms START DATE DATE LENGTH > 60 COMP DUE DUE DUE REFUSAL

101 OCCUPIED S. Seguin & V. Trace 2 15-May-18 46 1,250.00$      7,400.00$       800.00$           

102 OCCUPIED Maria Vavaris 1 1-Oct-17 53 1,000.00$      5,800.00$       600.00$           

103 vacant Dale Farquhar 1 1-Oct-20 31-Dec-21 14 1,000.00$      7,140.00$       767.50$           RECEIVED

104 vacant Derrick Fry 1 1-Sep-79 15-Mar-22 510 449 11,225.00$  1,000.00$      4,984.60$       178.45$           RECEIVED

105 OCCUPIED C. Morrison & J. Hyvarinen 1 1-Dec-12 111 51 1,275.00$     1,000.00$      5,156.20$       475.00$           

106 OCCUPIED Linda Leblond 1 1-May-11 130 70 1,750.00$     1,000.00$      5,046.84$       450.00$           

107 vacant Barbara Trace S 1-Jun-20 31-Jul-21 13 1,000.00$      5,600.00$       575.00$           DECLINE

201 vacant D. Gibbons & L. Smith 1 1-Dec-20 1-Dec-21 1,000.00$      7,200.00$       775.00$           DECLINE

202 OCCUPIED Kaylie Maughan 1 15-Mar-11 129 69 1,725.00$     1,000.00$      5,156.20$       475.00$           

203 vacant Mona Y. Mofarah 1 1-Oct-19 20-Aug-21 27 1,000.00$      6,400.00$       675.00$           RECEIVED

204 OCCUPIED Heather Kanner 1 15-Aug-18 42 1,000.00$      5,600.00$       575.00$           

205 vacant Susie Getson 1 15-Jan-08 31-Mar-22 169 109 2,725.00$     1,000.00$      5,212.60$       450.00$           

206 vacant Mahtob Kamalfar 1 1-Jul-18 28-Feb-22 42 -$               1,000.00$      5,800.00$       600.00$           DECLINE

207 OCCUPIED Rodney Langston 1 1-Oct-09 149 89 2,225.00$     1,000.00$      5,156.20$       375.00$           

208 vacant * Kate Neill S 1-Sep-19 15-Jul-21 22 1,000.00$      -$                 *no fwd. address

301 OCCUPIED Z. Virag & M. Sharma 1 1-Apr-10 143 83 2,075.00$     1,000.00$      5,265.56$       350.00$           

302 OCCUPIED C. Rach & I. Ghadban 1 1-Oct-99 269 209 5,225.00$     1,000.00$      4,968.08$       *no dep. on file

303 vacant Jaleh Kalantar 1 1-Apr-16 5-Nov-21 67 7 175.00$        1,000.00$      5,464.28$       525.00$           RECEIVED

304 OCCUPIED Jonathon Gabriel 1 1-Dec-10 135 75 1,875.00$     1,000.00$      5,156.20$       475.00$           

305 OCCUPIED Daniele D'Amici 1 15-Jan-14 86 26 650.00$        1,000.00$      5,100.00$       *no dep. on file

306 OCCUPIED Diane Staub 1 1-Aug-10 139 79 1,975.00$     1,000.00$      5,249.40$       475.00$           

307 OCCUPIED Eric Sorenson 1 1-Jul-96 308 248 6,200.00$     1,000.00$      4,648.68$       337.50$           

308 OCCUPIED Loralee Judge S 1-Dec-10 135 75 1,875.00$     1,000.00$      4,488.84$       375.00$           

TOTALS: 40,975.00$  23,250.00$    121,993.68$   10,308.45$     

TOTAL COMPENSTION AND DEPOSIT TO BE PAID TO TENANTS 196,527.13$  

*Unit 208 Kate Neill - moved to Australia/gave 2 week notice/no forwarding address provided/tenant vacated without returning keys or move out inspection

*No security Deposit Provided by Tenant

** The Additional Compensation due to Long Term Tenants has been calculated using March 31, 2022. This will be adjusted to the ACTUAL MOVE OUT DATE once known.



 

 

 

 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

TO TENANTS 



 

   
Suite 301 – 1124 Lonsdale Avenue, North Vancouver, BC  V7M 2H1 

Ph. (604) 980-3889    www.pamc.ca  

 
Tenants of 115 East Keith Road     June 25, 2021 
 
Subject:  Building Redevelopment Process 
 
After extensive consultation with City officials and other professional advisors, the Landlord is moving 
forward with the next steps in the redevelopment of 115 East Keith Road. This process is multi-faceted 
and involves consultation with professional advisors, City Official and Staff as well as public input from 
residents and neighbors.  
 
A number of residents have expressed concern over what is expected during this process and how it 
will affect each of you. To ensure that all tenants have complete and accurate information, we have 
included information from the Residential Tenancy Branch and the City of North Vancouver for your 
review and file. 
 
The Residential Tenancy Act (RTA) provides you as tenants, with a number of measures to assist in 
your transition to new accommodations including, ample notice prior to demolition, assistance with 
relocation, free rent, and the right of first refusal to rent a unit in the newly developed building once 
complete. In order to assist you in locating and securing new accommodations, the Landlord will also 
provide you with Letters of Reference, speak to a new Landlord on your behalf to provide a verbal 
tenancy reference (if requested), as well as provide you with vacancy leads from other buildings 
currently under our management or being advertised with various electronic media. The Landlord, 
through its advisors, has connections to other rental properties on the North Shore that may be 
suitable for your rental needs. 
 
Each Municipal jurisdiction handles tenant relocation compensation differently. The City of North 
Vancouver Relocation Policy currently provides assistance to tenants by expanding upon the RTA 
relocation provisions and mandates that the Landlord provide each tenant with compensation equal to 
3 – months’ rent (rather than 1 month) to assist in their transition to a new rental unit.  
 
In addition to the requirements of the City Relocation Policy, the Landlord is also providing additional 
assistance in the form of a $1,000.00 payment to tenants to be used as needed for moving costs, 
damage deposit payments, or first rents etc. 
 
The Landlord is committed to assisting tenants in locating and securing alternate accommodations 
and living arrangements. We are aware that the rental market is very competitive at this time and as 
such, would like to start assisting in this relocation process as early as possible to make this a smooth 
transition for everyone. 
 
We would like to arrange a meeting with all the tenants to discuss the relocation process and to clarify 
the different areas of assistance being provided. You will be contacted shortly with an invitation to 
attend a meeting with the Landlord’s representatives and fellow tenants of 115 East Keith Road.  
 
PACIFIC ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION 
 
 
F.M. Rany Ratushny – CSM, RI(BC) 
Property Manager 

http://www.pamc.ca/


Pacific Asset Rahagemerit Corporation
Professional Property Management - Commerdal. Residential & industrial

All Tenants and Occupants
115 Keith Road East

North Vancouver, BC

November 16, 2021

Re: Relocation Update

Attached for your review and file is a summation of the Tenant Relocation Plan for 115 Keith
Road East. Some tenants have reached out to us with questions about the relocation
process, and/or timelines regarding the project, and while we do not have specific dates for
the redevelopment of the building at this time, we hope that the enclosed Tenant Relocation
Plan can provide some useful information to assist tenants in their relocation planning.

Please take a few moments to review the plan as it provides information on tenant
compensation, approximate timeline projections, as well as identifying where we stand
currently in the City of North Vancouver development process.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to reach out to us.

Regards,
Pacific Asset Management Corporation

P.M. Rany Ratushr
Property Manager

-GSM, R.1.(B.G.)

Suite 301 - 1124 Lonsdaie Avenue, North Vancouver, BC V7M 2H1
Ph. (604) 980-3889 www.pamc.ca



115 E Keith Road North Vancouver

Updated

Tenant Relocation Plan

Submitted by

Cascadia Green Development

November 5, 2021



CASCADIA

1  Introduction

Cascadia Green Development originally submitted a Tenant Relocation Plan ("TRP") based upon the City
of North Vancouver's 2015 Tenant Displacement Policy. Council Amended the Tenant Displacement

Policy on July 12'^ 2021. Cascadia Green Development had submitted the rezoning application prior to
July 12, 2021, and therefore the City's 2015 Tenant Relocation Policy standards apply to this application.

As a gesture of Good Faith, Cascadia has decided to update the previously submitted TRP for the 115

East Keith Road development, to incorporate a number of the elements of the 2021 amended Tenant

Displacement Policy. Belov\/ is a summary of the updated TRP presented to the City by Cascadia.

Cascadla's updated TRP follows the majority of the elements of the CNV's 2021 Amended Policy,

excluding one item: Additional Financial Assistance based upon the length of time a tenant has resided

in the Building i.e. (total tenancy length in months - (60 x $25)) Is not included in the revised TRP. Below

is a summary of the updated Tenant Relocation Plan presented by Cascadia Green Development.

2 Tenant Relocation Plan

2.1 Overview

Cascadia Green Development has made application to the City of North Vancouver to redevelop the

Apartment Building located at 115 East Keith Road removing the existing aging building and developing
in its place, a seventy-four unit Rental Apartment Building.

The process currently taking place to bring about this change involves the Re-zoning of the property to

allow for a larger building on the site. The Re-zoning process has passed second reading with the City

and Cascadia Green Development Is currently working with City officials moving toward third Reading

and a Public Hearing for the development. The Public Hearing stage provides the public with opportunity

to express their support or concerns with the development and is expected to occur in spring 2022.

After the Public Hearing, the Developer will work with City officials to address any concerns presented at

the public Hearing and once the concerns have been satisfied, the process will be referred to City

Council for 4*^ and final reading. Final reading is expected to be heard in late spring 2022.

After final reading and adoption, the Developer will work toward securing a Demolition Permit for the

project. Once obtained, the occupants of 115 East Keith Road will be provided with a 4-month Notice to

End tenancy as per the requirements of the Residential Tenancy Act of B.C. ("RTA"). It is projected at

this point that the 4-month Notice to End tenancy will be delivered to the tenants in early summer 2022

with an effective end of tenancy date being fall 2022.

While the official Notice to End tenancy has not yet been issued or provided to tenants, some tenants

have already acted on rental opportunities and information provided by the Tenant Relocation

Coordinator and vacated the building. These tenants have been provided rental compensation and

moving allowance to assist In their transition to their new homes.

Page I 1



CASCADIA

2.2 Relocation Assistance

Cascadia designated Pacific Asset Management Corporation ("PAMC") as their Tenant Relocation

Coordinator to support tenants through the relocation process.

PAMC continues to engage with the tenants of 115 East Keith that have requested and require

assistance, to help identify and provide up to three comparable rental dwelling units for each eligible

tenant household. PAMC will use all reasonable efforts to Identify comparable units that are of similar

number of bedrooms that are located in the City of North Vancouver with the maximum rent to be not

more than the greater of:

a) 10% above the tenant's current rent; or

b) 10% above the most recently published CMHC median rental level, by number of bedrooms, for

the City of North Vancouver.

Due to the scarcity of comparable rental accommodation in the City of North Vancouver, PAMC is also

providing comparable units on the North Shore in the District of North Vancouver as well as West

Vancouver where possible.

2.3 Additional Assistances for Low Income Tenants and others Facing Barriers
Cascadia will be providing individualized support to those tenant households Identified as having

additional needs such as elderly residents on fixed incomes, tenants with low incomes as defined in the

CNV's 2021 Displacement Policy, and people with disabilities. Examples of additional supports may

include, but not be limited to:

a) Early communication and notification, in person if requested;

b) Additional support with arranging and attending viewings;

c) Support with accessing social housing or rent supplements

d) Connecting with health organizations and non-profit services; and

e) Free support with activities such as packing

2.4 Financial Compensation:

This Tenant Relocation Plan will compensate all eligible tenants with financial assistance equivalent to 4

months of their current rent. The compensation will be paid to eligible tenants on the day of departure

from their rental unit. As part of the move out process, Tenants will be expected to leave the premises

in a clean and clear condition and a move out inspection of the premises will be conducted with the

tenant as per the Residential Tenancy Act ("RTA") at the time of departure. Any security deposit or Pet

deposit held by the Landlord will be processed within 15 days as required under the RTA.

Tenants who have been already moved and received the previously submitted compensation package

will be receiving the differed compensation.

Page 12



CASCADIA

2.5 Moving Cost
In addition to the Financial Compensation, ail tenants will be compensated for moving expenses with a

flat rate payment based on number of bedrooms according to the CNV's 2021 Displacement policy.
Payment of moving costs will be made at the time of the tenant's departure from the building.

a) $1000 for studio and 1 bedroom units;

b) $1250 for 2 bedroom units.

c) $1500 for 3 bedroom and larger units

(Only Studio, One and Two bedroom units exist at 115 East Keith Road).

2.6 Communications:

The occupants of 115 East Keith have been engaged by Cascadia and Pacific Asset Management

Corporation through a number of different communications vehicles. Ail Tenants of the building have

provided the property manager with their personal telephone numbers and email addresses for ongoing

communication with the Landlord. Development update correspondence, occupant notices, and

informational materials have been sent to the tenants using the email addresses provided by the

tenants as well as by placing these documents through their personal mail slots in each of their

individual residential doors (these mail slots are the official Canada Post Mail delivery slots for each

resident as the building predates Canada Post's requirement to have a gang mailbox facility in the

common lobby area of the building). Meetings with individual tenants have been held in person with

multiple tenants in the office of Cascadia Green Development, while larger meetings have been held in

Victoria Park across Keith Road during covid with building tenants, occupants, the developer and City

Staff. Better efforts will be made in future to provide longer lead times when coordinating these group

meeting events. We will continue to use email, door delivery, and posting of notices and information to

provide updates to the occupants at 115 East Keith Road, if larger in person gathering events are

required, current heath authority protocols will be used.

2.7 Notice Period:

Ail tenants will receive a Four Month-Notice to End tenancy, (after a Demolition Permit is issued for this

application) in the format required under the RTA. It is projected at this time that the 4-Month Notice to

End tenancy may delivered to the tenants in mid 2022 as described in the Overview section of this Plan,

In accordance with the service requirements under the Residential Tenancy Act.

Page I 3



CASCADIA

2.8 First Right of Refusal:
All tenants will be provided with the first right of refusal to occupy any purpose-built rental units in the

new building. Further, tenants that meet the eligibility requirements to occupy Mid Market Rental

("MMR") units in the building, will be referred to a Non-Profit third party for screening of applications

to occupy one of the 8 MMR units proposed in the new building. At the time of departure from the

building, each tenant will have the opportunity to accept or decline the first right of refusal option, by

signing an RTB-28 form to exercise their option and providing the developer with their forwarding

contact information so that they can be contacted when the units are available for occupancy. For

transparency, a provision of the Housing Agreement will require the use of a non-profit third party to

review the eligibility and screen applicants for the MMR units. The use of a non-profit third party will

apply to the Initial occupants only for the MMR units to assist in qualification determination of

candidates.

2.9 Recourse:

Cascadia Green Development will use all reasonable efforts to maintain and execute the spirit of the

Tenant Relocation Plan with an end to assisting all tenants to identity, acquire, and relocate to new

accommodations as seamlessly as possible. PAMC will be responsible for the execution the Plan and

where any issues arise in the relocation process, Rany Ratushny at Pacific Asset Management

Corporation can be contact as follows to assist in its resolution.

Pacific Asset Management Corporation

301 -1124 Lonsdale Avenue,

North Vancouver, BC. V7M 2H1

Telephone - 604-980-3889 ext#3

Email - ranv@pamc.ca

2.10 Cascadia's Additional Support:
In addition to the above mentioned items Cascadia will be offering the first right of refusal of the 7 mid-

market units in their 2590 Lonsdale Ave project to the tenants at the 115 East Keith Rd. Former tenants

at 2590 Lonsdale Ave refused their right to live in the new mid-market units at this development

already.

Also, eligible tenants at the 115 East Keith Rd will be having this opportunity to register for the

Affordable Home Ownership Program (AHOP) units and Rent-To-Own (RTO) units at Cascadia's Innova

project.

Tenants will have the option to enter Into any of Cascadia programs for affordable home ownership,

Rent to Own or market strata and upon approval will receive an additional 4 months of their current

rent credit, for a total of 8 months of their current credit, towards this purchase.

Page I 4



 

   
Suite 301 – 1124 Lonsdale Avenue, North Vancouver, BC  V7M 2H1 

Ph. (604) 980-3889    www.pamc.ca  

 
Tenants of 115 Keith Road East      February 28, 2022 
 
 
Subject:  Building Redevelopment Update 
 
Consultation continues with City officials and other professional advisors, as the Developer moves 
forward with the next steps in the redevelopment of 115 East Keith Road. The Developer remains on 
track to meet the timelines as outlined in the Updated Tenant Relocation Plan that was published and 
delivered to all tenants in November 2021. Meetings continue with the City and final reading of the 
development plan is expected in the later part of Spring 2022. 
 
After final reading and adoption of the plan, the Developer will work toward securing all necessary 
permits required for demolition of the building. Once the permits are obtained, all occupants of 115 
Keith Road East will be provided with a 4-month Notice to End Tenancy as per the requirements of the 
Residential Tenancy Act of BC  (“RTA”). It is projected that the 4-month Notice to End Tenancy will be 
delivered to tenant in early Summer 2022 with an end of tenancy date projected for the Fall 2022. 
 
Some building tenants have already relocated to other accommodations and received their Relocation  
Assistance Compensation Package of 4-month rent, plus a moving allowance of $1,000 for a Studio or 
one bedroom apartment or $1250 for a two bedroom apartment. Security Deposits and Pet deposits 
have also been refunded to Tenants as required under the RTA. Further, relocated tenants have been 
provided a first right of refusal to occupy a unit in the new building once completed. These details are 
outlined in the City approved Tenant Relocation Plan dated November 5, 2021 (a copy of which is 
attached for your convenience).  
 
Some tenants have approached the manager asking about additional compensation that is described 
in the REVISED “Residential Tenant Relocation Assistance Policy” that was approved and passed by 
City Council July 12, 2021. As the Application for redevelopment of 115 East Keith Road was filed with 
the City well before the City’s revision of this Policy, the requirement for compensating tenants falls 
under the ORIGINAL Residential Tenant Displacement Policy H-18, dated November 16, 2015 which 
does not include additional compensation for long term tenancies. A copy of the  Original Policy H-18 
is attached herein as well for your  information and record. 
 
The Developer is committed to assisting tenants in locating alternate accommodations and living 
arrangements. We have spoken to a number of you over the recent past and will continue to advise of 
rental opportunities that we come across, both in properties that we currently manage, as well as ones 
that we find advertised. If you have started your search and require a verbal or written reference or 
recommendation, please call us, we will be pleased to assist where we can. 
 
Please feel free to contact our office to speak with Adree or me if you have any questions. We can be 
reached at 604-980-3889 or by email at adree@pamc.ca or rany@pamc.ca.  
 
PACIFIC ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION 
 
 
F.M. Rany Ratushny – CSM, RI(BC) 
Property Manager 

http://www.pamc.ca/
mailto:adree@pamc.ca
mailto:rany@pamc.ca


 

   
Suite 301 – 1124 Lonsdale Avenue, North Vancouver, BC  V7M 2H1 

Ph. (604) 980-3889    www.pamc.ca  

 
Tenants of 115 Keith Road East      March 22, 2022 
 
 
Subject:  TENANT COMPENSATION UPDATE. 
 
On March 6, 2021, the Developer submitted their application for redevelopment of 115 East Keith 
Road and in doing so, were bound by the terms identified in the then current Residential Tenant 
Displacement Policy dated November 16, 2015. 
 
Four months later on July 21, 2021, City officials voted to revise the Residential Tenant Displacement 
Policy to include additional assistance to displaced tenants. Notable in the new policy was an increase 
in rental assistance from 3-months’ rent to 4-months’ rent, and to further recognize long term 
tenancies (in excess of 60 months) with an additional assistance amount equal to $25/month for the 
months occupied in excess of 60 months.  A flat rate moving expense payment was also added in the 
July 21, 2021 amended policy. 
 
While the Developer is bound by the 2015 displacement policy, the Developer recognizes the 
challenges faced by tenants in the current rental market and has agreed with City officials to increase 
the assistance being provided, to align with the terms of the revised July 12, 2021 displacement policy 
for the tenants of 115 East Keith.  
 
As of this date, tenants departing 115 East Keith will be provided an assistance package that 
aligns with the July 12, 2021 Residential Tenant Displacement Policy including the following: 
 
- Four Months’ rent payment 
- Tenancies that began five or more years prior to the date of the Development Application 

will receive additional assistance calculated at a rate of $25.00 per month for each full 
month of tenancy beyond five years. 

- Flat rate moving expense for studio and 1-bedrooms at $1,000.00 and $1,250.00 for 2-
bedrooms 

 
Assistance payments due to Eligible Tenants will be paid in accordance with the terms of the July 12, 
2021 amended Residential Tenant Displacement Policy (copy attached for your record). 
 
The Developer is committed to assisting tenants in locating alternate accommodations and living 
arrangements. We have spoken to a number of you over the recent past and will continue to advise of 
rental opportunities that we come across, both in properties that we currently manage, as well as ones 
that we find advertised. If you have started your search and require a verbal or written reference or 
recommendation, please call us, we will be pleased to assist where we can. 
 
Please feel free to contact our office to speak with Adree or me if you have any questions. We can be 
reached at 604-980-3889 or by email at adree@pamc.ca or rany@pamc.ca.  
 
PACIFIC ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATION 
 
F.M. Rany Ratushny – CSM, RI(BC) 
Property Manager 

http://www.pamc.ca/
mailto:adree@pamc.ca
mailto:rany@pamc.ca


 

Document Number: 1322978 V2 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

COUNCIL 
POLICY 
Policy 
Classification 
 

 
 

 
 
 
COUNCIL 
POLICY 
Policy 
Classification 
 

 Policy Name Residential Tenant Displacement Policy 
Policy Number H18  
Effective Date November 16, 2015       Amended July 12, 2021 
Approved By Council 
  

PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to provide tenants who are displaced as a result of the redevelopment of 
rental accommodation with enhanced notice and assistance beyond that required under the 
Residential Tenancy Act (RTA). This policy does not replace or affect the requirements in the RTA.  
 
Applicability  
 
The policy applies to all rezoning applications that would result in the demolition of any building or 
combination of buildings containing five or more dwelling units occupied by tenants as their primary 
place of residence at the time of submission of the application. This includes rental units in single 
family homes, duplexes and coach houses, strata units operating as rental units, and purpose-built 
rental units.  
 
Eligible Tenants 
 
Tenancies active when the Development Application is submitted to the City are eligible for support 
under this policy. Support will be provided on a dwelling unit basis and be distributed to those named 
on the written tenancy agreement. Where there is more than one eligible tenant that resides in the 
dwelling units, tenants should determine among themselves who will be the designated tenant to act 
as the main point of contact, and communicate this decision to the Tenant Relocation Coordinator.  
 
Tenants who move into an existing vacant rental unit after submission of the Development Application 
are not expected to receive the supports offered to pre-existing tenants. The developer is expected to 
notify prospective tenants who wish to move into the building after the Development Application is 
submitted that they will not receive the supports offered to pre-existing tenants. 
 
Exemptions 
 
The policy does not apply to redevelopment that is permitted outright under existing zoning. Tenants 
who move into an existing rental dwelling unit after submission of a rezoning application are not 
expected to receive the same support as pre-existing tenants, and should be notified as such in 
writing prior to signing a rental agreement.  
 
Rezoning applications submitted prior to the adoption date of this updated policy are subject to the 
provisions of the previous 2015 Residential Tenant Displacement Policy.  
 
POLICY 
 
The following elements are requested by the development applicant as a voluntary commitment. 
Adherence to this policy does not guarantee development approval from Council.  

COUNCIL POLICY 
10  Planning and Development 
 



 Residential Tenant Displacement Policy - Page 2 of 5 

Relocation Assistance 
 
The applicant will designate a Tenant Relocation Coordinator to support tenants throughout the 
process, and to aid tenants in finding up to three comparable rental units in the City of North 
Vancouver. The Tenant Relocation Coordinator must be an independent, third party professional to 
ensure parity of support for tenants by a coordinator who is not associated with an individual property 
owner or development applicant. The City will prepare a list of qualified coordinators, however City 
staff will not be directly involved in the selection of the Coordinator or landlord-tenant relationships.  
 
The Tenant Relocation Coordinator should be engaged from the pre-application stage and should 
have regular hours during which they are available to tenants by phone and email. Reasonable 
measures should be taken to ensure that any tenants requesting support in a language other than 
English are provided with information in their preferred language.  
 
The Tenant Relocation Coordinator is expected to be responsible for implementing the Tenant 
Communication Plan so that tenants are proactively engaged and notified of input opportunities 
throughout the development application process. Notifications as part of the Tenant Communication 
Plan should be provided directly to tenants and posted in conspicuous places within the building(s). 
Information on tenant resources, including this Policy, the Residential Tenancy Brach webpage, and 
the Tenant Resource and Advisory Centre should also be provided.  
 
For eligible tenants who want assistance in finding new rental accommodation, the Tenant Relocation 
Coordinator should identify at least three comparable rental dwelling units for each tenant household. 
The comparable units should have the same number of bedrooms as the current unit and be located 
in the City of North Vancouver unless otherwise specified by the household. The comparable units 
should also meet any other needs and/or preferences specified by the tenant household, for example 
around accessibility adaptations or pet restrictions.  
 
The maximum rent for the comparable units found by the Tenant Relocation Coordinator should be no 
more than the greater of: 
 

a) 10% above the tenant’s current rent; or 
b) 10% above the most recently published CMHC median rent level, by number of bedrooms, for 

the City of North Vancouver (or Metro Vancouver, when insufficient rental data is available for 
the size of property within the City).  

 
The Tenant Relocation Coordinator is also expected to help tenants secure identified units, including 
by providing references and arranging viewings for potential units, if requested.  
 
Additional Assistance for Low Income Tenants and Others Facing Barriers  
 
There are many reasons why tenants may require additional assistance with the relocation process – 
for example, elderly residents on fixed incomes, tenants with low incomes, people with disabilities, or 
others who may face barriers to securing appropriate housing in proximity to their support networks.  
 
While individual tenant needs will vary on a case-by-case basis, applicants will be expected to provide 
individualized support to those identified as having additional needs to successfully navigate the 
process of relocation. Tenants potentially in need of additional assistance should be identified in the 
Occupancy Report, however it is possible that additional support needs may not become apparent 
until later in the relocation process. Low income tenants and those with additional housing barriers to 
who do not initially identify a need for additional assistance in the Occupancy Report should not be 
denied reasonable additional assistance at a later date if needed. 



 Residential Tenant Displacement Policy - Page 3 of 5 

This support is in addition to the financial compensation that all tenants are entitled to, and will 
generally be in the form of in-kind services provided by the applicant and/or the Tenant Relocation 
Coordinator. Examples of additional assistance that may be required include: 
 

a) Early communication and notifications, in person if requested;  
b) Additional support with arranging and attending viewings; 
c) Support with accessing social housing or rent supplements; 
d) Connecting with health organizations and non-profit services; and 
e) Free support with activities such as packing. 

 
Generally, a household is considered low income if its income is below 50% of median household 
income for that household size. To simplify the identification of low income tenants for the purposes of 
determining the potential need for additional assistance with relocation, the below thresholds should 
be used as a guide for determining households who are low income: 
 

a) Households without dependents are considered low income when they have a gross annual 
income of less than $35,000; and 

b) Households with dependents are considered low income when they have a gross annual 
income of less than $60,000.  

 
The higher threshold for households with dependents reflects that these households would require at 
a minimum a two bedroom property and have additional households expenses associated with 
supporting dependent(s).  
 
Financial Compensation 
 
The applicant will compensate all eligible tenants with financial assistance equivalent to 4 months’ of 
their current rent. 
 
In addition to this baseline amount, tenants whose tenancy began five or more years prior to the date 
the Development Application is submitted will receive additional financial assistance based on the 
length of time they have resided in the building. This will be calculated at a rate of $25 per month for 
each full month’s tenancy beyond five years.  
 
Length of Tenancy Financial Compensation Amount 
Less than 5 years 4 months’ rent 
More than 5 years 4 months’ rent plus ((total tenancy length in months – 60) x $25) 

 
If an eligible tenant moves our prior to approval of the rezoning application, financial compensation 
(including the moving expenses detailed below) is to be provided to the tenant by the Applicant no 
later than immediately following final adoption of the rezoning bylaw(s). For all other eligible tenants, 
financial compensation is to be provided to the tenant no later than the date they move out, whether 
or not a demolition permit has been obtained or an eviction notice has been served.  
 
Moving Expenses 
 
Tenants will be compensated for moving expenses with a flat rate payment based on number of 
bedrooms. The below amounts should be adjusted upwards annually from the date the policy is 
adopted based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI): 
 

a) $1000 for studio and 1 bedroom units; 
b) $1250 for 2 bedroom units; and 
c) $1500 for 3 bedroom and larger units. 



 Residential Tenant Displacement Policy - Page 4 of 5 

Notice Period  
 
The applicant will provide all tenants with four months’ notice, only after a Demolition Permit is issued 
by the City.  
 
First Right of Refusal  
 
The applicant will provide all displaced tenants the first right of refusal to live in any purpose-built 
rental units in the new building, with the particulars of the units to be negotiated between the property 
owner and individual tenants.  
 
Where the new building includes mid-market rent (MMR) units, tenants will have the first right of 
refusal to rent an MMR unit in the new building, provided the tenant meets the eligibility requirements 
for the MMR unit at the time the unit is first available for rent. To ensure that displaced tenants receive 
notification when the MMR units are becoming available, they will need to confirm during the 
relocation process that they want to exercise their first right of refusal. 
 
SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 
 
The applicant will submit the following documents throughout the development applications and 
approvals process 
 
Development Application 
 
An Occupancy Report and Tenant Relocation Plan are required to be submitted at time of 
Development Application.  
 
The Occupancy Report should contain the following information: 
 

a) Total number of units in building, by unit size (number of bedrooms) and status (occupied or 
vacant); 

b) Type of tenancy (periodic or fixed term) for each tenant households; 
c) Start and, if relevant, end date of tenancy for each tenant household; 
d) Current Rent for each unit; and 
e) Specific tenant households characteristics from the Tenant Household Needs Assessment 

form, should the tenant wish to provide this information (for example, accessibility/mobility 
requirements, pets, proximity to particular amenities such as schools). 

 
The Occupancy Report should comply with data protection and privacy requirements. If tenants do not 
wish to provide information and/or do not wish to engage with the Tenant Relocation Coordinator it 
should be communicated to them that they are still entitled to the other provisions of this Policy 
relating to financial compensation, moving expenses, notice period, and first right of refusal.  
 
The Tenant Relocation Plan should include full information on how the applicant will comply with the 
minimum provisions of the policy throughout the redevelopment process. A detailed Tenant 
Communication Plan should be included alongside commitment to use of an independent Tenant 
Relocation Coordinator and provision of a Tenant Assistance Package that clearly sets out the 
additional assistance that will be provided to displaced tenants should the rezoning application be 
approved.  
 
The Tenant Assistance Package must be distributed to tenants within two weeks of receiving staff 
approval and include the following information as a minimum: 
 



 Residential Tenant Displacement Policy - Page 5 of 5 

a) Timeline and overview of the development application process; 
b) Commitment to provide advanced notice and updates to tenants on Development Information 

Sessions, Council Meetings and Public Hearing related to the application; 
c) Contact information for Tenant Relocation Coordinator; 
d) Responsibilities of the developer to provide financial compensation and other assistance; 
e) Method for low income tenants and others facing barriers to request additional assistance; 
f) A current copy of the British Columbia Residential Tenancy Act; 
g) A copy of the City’s Residential Tenant Displacement Policy; and 
h) Copies of applicable tenant resources. 

 
The applicant is responsible for submitting a copy of all written correspondence and notification to 
tenants to City staff. This correspondence will be included as part of the report to Council for 
consideration of the development application.  
 
Demolition Permit 
 
A final Tenant Relocation Report is required to be submitted prior to issuance of a Demolition Permit 
for the property, as per the format prescribed by the City. As a minimum, this should include: 
 

a) The outcome of the relocation process for displaced tenants, including evidence that tenants 
have been satisfactorily assisted in locating alternative accommodation. Where tenants have 
opted out of relocation assistance, written notice from the tenant must be submitted; 

b) The value of compensation given to each tenant including financial compensation, moving 
expenses, and any additional assistance or services that were provided to the tenant(s); and  

c) Details of all tenants who wish to exercise their first right of refusal for any mid-market rental 
units provided in the new building(s) and how these tenants will be notified when the units 
become available.  

 
Occupancy Permit  
 
Details of all tenants who wish to return to the building and the status of their tenancy must be 
provided prior to the issuance of an Occupancy Permit. In cases where there are more tenants who 
wish to exercise their first right of refusal than available MMR units, the developer will be responsible 
for selecting a tenant in accordance with the provisions of the Housing Agreement associated with the 
development. 
 
AUTHORITY 
 
Local Government Act, RSBC, 1996 
 
DOCUMENT HISTORY 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Date Action By 
November 16, 2015 
July 12, 2021 

Approved 
Amended 

Council 
Council  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877 Document: 2082819-v2 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8877 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra 
Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith Road, CD-741). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lots as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of CD-741 (Comprehensive Development 741 Zone): 

 
 Lots  Block D.L. Plan 
 
 A (Reference Plan 9816) 114 274 878 from RH-1 
 
3. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning 

Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Adding the following section to Section 1100, thereof, after the designation “CD-740 
Comprehensive Development 740 Zone”: 

 
“CD-741 Comprehensive Development 741 Zone” 

 
B. Adding the following to Section 1101, thereof, after the “CD-740 Comprehensive 

Development 740 Zone”: 
 

“CD-741 Comprehensive Development 741 Zone” 
 

In the CD-741 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for 
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking 
shall be as in the 741 RH-1 Zone, except that: 

 
(1) The permitted Principal Use on the Lot shall be limited to: 

 
(a) Rental Apartment Residential Use; 

 
(2) Gross Floor Area 

 
(a) The maximum Gross Floor Area is 2.6 Floor Space Ratio (FSR); 
 
(b) Notwithstanding (2)(a), the Gross Floor Area may be increased as follows: 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877 Document: 2082819-v2 

ADDITIONAL (BONUS) DENSITY 
ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
CATEGORY 

DESCRIPTION ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
(BONUS) 

POLICY 
REFERENCE 

Rental Housing 100 percent 
secured rental 
apartment units 
with a minimum 
of 10 percent of 
the units being 
mid-market 
 

Maximum 910.2 
square metres 
(9797.9 square 
feet) 

As per OCP 
Policy Section 
2.2.1 

 
 Such that the total effective on-site Gross Floor Area is not to exceed 3.3 

FSR; 
 

(3) Lot Coverage 
 

The Principal Building shall not exceed a Lot Coverage of 5765 percent; 
 

(4) Section 510(3), Building Width and Length, shall be waived; 
 
(5) Siting 
 

Sections 513(4) and 513(5) shall be waived and the Principal Building shall be 
sited not less than: 
 
(a) 4.57 metres (15 feet) from a front or rear property line; 
 
(b) 3.20 metres (10.5 feet) from the west property line; 
 
(c) 3.05 metres (10 feet) from the east property line; 

 
(6) Off-Street Parking and Short-Term and Secure Bicycle Parking shall be provided 

in conformity with the requirements of Division IV, Parts 9, and 10A, except that: 
 

(a) The total number of required vehicle parking spaces may be reduced by 
two, of which, a reduction of up to one visitor parking space may be 
permittedA maximum of 39% small car parking spaces may be provided; 

 
(b) Notwithstanding Section (5)(a), the required disability parking shall be 

calculated as per Section 908(11) and may not be reduced; 
 

(7) A building constructed on the lot shall achieve an energy efficiency of Step 3 or 
better, subject to Section 419; 

 
(8) Unit mix within the Rental Apartment Residential Use shall include a minimum 

10 percent of three-bedroom or larger units; 
 

  

Commented [ME1]: Don’t need this—step 3 already a 
requirement of construction regulation bylaw.  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877 Document: 2082819-v2 

(9) All exterior finishes, design and landscaping shall be approved by the Advisory 
Design Panel.  

 
 

READ a first time on the 18th day of October, 
2021. 

READ a second time on the 18th day of 
October, 2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877 Document: 2082819-v3 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8877 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra 
Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith Road, CD-741). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lots as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of CD-741 (Comprehensive Development 741 Zone): 

 
 Lots  Block D.L. Plan 
 
 A (Reference Plan 9816) 114 274 878 from RH-1 
 
3. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning 

Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Adding the following section to Section 1100, thereof, after the designation “CD-740 
Comprehensive Development 740 Zone”: 

 
“CD-741 Comprehensive Development 741 Zone” 

 
B. Adding the following to Section 1101, thereof, after the “CD-740 Comprehensive 

Development 740 Zone”: 
 

“CD-741 Comprehensive Development 741 Zone” 
 

In the CD-741 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for 
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking 
shall be as in the RH-1 Zone, except that: 

 
(1) The permitted Principal Use on the Lot shall be limited to: 

 
(a) Rental Apartment Residential Use; 

 
(2) Gross Floor Area 

 
(a) The maximum Gross Floor Area is 2.6 Floor Space Ratio (FSR); 
 
(b) Notwithstanding (2)(a), the Gross Floor Area may be increased as follows: 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877 Document: 2082819-v3 
 

ADDITIONAL (BONUS) DENSITY 
ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
CATEGORY 

DESCRIPTION ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
(BONUS) 

POLICY 
REFERENCE 

Rental Housing 100 percent 
secured rental 
apartment units 
with a minimum 
of 10 percent of 
the units being 
mid-market 
 

Maximum 910.2 
square metres 
(9797.9 square 
feet) 

As per OCP 
Policy Section 
2.2.1 

 
 Such that the total effective on-site Gross Floor Area is not to exceed 3.3 

FSR; 
 

(3) Lot Coverage 
 

The Principal Building shall not exceed a Lot Coverage of 57 percent; 
 

(4) Section 510(3), Building Width and Length, shall be waived; 
 
(5) Siting 
 

Sections 513(4) and 513(5) shall be waived and the Principal Building shall be 
sited not less than: 
 
(a) 4.57 metres (15 feet) from a front or rear property line; 
 
(b) 3.20 metres (10.5 feet) from the west property line; 
 
(c) 3.05 metres (10 feet) from the east property line; 

 
(6) Off-Street Parking and Short-Term and Secure Bicycle Parking shall be provided 

in conformity with the requirements of Division IV, Parts 9, and 10A, except that: 
 

(a) A maximum of 39% small car parking spaces may be provided; 
 

(7) A building constructed on the lot shall achieve an energy efficiency of Step 3 or 
better, subject to Section 419; 

 
(8) Unit mix within the Rental Apartment Residential Use shall include a minimum 

10 percent of three-bedroom or larger units; 
 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877 Document: 2082819-v3 
 

(9) All exterior finishes, design and landscaping shall be approved by the Advisory 
Design Panel.  

 
 

READ a first time on the 18th day of October, 
2021. 

READ a second time on the 18th day of 
October, 2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923 Document: 2162520-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8923 

A Bylaw to enter into a Housing Agreement (115 East Keith Road) 

WHEREAS Section 483 of the Local Government Act R.S.B.C. 2015 c.1 permits a local 
government to enter into a housing agreement for rental housing. 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2022, 

No. 8923” (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) GP Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East 
Keith Road, CD-741, Rental Housing Commitments). 

 
2. The Council hereby authorizes the agreement substantially in the form attached to this bylaw 

between The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver and Victoria Park (Denna Homes) 
GP Ltd. with respect to the lands referenced as 115 East Keith Road, “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, 
No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8877” (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) GP Ltd. / 
Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith Road, CD-741). 

 
3. The Mayor and Corporate Officer are authorized to execute any documents required to give 

effect to the Housing Agreement. 
 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2022. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER   



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923 Document: 2162520-v1 

PART 2 – TERMS OF INSTRUMENT 
 

RENTAL HOUSING AGREEMENT AND SECTION 219 COVENANT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT dated for reference the _______ day of ________________, 20____. 

BETWEEN: 

VICTORIA PARK (DENNA HOMES) GP LTD., INC.NO.  
600 Mountain Highway 
North Vancouver, BC 
V7J 2L6 
 
(the “Owner”) 

AND: 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER, 
a municipal corporation pursuant to the Local Government Act and 
having its offices at 141 West 14th Street, North Vancouver, 
British Columbia, V7M 1H9 
 
(the “City”) 

WHEREAS: 

A. The Owner is the registered owner of the Lands. 
 
B. The City is a municipal corporation incorporated pursuant to the Community Charter, SBC 

2003, c. 26.  

C. Section 219 of the Land Title Act, RSBC 1996, c. 250 permits registration of a covenant 
in favour of a municipality in respect of the use of land or the use of a building on or to be 
erected on land, that land is or is not to be built on except in accordance with the covenant 
and that land is not to be subdivided except in accordance with the covenant;. 

D. Section 483 of the Act permits a local government to, by bylaw, enter into a housing 
agreement that may include terms and conditions regarding the occupancy of the housing 
units identified in the agreement, including respecting the form of tenure of the housing 
units, the availability of the housing units to classes of persons, the administration and 
management of the housing units and the rents and lease, sale or share prices that may 
be charged. 

E. The City has enacted a bylaw authorizing this Agreement. 

F. The Owner and the City wish to enter into this Agreement pursuant to Section 219 of the 
Land Title Act and section 483 of the Act. 

 
NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) now paid by the City to 
the Owner and for other good and valuable consideration (the receipt and sufficiency of which the 
Owner hereby acknowledges), the Owner and the City covenant each with the other as follows: 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923 Document: 2162520-v1 

1. DEFINITIONS 
 

(a) “Act” means the Local Government Act, RSBC. 2015 c.1 as amended from time 
to time; 

 
(b) “Affordable Rent" means with respect to each Mid-Market Rental Unit a rent 

payment amount equal to 10% below the “Private Apartment Average Rents” for 
the corresponding bedroom type in the City of North Vancouver as established by 
CMHC’s Housing Market Information Portal for the year the tenancy is entered 
into; 

 
(c) “Agreement” means this agreement as amended from time to time; 
 
(d) “Commencement Date” has the meaning set out in section 2.1 herein; 
 
(e) “Council” means the municipal council for the City of North Vancouver; 
 
(f) “CMHC” means Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation; 
 
(g) “Director of Planning” means the chief administrator of the Department of 

Planning of the City and his or her successors in function and their respective 
nominees; 

 
(h) “Dwelling Unit” means a dwelling unit as defined in the City of North Vancouver’s 

“Zoning Bylaw 1995, No. 6700” as amended from time to time; 
 
(i) “Lands” means those lands and premises legally described as: 

 
Parcel Identifier: 009-870-822 
Lot A 
Block 114 
District Lot 274 
Plan 878; 

 
(j) “Mid-Market Rental Units” means the 8 Dwelling Units in the Residential Building 

to be constructed on the Lands that are rented to tenants for Affordable Rent; 
 
(k) “Market Rental Units” means all Dwelling Units in the Residential Building other 

than the Mid-Market Rental Units; 
 

(l) “Maximum Household Income” means an annual gross household income 
determined by multiplying Affordable Rent by 12 to yield the households’ annual 
housing costs, and divided by 30% (0.30) to meet the standard definition of 
affordability. 

 
(m) “Rental Purposes” means an occupancy or intended occupancy which is or would 

be governed by a tenancy agreement as defined in Section 1 of the Residential 
Tenancy Act, SBC 2002 c. 78 as amended from time to time between the Owner 
and the tenant; 

 
(n) “Rental Units” means the Market Rental Units and the Mid-Market Rental Units; 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923 Document: 2162520-v1 

(o) “Residential Building” means the six storey building to be constructed on the 
Lands to be used for Rental Purposes with 74 Dwelling Units; 

 
(p) “RT Act” means the Residential Tenancy Act, SBC 2002 c. 78; 

 
(q) “Rezoning Bylaw” means the rezoning bylaw applicable to the Lands described 

as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8896”;  
 
(r) “Section 219 Covenant” means a covenant pursuant to Section 219 of the Land 

Title Act;  
 
(s) “Tenancy Agreement” means an agreement, whether written or oral, express or 

implied, between the Owner and a tenant respecting possession or occupancy of 
a Rental Unit; and 

 
(t) “Term” has the meaning set out in section 2.1 herein. 

 
2. TERM 
 
2.1 This Agreement will commence upon adoption by the City’s Council of “Housing Agreement 

Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923” (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) GP Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 
115 East Keith Road, CD-741, Rental Housing Commitments) (the “Commencement 
Date”) and will continue until the date this Agreement is terminated in accordance with 
sections 2.2 or 8.3(c) (the “Term”). 

 
2.2 This Agreement will terminate immediately upon the removal or destruction of the Residential 

Building provided the Residential Building is not repaired or rebuilt following the destruction 
thereof. 

 
2.3 Subject to section 7.3, upon termination of this Agreement, this Agreement will be at an end 

and of no further force and effect. 
 
3. SECTION 219 COVENANT  
 
3.1 The Owner covenants and agrees with the City as a covenant in favour of the City pursuant 

to Section 219 of the Land Title Act, RSBC 1996, c. 250 that during the Term of this 
Agreement, it being the intention and agreement of the Owner that the provisions in this 
Agreement be annexed to, and run with and be a charge upon the Lands, that 
notwithstanding the Rezoning Bylaw, the Lands shall be used and built on only in strict 
compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that:  

(a) the Lands shall not be subdivided or stratified; 

(b) the Rental Units in the Residential Building shall be used for Rental Purposes only; 
and 

(c) no Rental Unit in the Residential Building shall be occupied for any purpose except 
for Rental Purposes pursuant to a Tenancy Agreement. 

3.2 The Owner further covenants and agrees with the City that the Lands and any buildings 
or structures constructed thereon including the Residential Building shall be developed, 
built, and maintained in accordance with all City bylaws, regulations and guidelines as 
amended from time to time. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 5 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923 Document: 2162520-v1 

3.3 Pursuant to section 219(6) of the Land Title Act, RSBC 1996, c. 250 except for the 
negligence of the City or its employees, agents or contractors, the Owner will indemnify and 
save harmless each of the City and its elected officials, board members, officers, directors, 
employees, and agents, and their heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, 
successors and assigns, from and against all claims, demands, actions, loss, damage, costs 
and liabilities, which all or any of them will or may be liable for or suffer or incur or be put to 
by reason of or arising out of: 

(a) any act or omission, negligent or otherwise, by the Owner, or its officers, directors, 
employees, agents, contractors, or other persons for whom at law the Owner is 
responsible; 

(b) the Owner’s default under this Agreement; and 

(c) the Owner's ownership, operation, management or financing of the Lands for the 
provision of housing for Rental Purposes. 

 
4. TENANCY RESTRICTIONS 
 
4.1 The unit mix for Rental Units in the Residential Building shall be no fewer than 9 units of three 

or more bedrooms, 16 two-bedroom units, 5 one-bedroom units and 44 studio units, or as 
otherwise approved in writing by the Director of Planning in his or her discretion. 

 
4.2 The 8 Mid-Market Rental Units shall be provided in the following unit mix: 5 studio units, 1 

one-bedroom units, 1 two-bedroom unit, and 1 three-bedroom unit. The Owner may only 
change this mix with the approval in writing by the Director of Planning with such approval to 
be granted in his or her discretion. The Owner shall be entitled to determine the locations of 
the 8 Mid-Market Rental Units within the Residential Building. 

 
4.3 The Owner shall enter into a minimum 1 year Tenancy Agreement for each of the Mid-

Market Rental Units which will convert to a month to month tenancy at the end of the 1 year 
term. If such a tenancy is ended prior to the end of the Term, the Owner must rent the Mid-
Market Rental Unit at Affordable Rent.  For greater certainty, at the end of each tenancy, 
the Mid-Market Rental Unit will continue to be rented as a Mid-Market Rental Unit at 
Affordable Rent, which obligation will be ongoing at all times during the Term. 

5. OWNER’S OBLIGATIONS 
 
5.1 Without limiting section 3.1 of this Agreement: 
 

(a) Management and administration: the management, administration, and associated 
costs with the management and administration of the Rental Units, including the 
Mid-Market Rental Units, will be borne by the Owner or its designated rental agent, 
unless otherwise approved by the City in writing; 

 
(b) Advertisement: when the Mid-Market Rental Units first become available, the 

Owner will advertise such units for a minimum of one month on at least two 
common rental property search platforms that allow potential tenants to view 
available properties for rent in North Vancouver without payment of a fee or 
requirement for registration, and the Owner will feature the tenure restrictions set 
out in this Agreement prominently in all advertising of Mid-Market Rental Units; 

 
(c) Engagement of Third Party: the Owner will engage a non-profit third party entity 

(the “Selection Entity”), to be approved by the City, such approval not to 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 6 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923 Document: 2162520-v1 

unreasonably withheld and provided within fifteen (15) days of the Owner’s 
request for approval (the “Approval Period”), to review selection of initial 
prospective tenants for the Mid-Market Rental Units to confirm that the Owner is 
making the Mid-Market Rental Units available in the order of priority set out in 
Section 5.1(d) and that initial tenants meet the eligibility requirements. In the 
event that the City does not approve the Owner’s request within the Approval 
Period, then the Owner’s choice of Selection Entity shall be deemed to be 
approved by the City, provided that the Selection Entity is either a society 
incorporated under the Societies Act, not-for-profit corporation incorporated 
under the Canada Not-for-profit Corporations Act or a registered charity with 
expertise in the area of tenant selection.   

 
(d) Tenant Selection: the Owner will make the Mid-Market Rental Units available in 

the following order of priority: 
 

(i) Tenants from the existing rental building on the Lands will be provided first 
right of refusal in the Mid-Market Rental Units, regardless of income, and 
have first priority, provided that if there are multiple applicants in this 
category for one unit, then applicant families with one or more dependents 
will have priority for units with two or more bedrooms and if applicants are 
equal in this regard, then applications will be considered on a first come-
first-served basis;  

 
(ii) The Owner will then make any remaining Mid-Market Rental Units not 

rented by tenants from the existing building on the Lands available to 
tenants with an annual household income at or below that the Maximum 
Household Income who are either current residents of the City of North 
Vancouver or who work in the City of North Vancouver and have done so 
for at least six months, provided that if there are multiple applicants in this 
category for one unit, then applicant families with one or more 
dependents will have priority for units with two or more bedrooms and if 
applicants are equal in this regard, then applications will be considered on 
a first come-first-served basis;  

 
(iii) If there are any remaining Mid-Market Rental Units not rented by tenants 

who meet the criteria in Sections 5.1(d)(i) or (ii) after the expiry of the one-
month advertising period, then the Owner will make such units available to 
tenants who meet the Maximum Household Income requirement; and 

 
(iv) In determining whether a tenant meets the Maximum Household Income 

requirements, the Owner or its rental agent, so long as it acts honestly and 
in good faith, is entitled to rely on all information provided by the prospective 
tenant and the Owner will have no liability if the prospective tenant 
intentionally or unintentionally provides any incorrect information. The 
Owner is under no obligation to monitor or update the financial 
circumstances of the tenant once the lease is signed.  

 
(e) Rent Amount and Permitted Increases: Affordable Rent for Mid-Market Rental 

Units is to be determined at the time of tenancy. Rent amounts may be 
subsequently increased by the permitted annual rent increase then set under the 
RT Act.  
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 7 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923 Document: 2162520-v1 

(f) Compliance with applicable laws: without restricting the foregoing, the Owner will 
comply with all applicable provisions of the RT Act and any other provincial or 
municipal enactments imposing obligations on landlords in relation to residential 
tenancies; 
 

(g) Performance: the Owner will perform its obligations under this Agreement diligently 
and in good faith; and 
 

(h) Evidence of compliance: provided that the same can be done without breaching 
the Personal Information Protection Act (as amended from time to time) the Owner 
will, at Business License renewal on an annual basis, supply to the City copies of 
any documentation in possession of the Owner necessary to establish compliance 
with the Owner’s obligations under this Agreement. 

 
6. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 
6.1 The City may, acting reasonably, give to the Owner a written notice (in this section 6.1, the 

“Notice”) requiring the Owner to cure a default under this Agreement within 30 days of receipt 
of the Notice. The Notice must specify the nature of the default. The Owner must act with 
diligence to correct the default within the time specified. 

 
6.2 If the default is not corrected within the time specified, the Owner will pay to the City on 

demand by the City 200 percent of the difference between current market rent, as determined 
by a third-party appraiser, and Affordable Rent for each Mid-Market Rental Unit in default for 
the default year to the end of the Term of the Agreement. The monies collected from default 
will be deposited to the City’s Affordable Housing Reserve Fund.  

 
6.3 The Owner will pay to the City on demand by the City all the City's costs of exercising its 

rights or remedies under this Agreement, on a full indemnity basis. 
 
6.4 The Owner acknowledges and agrees that in case of a breach of this Agreement which is 

not fully remediable by the mere payment of money and promptly so remedied, the harm 
sustained by the City and to the public interest will be irreparable and not susceptible of 
adequate monetary compensation. 

 
6.5 Each party to this Agreement, in addition to its rights under this Agreement or at law, will be 

entitled to all equitable remedies including specific performance, injunction and declaratory 
relief, or any of them, to enforce its rights under this Agreement. 

 
6.6 The Owner acknowledges and agrees that it is entering into this Agreement to benefit the 

public interest in providing housing for Rental Purposes, and that the City's rights and 
remedies under this Agreement are necessary to ensure that this purpose is carried out and 
that the City's rights and remedies under this Agreement are fair and reasonable and ought 
not to be construed as a penalty or forfeiture. 

 
6.7 No reference to nor exercise of any specific right or remedy under this Agreement or at law 

or at equity by any party will prejudice, limit or preclude that party from exercising any other 
right or remedy.  No right or remedy will be exclusive or dependent upon any other right or 
remedy, but any party, from time to time, may exercise any one or more of such rights or 
remedies independently, successively, or in combination.  The Owner acknowledges that 
specific performance, injunctive relief (mandatory or otherwise) or other equitable relief may 
be the only adequate remedy of a default by the Owner under this Agreement. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 8 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923 Document: 2162520-v1 

 
7. LIABILITY 
 
7.1 Except for the negligence of the City or its employees, agents or contractors, the Owner will 

indemnify and save harmless each of the City and its elected officials, board members, 
officers, directors, employees, and agents, and their heirs, executors, administrators, 
personal representatives, successors and assigns, from and against all claims, demands, 
actions, loss, damage, costs and liabilities, which all or any of them will or may be liable for 
or suffer or incur or be put to by reason of or arising out of: 

(a) any act or omission by the Owner, or its officers, directors, employees, agents, 
contractors, or other persons for whom at law the Owner is responsible; and 

(b) the Owner's ownership, operation, management or financing of the Lands for the 
provision of housing for Rental Purposes. 

 
7.2 Except to the extent such advice or direction is given negligently, the Owner hereby releases 

and forever discharges the City, its elected officials, board members, officers, directors, 
employees and agents, and its and their heirs, executors, administrators, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns from and against all claims, demands, damages, 
actions or causes of action by reason of or arising out of advice or direction respecting the 
ownership, operation or management of the Lands for the provision of housing for Rental 
Purposes which has been or hereafter may be given to the Owner by all or any of them. 

 
7.3 The covenants of the Owner set out in sections 7.1 and 7.2 of this Agreement will survive the 

expiration or the earlier termination of this Agreement and will continue to apply to any breach 
of the Agreement and to any claims arising under this Agreement during the ownership by 
the Owner of the Lands. 

 
8. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
8.1 The Owner agrees to reimburse the City for all legal costs reasonably incurred by the City for 

the preparation, execution and registration of this Agreement.  The Owner will bear their own 
costs, legal or otherwise, connected with the preparation, execution or registration of this 
Agreement. 

 
8.2 Nothing in this Agreement: 

(a) affects or limits any discretion, rights, powers, duties or obligations of the City under 
any enactment or at common law, including in relation to the use or subdivision of 
land; 

(b) affects or limits any enactment relating to the use of the Lands or any condition 
contained in any approval including any development permit concerning the 
development of the Lands; or 

(c) relieves the Owner from complying with any enactment, including the City's bylaws 
in relation to the use of the Lands. 

 
8.3 The Owner and the City agree that: 

(a) this Agreement is entered into only for the benefit of the City; 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 9 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923 Document: 2162520-v1 

(b) this Agreement is not intended to protect the interests of the Owner, occupier or user 
of the Lands or any portion of it including the Rental Units and the Limited Common 
Property; and 

(c) without limiting part 2 of this Agreement, the City may at any time execute a release 
and discharge of this Agreement in respect of the Lands, without liability to anyone 
for doing so. 

 
8.4 This Agreement burdens and runs with the Lands and any part into which any of them may 

be subdivided or consolidated, by strata plan or otherwise.  All of the covenants and 
agreements contained in this Agreement are made by the Owner for itself, its successors 
and assigns, and all persons who acquire an interest in the Lands after the date of this 
Agreement.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Owner will not be liable for 
any breach of any covenant, promise or agreement herein in respect of any portion of the 
Lands sold, assigned, considered or otherwise disposed of, occurring after the Owner has 
ceased to be the owner of the Lands. 

 
8.5 The covenants and agreements on the part of the Owner in this Agreement have been made 

by the Owner as contractual obligations as well as being made pursuant to section 483 of 
the Act and as such will be binding on the Owner. 

 
8.6 The Owner will, at its expense, do or cause to be done all acts reasonably necessary to 

ensure this Agreement is registered against the title to the Lands, including any amendments 
to this Agreement as may be required by the Land Title Office or the City to effect such 
registration. 

 
8.7 The City and the Owner each intend by execution and delivery of this Agreement to create 

both a contract and a deed under seal. 
 
8.8 An alleged waiver by a party of any breach by another party of its obligations under this 

Agreement will be effective only if it is an express waiver of the breach in writing.  No waiver 
of a breach of this Agreement is deemed or construed to be a consent or waiver of any other 
breach of this Agreement. 

 
8.9 If a Court of competent jurisdiction finds that any part of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable, that part is to be considered to have been severed from the rest of this 
Agreement and the rest of this Agreement remains in force unaffected by that holding or by 
the severance of that part. 

 
8.10 Every obligation of a party which is set out in this Agreement will extend throughout the Term 

and, to the extent that any obligation ought to have been observed or performed prior to or 
upon the expiry or earlier termination of the Term, such obligation will survive the expiry or 
earlier termination of the Term until it has been observed or performed. 

 
8.11 All notices, demands, or requests of any kind, which a party may be required or permitted to 

serve on another in connection with this Agreement, must be in writing and may be served 
on the other parties by registered mail, by facsimile or e-mail transmission, or by personal 
service, to the following address for each party: 

 
 City:  The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
   141 West 14th Street 
   North Vancouver, British Columbia 
   V7M 1H9 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 10 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923 Document: 2162520-v1 

   Attention: Director, Planning 
   Facsimile: 604.985.0576 
 

The Owner: Victoria Park (Denna Homes) GP Ltd., Inc 
600 Mountain Highway 
North Vancouver, BC 
V7J 2L6 

 
Service of any such notice, demand, or request will be deemed complete, if made by 
registered mail, 72 hours after the date and hour of mailing, except where there is a postal 
service disruption during such period, in which case service will be deemed to be complete 
only upon actual delivery of the notice, demand or request; if made by facsimile or e-mail 
transmission, on the first business day after the date when the facsimile or e-mail 
transmission was transmitted; and if made by personal service, upon personal service being 
effected.  Any party, from time to time, by notice in writing served upon the other parties, may 
designate a different address or different or additional persons to which all notices, demands, 
or requests are to be addressed. 
 

8.12 Upon request by the City, the Owner will promptly do such acts and execute such documents 
as may be reasonably necessary, in the opinion of the City, to give effect to this Agreement. 

 
8.13 This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding upon each of the parties and their 

successors and permitted assigns. 
 
9. INTERPRETATION 
 
9.1 Gender specific terms include both genders and include corporations.  Words in the singular 

include the plural, and words in the plural include the singular. 
 
9.2 The division of this Agreement into sections and the use of headings are for convenience of 

reference only and are not intended to govern, limit or aid in the construction of any provision.  
In all cases, the language in this Agreement is to be construed simply according to its fair 
meaning, and not strictly for or against either party. 

 
9.3 The word "including" when following any general statement or term is not to be construed to 

limit the general statement or term to the specific items which immediately follow the general 
statement or term to similar items whether or not words such as "without limitation" or "but 
not limited to" are used, but rather the general statement or term is to be construed to refer 
to all other items that could reasonably fall within the broadest possible scope of the general 
statement or term. 

 
9.4 The words "must" and "will" are to be construed as imperative. 
 
9.5 Any reference in this Agreement to any statute or bylaw includes any subsequent 

amendment, re-enactment, or replacement of that statute or bylaw. 
 
9.6 This is the entire agreement between the City and the Owner concerning its subject, and 

there are no warranties, representations, conditions or collateral agreements relating to the 
subject matter of this Agreement, except as included in this Agreement.  This Agreement 
may be amended only by a document executed by the parties to this Agreement and by 
bylaw, such amendment to be effective only upon adoption by City Council of an amending 
bylaw to “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923”. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 11 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8923 Document: 2162520-v1 

 
9.7 This Agreement is to be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of British Columbia. 
 
9.8 This Agreement can be signed in counterpart. 

IN WITNESS OF THIS AGREEMENT the City and the Owner have executed this Agreement by 
signing the “Form C – General Instrument – Part 1” or “Form D – Executions Continued” attached 
hereto. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



To: 

From: 

}!ln, ~ (/JJ 
Director CAO 

Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Matthew Menzel, Planner 2 

REPORT 

Subject: REZONING APPLICATION: 114-132 WEST 15TH STREET (POLYGON 
DEVELOPMENT 338 LTD./ IBI GROUP ARCHITECTS, CD-752) AND 
TEXT AMENDMENT: CENTENNIAL THEATRE, 2300 LONSDALE 
AVENUE, 116 EAST 23Ro STREET AND NORSEMAN PARK (HARRY 
JEROME NEIGHBOURHOOD LANDS, CD-165) 

Date: April 13, 2022 File No: 08-3400-20-0060/1 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated April 13, 2022, entitled 
"Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 
Ltd./ IBI Group Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 
2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (Harry 
Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165)": 

THAT "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8921" 
(Polygon Development 338 Ltd./ IBI Group Architects, 114-132 West 15th Street, 
CD-752 (the Density Receiver Site)) and Text Amendment to Centennial Theatre, 
2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street, and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome 
Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) be considered and referred to a Public Hearing; 

THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act; 

THAT the community benefits listed in the report section "Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits" be secured through agreements at the applicant's expense 
and to the satisfaction of staff; 

THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the necessary 
documentation to permit solar shades, which are permanently affixed to the 
proposed building as an encroachment over City property; 

Document Number: 2141881 V2 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd./ 181 Group 
Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street 
and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

AND THAT the Mayor and the Corporate Officer be authorized to sign any other 
necessary documentation to give effect to this motion . 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Context Map (CityDocs 2143937) 
2. Architectural Plans, dated April 8, 2022 (CityDocs 2169008) 

3. Landscape Plans, dated April 6, 2022 (CityDocs 2169218) 

4. Advisory Design Panel Resolution, dated November 26, 2021 (CityDocs 2121051 ) 
5. Integrated Transportation Committee Resolution, dated February 2, 2022 (CityDocs 

2143724) 
6. Developer Information Session Summary (CityDocs 2133697) 
7. "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8921" (CityDocs 

2158824) 

SUMMARY 

The purpose of this report is to present, for Council consideration, a rezoning 
application for 114-132 West 15th Street (the "subject site") to amend the Zoning Bylaw 
to permit a 22-storey mixed-use commercial and residential development. The proposal 
would replace the existing commercial uses. 

Also included in the proposal is a transfer of density from the Harry Jerome 
Neighbourhood Lands to the subject site to facilitate the redevelopment. 

Table 1. Project Information 

Applicant: Polyqon Development 338 Ltd. 
Architect: IBI Group 
Official Community Plan Mixed Use Level 4B (MU4B) 
Designation: 

ExistinQ ZoninQ: Central Lonsdale Mixed Use B (C-1 B) Zone 
Applicable Guidelines: N/A 

DISCUSSION 

Site and Surrounding Uses 

This 2,341 .7 square metre (25,206 square foot) site is located mid-block along the 100 
block of West 15th Street, with a frontage of 54.8 metres (180 feet) along West 15th 
Street. Surrounding uses are provided in Table 2. 

Page 2 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd./ 181 Group 
Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street 
and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Table 2. Surrounding Uses 

Direction Address 1 Zoning Description OCP 
Mixed Use - Level 4B (High 

North 
113-121 W 16th ~16 storey mixed Density) 
St 

CD Zone 
use Max. 3.0 FSR with 1.0 FSR 

(across 
131-133 W 16th 1 storey mixed bonus density 

lane) 
St use Max. Height 68m (approx. 

22 storeys) 
Mixed Use - Level 4B (High 

South 121 W 15th St ~15-16 storey Density) 

(across W 133-141 W 15th CD Zone 
residential / Max. 3.0 FSR with 1.0 FSR 
seniors care bonus density 

15th St) St facility Max. Height 68m (approx. 
22 storeys) 
Mixed Use - Level 4B (High 

East 
Density) 

(across 
1501 Lonsdale 

C-1A 
2 storey mixed Max. 3.0 FSR with 1.0 FSR 

Ave use bonus density 
lane) 

Max. Height 37m (approx. 
12 storeys) 
Mixed Use - Level 4B (High 
Density) 

West 
138-150 W 15th 

CD Zone 18 storey mix use Max. 3.0 FSR with 1.0 FSR 
St bonus density 

Max. Height 68m (approx. 
22 storeys) 

Proposal 

The application proposes a 22-storey mixed-use building, with two levels of commercial 
uses, including retail and services at ground level, office commercial uses at level two, 
and 20 levels of strata residential units within the upper levels. Parking access is 
provided off the rear lane to the north. Table 3 provides an overview of the proposed 
development. 

Table 3: Development Proposal Overview 

Element Proposal 

Density 

Commercial Retail 
Space 

7.05 FSR 

Total of 2,270 square metres (24,437 square feet) or 0.97 FSR, 
including: 

• 692 square metres (7,452 square feet) of retail at 
Ground Level; 

• 1,577 square metres (16,985 square feet) of office at 
Level 2. 

Page 3 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd./ 181 Group 
Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street 
and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Element Proposal 

Unit Mix 136 residential strata units, including : 

• 38 one-bed units (28%); 

• 77 two-bed units (57%); and 

• 21 three-bed units (15%) . 

Adaptable Units 38 Level 2 adaptable units (28%) 

Residential Indoor - 107 square metres. (1,155 sq. ft.) 
Amenity Outdoor - approx. 609 square metres (6,555 sq. ft.) 

Policy Context and Planning Analysis 

The subject site is designated Mixed Use Level 4B (High Density) in the Official 
Community Plan (OCP). This designation allows for a mix of higher-density multi-family 
and commercial uses with a maximum density of 4.0 FSR (including 1.0 bonus FSR). A 
maximum height of 68 metres (approximately 22 storeys) is permitted. 

Land Use 
The proposed mix of commercial and residential uses are appropriate along the Central 
Lonsdale corridor, which is envisioned as a key growth corridor in the City. 

The ground floor retail space as well as second floor office commercial uses are 
strongly supported as they would contribute to the vibrancy and economic development 
of Central Lonsdale. 

The proposed strata residential use meets the policy objective of increasing diverse 
housing stock within the City. The proposed mix of unit types meets directions of the 
Housing Action Plan , including delivery of a minimum of 10% three-bedroom units to 
support families. The proposal also meets the Zoning Bylaw minimum requirement for 
25% of units designed to Level 2 Adaptable Design . 

Built Form & Urban Design 
The proposed built form is consistent with the character of the neighbourhood. The 
proposed height at 68 metres (and 22 storeys) complies with the OCP and ensures the 
building integrates with existing and future developments on adjoining lots, as well as 
establishes and continues the existing podium wall along West 15th Street. 

Tower positioning and floor plate design have been considered through the 
development of the design scheme to minimize potential impacts on private views for 
adjoining strata units to the full extent possible. 

Extensive glazing treatments within the design of ground floor retail and commercial 
uses would enliven the streets (both along West 15th Street and the north-south 
laneway). The development will also deliver two publicly accessible pedestrian plazas in 
the northeast and southeast corners, with opportunities for a public art installation to 

Page 4 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd. / 181 Group 
Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street 
and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

create an attractive public realm, potentially in the form of a seating element. These 
plazas, along with publicly accessible sidewalk, will be secured for public use though a 
statutory right of way. 

A high level of laneway activation and casual surveillance is also achieved through: 
incorporating glazing treatments to the eastern elevation of the retail corner; positioning 
of the office lobby adjacent to the eastern laneway; position of the commercial end
destination facilities; location of a secondary residential access point and resident 
bicycle amenity adjacent to the eastern laneway; and orientating the communal outdoor 
amenity area and upper level. private balconies towards the laneway. 

Density 
The proposed density is 7.05 FSR and consists of two components: 

1. The OCP permits a maximum density of 4.0 FSR (including 1.0 FSR bonus 
density) for the Mixed Use Level 4B land use designation; and 

2. A transfer of density of 7,152.9 square metres (76,993 square feet). 

The transferred density is from the City's Harry Jerome Lands and will allow for the 
delivery of new employment generating uses and residential strata units, which would 
contribute to economic growth along the Lonsdale Corridor and provide new housing 
stock in the City. 

There are few locations in the City's Mixed Use Level 4B (Medium Density) land use 
designations that can accommodate additional (i.e. transfer) density without the 
resultant building forms exceeding the height limits established in the OCP. The subject 
site is one of those few locations. The OCP allows for a maximum of 68 metres 
(approximately 22 storeys) on the subject site. The proposed increase in density will not 
result in an increase in building height beyond what is permitted by OCP. 

In summary, based on staff support of the built form and urban design of the proposal, 
the total proposed density on the site is also supported. The proposed density transfer 
is discussed in greater depth below. 

Zoning Variances 
The proposed Comprehensive Development Zone will be based off of Central Lonsdale 
Mixed Use B (C-1 B) Zone, consistent with the current zoning and surrounding land . To 
allow the massing, the proposed bylaw would include the modifications to the C-1 B 
zone base density, building height, flanking lane siting and building width, as outlined 
below. Key variances are discussed in this section. 

Table 4. Summary of Proposed Zoning Changes 

BASE C-18 ZONE PROPOSED CD-749 ZONE 
Permitted 
Principal 
Uses 

Retail-Service Group 1 
Accessory Residential and 
Parking Uses 

Retail-Service Group 1A 
Accessory Residential Uses at 
ground level 

Page 5 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd./ 181 Group 
Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street 
and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

BASE C-1 B ZONE PROPOSED CD-749 ZONE 
Retail-Service Group 1 at second 
level and above 
Accessory Parking Uses 

Density ·2.6 FSR 7.05 FSR 
Maximum 
Lot Coverage 90 percent, reduced to 35 68.5 percent, reduced to 30. 7 
Maximum percent above the second storey percent above the second level 

(no change to C-1 B zone) 
Height 36.6 metres (120 feet) 68 metres (as per the OCP) 
Maximum 
Siting 3.048 metres (10 feet) from the 2.1 metres (7 feet) 

flanking lane 
6.096 metres (20 feet) from the 6.1 metres (20 feet) (no change 
rear lot line to C-1 B zone) 

Building Shall not exceed a horizontal Waived 
Width & width or length of 51. 816 metres 
Length (170 feet) above the second 

storey and 30.48 metres (100 
feet) above third storey 

Flanking Lane Setback 

The C-18 zone requires a minimum setback of 3.048 metres (10 feet) from the flanking 
easterly lane. The application proposes 3.6 metres (12 feet) setback at ground floor and 
2.1 metres (6.9 feet) on the second floor. 

As discussed, the development achieves excellent laneway activation through active 
use and pedestrian amenities at grade level. The second floor office spaces are also 
strongly supported. The second floor overhang over the ground floor at southeast 
corner and this is where the 2.1 metres (6.9 feet) setback is measured from. Staff 
support this minor variation to the setback as it helps to establish an appropriate 
commercial podium and contribute to the overall laneway activation strategy. The 
overhang will create a covered area/corner plaza at grade, providing gathering space 
and weather protection for pedestrians and shoppers. 

Building Width and Length 

The building is composed of a two storey podium and 20 storeys of tower. It proposes 
minor variations to the building width and length requirements of the C-1 B zone -
building width of 52.6 metres (172.6 feet) at the podium level and approximately 25.74 
metres (82 feet) by 31 metres (102 feet) of a tower plate. 

As outlined under Built Form and Urban Design section of the report, the application has 
a well considered massing strategy and the tower placement/floor plate configuration is 
designed to minimize view and privacy impacts to surrounding tower developments. 
Staff support the minor variations proposed in the application. 

Page 6 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd. / 181 Group 
Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street 
and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Transportation, Parking and Loading 
The site is located in the Lonsdale Regional City Centre, with shops and amenities 
within a short walking distance. Transit access is provide on two Frequent Transit 
Routes providing strong connections along Lonsdale Avenue, to Lynn Valley Centre and 
to Downtown Vancouver. For vehicles, the site fronts West 15th Street ·which is 
designated as a collector road. 

The application proposes vehicle access to the underground parkade from the northerly 
lane. Two loading bays and five surfac'e commercial parking spaces (including one 
disability space) are also provided adjacent to this lane. The loading design would 
ensure that all commercial and residential loading, including garbage and recycling , 
would be undertaken on-site and would not impact the functionality of the road network. 

Overall, the application meets the parking and loading requirements of the Zoning 
Bylaw. The relevant statistics are provided in Table 5. 

Table 5: Proposed Vehicle and Bicycle Parking 

Car 
Parking 

Bicycle 
Parking 

Provided 

Total of 198 spaces, comprised of: 

• 158 resident parking spaces 
(including six disability spaces); 

o 1.16 spaces per unit; 

• 10 residential visitor spaces; 

• 26 commercial spaces (including one 
disability spaces); 

• Four shared residential visitor / 
commercial spaces (including one 
disability space) . 

Provided 

Residential: 

• Secure - 204 spaces; 

• Short Term - 14 spaces. 

Required by Zoning Bylaw 

• 143 resident spaces, 
including 14 visitor 
parking spaces; 

• 30 commercial spaces. 

Required by Zoning Bylaw 

Residential: 

• Secure - 204 spaces; 

• Short Term - 14 spaces. 

Note: 11 of the 366 secure spaces Commercial: 

Loading 
Spaces 

have been provided for larger cargo 
bikes. 

Commercial: 

• Secure - 10 spaces; 

• Short Term - 15 spaces. 

Two (2) at-grade loading bays. 

• Secure - 9 spaces; 

• Short Term - 14 spaces. 

Two (2) loading bays. 

Page 7 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd./ 181 Group 
Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street 
and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Visitor Vehicle Parking 
The proposed development involves a minor variation to the proposed visitor car 
parking. Specifically, only 10 residential visitor car parking spaces will be provide in lieu 
of the required 14 spaces. 

The development has proposed to allocate four of the commercial parking spaces to be 
shared with the proposed residential visitor spaces. Given the commercial parking and 
visitor parking will have different peak use times, the shared arrangement for these four 
spaces will make better use of the overlapping parking demands generated by the 
commercial uses and residential visitors. Use of the visitor car parking space will be 
managed through the strata of the building, and the terms can be outlined in the 
development covenant. 

Further, the subject site is located in a centralized location, along a frequent transit 
corridor with inbound and outbound bus stops located within 75 metres of the site. On 
this basis, it is anticipated that the majority of visitor trips to the site will be by transit and 
active transportation modes. The proposed development has provided 14 residential 
visitor bicycle parking spaces adjacent to the lobby, to promote use of active 
transportation. The commercial parking provided will reduced on-street parking 
pressure, reducing delay to Transit on the 100 block of West 15th caused by parking 
maneuvers. 

Because of the expected reduced demand for parking on the site, the proposed 
variance is supported . 

Off-Site Works and Infrastructure Upgrades 
The proposed development will involve appropriate off-site streetscape upgrades, 
consistent with the Subdivision and Development Control Bylaw. This includes the 
reconstruction of the frontage works along West 15th Street, with all of the existing street 
trees being retained. The development will also involve repaving the adjoining laneway 
to the northern and eastern boundaries. 

The applicant has offered to make a financial contribution of $100,000 towards the 
upgrade of the signals at the intersections at West 15th Street and Lonsdale Avenue, 
and West 15th Street and Chesterfield Avenue. 

Density Bonus and Community Benefits 

In accordance with the Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy, the application is 
eligible for density bonuses up to 4.0 FSR, in exchange for community amenity 
contribution (CAC). The estimated value of the CAC is shown in Table 8. 

Table 8. Estimated Value of Community Benefits through Density Bonusing 

Density Value Calculation Value 

Density Bonus to 3.0 FSR / OCP Density(@ $25 /sq.ft.) $252,060 

Density Bonus to 4.0 FSR Max Bonus (@ $190 I sq . ft.) $4,789,140 

Page 8 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd./ 181 Group 
Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street 
and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Total Value of Community Benefits 

The policy further outlines the community benefits can be provided as in-kind amenities 
or cash amenity, to be determined through the rezoning application review process. For 
this project, the applicant is proposing a mini-plant shell space for the Lonsdale Energy 
Corporation (LEG) at P1 level. The LEG mini-plant shell space, with a total area of 
approximately 250 square metres (2,691 square feet), is intended to add a notable 
amount of low-carbon heating capacity to the Community Energy System and to support 
LEC's decarbonization process. With the guidance of a third party valuation, staff have 
assessed this offer and concurred with the applicant's valuation report of $1,488,000 for 
the shell space, and recommend proceeding with securing this space. 

Legal agreements will be drafted to ensure the shell space is delivered to the City to the 
satisfaction of Director of Strategic Initiatives, in consultation with the Executive Director 
of LEG. 

Density Transfer 
As mentioned previously in this report, this project includes the proposed purchase of 
transfer density from the Harry Jerome Lands as the density donor site (2300 Lonsdale 
Avenue and 116 East 23rd Street, CD-165), in accordance with Section 2.3 of the 
Official Community Plan. Such transfers reallocate density from one site to another and 
do not increase the overall density contemplated by the OCP. 

The applicant is proposing to purchase the additional density from the City at the current 
market value for residential units in a concrete tower. For a purchase of 3.05 FSR 
(7152.9 square metres or 76,993 square feet) of transfer density at a rate of $250 per 
square foot, it will result in an estimated cash contribution to the City of approximately 
$19,248,250, which will allocated towards the Civic Amenity Reserve Fund. 

Table 9 outlines the total monetary value this project would generate, including CAC 
and density purchase, as well as its allocations. 

T. bl 9 T, t I P . t M t C t "b f" d All f" 

Community Density Transfer Total 
Benefits 

In-kind Amenity $1,488,000 - $1,488,000 

Civic Amenity Reserve $2,544,960 $19,248,250 $21 ,793,210 
Fund Contribution 

Affordable Housing $1,008,240 - $1,008,240 
Reserve Fund 
Contribution 

Total $5,041,200 $19,248,250 $24,289,450 

Page 9 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd./ 181 Group 
Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street 
and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Further, the following items would be secured as additional benefits to the community 
through this application: 

• public art with a value of $300,000 (approximately 1 % of the construction costs); 
• public access right-of-way along the eastern boundary, and within the north-east 

and south-east corner of the site to provide public access to the proposed plaza 
areas; and 

• a financial contribution of $100,000 for the upgrade of the signals at the 
intersection at West 15th Street and Lonsdale Avenue, and West 15th Street and 
Chesterfield Avenue. 

Legal Agreements 

The following would be secured as conditions of this rezoning: 

• Development Covenant; 
• Servicing Agreement; 
• Shoring, Crane Swing, and Staging License Agreement; 
• Flooding Covenant; 
• Community Energy Agreement with Statutory Right of Way for Mini-Plant Shell 

Space; 
• Pedestrian Statutory Rights of Way for public plaza areas and sidewalk and 

pedestrian access; 
• Good Neighbour Agreement; 
• Encroachment agreement for solar shades; and 
• Off-site Stormwater Management Encroachment Agreement. 

ADVISORY BODY INPUT 

Advisory Design Panel 

The application was reviewed by the Advisory Design Panel (ADP) on November 17, 
2021. The Panel unanimously recommended approval of the proposal without any 
conditions. 

Integrated Transportation Committee 

The application was reviewed by the Integrated Transpiration Committee (ITC) on 
January 5, 2022. The Panel unanimously supported the proposal and made the 
following recommendation: 

• That the developer include larger bike parking facilities to accommodate cargo 
bikes; and 

• That the developer explore opportunities for car share parking in the building. 

Revised designs were subsequently submitted that address the above concerns to the 
satisfaction of City staff. This includes the provision of 11 cargo bike spaces within the 
P1 Level. 

Page 10 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd. / 181 Group 
Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street 
and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Additionally, one of the parking spaces at-grade, adjacent to the laneway has been 
allocated as a potential future car share space. 

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION 

A Developer's Information Session was held on December 14, 2021 and was attended 
by 28 members of the public. A total of four comment forms were submitted and three 
emails were received; three indicated support for the project, and four were opposed. 

A petition with 54 signatures was also submitted from residents of the nearby building at 
121 West 15th Street. 

The main reasons for support were: 
• The building design; 
• Streetscape and public realm improvements; 
• The number of parking stalls and electric vehicle charging infrastructure; and 
• Improvements to traffic congestion along 15th Street and the lane. 

The main concerns were: 
• Building height, view impacts and tower separation; and 
• Traffic impacts on adjoining residents. 

A summary of the public consultation, as prepared by the applicant, is available in 
Attachment #6. 

Staff responses 

Building Height, View impacts and Tower Separation 
The tower positioning and floor plate design have been considered through the 
development of the design scheme to minimize potential impacts on view corridors to 
the full extent possible. The View Analysis prepared by IBI Group has determined that 
positioning the tower towards the west results in less impacts on views compared to 
other locations on the site. Furthermore, the tower floorplates have been designed with 
a truncation in the north-west portion, which is determined to minimise impacts on the 
view corridors from the building to the north at 113-121 West 16th Street. 

The proposed development has been designed to meet the building height outcomes 
specified in the OCP, i.e. 68 metres. The tower level floorplates have been designed 
generally in accordance with the building width standards for the C-1 B zone. It is 
important to consider that any decrease in building height would result in a wider 
floorplate, causing more adverse impacts on view corridors. The slender tower format is 
deemed appropriate as it will lessen impacts on view corridors for surrounding 
residents. 

While there is likely to be some impact on existing views, the OCP does not guarantee 
that views will be preserved through redevelopment which is anticipated in the City. This 
is especially true in the Regional City Centre which is envisaged to accommodate 

Page 11 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 114-132 West 15th Street (Polygon Development 338 Ltd./ 181 Group 
Architects, CD-752) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street 
and Norseman Park (Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165) 
Date: April 13, 2022 

regional-scale employment, services, business and commercial activities, along with 
high density housing. 

Traffic Impacts: 
A Transportation Study was completed for the proposed development and 
demonstrated that the surrounding road network and intersections can accommodate 
the future traffic from the development with minimal additional delay. Traffic in the lane 
specifically will increase, since the proposed development will have increased parking 
accessed from the lane. The site will generate approximately 2 vehicles per minute in 
the busiest hour (PM Peak hour), however with this additional traffic the lane will still 
function as intended. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

As discussed under the Density Bonus and Community Benefits section, this 
application, if approved , would generate the following monetary benefits for the city: 

• Cash community benefit contribution: $3,553,200; 
• Purchase of density from the City: $19,248,250; 
• Total monetary contribution (sum of the above two items): $22,801,450; and, 
• An LEC mini-plant room, with a value of $1,488,000. 

These financial benefits are in addition to other City requirements such as DCCs, utility 
upgrades, intersection upgrades and public art. 

CONCLUSION 

This application has been assessed and it is in alignment with goals and objectives of 
the Regional Growth Strategy (Metro 2040), OCP and Council Strategic Plan to intensify 
employment generating uses, and to increase and diversify the residential housing 
stock within the Lonsdale Regional City Centre. The proposal will also contribute funds 
to support community amenities and enhancements through the Capital Plan process. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Matthew Menzel 
Planner 2 

Page 12 of 12 



E 17th St

E 15th St

St
.G

eo
r g

e s
A v

e

Lo
ns

da
le 

Av
e

Ch
es

ter
fie

ld 
Av

e

E 14th StW 14th St

Ea
ste

rn
 A

ve

W 15th St

W 16th St

W 17th St

1
4

3

2
5

8

1 6 2 1

1 6 5 0

1
3

7

1
4

5

1 7 0 2

1 4 1 5

2
3

4

1 6 1

1
3

5

2
4

5

1
1

7

2 1 0

1 5 3 8

1
4

5

1
2

0

1 5 3 6

1 5 0 0

1
3

0

1 5 9 8

1 4 2 0

1 5 1 5

1 6 1 6

2
4

9

1
2

1

1 3 4 5

1 6 2 8

1 5 5 0

1
5

1

1 5 5 0

1
5

4

1
5

5
5

2 6 1

1 5 0

2 5 1 2 2 5

1 4 0

1 7 2 9

1 5 5 0

1
5

0
1

1 4 5 2

2
2

5

1
7

5

1
2

2

1 4 4

1 3 5 0

1 6 3 2

1 5 3 5

2
1

4

1 4 4 1

1
3

1

2
3

7

1 6 0 1

1 4 5 0

1 5 2 8

1
2

8

1
1

7

1
4

0
0

1 6 2 5

1 5 4 41
3

9

1 7 0 1

1
4

4
5

2
2

0

1 5 3 1

1 4 1 5

2
4

3

1 7 1 5

1 4 0

1 4 4 5

1
7

1
2

1
3

6

1
1

7

2 8 4

2
5

6

1
1

3

2
2

9

1 5 3 5

1
7

2
1

1 4 3 4

1 6 1 7

2 3 0

2
1

5

1
2

2

1
4

3
3

1 6 5 2

1
3

0

2 4 5

1
4

3

2 4 0

1
6

1
0

1
3

22 3 0

1 3 5 7

1 6 0

1 6 1

1 4 0 1

2
3

5

1
1

2

1 4 0

1
4

7

2
3

0

1 3 0

1 5 6 2

2
2

4

1 4 3 0

1
7

3
0

1 5 1 6

1 6 2 9

1 4 5 3

1
7

0
1

1 5 4 9

1
3

3

2
1

6

1
6

5
5

2
2

8

1 4 4 0

1 5 2 0

1 6 0 4

1
2

0

1
5

4

2 3 7

1 5 6 5

1
1

6

1 6 0 5

1 5 0 4

2
6

6

1
5

2
0

2
2

4

2
3

1

1 6 3 7

1 6 3 0
1 6 3 0

1 7 2 1

1 6 4 4

1
3

3

1 5 4 9
1 5 4 7

1
3

7

1
2

0

1 6 4 7

1 5 5 2

1 1 5

2
2

5

2
2

0

2 2 5

1
2

1

1
4

1

1 5 0

1 6 1 2

2
3

6

Context Map: 114-132 West 15th Street Subject Site

mmenzel
Polygonal Line

mmenzel
Rectangle

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 1�



Submitted to City of North Vancouver
By IBI Group Architects (Canada) Inc. on behalf of Polygon 359 Ltd.

April 08, 2022

IBI GROUP ARCHITECTS (CANADA) INC.
700-1285 West Pender Street
Vancouver BC V6E 4B1 Canada
tel 604 683 8797
fax 604 683 0492
ibigroup.com

Lonsdale&15th
114-132 West 15th Street, North Vancouver, BC

Issued for Rezoning Application

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 2�



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 20222

Team

CLIENT:

Polygon Development 359 Ltd.

Suite 900 - 1333 West Broadway

Vancouver, BC, V6H 4C2

T 604-877-1131

F 604-876-1258

Contact: Lorne Wolinsky

lwolinsky@polyhomes.com

ARCHITECT:

IBI Group Architects (Canada) Inc.

Suite 700 - 1258 West Pender Street

Vancouver, BC, V6E 4B1

T 604-683-8797

F 604-683-0492

Contact: Gwyn Vose

gvose@ibigroup.com

CIVIL ENGINEER:

InterCAD Services Ltd. 

1111 West 8th Avenue

Vancouver, BC,  V6H 1C5 

T: 604-739-7707 

Contact: Graham Wood

mail@intercad.bc.ca

LANDSCAPE:

Hapa Collaborative

403 – 375 West Fifth Avenue

Vancouver, BC, V5Y 1J6

T: 604-909-4150 

Contact: Joseph Fry 

jfry@hapacobo.com

CODE CONSULTANT:

LMDG Building Code Consultants Ltd. 

4th Floor, 780 Beatty Street

Vancouver, BC, V6B 2M1

T 604- 682-7146

F 604- 682-7149

Contact: Warren Marshall

wmarshall@LMDG.COM



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 3

Table of Contents

TEAM INTRODUCTION ............................................. 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS ................................................ 3

STATISTICS .................................................................... 4

Statistics Sheets 5

SITE  10

Site context 11

Context map-800m 12

Context map-400m 13

Site photos 14 

Zoning 15

Site Survey plan 17

Overall site plan 18

Site plan 19 

Lot Coverage plan 20

Shadow study 21

DEISGN RATIONALE .................................................23

Introduction 24

Building massing 26

View Analysis 27

Floor plate Analysis 30

Building height 32

Amenities 33

Building materials 34

CPTED 35

Lane Activation 36

Public Realm Section 37

Aff ordability 38

Adaptable Design 39

Sustainable strategy 40

Precedent images 44

PERSPECTIVE DRAWINGS ......................................49

Aerial View 50

View from West 51

View from East 52

View from 15th Street 53

View from Southeast 54

ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS ...............................55

Plans  56

Elevations & Sections 69

GFA OVERLAYS ..........................................................77

LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS ........................................84 

BUILDING CODE DATA SHEET ..............................88

LIMITING DISTANCE CALCULATION ...................90

CIVIL ENGINEERING PLAN .................................. 100

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN ............. 104



STATISTICS



Statistics

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 5

Project Development Data

A. Project Description:
D. Site Area:

FSR

B. Civic Address: Metric Metric Imperial

114 132 W 15th Street 114 132 West 15th Street 2,341.7

Legal Address:

LOTS E AND F 2,341.7

7,315

* Dedication to be confirmed with City

C. Zoning

From: C 1B
To: CD

Land Use Designation Mixed use Level 4B (High Density)

Development Permit Area CL (Central Lonsdale) G Site Coverage Calculations

Metric

2,341.7 Metric Imperial Metric Imperial
F Site Dimensions 1,604.6 Point 1 SW 92.18 302.43 92.66 304.00

Point 2 SE 93.72 307.48 93.57 307.00
Imperial Metric Imperial Point 3 NE 93.70 307.41 93.97 308.30

Site 180.0 42.7 140.0 Max. Permitted Lot Coverage % Point 4 NW 92.44 303.28 92.66 304.00
* Max permitted Lot Coverage to be confirmed * Finished grade to be confirmed

Avg. Grade
Highest Point 94.00 308.40
Lowest Point 92.33 302.92
Avg. Grade 93.17 305.66

K. Gross Floor Area & Permitted GFA exclusion

(SF) (SF) (SF)

Mechanical 1,481 1,481 1,481 239

22 6,798 38 38 6,760 6,760

21 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

20 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

19 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

18 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

17 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

16 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

15 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

14 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

13 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

12 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

11 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

10 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

9 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

8 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

7 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

6 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

5 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

4 7,752 41 40 81 7,671 7,671

3 8,220 41 1,155 40 1,236 6,639 437 6,984

2 15,189 60 60 15,189 15,129

1 14,639 71 1,353 1,196 1,145 3,765 1,808 1,359 7,452 10,874

TOTAL (SF) 185,863 956 1,353 1,196 2,300 1,481 760 8,046 153,524 16,985 7,452 177,817

TOTAL (METRIC) 17,267 126 111 214 138 71 747 14,263 1,578 692 16,520

*Notes on exterior wall exclusion: Assume 50% window to wall ratio. 4 1/2" window wall. 4 1/2" furring sill.

Metric
54.9

TOTAL GFA
LEVEL Exterior Wall

thickness more than
6.5 inch (SF)

EXCLUSION (SF)

Bicycle Parking
Recycling and

Garbage
Amenity/
Lobby

Penthouse
Machine Room

20 SF / Level 2
Adaptable unit
(residential only)

Site Coverage %

Floor Area Ratio (FSR)

24,000

Gross Site Area:

Site Component

Dedications

Final Site Area

Minimum Lot Area

Imperial

25,206

Retail (NET GFA)

GFA

7.05 16,520 177,817

Bylaw 6700: "Floor Space Ratio/FSR” means a figure obtained by dividing the Gross Floor Area of the
Buildings by the Site area

Site Elevations

Natural Grade Finished Grade

22 storey tower with 2 storey commercial and office
podium

68.5%
90%

BLOCK 38 DISTRICT LOT 548 PLAN 18002

Width Depth

Area

25,206

NET GFA PER USE

Gross Site Area
Foot Print

25,206

Imperial

17,272

SUB TOTAL NET GFA TOTAL
Residential
(NET GFA)

Office (NET GFA)



Statistics

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 20226

I. Building Height

68.0 223.0 * Per OCP Schedule A Land Use

68.0 223.1

74.4 244.1

*Building Height definition to be confirmed with City

J. Building Setback

Metric Imperial Metric Imperial
North (Lane) 6.1 20
South (Front) 1.5 5
East (Lane) 2.1 7
West 0.0 0
*Required setback to be confirmed with City

L Residential Unit Mix

Mechanical Mechanical

22 2 2 4 22 4 4

21 2 4 1 7 21 5 2 7

20 2 4 1 7 20 5 2 7

19 2 4 1 7 19 5 2 7

18 2 4 1 7 18 5 2 7

17 2 4 1 7 17 5 2 7

16 2 4 1 7 16 5 2 7

15 2 4 1 7 15 5 2 7

14 2 4 1 7 14 5 2 7

13 2 4 1 7 13 5 2 7

12 2 4 1 7 12 5 2 7

11 2 4 1 7 11 5 2 7

10 2 4 1 7 10 5 2 7

9 2 4 1 7 9 5 2 7

8 2 4 1 7 8 5 2 7

7 2 4 1 7 7 5 2 7

6 2 4 1 7 6 5 2 7

5 2 4 1 7 5 5 2 7

4 2 4 1 7 4 5 2 7

3 2 3 1 6 3 4 2 6

2 2

1 1

Standard 21 60 21 102

Adaptable 17 17 34 Required / 34 /

Total 38 77 21 136 Provided 98 38 136

*25% units must be Level Two Adaptable Units
Distribution 28% 57% 15% 100%

Type Standard Level 2 Adaptable Total

Permitted

top of slab of the last habitable level

top of elevator overrun

TBD

Total2B 3BType 1B

Proposed (from Average Grade to the highest point of the Building)

ProposedRequired



Statistics

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 7

M. Vehicle Parking

Required Bylaw 6700 Fig 9.3

1.05 spaces per Dwelling Unit 0.1 spaces per dwelling unit
Per C 1B , 1 space per 75

square metres (807.3 square
feet) of Gross Floor Area

Per C 1B , 1 space per 75
square metres (807.3

square
feet) of Gross Floor Area

Required 143 14 22 10 189
* Install Level II energized outlets at every residential stall, including visitors.

Provided

L1 5 5
P1 9 3 12
P2 30 10 13 53
P3 57 57
UPPER P4 59 59
LOWER P4 12 12
Provided 158 10 22 8 198
* All parking spaces provided with a labelled, energized outlet capable of providing Level 2 charging for an electric vehicle.

Residential Residential Visitor Office Commercial Total

TotalCommercialOfficeResidential VisitorResidential

Required

Residential Non residential

be calculated at a ratio of 0.038
Disability Parking Spaces for each

Dwelling Unit

be calculated at a ratio of one
Disability Parking Space for each 25
required Parking Spaces up to 50

Min. 6 2

Provided

Residential Non residential
L1 4 1 5
P1 7 5 12
P2 38 13 1 1 53
P3 42 12 3 57
UPPER P4 43 14 2 59
LOWER P4 9 3 12

143 47 6 2 198
23.74%

ByLaw 6700 908 (11)ByLaw 6700 906 (3) (a) (ii)

Disability Parking

a maximum of 35% of the required
Parking Spaces may be provided as

small car parking spaces

Total

Standard Small

Standard Small

Disability Parking



Statistics

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 20228

N. Bicycle Parking

Required Bylaw 6700 Fig 10A 02 1 EV bike per 4 spaces (as per bylaw)
Total

Short Term
60 or more units: 6 spaces per
every 60 units or part thereof

14
6 spaces per 1,000 m2 Gross

Floor Area
10

6 spaces per 1,000 m2
Gross Floor Area

5 29

Secure 1.5 spaces per unit 204
1 space per 250 m2 of Gross

Floor Area
7

1 space per 250 m2 of
Gross Floor Area

3 214

Required 218 17 8 243
*required end of trip Facility Stalls = 10

Provided
Total

Short Term Secure Short Term Secure Short Term Secure

L1 14 64 10 7 5 3 103
P1 140 140
P2
P3
UPPER P4
LOWER P4
Total 14 204 10 7 5 3 243

Residential Office Commercial

Residential Office Commercial

Required ByLaw 6700 10A02 (2)
Summary

Horizontal Vertical Horizontal Vertical

Min. 29 140 (@level1 & @P1)

Provided End of Trip Facility Stalls Required = 10
Total End of Trip Facility Stalls Provided = 10

Horizontal Vertical Horizontal Vertical Oversized
(included in total secured bike count provided)

L1 29 53 21 103 At level 1 subtotal short term=29 / subtotal secured=64
P1 90 39 11 140
P2
P3
UPPER P4
LOWER P4
Total 29 143 60 11 243

67% 28% 5%

vertical bicycle parking space not be counted towards more
than 35% of required Secure Bicycle Parking Spaces

Short Term Required =29
Short Term Provided =29

Secured Required = 214
Secured Provided = 214

Short Term

SecureShort Term

214
Total Secured Bikes Provided at L1 and P1

Secure

"Vertical bicycle parking not be counted towards
required Short Term Bicycle Parking Spaces"



Statistics

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 9

O Loading

Bylaw 6700 1001

Required
Provided

P Accessory End Destination Facility

Bylaw 6700 10A08

Clothing Lockers Water Closets Wash Basins Showers Grooming Station

2 times the number of required
Secure Bicycle Parking Spaces

residential use exempted

equal the number of
required showers

Required 20 1 1 1

Provided 20 2 2 2 2

"The minimum number of Loading Space required shall be
one Loading Space per Building, or one Loading Space per

1393.5 square metres (15,000 square feet) of the Gross Floor
Area, whichever is the greater"

Bylaw 6700 Figure 10A 03

2
2

Q Recycling and Garbage Storage Facility Requirements

ByLaw 6700 Figure 4 3

Residential Office Retail

# of Units/ Area (SF) 136 16,985 7,452
Space requirement

(SF)
5.23 sf per unit 0.010 sf per sf 0.026 sf per sf

Min. Required Floor
Area (SF)

711.3 169.9 193.8

Provided

* potential floor area reduction with increased collection frequency

1,196.0



SITE



Site Context

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 11

LO
N

S
D

A
LE

 A
V

E
LO

N
S

D
A

LE
 A

V
E

District of North Vancouver Geographic Information Systems, 2008

The redevelopment of the site is an exciting opportunity to contribute to the 

creation of a vibrant City of North Vancouver. The site is located in proximity 

to existing businesses, services and institutions, contributing to the area's 

liveability while minimizing negative impacts on the environment. The 

proposed development is very close to public transit and promotes walking 

and cycling as active and healthy modes of transportation.

Central Lonsdale is increasingly becoming more dense and high-rise towers are 

a prominent feature of the area. Medium density apartments and townhouses 

provide buff ers between single-family neighborhoods and the dense, 

mixed-use core centred on Lonsdale Avenue.

114-132 West 15th Street has the potential to off er spectacular views of 

Vancouver and its surrounding mountains, shorelines and water. 

SITE



Context Map
800m Radius

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202212

Future Rapid Transit Corridor 

Current and Future Frequent Transit Corridor

Major Focal Node

Heritage Character Area

View to Downtown

View to Burrard Inlet and Lions Gate Bridge

View to Mountains

VIEW
 TO

 D
OW

NTO
W

N

VIEW TO BURRARD INLET/LIONS GATE BRIDGE

VIEW
 TO M

OUNTAINS

SITE



Context Map
400m Radius

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 13

*Topography information from City Website

SITE

VIEW
 TO

 D
OW

NTO
W

N
VIEW TO BURRARD INLET/LIONS GATE BRIDGE

400 m

VIEW
 TO M

OUNTAINS

Future Rapid Transit Corridor 

Current and Future Frequent Transit Corridor

Major Focal Node

Heritage Character Area

View to Downtown

View to Burrard Inlet and Lions Gate Bridge

View to Mountains



Site Photos

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202214

1 2

1

23

4

3 43333333333333 4

Site

111111111111 2222222222222



!!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

57

4657

68

46

46

37
68

74

16
16

56

25

37

37

ST
 A

ND
RE

W'
S

RG
E'S

CH
EST

ER
FIE

LD

LO
NS

DA
LE

W 1ST

W 2ND

W 3RD

W 4TH

W 5TH

W 6TH

W KEITH

W 13TH

W 21ST

W 19TH

W 18TH

W 17TH

E 21ST

E 20TH

E 19TH

E 14TH

E 15TH

E 16TH

E 17TH

E 18TH

E 8TH

E 9TH

E 10TH

E 11TH

E 12TH

E 13TH

E KEITH

RI
DG

EW
AY

MO
OD

Y

JO
NE

S

MA
HO

N

CH
ES

TE
RF

IEL
D

ST
 G

EO
RG

E'S

LO
NS

DA
LE

W 16TH

W 15TH

W 14TH

Land Use Designation
This map should be viewed
in conjunction with the
provisions of Sections 2.1
and 2.2 of Chapter 1 O

C
P

D
en

si
ty

(F
SR

)

 Residential Level 1
 (Low Density)

0.5

 Residential Level 2
 (Low Density)

0.5

 Residential Level 3
 (Low Density)

0.75

 Residential Level 4A
 (Medium Density)

1.0

 Residential Level 4B
 (Medium Density)

1.25

 Residential Level 5
 (Medium Density)

1.6

 Mixed Use Level 4B
 (High Density)

3.0

 Mixed Use Level 4A
 (High Density)

2.6

 Mixed Use Level 2
 (Medium Density)

2.0

 Mixed Use Level 1
 (Low Density)

1.0

R
es

id
en

tia
l

M
ix

ed
 U

se

 Residential Level 6
 (High Density)

2.3

M
ax

im
um

B
on

us
 (F

SR
)

up to
 1.0

up to
 0.5

-

up to
 1.0

 Mixed Use Level 3
 (Medium Density)

2.3

 Harbourside Waterfront
 (Mixed Use)

2.05

,
,

up to
 1.0

up to
 0.5

up to
 1.0

up to
0.15

nted: 21.10.2019

Metres         Approx. Storeys
12-13                     4            
18-19                     6            
23-25                     8            
   37                      12           
   46                      15           
55-56                    18           
   68                      22           
   74                      24           
   88                      30           

Example Height Equivalencies

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 15

Zoning

Offi  cial Community Plan
The City of North Vancouver Offi  cial Community Plan (OCP) designates the 

subject lands as Town Centre which permits mixed-use development at a Floor 

Space Ratio (FSR) of 3.0 with provisions for bonusing of an additional 1.0 to a total 

of 4.0 density. Section 2.3 of the OCP permits density transfers from one parcel of 

land to another. City Council has authorized a density transfer for this site, which 

will facilitate a density above 4.0 FSR. The OCP also permits a maximum building 

height of 68 metres (223.09 feet) at this location.

City of North Vancouver Offi  cial Community Plan Schedule A, 2019

SITE



 

MIXED-USE 
LEVEL 4A 

(High Density) 

Purpose 
 
 
 
 

Form 
 

Max Density  
Max Bonus 

To allow for a mix of higher-density multi-family and 
commercial uses in Lower Lonsdale. Buildings in this 
designation typically include a mix of retail and/or 
office space on lower floors and residential 
apartments on upper floors.  
Mid-rise or high-rise buildings. Heights are limited as 
indicated in the Land Use map (Schedule A, 
Appendix 1.0). 
2.6 FSR 
A maximum increase of 1.0 FSR may be considered 
when public benefits are provided as per Section 
2.2. 

 

MIXED-USE 
LEVEL 4B 

(High Density) 

 

Purpose 
 
 
 
 
 

Form 
 
 

Max Density  
Max Bonus 

 
 

To allow for a mix of higher-density multi-family and 
commercial uses to strengthen the core of the city 
and generate employment opportunities. Buildings 
in this designation typically include a mix of retail 
and/or office space on lower floors and residential 
apartments on upper floors.  
High-rise buildings greater than six storeys. Heights 
are limited as indicated in the Land Use map 
(Schedule A in Appendix 1.0). 
3.0 FSR 
A maximum increase of 1.0 FSR may be considered 
when public benefits are provided as per Section 
2.2. 

Zoning

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202216

The site is currently zoned Central Lonsdale Mixed Use 4B Zone (C-1B) which is a 

commercial zoning with a maximum allowable Floor Space Ratio (FSR) of 2.6 and 

building height of 120 feet, or approximately 12-storeys.  

The purpose of this application is to rezone the site from C-1B to CD to permit 

the proposed development. The proposed CD rezoning will bring this site into 

conformance with the current in-force Offi  cial Community Plan.

C
h

e
st

e
rfi

 e
ld

 A
ve

C
h

e
st

e
rfi

 e
ld

 A
ve

City of North Vancouver Generalized Zoning Map, 2019

West 15th StreetWest 15th Street

West 16th StreetWest 16th Street

West 14th StreetWest 14th Street

Lo
n

sd
al

e
 A

ve
Lo

n
sd

al
e

 A
ve

St
.. 

G
e

o
rg

e
's

  A
ve

St
.. 

G
e

o
rg

e
's

  A
ve

SITESITE



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 17

Jesse 
Morin 
8CKUFR

c=CA, cn=Jesse Morin 
8CKUFR, o=BC Land 
Surveyor, ou=Verify ID 
at www.juricert.com/
LKUP.cfm?id=8CKUFR

Site Survey Plan



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202218

15TH W STREET

LANE

L
A

N
E

L
O

N
S

N
D

A
L

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E

L
A

N
E

L
A

N
E

L
A

N
E

18 STOREYS

15 STOREYS

15 STOREYS

15 STOREYS

PROPOSED
TOWER

22 STOREYS 42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 1
/4

"

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 3
/8

"

BUS STOP

RESIDENTIAL
ENTRY

OFFICE
ENTRY

PARKING
ENTRY

PODIUM 
OUTLINE

PH OUTLINE

TOWER OUTLINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED 
SETBACK LINE

VISTA

54.86m

179' - 11 3/4"

54.87m

180' - 0 3/8"

31
.5

2m

10
3'

 -
 4

 3
/4

"

25
.4

8m

83
' -

 7
"

AMENITY DECK
@ LEVEL 3

OFFICE 
ROOF

@ LEVEL 3

OFFICE 
DECK 

@ LEVEL 2

OFFICE ELEV. 
& STAIRS ROOF 343.1'

528.7' 547.7' 528.7'

319.8'

0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

52.37m

171' - 10"

2.39m

7' - 10 1/8"7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
 1

/4
"

30
.0

8m

98
' -

 8
 1

/8
"

4.
98

m

16
' -

 4
"

301.7'

2 
STOREYS

2 
STOREYS

2 
STOREYS

1 
STOREY

3 
STOREYS

3 
STOREYS

1 
STOREY

TYP.
112' - 1 67/256"

40
.1

1m

13
1'

 -
 7

"

38.41m

126' - 0 3/8"

52' - 7 3/8"

26.38m

86' - 6 3/4"

TYP. TOWER 
OUTLINE

N

Overall Site Plan



Site Plan

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 19

GA
RB

AG
E

GA
RB

AG
E

GA
RB

AG
E

GA
RB

AG
E

GA
RB

AG
E



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202220

DN

DN

92.45

92.48

92
.6

6

92
.9

6

93
.0

9

93
.2

3
93.25

93.2393.1693.1192.9792.9592.87
92.63

92.58

92
.2

7

92
.0

8

93.33

93
.4

1

93
.5

2

TW94.14

93
.7

5

93.94

TW94.14

TW94.14

TW94.1594.01

93.98

94.00

93
.9

9

94
.1

1

TW94.03

93
.4

5

93
.2

9

93
.2

3

92.06 92.09 92.39 92.54

91.98

91.97

T
W

92
.9

3 TW
93.30

TW
93

.2
5

92
.7

7

ENTRY 
PLAZA

RAMP TO P1

PROJECTION LINE OF 
THE TOWER

PROJECTION LINE 
OF PODIUM

PROPERTY LINE

LINE OF GROUND FLOOR

SETBACK LINE

LOT COVERAGE  [Bylaw 8464, May 30, 2016]

“Lot Coverage” means the horizontal area within the vertical projection of the outermost 
walls of Principal, Accessory Buildings and Accessory Coach House Buildings on a Lot, 
expressed as a percentage of the Lot Area. It shall not exceed a Lot Coverage of 90%,
reduced to 35% above the second Storey.

LOT AREA: 2,341.7 sqm (25,206 sf)

LOT COVERAGE AREA: 17,272 sf

LOT COVERAGE: 68.5%

LOT COVERAGE ABOVE SECOND STOREY AREA: 7,740 sf

LOT COVERAGE ABOVE SECOND STOREY: 30.7%

Lot Coverage Plan



AAUTUMN EQUINOX - 2PMAAUTUMN EQUINOX - 10AM AAUTUMN EQUINOX - 12PM

WINTER SOLSTICE - 10AM WINTER SOLSTICE - 12PM WINTER SOLSTICE - 2PM

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 21

Shadow Study



SPRING EQUINOX - 10AM SPRING EQUINOX - 12PM SPRING EQUINOX - 2PM

SUMMER SOLSTICE - 10AM SUMMER SOLSTICE - 12PM SUMMER SOLSTICE - 2PM

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202222

Shadow Study



DESIGN RATIONALE



PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Polygon and IBI Group are pleased to submit this rezoning application for a signifi cant site in Central 

Lonsdale, North Vancouver.

Project Description:

- 22 storey tower with 2 storey commercial and offi  ce podium

This application proposes:

- 16, 093 SQM = 173, 225 SQ FT of fl oor area

- 6.87 of FAR

- 136 of new homes

SITE CONTEXT 

The redevelopment of the site is an exciting opportunity to contribute to the vibrant urban fabric of Central 

Lonsdale. The site is located in proximity to existing businesses, services and institutions, contributing to 

the area’s liveability while minimizing negative impacts on the environment. The proposed development is 

very close to a frequent transit corridor and promotes walking and cycling as active and healthy modes 

of transportation. Central Lonsdale is increasingly becoming more dense and high-rise towers are a 

prominent feature of the area. Medium density apartments and townhouses provide buff ers between 

single-family neighborhoods and the dense, mixed-use core centred on Lonsdale Avenue. 114-132 West 

15th Street has the potential to off er spectacular views of Vancouver and its surrounding mountains, 

shorelines and water.

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202224

Design Rationale - Introduction



DESIGN ORIGIN

The site is located in the heart of Central Lonsdale, which has been designated by Metro Vancouver, as a 

Regional City Centre. The Lonsdale Corridor is the only Regional City Centre located on the North Shore, 

and serves as the North Shore’s downtown. It off ers shops, services, civic institutions, and high-density 

multi-family housing in an increasingly amenable, pedestrian-friendly, transit- oriented environment. 

Polygon and IBI have collaborated to propose the development of a sustainable, mixed-use residential-

commercial building for an assembly on 114-132 West 15th Street in the heart of Central Lonsdale between 

Chesterfi eld and Lonsdale Avenue. The site is within one block of Lonsdale Avenue, which is the cultural, 

commercial and institutional hub of the community, and it is within a ten-minute walk to an array of other 

essential services and amenities including the Lions Gate Regional Hospital, City Hall, the newly built 

public library, and RCMP headquarters. 

The types of housing units proposed will cater to a range of needs. The proximity to services and amenities 

in the Town Centre makes the site ideal for empty-nesters, fi rst time home buyers, retirees, seniors, singles 

and young couples. It will also provide housing choices for those who wish to stay in North Vancouver 

while attracting others who wish to call the North Shore home. The developer has made special eff orts to 

meet the needs of people facing mobility challenges and have incorporated Level Two Unit Plans in line 

with City of North Vancouver’s Adaptable Design Guidelines.

At grade level, the building features attractive, vibrant and pedestrian-friendly street front retail uses and a 

greatly improved public realm which will revitalize the aging commercial streetscape on West 15th Street 

and contribute to the overall amenity and economic vitality of Central Lonsdale. The addition of residential 

uses will generate spin-off  benefi ts and increase the consumer base for local shops and services in the 

Town Centre.

TARGET MARKET

To address housing aff ordability, we have designed a wide range of unit sizes which allow for a variety of 

price points. Approximately 28% of units will be sized between 600 to 700 sq.ft., and another 57% of the 

units will be sized between 900 to 1,000 sq.ft. This creates diversity in housing choices that will appeal 

to a variety of residents including empty-nesters, fi rst time home buyers, retirees, singles and young 

couples. North shore residents will be provided with an opportunity to continue living in their community, 

particularly within the vibrant neighborhood of Central Lonsdale.

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 25

Design Rationale - Introduction



The building’s form has been designed to respond to the existing built form context.  Below is an illustration on how the 

building has evolved from a simple box, to its massing formation - showing how the building conforms with the OCP 

guidelines, until its transition to a desired character. Further articulation has been done to the shape of the building to 

further defi ne entry points, mitigate potential view impacts to surrounding buildings, and to carve out well designed areas 

in the public realm. 

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202226

Design Rationale - Building Massing

Step 1

Provide the massing density for the site, 

based on the project program requirements, 

which includes retail, offi  ce and residential.

RESIDENTIAL

OFFICE

RETAIL

Step 2

Distinguish the residential tower massing from the 

podium, and push the tower massing to the west 

of the site. 

Step 3

Create an angle at the North-East portion to 

increase view corridor for neighboring building 

across the lane. Provide the design details and 

pocket lobby plazas to activate the street edge, 

and open amenity space at the top of the  podium. 



View Analysis

As part of the design process, IBI team 

have explored the possibility of aligning the 

proposed tower with the building to North and 

to the South. A case study, showing two (2) 

scenarios (building at west and building in the 

middle) has also been presented to the City 

Staff  during the Pre-App Meeting last April 8, 

2021 via webex virtual platform. Based on the 

metrics illustrated in the View Analysis, shown 

in the following pages, there is less impact on 

views if the proposed building were to remain 

at West. 

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 27

15TH W STREET

LANE

LA
N

E

18 STOREYS

15 STOREYS

15 STOREYS

PROPOSEDDESOPORP DESOPORPPRO OO EDDESOPORP DESOPORP EDSOPORPPROO OOSEDROPOSEDRROOPPOOSSEEDDPROOPOOSEDEDSEOSPOOPROPRPPRP OR PO OP SO ES DEDPROPOSEDDDEESSOOPPOORRPP DESOPORP DESOPORPROPOSEDPROPOSEDPROPOSEDPROPOS DESOPORP DESOPORP DESOPORP SOPORPPROPOSEDPROPOSEDPRO O DPROPOSEDPROPOSEDDEOSOOROP DESOPORP DESOPORPPROPOSEDPROPOSEDO OSEDROPOSEDPROPOSEDDESOPORP DESOPORP DESOPORPPROPOSED
TOWERREWOWO REWOTTOWERRWOT REWOT REWOTTOWERTOWERTOWERTOWERREWOTTOWW RTOWWERREWOWTO REWOT REWOTTOOWWEROOWWERTOWERTOWERREWWO RRWWOT REWOT RREEWWOOTTOOWWWWERRTOWW RTOWEROWWEROTOOWWERO REWOT REWOWT RERWWOTTOWW RTOW RTOWERTOWERTTOOWWERRWWOT RWWOT REWWOTOTOOWWERO

22 STOREYSSYROTS2 SYSEROTS2222 STOREYSSSYYEERROOTT22 SYEROT2 SYEROTS2222 STOREYS2222 SSTTOORREEYY22 STOREY22 STOREYSSYEROTS222 TOREYS2 STOORREYSSEYROTS2 YSEROTS22 YEROTS222 STOREYS2 STOR YS2 STOREYS22 STOREYSSYROS2 SYEROST22 SYEROTS2 SYEROTS222 S OR YS22 STOREYS22 STOREYS2 STOR YS22 STOREYYSSYEROTS22 SSYEYRROOTTSS 22 SYREORTOS222 TTOORREEYYSS2 TOREYS22 STOREY22 STOREY22 STOOREYSSYEROST22 SYEROT2 SYREOROS222 STOREYYS42
.6

8m

BUS STOP

RESIDENTIAL
ENTRY

PODIU
OUTLIN

NENNEEEEENEENNNEEEEEEENNENNEEENNEENENPH OUTLINLUP NTLUHPPH O T NOH ITOH INTOHPH OUT NP UT NP  UT NPH OUT NTOH LUP LUP OUP OU LH O T IH O T ILUOP LUOPH ITOH ITOHP OU LPH OU LH O T NP U LP UTL NNTOUHP LUP LUOPHH OU LH OPH UT NPH UTL NP OU LLUOH LUOH LUOPHP UTL N

TOWER OUTLINELUOEWO NLUOEWTT WE U L NETORWO ENTORWO ENTOUREOWTT WE UTL NT WE OU L NT WE OU L NT WER UTL NENTORWEOTOW R O T I EOW R OUTLI EELUOEWO LUOEWT LUOEWTOWER OU L EOW R OU L ETOW R O T NETO ER T NETORWO EITORWO ENTORWOOW R O T I EELUOEWO ELIUTORWOOW R O T I EOW R O T ET WE U L NT WE OU L NTOWER OUTL EEITORWO EITORWO EITORWO E

54.87m

180' - 0 3/8"

31
.5

2m

10
3'

- 4
3/

4"

OFFICE
ROOF

@ LEVEL 3

OFFICE
DECK 

@ LEVEL 2

528.7' 547.7' 528.7'

319.8'

4.
98

m

16
'-

4"

301.7'

2 
STOREYS

2 
STOREYS

1 
YSTOREY

3 
STOREYS

3
STOREYS

1 
YSTOREY

TYP.YPYTYPPT PT PTTYPYYTYPPTTYPTYYYYYYT PT PYYPT PTTYPYYTT PT PYPYP.YYPT PTYT LA
N

E
42

.6
8m

14
0'

 - 
0 

1/
4"

6 8
m

144
0'

-0
3/

8"

OFFICE
ENTRY

PARKING
ENTRY

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED 
SETBACK LINE

AVISTA

54.86m

179' - 11 3/4"

26
.3

88m

86
'-

6
33/

4""

KKENITY DECK
EVEL 3

OFFICEE EELEV. 
& STASTAIRS ROOOFF 343.1'

25.69m69m

84' - 4' 3 1/4"3 1

29.17m

95' - 8 1/2"7.
6622

m

25
''-

0
1/

44"

2 
STOREYS

UM
NE

AAMENN
@ L@ LEV

330
.0

88mm

98
'--

8
1/

8"

EEN
EVV

VIEW IMPACT FOR  
RECTANGULAR 
FLOOR PLATE

LEGEND

ADDITIONAL VIEW 
BY RESHAPING THE  
FLOOR PLATE

SCENARIO IF 
BUILDING IS IN 
RECTANGULAR FORM



View Analysis_Building Positioning Study View Impact to Building at North
SCENARIO 1_BUILDING AT WEST (PROPOSED BUILDING LOCATION)

View 01

View 01

85.6° (12.5 °+73.1°)

72.4° (12.5 °+59.9°) 91.7° (6.4 °+85.3°)

85.3°View 02
CONTEXT AERIAL VIEW

View 02

SCENARIO 2_BUILDING IN THE MIDDLE

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202228

12.5 °

12.5 °
6.4 °

85.3 °59.9 °

85.3°
73.1 °



88.0° (11.0 °+77.0°)

88.6° (22.1 °+66.5°) 97.4° (6.4°+91.0°)

91.0°
CONTEXT AERIAL VIEW

View Impact to Building at South

View 03

View 03

View 04

View 04

View Analysis_Building Positioning Study
SCENARIO 1_BUILDING AT WEST (PROPOSED BUILDING LOCATION)

SCENARIO 2_BUILDING IN THE MIDDLE

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 29

11.0 °

22.1 °

66.5 °

6.4 °

91.0°

91.0 °
77.0 °



AERIAL MAP FROM GOOGLE EARTH

Floor Plate Size Analysis

The Floor Plate Size Analysis is in response to Planning’s request to confi rm if the 

building’s fl oorplate is consistent with similar high-rise developments in the City of 

North Vancouver. In comparison with the select eleven (11) buildings’ used in this 

analysis, the project demonstrates that the proposed fl oor plate is within reasonable 

size.

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202230

1

2

3 4

5

No.1 108 WEST 13TH

Floor Plate Size :

7,000 sf (Estimated)

No.3 158 WEST 13TH

Floor Plate Size :

7,600 sf (Estimated)

No.2 125 EAST 14TH

Floor Plate Size :

8,300 sf (Estimated)

No.4 112 EAST 13TH

Floor Plate Size :

7,500 sf (Estimated)

No.5 118 CARRIE CATES CT

Floor Plate Size :

10,800 sf (Estimated)



Floor Plate Size Analysis

AERIAL MAP FROM GOOGLE EARTH

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 31

1 2

3

4

5
6

No.1 148 WEST 16TH

Floor Plate Size :

5500 sf (Estimated)

No.4 150 WEST 15TH

Floor Plate Size :

7000 sf

No.2 120 WEST 16TH

Floor Plate Size :

5100 sf (Estimated)

No.5 135 WEST 15TH

Floor Plate Size :

6500 sf (Estimated)

No.3 121 WEST 16TH

Floor Plate Size :

5100 sf (Estimated)

No.6 121 WEST 15TH

Floor Plate Size :

5200 sf (Estimated)



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202232

Land Use Designation
This map should be viewed
in conjunction with the
provisions of Sections 2.1
and 2.2 of Chapter 1 O

C
P

D
en

si
ty

(F
SR

)

 Residential Level 1
 (Low Density)

0.5

 Residential Level 2
 (Low Density)

0.5

 Residential Level 3
 (Low Density)

0.75

 Residential Level 4A
 (Medium Density)

1.0

 Residential Level 4B
 (Medium Density)

1.25

 Residential Level 5
 (Medium Density)

1.6

 Mixed Use Level 4B
 (High Density)

3.0

 Mixed Use Level 4A
 (High Density)

2.6

 Mixed Use Level 2
 (Medium Density)

2.0

 Mixed Use Level 1
 (Low Density)

1.0

R
es

id
en

tia
l

M
ix

ed
 U

se

 Residential Level 6
 (High Density)

2.3

M
ax

im
um

B
on

us
 (F

SR
)

up to
 1.0

up to
 0.5

-

up to
 1.0

 Mixed Use Level 3
 (Medium Density)

2.3

 Harbourside Waterfront
 (Mixed Use)

2.05

,
,

up to
 1.0

up to
 0.5

up to
 1.0

up to
0.15 nted: 21.10.2019

Metres         Approx. Storeys
12-13                     4            
18-19                     6            
23-25                     8            
   37                      12           
   46                      15           
55-56                    18           
   68                      22           
   74                      24           
   88                      30           

Example Height Equivalencies

AVERAGE GRADE:

305.67’ , 93.17m

MAXIMUM HEIGHT

528.77’ , 161.17m

Measured to the highest 

point of the Structure

(top of slab of the last 

habitable level)

DN

UP

UP

DN
UP

DN

92.45

92.48

92
.66

92
.96

93
.09 93
.23

93.25

93.2393.1693.1192.9792.9592.8792.6392.58

92
.27

92
.08

93.33

93
.41 93
.52

TW94.14

93
.75

93.94

TW94.14

TW94.14

TW94.1594.01

93.98

94.00

93
.99

94
.1

1

TW94.03

93
.45

93
.29

93
.23

92.06 92.09 92.39 92.54

91.98

91.97

TW
92

.9
3 TW93.30

TW93
.25

92
.77

522 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

308 SF

BIKE
ROOM

828 SF

RESIDENTIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

95 SF
MAIL

118 SF
PARCEL

883 SF

RESIDENTIAL
LOBBY

404 SF
CORRIDOR

750 SF

BOH
CORRIDOR

1095 SF
CRU 1277 SF

CRU
1065 SF

CRU

892 SF
CRU 979 SF

CRU

369 SF

COMMERCIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

141 SF

BIKE
ROOM

37 SF
MAIL

330 SF

OFFICE
LOBBY

R
AM

P 
TO

 P
1

COMMERCIAL PARKING FRONTING THE LANE

PARKADE EXIT #2

20' - 9 1/2"

62
'-

11
"

COMMERCIAL PARKING 
FRONTING THE LANE

ENTRY 
PLAZA

COMMERCIAL
EXIT

MSU LOADING & 
GARBAGE STAGING 

AREA

ENTRY 
PLAZA

PARKING EXHAUSTS COMPLETE WITH 
GALVANIZED  METALGRATE

PO
D

IU
M

 
SE

TB
AC

K

39
'-

0
1/

4"

ENTRY INTERCOM

BIKE RACK

7.
70

m

25
'-

3"

33
.4

6m

10
9'

-9
3/

8"
1.

52
m

5'
-0

"

35
.0

6m

11
5'

-0
1/

4"

DN

5% SLOPE

10' - 0"

MERCIAL

13.59m

44' - 6 7/8"

5.49m

18' - 0 1/4"

29.19m

95' - 9 1/8"

359 SF
CORRIDOR

83 SF

OFFICE
ENTRY 308.3'

93.95 m

305.0'

307.1'

305.0'

305.0'

305.0'

305.0'

302.33'
92.15m

301.84'
92.00m

29.32m

96' - 2 1/2"

7.52m

24' - 8"

14.27m

46' - 9 7/8"

3.65m

11' - 11 7/8"

PODIUM 
OUTLINE

175 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

TOWER EXIT #1

19' - 3 1/2"

39
'-

11
5/

8"

4' - 7 1/2"

807 SF
CRU

16' - 10 3/8"

122 SF
CORRIDOR

25' - 9 1/2"

1
A3.02

1

1

9

9

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

B

C

D

E

A

F

197 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

24' - 10"25' - 8 3/8" 21' - 3"

5' - 0"

9' - 0" 9' - 0"

32
'-

10
"

15 RES. 
BIKE RACKS

5 RETAIL 
BIKE RACKS

5 COMMERCIAL 
BIKE RACKS

18' - 0 1/4"

27' - 10 3/8"5' - 0"

238 SF

END OF
TRIP

FACILITY
EXIT

OFFICE & 
AMENITY
EXIT

16
'-

11
1/

2"

45
'-

0
1/

8"
5'

-3
1/

2"
15

'-
8

1/
8"

12
'-

6
7/

8"

4'
-6

1/
2"

COLUMN 
ROTATED

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"
0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

0.
11

m

0'
-4

3/
8"

7.
19

m

23
'-

7"

10
.3

1m

33
'-

10
"

8.
66

m

28
'-

5"

8.
71

m

28
'-

7"

7.
62

m

25
'-

0"

0.
08

m
0'

-3
"

0.
11

m
0'

-4
3/

8"
7.

19
m

23
'-

7"

10
.3

1m

33
'-

10
"

8.
66

m

28
'-

5"

8.
71

m

28
'-

7"

7.
62

m

25
'-

0"

0.
07

m

0'
-2

7/
8"

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

0.11m

0' - 4 1/8"

273 SF
CORRIDOR

28
'-

5
1/

2"

TOWER EXIT #2

LANDSCAPE

REGC REGC REGC

TOWER OUTLINE

136 SF

CUSTODIAL
CLOSET

306.9'

308.3'

12 BIKE LOCKERS
H=0, V=12

ELECT

MECH SHAFT

EL
EV

 #
01

 
FI

R
E 

FI
G

H
TH

ER
 

EL
EV

AT
O

R
EL

EV
 #

02
 

18 BIKE LOCKERS

H=18, V=0

18 BIKE LOCKERS

H=15, V=3

14 BIKE LOCKERS

338 SF

BIKE
ROOM

282 SF

BIKE
ROOM

278 SF

BIKE
ROOM

16 BIKE LOCKERS

H=9, V=7

173 SF

RESIDENTIAL
ENTRY

305.0'

305.0'

RAMP

ELEV #03 

7'
-1

0"

308.3'

FEMALE

MALE

SH
O

W
ER

SH
O

W
ER

BI
KE

 R
AC

KS

BIKE RACKSBIKE RACKS

L01 STAIR #2
L01 STAIR #1

H=7, V=7

6'
-2

1/
2"

GAS 
METER

MECH

PARKING GRATES, 
SHAFT FROM P1       
EM GEN ROOM

REPAIR 
PUMP

MECH

132 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

5' - 0 5/8"

305.1'

xB0.0
5

xB0.02
2

xB0.02
3

STORM WATER STORAGE  
TANK BELOW  CONC. SLAB

SHAFT

0.91m

3' - 0"

TYP.

LEVEL 02 

309.0'
94.18 m

LINE OF TRELLIS ABOVE, 
REFER TO LANDSCAPE

5' - 1"

5' - 0"

4'
-3

1/
2"

5' - 0"

8' - 0" 5' - 0 1/2"

LANDSCAPE

5' - 1"

11
.8

2m

38
'-

9
1/

2"

ARCH LOUVRE 
FOR PARKING 
INTAKE AT BOTH 
SIDES OF BENCH

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
20

.0
4 

m

1.
52

m

5'
-0

"

7.
30

m

23
'-

11
3/

8"

1.
52

m

5'
-0

"

7.
70

m

25
'-

3"

6.51m

21' - 4 3/8"

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
14

.0
8 

m

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 9.12 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 
6.3

5 m

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
18

.6
4 

m

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
18

.0
8 

m

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
13

.4
1 

m

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
24

.5
4 

m

2
A3.03

1
A3.04

12' - 0"

324 SF
AMENITY

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E

12' - 0"

25' - 5 7/8" 25' - 6" 21' - 5 143/256" 22' - 2 49/256"

RAMP

45
'-

10
1/

2"

305.1' 306.8'

307.1'

304.6'

MINI-
PLANT 
INTAKE

5'
-0

" 5' - 0"5'
-0

"

3' - 0"
2' - 0"

5 143/256"2' - 2 145/256"

10 OFFICE BIKE 
RACKS

SHAFT

REGCREGC REGC REGC
REGC

BE
N

C
H

BENCH

MIN.
4' - 0"

EXIT PATH

REFER TO LANDSCAPE

RE
FE

R 
TO

 LA
ND

SC
AP

E

SETBACK

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 L

AN
D

SC
AP

E

304.6'304.6'

305.0'

305.0'

304.0'

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 L

AN
D

SC
AP

E

20
'-

0"

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
16

.0
1 

m

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
15

.5
4 

m

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
18

.3
0 

m

18.08m

59' - 4"

11.24m

36' - 10 1/2"

7.52m

24' - 8"

14.27m

46' - 9 7/8"
51.02m

167' - 4 7/8"

33
.4

6m

10
9'

-9
3/

8"

4.
13

m

13
'-

6
1/

2"

2.
16

m

7'
-1

"

11
.0

9m

36
'-

4
1/

2"

1.
35

m

4'
-5

"

12
.7

3m

41
'-

9
3/

8"

3.
58

m

11
'-

9"

10
.8

6m

35
'-

7
1/

2"

1.92m

6' - 3 3/4"
0.92m

3' - 0 3/8"

51.11m

167' - 8 3/8"

2
A3.04

MINI-PLANT 
EXHAUST

END OF TRIP 
FACILITY

VISTA SWITCH 
LOCATION

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E

RE
FE

R 
TO

 LA
ND

SC
AP

E

567 SF

END OF
TRIP

FACILITY

EXHAUST

COMMERCIAL

OFFICE

RESIDENTIAL

SHAFT

DOUBLE-
TIER 

LOCKERS

DOUBLE-
TIER 

LOCKERS

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 25.60 m

ARCH'L 
LOUVRE

ARCH'L
LOUVRE 
ABOVE

ARCH'L 
LOUVRE

ARCH'L 
LOUVRE

4.
88

m

16
'-

0"

3.
28

m

10
'-

9
1/

4"

5.
35

m

17
'-

6
1/

2"

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E

4.24m

13' - 11"

SHAFT

PEDESTRIAN 
WALKWAY

10
.0

0m

32
'-

9
5/

8"

2.74m

9' - 0"

2.74m

9' - 0"

6'
-0

"

COUNT

8

8
8

92.45

9999999992222222.4444444488888888

99999999222222
.666666666

999999922222
.999996666

9999933333333
.00000099999999 9999933333333333333333
.....22222222222222223333333333333333333333333333

9999999999999999999999993333.222225555

9999999999999999999999999999333333333333333333333333333....22222222222222222222222222222222222233333333333333333333333333999999999993333333333333333..111111111111666666699999999999933333333.1111111111111111119999999922222222..999999997777777999999999992222222..999999555555999999999992222222222..8888888888777777779999922222..666666333333399999922222222.5555558888888
99999933333333..33333333333333333

99999333
...44444444444111111111 9999999993333
..55552222

TWWW94.14

993333
.75

99333.94

TW994.14

TW94.14

TTTWWW94.159994.01

999933..998

994.00

93
.99

94
.1

11

TTWW94.03

4

91.98

91.97

TW
9 30

COMMERCIAL PARKING FRONTING THE LANE
COMMERCIAL PARKING 

FRONTING THE LANE

MSU LOADING &
GARBAGE STAGING

AAAAREA

PARKING EXHAUSTS COMPLETE WITH
GALVANIZED  METALGRATE

PO
D

IU
M

 
SE

TB
AC

K

Y INTERCOM

7.
70

m

25
'-

3"

33
.4

6m

10
9'

-9
3/

8"
1.

52
m

5'
-0

"

35
.0

6m

11
5'

-0
1/

4"

DN

MERCIAL

13.59m 5.49m 29.19m

359 SF
CORRIDOR

301.84'
92.00m

29.32m

96' - 2 1/2"

7.52m

24' - 8"

14.27m

46' - 9 7/8"

3.65m

11' - 11 7/8"

1
AA3.02

1

1

9

9

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

B

C

D

E

A

F

9' - 0" 9' - 0"

32
'-

10
"

5 RETAIL
BIKE RACKS

OFFICE &
AAMENITY
EXIT

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"
0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

0.
11

m

0'
-4

3/
8"

7.
19

m

23
'-

7"

10
.3

1m

33
'-

10
"

8.
66

m

28
'-

5"

8.
71

m

28
'-

7"

7.
62

m

25
'-

0"

0.
08

m
0'

-3
"

0.
11

m
0'

-4
3/

8"
7.

19
m

23
'-

7"

10
.3

1m

33
'-

10
"

8.
66

m

28
'-

5"

8.
71

m

28
'-

7"

7.
62

m

25
'-

0"

0.
07

m

0'
-2

7/
8"

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

0.11m

0' - 4 1/8"

LANDSCAPE

REGC REGC REGC

PARKING GRATES,
SHAFT FROM P1       
EM GEN ROOM

xB0.0
5

xB0.02
2

xB0.02
3

309.0'
94.18 m

LINE OF TRELLIS ABOVE, LINE OF TREELLLISS ABOVVE,L
REFER TO LANDSCAPEREFER O LANDSCAPEA

SCAPESSCCAAPEESCCAPAPEEDSDDSSDDSSLANLALANNLLANAN

11
.8

2m

38
'-

9
1/

2"

AARCH LOUVRE 
FOR PARKING 
INTAKE AT BOTH
SIDES OF BENCH

7.
70

m

25
'-

3"

.51m

- 4 3/8"

2
AA3.03

1
AA3.04

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E

45
'-

10
1/

2"

REGCREGC REGC REGC
REGC

BE
N

C
H

BENCH

MIN.
4' - 0"

HHHHHT PATT PAPATTT T PPATTEXITEXEXIITEXITXIT

ANDSCAPENDSCA EANDSCAPENDSCAAPEETO LATO AO LTO LAA SREFER TEFEREF R TEFERR TRERRERERERRRERE PPT

RE
FFERRE
F

RE
FE

R 
TO

 LA
ND

SC
APCCCSDNAAL

OOOT
REEER

TO
LA

DS
C

ER
TO

LA
ND

SCC
APPAAPAAP

EEPEPEE
CA

PEAP
E

F

SETBACK

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 L

AN
D

SC
AP

E
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 L
AN

D
SC

AP
E

20
'-

0"

11.24m

36' - 10 1/2"

7.52m

24' - 8"

14.27m

46' - 9 7/8"
51.02m

167' - 4 7/8"

12
.7

3m

41
'-

9
3/

8"

51.11m

167' - 8 3/8"

2
AA3.04

HHHHHHVISTA SWITCHST SWSTA TV SW CTWSTAIV H
LOCATIONC IOO TOCAT NL

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E

F
RE

FFFEERRRERE
FE

R 
TO

 LA
ND

SC
APPA

SCDSNDANLA
O TO

R 
T

FE
R

FE
R

TOO
LA

NDD
SC

APCA
PPACAAA
PEEPEPPEEEEEE

CA
PEAP

E
F

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E

FTTTTT

NNPEDESTRIAND ST NP DE R APEDESSTRR AANARRTSEDEPPP N
WALKWAYW L W YWA W YW LKWAWWAAA KKKWWAYYYAWWKLAWWW

10
.0

0m

32
'-

9
5/

8"

2.74m

9' - 0"

2.74m

9' - 0"

COUNT

8

8
888

DN

UP

UP

DN
UP

DND

9999222
.08

522 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

308 SF

BIKE
ROOM

828 SF

RESIDENTIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

5 SF
MAIL

118 SF
PARCEL

883 SF

RESIDENTIAL
YLOBBY

404 SF
CORRIDOR

750 SF

BOH
CORRIDOR

1095 SF
CRU 1277 SF

CRU
1065 SF

CRU

892 SF
CRU 979 SF

CRU

369 SF

COMMERCIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

141 SF

BIKE
ROOM

37 SF
MAIL

330 SF

OFFICE
YLOBBY

R
AM

P 
TO

 P
1

20' - 9 1/2"

62
'-

11
"

ENTRY 
PLAZA

39
'-

0
1/

4"

5% SLOPE

10' - 0"
83 SF

OFFICE
YENTRY 308.3'

93.95 

305.0'

307.1'

305.0'

305.0'

305.0'

175 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

19' - 3 1/2"

39
'-

11
5/

8"

4' - 7 1/2"

807 SF
CRU

16' - 10 3/8"

122 SF
CORRIDOR

25' - 9 1/2"

197 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

24' - 10"25' - 8 3/8" 21' - 3"

5' - 0"

18' - 0 1/4"

27' - 10 3/8"5' - 0"

238 SF

END OF
TRIP

YFACILITY
EXIT

16
'-

11
1/

2"

45
'-

0
1/

8"
5'

-3
1/

2"
15

'-
8

1/
8"

12
'-

6
7/

8"

4'
-6

1/
2"

COLUMNCC
ROTATEDR

273 SF
CORRIDOR

28
'-

5
1/

2"

R OUTLINERRTOW

136 SF

CUSTODIAL
CLOSET

306.9'

308.3'

12 BIKE LOCKERS
H=0, V=12

ELECT

AFTA TMECH SH

EL
EV

 #
01

 
FI

R
E 

FI
G

H
TH

ER
EL

EV
AT

O
R

EL
EV

 #
02

 

18 BIKE LOCKERS

H=18, V=0

18 BIKE LOCKERS

H=15, V=3

14 BIKE LOCKERS

338 SF

BIKE
ROOM

282 SF

BIKE
ROOM

278 SF

BIKE
ROOM

16 BIKE LOCKERS

H=9, V=7

173 SF

RESIDENTIAL
YENTRY

305.0'

305.0'

RAMP

ELEV #03 

7'
-1

0"

308.3

FEMALEEE

MALEE

SH
O

W
ERR

SH
O

W
ERR

SH
O

W
ER

BI
KE

 R
AC

KS
BBI

E 
RR

AAACC
KSKS

C
K

AC
R

A
R

E KE
BI

K
BBI

KKEE
 RR

AAACC
KSSSSSSSSKSS

L01 STAIR #2TA R #2TA R #2
AIR #1TAL01 STAIR #1TAL01L01 STTAL01 ST R #1AT 1R #AIRL01 ST 1R #AIRL01 STTATAATAT #R ##R

H=7, V=7

GAS
METER

REPAIR 
PUMP

MECHMECH

132 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

5' - 0 5/8"

305.1'

STORM WATER STORAGE 
TANK BELOW  CONC. SLAB

SHAFT

0.91m

3' - 0"

TYP.

LEVEL 02

5' - 1"

5' - 0"

4'
-3

1/
2"

5' - 0"

8' - 0" 5' - 0 1/2"

5' - 1"

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
20

.0
4 

m

7.
30

m

23
'-

11
3/

8"

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
14

.0
8 

m

TRARR
VAA
EL DISTANCE = 9.12 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 
6.3

5 m

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
18

.6
4 

m

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
18

.0
8 

m

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
13

.4
1 

m

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
24

.5
4 

m

324 SF
AMENITYAMENITY

25' - 5 7/8" 25' - 6" 21' - 5 143/256" 22' - 2 49/256"

RAMP

305.1' 306.8'

307.1'

304.6'

MINI-M -
PLANTTLAA
INTAKEEATA

5'
-0

" 5' - 0"5'
-0

"

3' - 0"
2' - 0"

52' - 2 145/256"

THAFTSSS THSS

304.6'304.6'

305.0'

305.0'

304.0'

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
16

.0
1 

m

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
15

.5
4 

m

TR
AV

EL
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

= 
18

.3
0 

m

11
.0

9m

36
'-

4
1/

2"

1.
35

m

4'
-5

"

MINI-PLANTINI- LAN
EXHAUSTUSTXHA

END OF TRIPF R
FACILITYFFA L Y

567 SF

END OF
TRIP

YFACILITY

EXHAUSTEEEEE SUSAXH

COMMERCIAL

OFFICE

RESIDENTIAL

AFTAAFSHSSHA

DOUBLE-O
TIERT

LOCKERSC

DOUBLE-
TIER

LOCKERS

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 25.60 m

ARCH'L AARCH L 
LOUVRELOUVRRE

4.
88

m

16
'-

0"

3.
28

m

10
'-

9
1/

4"

5.
35

m

17
'-

6
1/

2"

4.24m

13' - 11"

6

999222222222
..222277777777777

99999999933333333333
.444444444444455555555

99999999999999933333333333333
..22222222222999999999999

99999993333333333
.222222222233333333333333333333333

92.066 9292929292.09090909000 92.39 92.54 92
.9

3 TW93.30

TTTTTTTTTWWWWWWWW999933333
.22222222255555555555

9999999222222
.77777777777777777777

PARKADE EXIT #2

COMMERCIAL
EXIT

ENTRY 
PLAZA

ENTRY

KKKBIKE RACK

44' - 6 7/8" 18' - 0 1/4" 95' - 9 1/8"

m

305.0'

302.33'
92.15m PODIUM 

OUTLINE
TOWER EXIT #1

15 RES.
BIKE RACKS

5 RETAIL

5 COMMERCIAL
BIKE RACKS

TOWER EXIT #2

BIKE RACKSBIIKKEEE RRAAACCKKSSBIKIKEE RRACACKSSSSAAEE SSSAAAEEEBBBBBBBBKSBIKEE RACKSCKSBBIIKKKEEBIKKKEE RRAACCKKSE RRAACKKSCKKSSKSKKRRKKKKKKK RRR KKK

6'
-2

1/
2"

1.
52

m

5'
-0

"

1.
52

m

5'
-0

"

6.

21' -

12' - 0"

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E

12' - 0"

10 OFFICE BIKE 
RACKS

R
EF

ER
TO

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E

18.08m

59' - 4"

33
.4

6m

10
9'

-9
3/

8"

4.
13

m

13
'-

6
1/

2"

2.
16

m

7'
-1

"

3.
58

m

11
'-

9"

10
.8

6m

35
'-

7
1/

2"

1.92m

6' - 3 3/4"
0.92m

3' - 0 3/8"

ARCH'LAR 'LAAARRCH LAARRCCHH''LAAAARRCH LH L
LOUVRE L VR  LOOUVRERLLOOUUVVRRRE  LLOOUOUVRERE
ABOVEAB VEAABBOVAAABBOOVVEEAABBOOVE

H'LH'L'LLRCHRRCCHHRCCHHARAARAA H'LLLRCHRCHRARAARR HARCH'LARCH'
REREEREEOUVROUUVVRROUVVRRLOLLOOLOLOO R

ARCH'L ARC LAA CRCHAARRCCH''HHCRRRAA
LOUVRELO VREO VVOU RELLOOUVRRREEEERVVUOL

SHAFSSS

0"

94 m
THE HIGHEST 

FINISHED GROUND 

LEVEL WITHIN 

10’ FROM THE 

STRUCTURE

THE LOWEST 

FINISHED GROUND 

LEVEL AT THE 

PERIMETER 

OUTSIDE WALL OF 

THE STRUCTURE

92.33 m

Defi nition

HIGHEST POINT: 94 m=308.39’

LOWEST POINT: 92.33 m=302.92’ 

AVERAGE GRADE: 

(94 m + 92.33 m)/2 = 93.17 m=305.66’

10’ SETBACK AREA 

FROM THE STRUCTURE 

(BLUE HATCH)

Calculation

GEODETIC
LEVEL 01

92.964 m
305' 0"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 02

97.83 m
320' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL P1

89.154 m
292' 6"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 03

101.64 m
333' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 04

104.586 m
343' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 05

107.533 m
352' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 06

110.479 m
362' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 07

113.425 m
372' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 08

116.372 m
381' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 09

119.318 m
391' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 10

122.265 m
401' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 11

125.211 m
410' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 12

128.157 m
420' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 13

131.104 m
430' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 14

134.05 m
439' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 15

136.997 m
449' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 16

139.943 m
459' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 17

142.889 m
468' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 18

145.836 m
478' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 19

148.782 m
488' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 20

151.729 m
497' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 21

154.675 m
507' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 22

157.875 m
517' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
MECHANICAL

161.152 m
528' 8 9/16"

19
' -

 0
"

10
' -

 9
"

10
' -

 6
"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

12
' -

 6
"

15
' -

 1
1 

5/
8"

12
' -

 6
"

10
' -

 0
"

10
' -

 0
"

10
' -

 0
"

GEODETIC
ROOF LEVEL

166.943 m
547' 8 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL P2

86.106 m
282' 6"

GEODETIC
LEVEL P3

83.058 m
272' 6"

GEODETIC
LEVEL P4

80.01 m
262' 6"

86
.9

3m
28

5'
 - 

2 
5/

8"

AM
EN

IT
Y

19
' -

 4
"

O
FF

IC
E

12
' -

 6
"

R
ET

AI
L

15
' -

 1
1 

5/
8"

PA
R

KA
D

E
42

' -
 6

"

AMENITY DECK

12
' -

 8
 1

/8
"

11
' -

 4
 1

/8
"

9'
 - 

5 
3/

4"
9'

 - 
6"

9'
 - 

6"
9'

 - 
6"

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

4.74%

LA
N

E

4.74%

5.00%

1 92 3 4 5 6 7 8

AMENITYRESIDENTIAL

AVERAGE GRADE

MAXIMUM HEIGHT

15' - 0" 27' - 11" 26' - 2" 26' - 5" 26' - 2" 18' - 0" 23' - 7" 16' - 2"

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIALRESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

PARKADE

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

9'
 - 

4 
1/

8"
9'

 - 
5 

3/
4"

9'
 - 

6"
9'

 - 
6"

9'
 - 

6"

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

2.10m

6' - 10 5/8"

RESIDENTIAL

315.1'
305.67'
93.17m

528.77'
161.17m

M
AX

IM
U

M
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 H

EI
G

H
T

22
3'

 - 
1 

1/
8"

   
 6

8.
00

m

LEVEL 2  
OFFICE 
DECK

ENTRY 
PLAZA

ST
AI

R
S

EL
EV

AT
O

R
 S

H
AF

T

GEODETIC
LEVEL P5

76.962 m
252' 6"

4.74%

4.74%

H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

2
2

3
.1

’  
, 6

8
m

2
2

3
.1

’  
, 6

8
m

Design Rationale - Building Height



AMENITY AND PUBLIC SPACES

Lonsdale project provides an indoor amenity space for residents at level 3 and outdoor 

spaces at levels 2 and 3.

The design of the amenity responds to the need of the residents. Abundant sunlight 

is brought into the interior space, which includes fi tness, functional pantry, lounge and 

games area. The major functional spaces in the amenity building are tailored to meet 

the target market needs, promoting health, wellmess, and collaborative community.

Level 2 is designed with a landscaped deck at west, providing offi  ce establishments a 

place to relax and have short breaks. The outdoor space on level 3 includes a fi re pit, 

seating, yoga space, turf area, and a balanced integration of landscaped components 

to foster social interaction.

Double-height expression entry lobby has been designed to provide residents and 

visitors with a more welcoming and luxurious entry feel. As the building is faced south, 

sunlight could pour into the lobby space and create a warm feeling together with the 

modern cladding, which not only helps aesthetically but from a functional standpoint 

as well.

@ENTRY LOBBY

@OUTDOOR YOGA

 @RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

@OUTDOOR SEATING

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 33

Design Rationale - Amenities and Public Spaces



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202234

Design Rationale - Building Colour and Materials

The Lonsdale project features an architectural character that 

is in keeping with the neighborhood context that has been 

developing over the last few years. 

The exterior components of the building comprise of a mix of 

non-combustible materials including copper panel, glazing, 

stone and painted concrete. Strategic application of each 

material has been carefully considered to provide a cohesive 

design and unifi ed architectural language. Copper panels 

accents are featured through out the tower to add natural 

refl ection to the facade; while the wood looking soffi  ts 

provide a warm feeling to the residents and public. The stone 

cladding provides a robust and durable touch to the lower 

portion of the building. And to make the facade look more 

interesting, a mix of dark window wall and light spandrel 

glass are applied to break-up the monotony and enhance 

the verticality of the towers.

Copper 

Colored Panel 

Stone Cladding Curtain Wall

Mullion

Charcoal Grey

Metal Simulated in WoodSpandrel 

(Grey)

Clear Glass with Silver RailingColumn Grey

 (Charcoal)



CPTED 

Per OCP, CPTED is planned by applying natural access control, natural 

surveillance, territoriality (defense space), and maintenance. Residential 

and non-residential circulation is suggested by landscape barriers. The two 

entry plazas on the south and east side of the site are carefully designed 

without view obstruction so that natural surveillance could be applied.

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 35

DN

UP

UP

DN
UP

DND

92.45

999999999222222.4444444488888888

99999999999999999922222222222222
..66666666666666

666666666666666

9999999999999999222222222222222
...99999999999999

6666666666666

999999999999993333333333333333
...000000000000000

9999999999999

999999999999999333333333333333333333
....2222222222222222222222222222

333333333333333333333333333333333333333

999999999999999999999999999993333333333333..22222222222255555555555555

9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999933333333333333333333333333333....222222222222222222222222222222222222222333333333333333333333333333333333999999999999933333333333..111111166666999999999999999333333333333..111111111111111111119999999999999222222222222..99999999999977777777777799999999999999222222222222...99999999999955555555555999999999999922222222222222222222222...88888888888888877777777777
9999999999992222222222222..6666666666663333333333333333333333

9999999999999999222222222222222.555555555555555888888888888888

999999999999999922222222222
..2222

7777777777777

9999222
.0

8

999999333333333..3333333333333333

99999333
...44444444444

111111111

TWWWWW94.14

999333
.777

55

9933333.94

TW994.14

TW94.14

TTTTWWW94.1599994.01

9999933..998

994.00

93
.9

9

99994444
..111

11111

TTWW94.03

933
.4444444444444444

555555555555555

9333
.22222222

9999999999

93
.2

333333333333333

9999999999222222222.0000000000006666666 999999999222222222..00000000999999 9999999222222222.333339999999999 999999922222222222..55555555555444444444

91.98

91.97

TTTTTT
WWWWWWWWWWWW

99999999999922222222
.999999999

3333333333 TTTTTTTTTTTTTWWWWWWWWWWWW
999999933333333.33333330000000

TTTTTWW
93

.2222222
55555555555555

9999999999999999999999922
.............77777777777777777777777777777777777

77777

522 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

308 SF

BIKE
ROOM

828 SF

RESIDENTIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

5 SF
MAIL

118 SF
PARCEL

883 SF

RESIDENTIAL
YLOBBY

404 SF
CORRIDOR

750 SF

BOH
CORRIDOR

1095 SF
CRU 1277 SF

CRU
1065 SF

CRU

892 SF
CRU

979 SF
CRU

369 SF

COMMERCIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

141 SF

BIKE
ROOM

37 SF
MAIL

330 SF

OFFICE
YLOBBY

R
A

M
P

 T
O

 P
1

COMMERCIAL PARKING FRONTING THE LANE

PARKADE EXIT #2

20' - 9 1/2"

62
'-

11
"

FUTURE CAR 
SHARING

PARKING STALL

ENTRY 
PLAZA

COMMERCIAL
EXIT

MSU LOADING &
GARBAGE STAGING

AREA

ENTRY
PLAZA

PARKING EXHAUSTS COMPLETE WITH
GALVANIZED  METALGRATE

P
O

D
IU

M
 

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

39
'-

0
1/

4"

ENTRY INTERCOM

KKKKKKKKKBIKE RACK

7.
70

m

25
'-

3"

33
.4

6m

10
9'

-
9

3/
8"

1.
52

m
5'

-
0"

35
.0

6m

11
5'

-
0

1/
4"

DN

5% SLOPE

10' - 0"

13.59m

44' - 6 7/8"

5.49m

18' - 0 1/4"

29.19m

95' - 9 1/8"

359 SF
ORRIDOR

83 SF

OFFICE
YENTRY 308.3'

93.95 m

305.0'

307.1'

305.0'

305.0'

305.0'

305.0'

302.33'
92.15m

29.32m

96' - 2 1/2"

7.52m

24' - 8"

14.27m

46' - 9 7/8"

3.65m

11' - 11 7/8"

PODIUM
OUTLINE

175 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

TOWER EXIT #1

19' - 3 1/2"

39
'-

11
5/

8"

4' - 7 1/2"

807 SF
CRU

16' - 10 3/8"

122 SF
CORRIDOR

25' - 9 1/2"

197 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

24' - 10"25' - 8 3/8" 21' - 3"

5' - 0"

9' - 0" 9' - 0"

32
'-

10
"

15 RES. 
BIKE RACKS

5 RETAIL
BIKE RACKS

5 COMMERCIAL 
BIKE RACKS

18' - 0 1/4"

27' - 10 3/8"5' - 0"

238 SF

END OF
TRIP

YFACILITY
EXIT

OFFICE &
YAMENITY

EXIT

16
'-

11
1/

2"

45
'-

0
1/

8"
5'

-
3

1/
2"

15
'-

8
1/

8"
12

'-
6

7/
8"

4'
-

6
1/

2"

COLUMN CC
ROTATEDR

4.57m 8.51m 7.98m 8.05m 7.98m 5.49m 7.19m 4.93m
0.09m

273 SF
CORRIDOR

28
'-

5
1/

2"

TOWER EXIT #2

LANDSCAPE

REGC REGC REGC

R OUTLINERRTOW

136 SF

CUSTODIAL
CLOSET

306.9'

308.3'

12 BIKE LOCKERS

H=0, V=12

ELECT

AFTA TMECH SH

E
LE

V
 #

01
 

F
IR

E
 F

IG
H

T
H

E
R

E
LE

V
A

T
O

R

E
LE

V
 #

02

18 BIKE LOCKERS

H=18, V=0

18 BIKE LOCKERS

H=15, V=3

14 BIKE LOCKERS

338 SF

BIKE
ROOM

282 SF

BIKE
ROOM

278 SF

BIKE
ROOM

16 BIKE LOCKERS

H=9, V=7

173 SF

RESIDENTIAL
YENTRY

305.0'

305.0'

RAMP

ELEV #03 

7'
-

10
"

308.3'

FEMALEEEEEE

MALEE

S
H

O
W

E
RR

S
H

O
W

E
RR

S
H

O
W

E
R

BBBBBBB
IIIKIKIKKKKKKKK

EEEEEEEE
RRRRRRRRR

A
R

AAAAAAAAA
CCCCCCCCCCCCCC

KKKK
IIIII

CCCCCCCCCC
KK

CCC
AAAA

RRR 
EE

KKKI
BBB

K
BB

IKK
EE

RR
AA

CC
KK

BB
IKK

E
RR

AAA
CC

K
BB

IKK
EE

RR
AA

CC
KKKKKK

SSSSSSSSSS
KK

SS
K

S
K

SSSS
K

RACKSRRRKE RKKBI RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRKKKKKKKKKKKKKBB AAASBIKE RACKSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

L01 STAIR #2TA R #2TA R #
TAL01 STAIR #1TAL01L01 STTAA R #1AT 1R #AIRL01 ST 1R #AIRL01 STTATAATAT #R ##R

H=7, V=7

6'
-

2
1/

2"

GAS
METER

PARKING GRATES, 
SHAFT FROM P1       
EM GEN ROOM

REPAIR 
PUMP

MECHMECH

132 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

5' - 0 5/8"

305.1'

xB0.02

2

STORM WATER STORAGE  
TANK BELOW  CONC. SLAB

SHAFT

0.91m

3' - 0"

TYP.

LEVEL 02 

LLIS ABOVE,LLISS ABOVVE,LINE OF TRELLINE OF TREELL
ANDSCAPENDSCAPEREFER TO LAREFER TO LAA

5' - 1"

5' - 0"

4'
-

3
1/

2"

5' - 0"

8' - 0" 5' - 0 1/2"

DSCAPEDSCAPEDSCAPEDSCAPEDSCAPEDDDDDSSSSSCCCAAAPPPPPEEEEELANLANLANLANLANLLAAAAANNNNN

5' - 1"

11
.8

2m

38
'-

9
1/

2

ARCH LOUVRE 
FOR PARKING
INTAKE AT BOT
SIDES OF BENC

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 2
0.

04
 m

1.
52

m

5'
-

0"

7.
30

m

23
'-

11
3/

8"

1.
52

m

5'
-

0"

7.
70

m

25
'-

3"

6.51m

21' - 4 3/8"
T

R
A

V
E

L
 D

IS
T

A
N

C
E

 =
 1

4.
08

 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE
= 9.12 m

TRAVEL D
IS

TANCE =
 6

.3
5

m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
8.

64
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
8.

08
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
3.

41
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 2
4.

54
 m

12' - 0"

324 SF
YAMENITY

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

12' - 0"

25' - 5 7/8" 25' - 6" 21' - 5 143/256" 22' - 2 49/256"

RAMP

45
'-

10
1/

2"

305.1' 306.8'

307.1'

304.6'

MINI-M -M N
PLANTTLAALANP NTN
INTAKEEATAN KNTTTTTTTTAAAAAAAAATATTTTTTTTTTTTAAAAAAATATTTTT KKEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

5'
-

0"

5' - 0"5'
-

0"

3' - 0"

2' - 0"

52' - 2 145/256"

10 OFFICE BIKE
RACKS

THAFTSSSS THSS

HCC
REGC

B
E

N
C

H

BENCH

MIN.
4' - 0"

HHHHHT PATT PATT PATT PATT PATEXITEXITEXITEXITEXITEEEEEXXXXX TTTTT PPPAAAAATTTTTHHT

ANDSCAPEANDSCA EANDSCAPEANDSCAAPEETO LATOO LTO L EELA SREFER TREFEREF R TREFERR TRRRRRRER PPT

R
EFFEE

RRR
EF

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 L

AN
DS

CA
PACCCSDD

NNAAAL
OOOTT

RREEER
TO

LA
DS

C
ER

TO
LA

N
DS

CCA
PPPAAPAAP

EEPEPEE
CA

PEAP
E

FF

SETBACK

R
E

F
E

R
 T

O
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

304.6'
304.6'

305.0'

305.0'

304.0'

R
E

F
E

R
 T

O
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

20
'-

0"

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
6.

01
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
5.

54
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
8.

30
 m

18.08m

59' - 4"

11.24m

36' - 10 1/2"

7.52m

24' - 8"

14.27m

46' - 9 7/8"
51.12m

167' - 8 1/2"

33
.4

6m

10
9'

-
9

3/
8"

4.
13

m

13
'-

6
1/

2"

2.
16

m

7'
-

1"

11
.0

9m

36
'-

4
1/

2"

1.
35

m

4'
-

5"

12
.7

3m

41
'-

9
3/

8"

3.
58

m

11
'-

9"

10
.8

6m

35
'-

7
1/

2"

1.92m

6' - 3 3/4"
0.92m

3' - 0 3/8"

51.11m

167' - 8 3/8"

MINI-PLANT INI- LAN
EXHAUSTUSTXHA

END OF TRIPF R
FACILITYFFA L Y

HHHHHHHHHHHVISTA SWITCHST SWSTA TV SW CTWSTIV H
LOCATIONC IOO TOCAT NL

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

R
EFFEE

RRR
E

R
EFF

ER
 T

O
 L

AN
DS

CA
PACCCSDD

NNAAAL
OOOTT

RREEER
TO

LA
N

DS
CA

ER
TO

LA
DS

CCA
PPPAPAPAP

EEPPPEEE
CA

PEAP
E

FF

567 SF

END OF
TRIP

YFACILITY

EXHAUSTEE USAXH

COMMERCIAL

OFFICE

RESIDENTIAL

AFTAFAFSHSSHA

DOUBLE-O
TIERT

LOCKERSC

DOUBLE-
TIER

LOCKERS

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 25.60 m

ARCH'LAARCH L
LOUVRELOUVRRE

ARCH'LARCH'LARCH LARCH LARCH LAAAAAAARRRRRCCCCCHHHHH LLLLL
LOUVRE LOUVRELOUVRELOUVRELOUVRELLLOOOOOOOUUUUUVVVVVRRRRREEEEE
ABOVEABOVEABOVEABOVEABOVEAAAAABBBBBOOOOOVVVVVVVEEEEE

H'L 'LH LH LRCHRCRCHRCHARAARARARCH'LAAAARRRRCCCCHH LLR HARCH'LARCH'
REREREREREOUVROUVROUVROUVROUVRLOLOLOLOLOLLOOOOOOOOUUUUUVVVVVRRRRREEEEEO R

ARCH'LARC LAA CRCHAARRCCCH''HHCCRRAA
LOUVRELO VREO VVOU RELLOOUVRRREEEERVVUOOL

4.
88

m

16
'-

0"

3.
28

m

10
'-

9
1/

4"

5.
35

m

17
'-

6
1/

2"

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

4.24m

13' - 11"

SHAFTTS TS

N NNNNNPPEDESTRIAND ST NP DE R APEDESSTRR ANARRTSEDEPP NN
WALKWAYW L W YWA W YL WAWWAAA KKKWWAYYYAWWKLAWWW

10
.0

0m

32
'-

9
5/

8"

2.74m

9' - 0"

2.74m

9' - 0"

TES 1 & 8&&&&&&&&&1ESOT 8TO 11SEE NOEE ONNO

SEE NOTE 1 & 8N TOOOOOOOOONE NEEEEEEEEES & 888&&TET 11EE &NN

TES 1 & 88&&1SESOTTO 11SEE NOS EEE ONNNO

8SEE NOTES 1 & 81ESSEOTNEESSEE NOTES 1 & 88

SEE NOTES 1 & 8

SEE NOTE 4

3NOTE 33333EEETETETEOTOTOTNONONONNN 3NOTE 33NOTE 33NOTE 333NOTE 3NOTE 3NOTE 3NOTE 3NNNNNOOOOOTTTTTEEEEE 33333SEE EEEEEEEEESESESESSSSEESEESEESEESEESSSSSEEEEEEE N

KITCHEN 
EXHAUST 
ABOVE

20
'-

0"

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

HANDICAPPPED 
PARKING STALL

E NOTE 5TSEEE

2' - 5 3/8" 8' - 0" 7' - 6 7/8"

SEE NOTE 7

 9EE 9EEEE 9E 9ETEETEOTOTOTOTE NONNNE NEEEEEEEE OTEOTETETETE NE NEE NONONONOEE NEEE NOEEEEE NNNNNOOOOOTTTTTEE NOTTEEE NOOTNONNEEEESESSSSESESESESSSSSEEEEESSESES EE

DRINKING 
FOUNTAIN

B
E

N
C

H

BOLLAR
, TYP.

SIDEWALK

Natural Surveillance
Criminals do not like to be seen or recognized. The 

two entry plazas on the south and east side of the site 

are carefully designed without view obstruction so that 

natural surveillance could be applied.

Natural Access Control

Curbing and landscaping are used to direct automobile 

and foot traffi  c into a controlled, visible area.

Territorial Reinforcement

The purpose of this principle is to create a clear 

distinction between public and private property. In this 

project residential and non-residential circulation is 

delineated by landscape barriers.

Maintenance

Maintenance is related to territorial reinforcement. A 

well-maintained area sends the message that people 

notice and care about what happens in an area. This, 

in turn, discourages vandalism and other crimes. 

Design Rationale - Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design



DN

92.45

999999999222222.4444444488888888

99999999999999999922222222222222
..66666666666666

666666666666666

99922222222
...99999999999999

6666666666666

99999999999993333333333333333
...000000

99999999999999999999999999999333333333333..22222222222255555555555555

9999999999999999999999999999999999999933333333333333333333333333333....222222222222222222222222222222222222223333333333333333333333333333333999999999999999333333333333..111111111111111111119999999999999222222222222..9999999999997777777777779999999999992222222222222..666666666666333333333333333
999999999999992222222222222.55555555555558888888888888

999999999999999222
999

999999333333333..3333333333333333

9999933
4

TWWWWW94.14

3.
77755

9933333.94

TW994.14

TW94.14

W94.15
01

999933..998

994.00

93
.9

9

TTWW94.03

933
.

9333
.22222222

9999999999

93
.2

333333333333333

999999999922222222.00000000006666666 999999999222222222..00000000999999 9999999222222222.333339999999999 9999999222222222..55555555555444444444

91.98

91.97

TTTTTT
WWWWWWWWWW

999999999992222222
.99999999

3333333333 TTTTTTTTTTTWWWWWWWWWWWW
999999933333333.33333330000000

TTTTTWW
93

.2222222
5555555555555

9999999999999999999999922
.............7777777777777777777777777777777777

77777

R
A

M
P

 T
O

 P
1

COMMERCIAL PARKING FRONTING THE LANE

PARKADE EXIT #2

FUTURE CAR
SHARING

PARKING STALL

ENTRY 
PLAZA

COMMERCIAL
EXIT

MSU LOADING &
GARBAGE STAGING

AREA

PARKING EXHAUSTS COMPLETE WITH
GALVANIZED  METALGRATE

ENTRY INTERCOM

KKKKKKKKBIKE RACK

m

25
'-

3"

33
.4

6m

10
9'

-
9

3/
8"

1.
52

m
5'

-
0"

35
.0

6m

11
5'

-
0

1/
4"

DN

13.59m

44' - 6 7/8"

5.49m

18' - 0 1/4"

29.19m

95' - 9 1/8"

359 SF
ORRIDOR

302.33'
92.15m

29.32m

96' - 2 1/2"

7.52m

24' - 8"

14.27m

46' - 9 7/8"

3.65m

11' - 11 7/8"

PODIUM 
OUTLINE

TOWER EXIT #1

9' - 0" 9' - 0"

32
'-

10
"

15 RES. 
BIKE RACKS

5 RETAIL
BIKE RACKS

18' - 0 1/4"

OFFICE &
YAMENITY

EXIT

4.57m 8.51m 7.98m 8.05m 7.98m 5.49m 7.19m 4.93m
0.09m

TOWER EXIT #2

REGC REGC REGC

IK
E

 R
A

C
I

CC
B

IK
E

 R
A

C
K

IIIII
CCCCCCCCCC

KK
CCC

AAAA
RRR 

EE
KKKI

BBBBB
IKK

EE
RR

AA
CC

KK
BB

IKK
E

RR
AAA

CC
K

BB
IKK

EE
RR

AA
CC

KKKKK
SSSS

KK
SS

K
S

K
SSSS

K

KE RBIKE RACKSRRKK RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRKKKKKKKKKKKKKBB AAABIKE RACKSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

PARKING GRATES,
SHAFT FROM P1       
EM GEN ROOM

xB0.02

2

m

"

LINE OF TRELLIS ABOVE,LINE OF TREELLLISS ABOVVE,L
REFER TO LANDSCAPEREFER TO LANDSCAPEA

DSCAPEDSCAPEDSCAPEDSCAPEDSCAPEDDDDDSSSSSCCCAAAPPPPPEEEEELANLANLANLANLANLLAAAAANNNNN

11
.8

2m

38
'-

9
1/

2

ARCH LOUVRE 
FOR PARKING
INTAKE AT BOT
SIDES OF BENC

1.
52

m

5'
-

0"

7.
30

m

23
'-

11
3/

8"

1.
52

m

5'
-

0"

m

"

0
1/

2"

HCC
EG

BENCH

MIN.
4' - 0"

HHHHHHHT PATT PATT PATT PATT PATPPPAAAAATTTTTEXITEXITEXITEXITEXITEEEEEXXXXX TTTTTT SETBACK

20
'-

0"

08m

4"

11.24m

36' - 10 1/2"

7.52m

24' - 8"
51.12m

167' - 8 1/2"

9
3/

8

4.
13

m

13
'-

6
1/

2"

2.
16

m

7'
-

1"

11
.0

9m

36
'-

4
1/

2"

1.
35

m

4'
-

5"

51.11m

167' - 8 3/8"

HHHHHHHHHHHVISTA SWITCHST SWSTA TV SW CTWSTIV H
LOCATIONC IOO TOCAT NL

ARCH'LAARCH L
LOUVRELOUVRRE

H'L 'LH LH LLLRCHRCRCHRCHRRRRCCCCHHARAARARAAAA H'LRCHRCHARAR HARCH'LARCH'
RERERERERERRRRREEEEEOUVROUVROUVROUVROUVROOOUUUUUVVVVVLOLOLOLOLOLLOOOOOO R

N NNNNNPPEDESTRIAND ST NP DE R APEDESSTRR ANARRTSEDEPP NN
WALKWAYW L W YWA W YL WAWWAAA KKKWWAYYYAWWKLAWWW

10
.0

0m

32
'-

9
5/

8"

2.74m

9' - 0"

2.74m

9' - 0"

SEE NOTE 4

NOTE 3NOTE 33NOTE 333NOTE 3NOTE 3NOTE 3NOTE 3NNNNNOOOOOTTTTTEEEEE 33333SEE SEESEESEESEESEESEESSSSSEEEEEEE N

20
'-

0"

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
HANDICAPPPED 
PARKING STALL

E NOTE 5TSEEE

' - 5 3/8" 8' - 0" 7' - 6 7/8"

DRINKING 
FOUNTAIN

B
E

N
C

H

BOLLAR
, TYP.

SIDEWALK

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202236

UP

UP

DN
UP

DND

99

5

522 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

308 SF

BIKE
ROOM

828 SF

RESIDENTIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

5 SF
MAIL

118 SF
PARCEL

883 SF

RESIDENTIAL
YLOBBY

404 SF
CORRIDOR

750 SF

BOH
CORRIDOR

1095 SF
CRU 1277 SF

CRU
1065 SF

CRU

892 SF
CRU

369 SF

COMMERCIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

141 SF

BIKE
ROOM

20' - 9 1/2"

62
'-

11
"

39
'-

0
1/

4"

5% SLOPE

10' - 0"

305.0'

305.0'

305.0'

175 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

19' - 3 1/2"

39
'-

11
5/

8"

807 SF
CRU

16' - 10 3/8"

122 SF
CORRIDOR

25' - 9 1/2"

197 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

24' - 10"25' - 8 3/8"

5' - 0"

27' - 10 3/8"

16
'-

11
1/

2"

45
'-

0
1/

8"
5'

-
3

1/
2"

15
'-

8
1/

8"
12

'-
6

7/
8"

4'
-

6
1/

2"

273 SF
CORRIDOR

28
'-

5
1/

2"

R OUTLINERRTOW

136 SF

CUSTODIAL
CLOSET

306.9'

308.3'

12 BIKE LOCKERS

H=0, V=12

ELECT

AFTA TMECH SH

E
LE

V
 #

01
 

F
IR

E
 F

IG
H

T
H

E
R

E
LE

V
A

T
O

R

E
LE

V
 #

02
 

18 BIKE LOCKERS

H=18, V=0

18 BIKE LOCKERS

H=15, V=3

14 BIKE LOCKERS

338 SF

BIKE
ROOM

282 SF

BIKE
ROOM

278 SF

BIKE
ROOM

16 BIKE LOCKERS

H=9, V=7

173 SF

RESIDENTIAL
YENTRY

305.0'

305.0'

RAMP

ELEV #03 

7'
-

10
"

FEMALEEEEEE

MALEE

S
H

O
W

E
RR

S
H

O
W

E
RR

S
H

O
W

E
R

L01 STAIR #2TA R #2TA R #
TAL01 STAIR #1TAL01L01 STTAA R #1AT 1R #AIRL01 ST 1R #AIRL01 STTATAATAT #R ##R

H=7, V=7

GAS
METER

MECHMECH

132 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

5' - 0 5/8"

305.1'

STORM WATER STORAGE  
TANK BELOW  CONC. SLAB

SHAFT

0.91m

3' - 0"

TYP.

5' - 1"

5' - 0"

4'
-

3
1/

2"

5' - 0"

8' - 0" 5' - 0 1/2"

5' - 1"

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 2
0.

04
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
4.

08
 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE
= 9.12 m

TRAVEL D
IS

TANCE =
 6

.3
5

m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
8.

64
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
8.

08
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 2
4.

54
 m

25' - 5 7/8" 25' - 6" 21' - 5 143/256"

RAMP

305.1' 306.8'
304.6'

MINI-M -M N
PLANTTLAALANP NTN
INTAKEEATAN KNTTTTTTTTAAAAAAAAATATTTTTTTTTTTTAAAAAAATATTTTT KKEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

5'
-

0"

5' - 0"5'
-

0"

3' - 0"

2' - 0"

52' - 2 145

SSSHAFTTTHSS

304.6'
304.6'

305.0'

305.0'

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
6.

01
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
5.

54
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
8.

30
 m

MINI-PLANTINI- LAN
EXHAUSTUSTXHA

END OF TRIPF R
FACILITYFFA L Y

567 SF

END OF
TRIP

YFACILITY

COMMERCIAL

OFFICE

RESIDENTIAL

AFTAFAFSHSSHA

DOUBLE-O
TIERT

LOCKERSC

DOUBLE-
TIER 

LOCKERS

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 25.60 m

4.
88

m

16
'-

0"

3.
28

m

10
'-

9
1/

4"

5.
35

m

17
'-

6
1/

2"

4.24m

13' - 11"

OTES 1 & 8&&&&&&&&&1ES 8TOSEE NOEE ON 11NO

SEE NOTE 1 & 8N TOOOOOOOOONE NEEEEEEEEES & 888&&TET 11EE &NN

OTES 1 & 88&&1SESTOSEE NOS EEE ON 11NNO

SEE NOTES 1 & 881ESSEOTNEESSEE NOTES 1 & 88

SEE NOTES 1 & 8

2'

979 SF
CRU

37 SF
MAIL

330 SF

OFFICE
YLOBBY

83 SF

OFFICE
YENTRY

307.1'

21' - 3"

LEVEL 02 

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
3.

41
 m

22' - 2 49/256"

307.1'

5/256"

KITCHEN 
EXHAUST
ABOVE

SEE NOTE 7

238 SF

END OF
TRIP

YFACILITY
EXIT

308.

REPAIR
PUMP

T

999222
.0

8

305.0'

4' - 7 1/2" 5' - 0"
COLUMN CC
ROTATEDR

28
'

5
1/

2"324 SF
YAMENITY

304.0'
EXHAUSTEE USAXH

RRR RRRR

LANDS

5'
10

TO LANDSCAPTO ANDSO LANDSCATO LANDS ALA SREFER TREFERREF R TREFERR TRER T

6m9
3/

LA
N

D
S

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

3...
444444444111111111

9999999999999999222222222222
99

99999999999999222222222222...9999999999995555555555599999999999992222222222222...88888888888888877777777777

ERCIAL PARKING FRONT

REC

ARKING

D
S

C
A

P
E

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 L

AN
DS

CA
PEEPPPAACCCSDD

NNAAAL
OOO

E
R

O
LA

DS
CA

PE
E

O
LA

N
DS

CA
P

CA
PEAP

E
F

999222222
99

59

ERCIAL PARKING FRONT

E

R

999222222
99

59

ERCIAL PARKING FRONT

E

R

0000000000009999999999999

9999999999999993333333333333333333333
....22222222222222222222222222

3333333333333333333333333333333333

9999999999999333333333..111111166666

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 L

AN
DS

CA
PEEPPPAACCCSDD

NNAAAL
OOOTT

RREEFEEE
ER

TO
LA

N
DS

CA
P

R
EF

ER
TO

LA
DS

CA
PE

CA
PEAP

E
FF

..0000000

99999

RR

0000000

33

9

RR

46' - 9 7/8"

DSCAPE

45
'-

1

DSCAPECA EPECAAPEEEPP

14.27m

DS

5'
1

DSCAPS AA

DS

5'
-

1

DSCAPEAPP

999333

S
C

A
P

E

3

SS

33

SS

TWTWTW

8"

m

/8/8

m

/8

m

/8

T
999
T
999
T
999

99994444
..111

1111

3
444444444444444444555555555555555555555

EENTRRY 
PPLAZA

P
O

D
IU

M
 

S
E

T
B

A
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

C
K

5 CCOMMMEERCIIAL
BBIKEE RAACKSS

2m

6.511m

21' - 44 3/8"

12' -

B
E

N
C

H
B

E
N

C
H

R
E

F
E

R
 T

O
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

1122
.77

33m

41
'-

9
3/

8"

11.92m

6' - 3 3/44"
0.992m

3' - 0 3/88"

E

9E 9E 9EE 9E 9ETEETEOTTOTOTTOTTE NONNNE N NNEEEEEEEEEEEEE OTTEOTTETTETETEE NEE NEEEEEEE NONONONONE NEE NONNOOOOOTTTTTEEE NOTTEEEE NOOTTNONNEEEEEESESSSSSSSESESESESSSEEESSESES EE

- 0"

308.3'
93.95 m

1100
99'

--
99

3
5588

mm

11
'-

9"

33
.4

6

10
9

9

33.
5

3
5

33.
5

W9

TTTTWWW
994.0

R
E

F
E

R
 T

.3'

12' 

1100
.88

66mm

35
'-

7
1/

2"

.

LA
N

D
LA

N
D

R
E

F
E

R
T

2' --- 0"2' -2' -

T
O

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
D

SS
C

A
P

E
C

T
O

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

TDD TTD T

9994
FTTTTTSHHAFSS 99949994

10 OF10 OFFICEFICE BIKEBIKE
RACKSRACKS
ARCH'LARCH'LARCH'LARCH LARCH LARCH LAAAAAAAARRRRRRCCCCCCHHHHHH LLLLLL
LOUVRELOUVRE LOUVRELOUVRELOUVRELOUVRELLLOOOOOOOOOUUUUUUVVVVVVRRRRRREEEEEE
ABOVEABOVEABOVEABOVEABOVEAAAAABBBBBOOOOOVVVVVVVEEEEE

END OF

22222222..
2222277777777777777

77.
70

m

305.0'

6'
-

2
1/

2""

77.
70

m

25
'-

3"

18.08

59' - 4

ARCH'LARC LAA CRCHAARRCCCH''HHCCRRAA
LOUVRELOUVRELO VREO VVOU RELLOOOUVRRRREEEERVVUOOOL

RR
LA

N
D

L FE
R 

R
EF

TTT
RREEFE

R
EFF

ER
T

ER
T

FF
RR

LARGE OPEN SPACE AT NORTHEAST CORNER 

IS PROPOSED, REINFORCED WITH GRAIN 

PAVING AND OTHER RELATED LANDSCAPE 

ELEMENTS, TO FURTHER ENHANCE THE 

PUBLIC REALM.

BUILDING IS SETBACK 12’ FROM THE PROPERTY 

LINE TO ACCOMMODATE A GENEROUS 7 FT 

WIDE WALKWAY & A 5 FT. WIDE COLONNADE 

OF TREES, AND A LARGE BENCH AT THE 

SOUTH EAST CORNER

AMENITY, RESIDENTIAL ACCESS AND EXIT 

CORRIDOR (WITH GLAZED ENCLOSURE) 

PROVIDES ACTIVATION AT THE NW CORNER

PLANTERS, TREES, AND GREEN BUFFERS ARE 

STRATEGICALLY PLACED TO IMPROVE THE 

NORTH FRONTAGE WHILE ACCOMMODATING 

SERVICES AND PARKING NEEDS OF THE 

BUILDING.

END OF TRIP FACILITY ENTRY AND BIKE MAINT. 

AREA. AT THE CORNER. GLAZED ENCLOSURE 

AND ACTIVITIES WITHIN CONTRIBUTE NOT 

ONLY TO LANE ACTIVATION BUT TO PASSIVE 

SURVEILLANCE AS WELL

RETAIL CORNER. WITH GLAZED ENCLOSURE 

ADDS VIBRANCY TO NS LANE

RETAIL 

CORNER

AMENITY
R

E
S

.  
A

C
C

E
S

S

E
X

IT

OFFICE

LOBBY

E.O.T

OFFICE LOBBY ORIENTED TOWARDS NS LANE

Design Rationale - Proposed Lane Activation Strategy



EAST SECTION NORTH SECTION

SOUTH SECTION

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 37

DN

UP

UP

DN
UP

DND

92.45

999999999222222.4444444488888888

99999999999999999922222222222222
..66666666666666

666666666666666

9999999999999999222222222222222
...99999999999999

6666666666666

999999999999993333333333333333
...00000000000000

9999999999999

9999999999999993333333333333333333333
....22222222222222222222222222

3333333333333333333333333333333333

999999999999999999999999999993333333333333..22222222222255555555555555

99999999999999999999999999999999999999933333333333333333333333333333....2222222222222222222222222222222222222333333333333333333333333333333333999999999999933333333333..111111166666999999999999999333333333333..111111111111111111119999999999999222222222222..99999999999977777777777799999999999999222222222222...99999999999955555555555999999999999922222222222222222222222...88888888888888877777777777
9999999999992222222222222.6666666666663333333333333333333333

9999999999999999222222222222222.555555555555555888888888888888

999999999999999922222222222
..2222

7777777777777

9999222
.0

8

999999333333333..33333333333333333

99999333
...44444444444

111111111

TWWWWW94.14

999333
.777

55

9933333.94

TW994.14

TW94.14

TTTTWWW94.1599994.01

9999933..998

994.00

93
.9

9

99994444
..111

1111

TTWW94.03

933
.4444444444444444

555555555555555

9333
.222222222

9999999999

93
.2

333333333333333

9999999999222222222.0000000000006666666 999999999222222222..00000000999999 9999999222222222.333339999999999 999999922222222222..55555555555444444444

91.98

91.97

TTTTTT
WWWWWWWWWWWW

99999999999922222222
.999999999

3333333333 TTTTTTTTTTTTTWWWWWWWWWWWW
999999933333333.33333330000000

TTTTTWW
93

.222222222
5555555555555555

999999999999999999999922
.............77777777777777777777777777777777777

77777

522 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

308 SF

BIKE
ROOM

828 SF

RESIDENTIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

5 SF
MAIL

118 SF
PARCEL

883 SF

RESIDENTIAL
YLOBBY

404 SF
CORRIDOR

750 SF

BOH
CORRIDOR

1095 SF
CRU 1277 SF

CRU
1065 SF

CRU

892 SF
CRU

979 SF
CRU

369 SF

COMMERCIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

141 SF

BIKE
ROOM

37 SF
MAIL

330 SF

OFFICE
YLOBBY

R
A

M
P

 T
O

 P
1

COMMERCIAL PARKING FRONTING THE LANE

PARKADE EXIT #2

20' - 9 1/2"

62
'-

11
"

FUTURE CAR 
SHARING

PARKING STALL

ENTRY
PLAZA

COMMERCIAL
EXIT

MSU LOADING & 
GARBAGE STAGING

AREA

ENTRY
PLAZA

PARKING EXHAUSTS COMPLETE WITH
GALVANIZED  METALGRATE

P
O

D
IU

M
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

39
'-

0
1/

4"

ENTRY INTERCOM

KKKKKKKKKBIKE RACK

7.
70

m

25
'-

3"

33
.4

6m

10
9'

-
9

3/
8"

1.
52

m
5'

-
0"

35
.0

6m

11
5'

-
0

1/
4"

DN

5% SLOPE

10' - 0"

13.59m

44' - 6 7/8"

5.49m

18' - 0 1/4"

29.19m

95' - 9 1/8"

359 SF
ORRIDOR

83 SF

OFFICE
YENTRY 308.3'

93.95 m

305.0'

307.1'

305.0'

305.0'

305.0'

305.0'

302.33'
92.15m

29.32m

96' - 2 1/2"

7.52m

24' - 8"

14.27m

46' - 9 7/8"

3.65m

11' - 11 7/8"

PODIUM
OUTLINE

175 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

TOWER EXIT #1

19' - 3 1/2"

39
'-

11
5/

8"

4' - 7 1/2"

807 SF
CRU

16' - 10 3/8"

122 SF
CORRIDOR

25' - 9 1/2"

197 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

24' - 10"25' - 8 3/8" 21' - 3"

5' - 0"

9' - 0" 9' - 0"

32
'-

10
"

15 RES.
BIKE RACKS

5 RETAIL 
BIKE RACKS

5 COMMERCIAL
BIKE RACKS

18' - 0 1/4"

27' - 10 3/8"5' - 0"

238 SF

END OF
TRIP

YFACILITY
EXIT

OFFICE & 
YAMENITY

EXIT

16
'-

11
1/

2"

45
'-

0
1/

8"
5'

-
3

1/
2"

15
'-

8
1/

8"
12

'-
6

7/
8"

4'
-

6
1/

2"

COLUMNCC
ROTATEDR

4.57m 8.51m 7.98m 8.05m 7.98m 5.49m 7.19m 4.93m
0.09m

273 SF
CORRIDOR

28
'-

5
1/

2"

TOWER EXIT #2

LANDSCAPE

REGC REGC REGC

R OUTLINERRTOW

136 SF

CUSTODIAL
CLOSET

306.9'

308.3'

12 BIKE LOCKERS

H=0, V=12

ELECT

AFTA TMECH SH

E
LE

V
 #

01
 

F
IR

E
 F

IG
H

T
H

E
R

 
E

LE
V

A
T

O
R

E
LE

V
 #

02

18 BIKE LOCKERS

H=18, V=0

18 BIKE LOCKERS

H=15, V=3

14 BIKE LOCKERS

338 SF

BIKE
ROOM

282 SF

BIKE
ROOM

278 SF

BIKE
ROOM

16 BIKE LOCKERS

H=9, V=7

173 SF

RESIDENTIAL
YENTRY

305.0'

305.0'

RAMP

ELEV #03 

7'
-

10
"

308.3'

FEMALEEEEEE

MALEE

S
H

O
W

E
RR

S
H

O
W

E
RR

S
H

O
W

E
R

BBBBBBB
IIIKIKIKKKKKKKK

EEEEEEEE
RRRRRRRRR

A
R

AAAAAAAAA
CCCCCCCCCCCCCC

KKKK
IIIII

CCCCCCCCCC
KK

CCC
AAAA

RRR 
EE

KKKI
BBB

K
BB

IKK
EE

RR
AA

CC
KK

BB
IKK

E
RR

AAA
CC

K
BB

IKK
EE

RR
AA

CC
KKKKKK

SSSSSSSSSS
KK

SS
K

S
K

SSSS
K

RACKSRRRKE RKKBI RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRKKKKKKKKKKKKKBB AAASBIKE RACKSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

L01 STAIR #2TA R #2TA R #
AIR #1ATAL01 STTAL01L01 STTAIAAIR #1ATTTTAA R #1AT 1R #AIRL01 ST 1R #AIRL01 STTATAATAT #R ##R

H=7, V=7

6'
-

2
1/

2"

GAS
METER

PARKING GRATES, 
SHAFT FROM P1       
EM GEN ROOM

REPAIR
PUMP

MECHMECH

132 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

5' - 0 5/8"

305.1'

xB0.02

2

STORM WATER STORAGE  
TANK BELOW  CONC. SLAB

SHAFT

0.91m

3' - 0"

TYP.

LEVEL 02

LINE OF TRELLIS ABOVE,LINE OF TREELLLISS ABOVVE, L
REFER TO LANDSCAPEREFER TO LANDSCAPEA

5' - 1"

5' - 0"

4'
-

3
1/

2"

5' - 0"

8' - 0" 5' - 0 1/2"

DSCAPEDSCAPEDSCAPEDSCAPEDSCAPEDDDDDSSSSSCCCAAAPPPPPEEEEELANLANLANLANLANLLAAAAANNNNN

5' - 1"

11
.8

2m

38
'-

9
1/

2

ARCH LOUVRE
FOR PARKING 
INTAKE AT BOT
SIDES OF BENC

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 2
0.

04
 m

1.
52

m

5'
-

0"

7.
30

m

23
'-

11
3/

8"

1.
52

m

5'
-

0"

7.
70

m

25
'-

3"

6.51m

21' - 4 3/8"

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
4.

08
 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE
= 9.12 m

TRAVEL D
IS

TANCE =
 6

.3
5 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
8.

64
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
8.

08
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
3.

41
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 2
4.

54
 m

12' - 0"

324 SF
YAMENITY

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

12' - 0"

25' - 5 7/8" 25' - 6" 21' - 5 143/256" 22' - 2 49/256"

RAMP

45
'-

10
1/

2"

305.1' 306.8'

307.1'

304.6'

MINI-M -M N
PLANTTLAALANP NTN
INTAKEEATAN KNTTTTTTTTAAAAAAAAATATTTTTTTTTTTTAAAAAAATATTTTT KKEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

5'
-

0"

5' - 0"5'
-

0"

3' - 0"

2' - 0"

52' - 2 145/256"

10 OFFICE BIKE
RACKS

THAFTSSSS THSS

HCC
REGC

B
E

N
C

H

BENCH

MIN.
4' - 0"

HHHHHHHT PATT PATT PATT PATT PATPPPAAAAATTTTTEXITEXITEXITEXITEXITEEEEEXXXXX TTTTTT

ANDSCAPEANDSCAPEANDSCAPEANDSCAAPEETO LATOO LTO L EELA SREFER TREFEREF R TREFERR TRRRRRRER PPT

R
EFFEE

RRR
EF

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 L

AN
DS

CA
PACCCSDD

NNAAAL
OOOTT

RREEER
TO

LA
DS

C
ER

TO
LA

N
DS

CCA
PPPAAPAAP

EEPEPEE
CA

PEAP
E

FF

SETBACK

R
E

F
E

R
 T

O
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

304.6'
304.6'

305.0'

305.0'

304.0'

R
E

F
E

R
 T

O
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

20
'-

0"

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
6.

01
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
5.

54
 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
8.

30
 m

18.08m

59' - 4"

11.24m

36' - 10 1/2"

7.52m

24' - 8"

14.27m

46' - 9 7/8"
51.12m

167' - 8 1/2"

33
.4

6m

10
9'

-
9

3/
8"

4.
13

m

13
'-

6
1/

2"

2.
16

m

7'
-

1"

11
.0

9m

36
'-

4
1/

2"

1.
35

m

4'
-

5"

12
.7

3m

41
'-

9
3/

8"

3.
58

m

11
'-

9"

10
.8

6m

35
'-

7
1/

2"

1.92m

6' - 3 3/4"
0.92m

3' - 0 3/8"

51.11m

167' - 8 3/8"

MINI-PLANTINI- LAN
EXHAUSTUSTXHA

END OF TRIP F R
FACILITYFFA L Y

H HHHHHHHHHHVISTA SWITCHST SWSTA TV SW CTWSTIV H
LOCATIONC IOO TOCAT NL

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

R
EFFEE

RRR
E

R
EFF

ER
 T

O
 L

AN
DS

CA
PACCCSDD

NNAAAL
OOOTT

RREEER
TO

LA
N

DS
CA

ER
TO

LA
DS

CCA
PPPAPAPAP

EEPPPEEE
CA

PEAP
E

FF

567 SF

END OF
TRIP

YFACILITY

EXHAUSTEE USAXH

COMMERCIAL

OFFICE

RESIDENTIAL

AFTAFAFSHSSHA

DOUBLE-O
TIERT

LOCKERSC

DOUBLE-
TIER

LOCKERS

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 25.60 m

ARCH'LAARCH L 
LOUVRELOUVRRE

ARCH'LARCH'LARCH LARCH LARCH LAAAAAAARRRRRCCCCCHHHHH LLLLL
LOUVRELOUVRELOUVRELOUVRELOUVRELLLOOOOOOOUUUUUVVVVVRRRRREEEEE
ABOVEABOVEABOVEABOVEABOVEAAAAABBBBBOOOOOVVVVVVVEEEEE

H'L 'LH LH LLLRCHRCRCHRCHCHRRRRCCCCHHARAARARARAAAA H'LRCHRCHARAR HARCH'LARCH'
RERERERERERRRRREEEEEOUVROUVROUVROUVROUVROOOUUUUUVVVVVLOLOLOLOLOLLOOOOOO R

ARCH'LARC LAA CRCHAARCCCH''HHCCRRAA
LOUVRELO VREO VVOU RELLOOUVRRREEEERVVUOOL

4.
88

m

16
'-

0"

3.
28

m

10
'-

9
1/

4"

5.
35

m

17
'-

6
1/

2"

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

4.24m

13' - 11"

SHAFTTS TS

NNNNNNPEDESTRIAND ST NP DE R APEDESSTRR ANARRTSEDEPPP NN
WALKWAYW L W YWA W YL WAWWAAA KKKWWAYYYAWWKLAWWW

10
.0

0m

32
'-

9
5/

8"

2.74m

9' - 0"

2.74m

9' - 0"

TES 1 & 8&&&&&&&&&1ESOT 8TO 11SEE NOEE ONNO

SEE NOTE 1 & 8N TOOOOOOOOONE NEEEEEEEEES & 888&&TET 11EE &NN

TES 1 & 88&&1SESOTTO 11SEE NOS EEE ONNNO

8SEE NOTES 1 & 81ENESEE NOTES 1 & 81ESSEOTNEESSEE NOTES 1 & 88

SEE NOTES 1 & 8

SEE NOTE 4

3NOTE 33NOTE 3NOTE 33NOTE 33NOTE 33NOTE 3NOTE 333NOTE 3NOTE 3NOTE 3NOTE 3NNNNNOOOOOTTTTTEEEEE 33333SEE SEESEESEESEESEESEESSSSSEEEEEEE N

KITCHEN
EXHAUST
ABOVE

20
'-

0"

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

HANDICAPPPED 
PARKING STALL

E NOTE 5TSEEE

2' - 5 3/8" 8' - 0" 7' - 6 7/8"

SEE NOTE 7

 9E 9EEE 9E 9ETEETEOTOTOTOTOOOOE NNNNE N NNEEEEEEEEEEE OTEOTETETETE NE NEEEEE NONONONONNOOONNEEEE NOTTTTTEE NOTTEEE NOOTNONNEEEEEESESSSSSSSESESESESSSEEESSESES EE

DRINKING
FOUNTAIN

B
E

N
C

H

BOLLAR
, TYP.

SIDEWALK

Design Rationale - Public Realm Sections



Units between 600 to 700sq.ft.

Units between 900 to 1,000 sq.ft.

Typcal Floor Plan

To address housing aff ordability, we have designed a wide range 

of unit sizes which allow for a variety of price points. Approximately 

28% of units will be sized between 600 to 700 sq.ft., and another 

57% of the units will be sized between 900 to 1,000 sq.ft. This 

creates diversity in housing choices that will appeal to a variety 

of residents including empty-nesters, fi rst time home buyers, 

retirees, singles and young couples. North shore residents will be 

provided with an opportunity to continue living in their community, 

particularly within the vibrant neighborhood of Central Lonsdale.

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202238

UP

1126 SF
C2

1372 SF
G1

ELECT

MECH SHAFTA T

EL
EV

 #
01

FI
R

E 
FI

G
H

TH
ER

 
EL

EV
AT

O
R

EL
EV

 #
02

ELEVATOR 
LOBBY

L5-21  
TYP.STAIR #1TT R

BALCONYYYYYY

BALCONYB

BALCONY

BALCONY
BALCONYAL

MECH

BALCONY

LEVEL 03

PENTHOUSE 
ABOVE

LINE OF 
BALCONY 
PENTHOUSE

LINE OF  
CONCRETE 
OVERHANG 

ABOVE

USE 
Y

LINE OF

LINE OF  
PENTHOUSE 

THOUSE 
VE

3'
-3

"

SETBACK LINE

4.50m 24.87m

1.14m

3' - 8 7/8"

8.19m

26' - 10 1/4"

2.81m

9' - 2 5/8"

4.52m

14' - 10"

6.39m

20' - 11 5/8"

1.83m

5' - 11 7/8"

27
.5

7m
3.

42
m

0.
91

m

2'
-1

1
3/

4"

3.
00

m

9'
-1

0"

3.
59

m

11
'-

9
1/

4"

7.
27

m

23
'-

10
1/

8"

15
.3

6m

50
'-

4
3/

4"

0.
86

m

2'
-1

0"

30
.9

8m

10
1'

-7
7/

8"

677 SF
E1

665 SF
B1

987 SF
C1

4'
-6

"
4'

-6
"

945 SF
C4

Y

3'
-3

3/
8"

1000 SF
C5

4'
-5

5/
8"

Design Rationale - Aff ordability

Aff ordability by Design (Unit Size/ Target Market Price)



Typcal Floor Plan

The Project complies with the City of North Vancouvers’ Adaptable 

Design Guidelines Level Two, which provides for a greater range 

of adaptability in addition to the Barrier-Free requirements of the 

current Building Code. The intention is to provide persons who 

require a mobility aid with the ability to move easily in and out of 

the building, common areas, and individual units.

Required = 34 Units (25%)

Provided = 38 Units (28%)

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 39

UP

1126 SF
C2

1000 SF
C5 677 SF

E1
987 SF

C1

665 SF
B1

1372 SF
G1

945 SF
C4

ELECT

MECH SHAFT

EL
EV

 #
01

 
FI

R
E 

FI
G

H
TH

ER
 

EL
EV

AT
O

R
EL

EV
 #

02
 

ELEVATOR 
LOBBY

L5-21  
TYP.STAIR #1

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY
BALCONY

MECH

BALCONY

LEVEL 03 

PENTHOUSE 
ABOVE

LINE OF  
BALCONY 
PENTHOUSE

LINE OF 
CONCRETE 
OVERHANG  

ABOVE

USE 
Y

LINE OF

LINE OF  
PENTHOUSE 

THOUSE 
VE

4'
-6

"
4'

-6
"

3'
-3

3/
8"

4'
-5

5/
8"

3'
-3

"

SETBACK LINE

4.50m 24.87m

1.14m

3' - 8 7/8"

8.19m

26' - 10 1/4"

2.81m

9' - 2 5/8"

4.52m

14' - 10"

6.39m

20' - 11 5/8"

1.83m

5' - 11 7/8"

27
.5

7m
3.

42
m

0.
91

m

2'
-1

1
3/

4"

3.
00

m

9'
-1

0"

3.
59

m

11
'-

9
1/

4"

7.
27

m

23
'-

10
1/

8"

15
.3

6m

50
'-

4
3/

4"

0.
86

m

2'
-1

0"

30
.9

8m

10
1'

-7
7/

8"

Mechanical
22 4 4
21 5 2 7
20 5 2 7
19 5 2 7
18 5 2 7
17 5 2 7
16 5 2 7
15 5 2 7
14 5 2 7
13 5 2 7
12 5 2 7
11 5 2 7
10 5 2 7
9 5 2 7
8 5 2 7
7 5 2 7
6 5 2 7
5 5 2 7
4 5 2 7
3 4 2 6
2
1

Required / 34 /
Provided 98 38 136

*25% units must be Level Two Adaptable Units

Type Standard Level 2 Adaptable Total
UP

1126 SF
C2

1000 SF
C5

987 SF
C1

665 SF
B1

945 SF
C4

ELECT

MECH SHAFTA T

EL
EV

 #
01

FI
R

E 
FI

G
H

TH
ER

 
EL

EV
AT

O
R

EL
EV

 #
02

 

ELEVATOR 
LOBBY

L5-21   
TYP.STAIR #1TT R

BALCONYYYYYY

BALCONYB

BALCONY

BALCONY
BALCONYAL

MECH

BALCONY

LEVEL 03

PENTHOUSE
ABOVE

LINE OF 
BALCONY 
PENTHOUSE

LINE OF
CONCRETE 
OVERHANG 

ABOVE

E

LINE OF

LINE OF 
PENTHOUSE

HOUSE
E

4'
-6

"
4'

-6
"

3'
-3

3/
8"

4'
-5

5/
8"

SETBACK LINE

50m 24.87m

1.14m

3' - 8 7/8"

8.19m

26' - 10 1/4"

2.81m

9' - 2 5/8"

4.52m

14' - 10"

6.39m

20' - 11 5/8"

1.83m

5' - 11 7/8"

0.
91

m

2'
-1

1
3/

4"

3.
00

m

9'
-1

0"

3.
59

m

11
'-

9
1/

4"

7.
27

m

23
'-

10
1/

8"

15
.3

6m

50
'-

4
3/

4"

0.
86

m

2'
-1

0"

30
.9

8m

10
1'

-7
7/

8"

Mechanical
22 44 4
21 5 7
20 5 7
19 5 7
18 5 7
17 5 7
16 5 7
15 5 7
14 5 7
13 5 7
12 5 7
11 5 7
10 5 7
9 5 7
8 5 7
7 5 7
6 5 7
5 5 7
4 5 7
3 4 6
2
1

Required / /
Provided 98 136

*25% units must be Level Two Adaptable Units

Type Standard Total

Design Rationale - Adaptable Design Statistics

677 SF
E1

1372 SF
G1

3'
-3

"

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2

343
383

Level 2 Adaptable



75% NATIVE, ADAPTIVE, OR 

EDIBLE SPECIES LANDSCAPING

Table 10.2.3.3.-H
Energy Performance Requirements for Other Residential Occupancies

Forming part of Sentences 10.2.3.3.(1) and (2)

Degree-Days Below 
18°C Step Equipment and Systems – Maximum Total Energy Use 

Intensity, kWh/(m2•year)
Building Envelope – Maximum Thermal Energy Demand 

Intensity, kWh/(m2•year)

Less than 3000 1 Conform to Part 8 of the NECB

2 130 45

3 120 30

4 100 15

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202240

Design Rationale - Sustainable Strategies

STEP CODE LEVEL - STEP 3

POLICY

A. Applicability 

This policy applies to residential buildings or portions of buildings constructed under 
Part 3 of the British Columbia Building Code, specifically conforming to sentences 
10.2.3.1 (1) (a) (i) (ii) or (iii) of the BC Building Code.  These buildings are by definition 
four storeys and above and greater than 600 square metres (approximately 6,500 
square feet) in building area.  This policy will also apply to Part 3 commercial buildings 
and Part 3 mixed-use residential commercial buildings. 

B.  Energy Performance Requirement 

Energy performance requirements are outlined below for Part 3 buildings. 

Building Building Code 
Reference 

Step Code Level 
Required under 
Rezoning Policy 

Part 3 Residential Conforming with 
sentence 10.2.3.1 (1) 
(a) (i) of the Building 
Code

Step 3*

Part 3 Commercial Conforming with 
sentence 10.2.3.1 (1) 
(a) (ii) or (iii) of the 
Building Code 

Step 2*

* = as defined by Sentence 10.2.3.3. (1) of the Building Code 

Source: City of North Vancouver, Council Policy, Step Code Rezoning Policy for Part 3 Buildings

Source: BC Building Code



NATURAL SYSTEMS

VIEW FROM NORTHEAST VIEW FROM SOUTHEAST

SOCIAL CONNECTIONS

CULTURAL DIVERSITY

PHYSICAL STRUCTURES/INFRASTRUCTURE

LOCAL ECONOMY

HUMAN POTENTIAL

75% NATIVE, ADAPTIVE, OR 

EDIBLE SPECIES LANDSCAPING

ENERGY EFFICIENT BUILDING

7,000+ SF OF RETAIL SPACE

PROVIDE UNITS MOUNTAIN & WATER VIEWS
WATER EFFICIENT IRRIGATION SYSTEM 

INDOOR AMENITY

STORMWATER DETENTION TANK

FORMAL AND INFORMAL GATHERING SPACES 

PERMEABLE PAVERS ON ROOF LEVELS

OUTDOOR RECREATION

PUBLIC ARTS  PROVIDED

CRIME PREVENTION THROUGH 

ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN 

END OF TRIP FACILITY

STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS

 (BENCHES, PLANTERS, LIGHTING) 

LED LIGHTING (WHOLE BUILDING) 

15,000+ SF OF OFFICE SPACE

CLOSE TO TRANSIT, SHOPPING 

AND OTHER AMENITIES

OUTDOOR CIRCULATION 

ON LEVEL 2 AND 3

WATER EFFICIENT FIXTURES (WHOLE BUILDING) 

ELECTRIC VEHICLE SUPPLY COVER 25%

LEC MINI-PLANT PROVIDED

LEC MINI-PLANT

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 41

VIEW FROM SOUTHEASTVIEW FROM NORTHEAST

Design Rationale - Sustainable Strategies



Design Rationale - Sustainable Strategies

the Stormwater Management Plan for more information.

The development mix, location, and density all contribute to the City of North Vancouver’s vision to create 

a great city of communities that cares about its people, its environment, and which promotes opportunities 

to live, work, and prosper. The proposed combination of residential and offi  ce/retail will help to contribute to 

the overall Lonsdale Avenue urban design objective of mixed development and community connectivity. This 

development is part of the overall solution to reduce the City’s carbon footprint by having housing diversity 

within walking distance of shops and services, and accessible to many transit options via the various bus 

routes along Lonsdale Avenue and West 15th Street. 

To promote car-free transportation, ample secured bicycle storage is considered. Short-term bike parking 

and end-of-trip bicycle infrastructure will be provided to the residents and occupants of the offi  ce/retail space. 

In addition, 25% of all residential parking spaces will include an electrical outlet, which exceeds the city’s 

suggested percentage of 20%. The remaining 75% of residential parking spaces will receive future provision 

for electric vehicle charging.

3. LOCAL ECONOMY

The Project will provide approx. 7,000+ SF of retail space and approx. 15,000+ SF of offi  ce space to the 

Central Lonsdale area in close proximity to Lions Gate Hospital and the North Vancouver City Library, which 

will generate new job opportunities and provide convenience to the neighborhood. The Developer’s vision is 

to have the offi  ce space mainly used for medical/ dental clinics and has a strong incentive to bring back the 

existing Persian grocery store.

4. HUMAN POTENTIAL

The Project is situated in the Central Lonsdale area and provides proximity to transit, shopping, medical 

services, and library for the residents. The location and the views from the units will promote health and 

wellness to the residents, with the mountain view towards the north, water view towards the south, landscaped 

podium view towards the east and the west.

There is a broad range of unit sizes across all levels, providing a good selection for the nester/downsizers, the 

restart/move-up, and various other future residents. Among the 136 units, there are about 28% one-bedroom 

units that are designed to be at an aff ordable size. On the typical Levels 3-21, there are one-bedroom, two-

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202242



Design Rationale - Sustainable Strategies

bedroom, and three-bedroom units provided. There are 2 two-bedroom and 2 three-bedroom penthouse units 

on the top level. Adaptable units (Level Two) are available on Levels 3-21, with the selection of one-bedroom 

unit facing the stunning north mountain view, and the three-bedroom unit facing the well-lit south side. Ample 

storage lockers are provided in the underground parking levels for the residents’ convenience.

5. SOCIAL CONNECTIONS

The Project follows the City of North Vancouvers’ Adaptable Design Guidelines Level Two, which provides 

for a greater range of adaptability in addition to the Barrier-Free requirements of the current Building Code. 

The intention is to provide persons who require a mobility aid with the ability to move easily in and out of the 

building, common areas, and individual units.

The residential levels are delivered with indoor amenity space and an outdoor recreation podium on Level 3. 

The potential programs include fi tness and lounge for the indoor amenity, and lounge seating, fi re pit, and yoga 

area for the outdoor recreation podium. The offi  ce space on Level 2 is also provided with private patios with 

landscape facing the west. 

Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design is planned by applying natural access control, natural 

surveillance, territoriality (defense space), and maintenance. Residential and non-residential circulation is 

suggested by landscape barriers. The two entry plazas on the south and east side of the site are carefully 

designed without view obstruction so that natural surveillance could be applied.

6. CULTURE DIVERSITY

The Project provides various formal and informal gathering spaces - streetscape improvement with benches 

and landscape on the ground level, private offi  ce deck on Level 2, and residential podium space and indoor 

amenity on Level 3. Public art will be proposed to celebrate the local culture and refl ect the community rationale.

The Developer and project team are experienced in building projects of this scale and complexity in the 

City of North Vancouver. The Project is moving forward following an integrated design process to optimize 

opportunities for overall building performance and effi  ciency. It will contribute to the City of North Vancouver’s 

goal to become a vibrant, diverse, and highly livable community that is resilient to climate changes, and 

sustainable in its ability to prosper without sacrifi ce to future generations in 2031.

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 43



Precedent Images - Tower Design

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202244

Tower Shape
To emphasize the slender profi le of the tower, 
the volume is broken down into smaller volumes 
that follow the shape of the unit layouts.

This move accentuates the verticality of the 
tower.

The balconies are elements integrated in the 
architecture of the building to minimize the 
thermal bridge and maximize comfort



Retail Experience
The retail units on the ground are 
meant to activate the street and 
provide seating areas with patios.

The focus for the retail is to provide a 
solution that allows for fl exibility. 

At the same time, is has to provide 
opportunities to each tenant to 
express their brand while not 
disrupting the overall architecture of 
the building

LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 45

Precedent Images - Retail Design



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202246

Precedent Images - Offi  ce Podium Design

Offi  ce Floor
The development has one 
fl oor of offi  ce which risks to 
feel meaningless compared 
to the presence of the retail in 
the ground and the residential 
towers above.

Exploring solutions were the 
offi  ce reads as a single volume, 
by off setting it and providing a 
textured skin to it, will create 
opportunities for planted edges 
and terraces with a unique 
shape and experience



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 47

Precedent Images - Lobby Experience

Retail Experience
The lobby is the entrance to the building and will defi ne the experience of the residents and visitors upon arrival. 
The proposed lobby builds upon the concepts of elegance and simplicity playing. The light coming from the 
exterior will play a big part on how the lobby is perceived. Elements like feature walls and seating elements 
along the path will activate the lobby and allow residents to enjoy the experience.



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202248

Precedent Images - Lobby Experience



PERSPECTIVE DRAWINGS



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202250

Aerial View of Project Site



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 51

Overall View from West (15th Street)



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202252

Overall View from East (15th Street)



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 2022 53

 Public Realm - View from 15th Street



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

APRIL 202254

 Public Realm - View from Southeast



ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS



# SECTIONPLANS



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

57APRIL 2022

1
A3.01

1
A3.01

1
A3.02

1

1

9

9

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

BB

CC

DD

EE

AA

FF

R 22' - 0"

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 2
4.

60
 m

ELEVATOR PIT

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

4.88m

16' - 0"

6.71m

22' - 0"

5.79m

19' - 0"

UNEXCAVATED

STORAGE STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGESTORAGE

5 LOCKERS/ 
STORAGE

0.46m

1' - 6"

4.72m

15' - 6"

6.71m

22' - 0"

5.79m

19' - 0"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

5.
58

m

18
' -

 3
 5

/8
"

0.
62

m

2'
 -

 0
 3

/8
"

2.
44

m

8'
 -

 0
"

SHAFT

REGR REGR REGR REGR

SMLR

REGR

REGR

REGRSMLR

257.8'

74' - 10"

59
' -

 5
"

8'
 -

 0
"

67
' -

 5
"

SEE NOTE 11

1' - 0"

1' - 0"

REGR

SMLR

REGR

OVERALL LOWER LEVEL P4

PARKING SCHEDULE

DESCRIP
TION COMMENT COUNT

LEVEL 01
HC COMMERCIAL - HC 1

REG COMMERCIAL - REGULAR
STALL

4

5
LEVEL P1

REG COMMERCIAL - REGULAR
STALL

3

REG OFFICE - REGULAR STALL 4
SML OFFICE - SMALL STALL 5

12
LEVEL P2

HC OFFICE - HANDICAP STALL 1
REG OFFICE - REGULAR STALL 9
SML OFFICE - SMALL STALL 3
SML RESIDENTIAL - SMALL STALL 4
HC RESIDENTIAL- HC 1

REG RESIDENTIAL- REGULAR
STALL

25

REG VISITOR - REGULAR 4
SML VISITOR - SMALL 6

53
LEVEL P3

SML RESIDENTIAL - SMALL STALL 12
HC RESIDENTIAL- HC 3

REG RESIDENTIAL- REGULAR
STALL

42

57
UPPER LEVEL P4

SML RESIDENTIAL - SMALL STALL 14
HC RESIDENTIAL- HC 2

REG RESIDENTIAL- REGULAR
STALL

43

59
LEVEL LOWER P4

SML RESIDENTIAL - SMALL STALL 3
REG RESIDENTIAL- REGULAR

STALL
9

12
198

PARKING SCHEDULE - TYPE

DESCRIPTION COMMENT COUNT

VISITOR - SMALL
SML VISITOR - SMALL 6

6
VISITOR - REGULAR

REG VISITOR - REGULAR 4
4

RESIDENTIAL- REGULAR STALL
REG RESIDENTIAL- REGULAR

STALL
119

119
RESIDENTIAL- HC

HC RESIDENTIAL- HC 6
6

RESIDENTIAL - SMALL STALL
SML RESIDENTIAL - SMALL

STALL
33

33
OFFICE - SMALL STALL

SML OFFICE - SMALL STALL 8
8

OFFICE - REGULAR STALL
REG OFFICE - REGULAR STALL 13

13
OFFICE - HANDICAP STALL

HC OFFICE - HANDICAP
STALL

1

1
COMMERCIAL - REGULAR STALL

REG COMMERCIAL - REGULAR
STALL

7

7
COMMERCIAL - HC

HC COMMERCIAL - HC 1
1

198

FLOOR PLAN
LOWER P4



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

58 APRIL 2022

UP

1' - 0" 7' - 6" 8' - 2" 5' - 0"

18
' -

 0
"

18
' -

 0
"

15
 

 1

W
A

L
L

 O
R

 C
O

L
U

M
N

W
A

L
L

 O
R

 C
O

L
U

M
N

R SML 000 R STD 000 R HC 000

ADDITIONAL WIDTH NEXT TO 
WALL OR COLUMN

ADDITIONAL WIDTH NEXT TO 
WALL OR COLUMN

SMALL STALL REGULAR STALL HANDICAP STALL

PARKING LEGEND:
CITY PARKING : NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, CANADA

OCCUPANCY 
STALL TYPE 
STALL NUMBER

PARKING TAG

OCCUPANCY LEGEND:

V        VISITOR
R        RESIDENTIAL 

STYLE TYPE:
STC      STANDARD

HC        HANDICAP
SML      SMALL

13' - 2"9' - 2"8' - 6"

1' - 0" 8' - 2"

RREG000RREG000RREG000

24' - 6"

18
' -

 0
"

1'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

1'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

C        COMMERCIAL/ RETAIL 

R REG 000

PARKING COLOR CODE LEGEND

REGULAR STALL

SMALL STALL

HANDICAP STALL

O        OFFICE

1
A3.01

TOWER OUTLINE

1
A3.02

R 22' - 0"

R 22' - 0"R 22' - 
0"

1

9

9

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

BB

CC

DD

EE

AA

FF

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

54.69m

179' - 5"

0.11m

0' - 4 1/8"

0.
07

m

0'
 -

 2
 7

/8
"

42
.4

9m

13
9'

 -
 5

"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

54.86m

179' - 11 3/4"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

42
.4

9m

13
9'

 -
 5

"

0.
08

m

0'
 -

 3
"

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 3
/8

"

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

54.69m

179' - 5"

0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

54.87m

180' - 0 3/8"

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 1
/4

"

ELEVATOR 
VESTIBULE

RESIDENTIAL 
LOBBY

R 22' - 0"

R 22' - 0"

R 2
2' 

- 0
"

R 22' - 
0"

264.6'

STORAGE
STORAGE STORAGE STORAGE STORAGE

DN

264.6'

263.1'

263.1'
259.7'DN

REGR

SMLR

REGR

SMLR

REGR

REGR REGRREGR

REGR

REGR

REGR

REGR

REGR

REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR

REGR

REGR

SMLR

REGR

HCR

REGR

REGR

REGR

REGR

SMLR

REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR

10 LOCKERS/ STORAGE

27 LOCKERS/ STORAGE

E
LE

V
 #

01
 

F
IR

E
 F

IG
H

T
H

E
R

 
E

LE
V

A
T

O
R

E
LE

V
 #

02
 

2'
 -

 0
 7

/8
"

4'
 -

 1
1 

1/
4"

3'
 -

 5
 3

/4
"

2'
 -

 6
"

16
' -

 5
 1

/2
"

2'
 -

 6
"

3'
 -

 4
 3

/4
" 9' - 1 5/8" 1' - 4" 7' - 10" 1' - 6"

4' - 9 3/8" 8' - 9 1/8" 1' - 4" 7' - 10"

2'
 -

 6
"

23
' -

 4
"

2'
 -

 6
"

267.3'

267.3'

ELECT

MECH SHAFT

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

5.0% SLOPE

4.7% SLOPE

6' - 4"

MECH

REGR

1.
99

 m

6'
 -

 6
 1

33
/2

56
"

19' - 11" 22' - 0" 26' - 6" 25' - 4" 1' - 0"8" 25' - 0" 1' - 6" 15' - 6" 22' - 0" 19' - 0"

SMLR

REGR

SMLR

SMLR SMLR

REGR

1' - 0"

STORAGE

SMLR SMLR

5.
0%

 S
LO

P
E

SMLRSMLR

TYP.

REGR

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

5 LOCKERS/ 
STORAGE STORAGE

STORAGE

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 44.09 m

T
R

A
V

E
L D

IS
T

A
N

C
E

 = 44.09 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 44.66 m

T
R

A
V

E
L 

D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 3
6.

84
 m

TR
A

VE
L 

D
IS

TA
N

C
E 

= 
26

.0
3 

m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 9
.6

0 
m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 1
9.

95
 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 44.66 m

STORAGE

REGR

REGR

T
R

A
V

E
L D

IS
T

A
N

C
E

 = 44.09 m

8.
09

m

26
' -

 6
 1

/2
"

7.
47

m

24
' -

 6
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

5.
27

m

17
' -

 3
 1

/2
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

7.
52

m

24
' -

 8
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

3.
15

m

10
' -

 4
"

5.
49

m

18
' -

 0
"

4.
14

m

13
' -

 7
"

7.77m

25' - 6"

0.46m

1' - 6"

4.88m

16' - 0"

0.46m

1' - 6"

7.59m

24' - 11"

0.46m

1' - 6"

3.64m

11' - 11 1/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

3.68m

12' - 0 7/8"

5.54m

18' - 2"

0.36m

1' - 2"

7.54m

24' - 9"

0.36m

1' - 2"

5.05m

16' - 7"

0.36m

1' - 2"

6.10m

20' - 0"

6.
46

m

21
' -

 2
 1

/8
"

5.
00

m

16
' -

 4
 7

/8
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

5.
58

m

18
' -

 3
 5

/8
"

3.
06

m

10
' -

 0
 3

/8
"

5.
50

m

18
' -

 0
 5

/8
"

9.
74

m

31
' -

 1
1 

3/
8"

6.
71

m

22
' -

 0
"

SHAFT

5.99m

19' - 7 7/8"

0.38m

1' - 3"

1.09m
3' - 7"

0.46m

1' - 6"

4.98m

16' - 4"

0.46m

1' - 6"

2.54m

8' - 4"

0.46m

1' - 6"

4.17m

13' - 8 1/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

7.90m

25' - 10 7/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

5.91m

19' - 4 5/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

6.18m

20' - 3 3/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

9.35m

30' - 8 1/8"

8.38m

27' - 6"

7.42m

24' - 4"

0.46m

1' - 6"

7.62m

25' - 0"

0.30m

1' - 0"

0.15m

0' - 6"

5.08m

16' - 8"

6.40m

21' - 0"

5.79m

19' - 0"

3.
94

m

12
' -

 1
1"

5.
69

m

18
' -

 8
"

6.
84

m

22
' -

 5
 3

/8
"

5.
49

m

18
' -

 0
"

14
.0

8m

46
' -

 2
 1

/2
"

6.
15

m

20
' -

 2
 1

/8
"

0.
30

m

1'
 -

 0
"

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

P4 - STAIR #2

P4 - STAIR #1

6.
46

m

21
' -

 2
 1

/8
"

6.
93

m

22
' -

 9
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

11
.7

3m

38
' -

 6
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

6.
83

m

22
' -

 4
 7

/8
"

0.
91

m

3'
 -

 0
"

4.
78

m

15
' -

 8
"

3.
94

m

12
' -

 1
1"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

49.58m

162' - 8"

2.11m

6' - 11"

3.00m

9' - 10"

6.
71

m

22
' -

 0
"

35
.7

9m

11
7'

 -
 5

"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

P4 
EXHAUST

UNEXCAVATED

STORAGE

P4 INTAKE

HCR

UNEXCAVATED

0.46m

1' - 6"

5.49m

18' - 0"

11.63m

38' - 2"

3.61m

11' - 10"

0.46m

1' - 6"

5.15m

16' - 10 7/8"

6 LOCKERS/ STORAGE

2 LOCKERS/ 
STORAGE

REGR REGR

REGR

REGR

SMLR

SMLR

1'
 -

 0
"

SEE NOTE 11

SEE NOTE 11

S
E

E
 N

O
T

E
 1

1

S
E

E
 N

O
T

E
 1

1SMLR

SEE NOTE 11

SEE NOTE 11

PARKING SCHEDULE

DESCRIP
TION COMMENT COUNT

LEVEL 01
HC COMMERCIAL - HC 1

REG COMMERCIAL - REGULAR
STALL

4

5
LEVEL P1

REG COMMERCIAL - REGULAR
STALL

3

REG OFFICE - REGULAR STALL 4
SML OFFICE - SMALL STALL 5

12
LEVEL P2

HC OFFICE - HANDICAP STALL 1
REG OFFICE - REGULAR STALL 9
SML OFFICE - SMALL STALL 3
SML RESIDENTIAL - SMALL STALL 4
HC RESIDENTIAL- HC 1

REG RESIDENTIAL- REGULAR
STALL

25

REG VISITOR - REGULAR 4
SML VISITOR - SMALL 6

53
LEVEL P3

SML RESIDENTIAL - SMALL STALL 12
HC RESIDENTIAL- HC 3

REG RESIDENTIAL- REGULAR
STALL

42

57
UPPER LEVEL P4

SML RESIDENTIAL - SMALL STALL 14
HC RESIDENTIAL- HC 2

REG RESIDENTIAL- REGULAR
STALL

43

59
LEVEL LOWER P4

SML RESIDENTIAL - SMALL STALL 3
REG RESIDENTIAL- REGULAR

STALL
9

12
198

FLOOR PLAN
UPPER P4



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

59APRIL 2022

1
A3.01

TOWER OUTLINE

R 22' - 0"

R 22' - 0"R 22' - 
0"

1
A3.02

R 2
2' 

- 0
"

1

1

9

9

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

BB

CC

DD

EE

AA

FF

DN

DN

DN

ELEVATOR 
VESTIBULE

RESIDENTIAL 
LOBBY

REGR

REGR REGR REGR

REGR REGRREGR

SMLRSMLR

REGR

REGR

REGR

REGR

REGR

REGR

REGR

HCR REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR

REGR

REGR

REGR

SMLR

HCR

REGR

REGR

REGR

SMLR

SMLR

REGR

274.1'

STORAGE STORAGE STORAGE STORAGE STORAGE

DN

274.1'

272.6'

272.6'
269.2'

DN

13
7'

 -
 5

"

53
' -

 7
"

32
' -

 2
"

5'
 -

 5
"

3'
 -

 0
"

24
' -

 0
 7

/8
"

20
' -

 2
 1

/8
"

1'
 -

 0
"

REGRREGRREGRREGRREGRREGR
REGR

REGR

# of lockers

REGR

10 LOCKERS/ STORAGE

2 LOCKER 
STORAGE

27 LOCKERS/ STORAGE

E
LE

V
 #

01
 

F
IR

E
 F

IG
H

T
H

E
R

 
E

LE
V

A
T

O
R

E
LE

V
 #

02
 

ELECT

MECH SHAFT

P3 STAIR #1

P3 STAIR #2

R
A

M
P

 
D

O
W

N

276.8'

276.8'

STORAGE

STORAGE STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

ELEV. 03  
PIT 

3'
 -

 4
 3

/4
"

6' - 4" 2' - 6 1/8"

MECH

3'
 -

 2
 1

/4
"

8' - 9 1/8"

SMLR

REGR

SMLR

REGR

REGR

REGR

SMLR SMLR

STORAGE

REGR

SMLR SMLR SMLR

5.0% SLOPE

5.
0%

 S
LO

P
E

5.
0%

 S
LO

P
E

4.7% SLOPE

1' - 0"

20' - 11" 22' - 0" 27' - 6" 24' - 4" 1' - 6" 25' - 0" 39' - 2" 19' - 0"

TYP.

REGR

5' - 4 1/8"

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

5 LOCKERS/ 
STORAGE STORAGE

STORAGE

T
R

A
V

E
L 

D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 3
6.

84
 m

TR
AVEL D

ISTAN
C

E = 44.49 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 2
5.

65
 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 44.66 m

TR
A

VE
L 

D
IS

TA
N

C
E 

= 
32

.4
7 

m

HCR

SHAFT

7.
63

m

25
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

7.
47

m

24
' -

 6
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

5.
27

m

17
' -

 3
 1

/2
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

7.
52

m

24
' -

 8
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

3.
15

m

10
' -

 4
"

5.
49

m

18
' -

 0
"

4.
14

m

13
' -

 7
"

7.77m

25' - 6"

0.46m

1' - 6"

4.88m

16' - 0"

0.46m

1' - 6"

7.59m

24' - 11"

0.46m

1' - 6"

3.64m

11' - 11 1/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

3.68m

12' - 0 7/8"

5.54m

18' - 2"

0.36m

1' - 2"

7.54m

24' - 9"

0.36m

1' - 2"

5.05m

16' - 7"

0.36m

1' - 2"

6.10m

20' - 0"

6.
46

m

21
' -

 2
 1

/8
"

5.
00

m

16
' -

 4
 7

/8
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

5.
58

m

18
' -

 3
 5

/8
"

0.
62

m

2'
 -

 0
 3

/8
"

2.
44

m

8'
 -

 0
"

5.
50

m

18
' -

 0
 5

/8
"

9.
74

m

31
' -

 1
1 

3/
8"

6.
71

m

22
' -

 0
"

4.70m

15' - 5 1/8"

1.67m

5' - 5 7/8"

1.09m

3' - 7"

0.46m

1' - 6"

4.98m

16' - 4"

0.46m

1' - 6"

2.54m

8' - 4"

0.46m

1' - 6"

4.17m

13' - 8 1/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

7.90m

25' - 10 7/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

5.91m

19' - 4 5/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

6.18m

20' - 3 3/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

0.30m

1' - 0"

4.
14

m

13
' -

 7
"

5.
49

m

18
' -

 0
"

6.
71

m

22
' -

 0
"

5.
62

m

18
' -

 5
 3

/8
"

1.
89

m

6'
 -

 2
 3

/8
"

5.
49

m

18
' -

 0
 1

/8
"

6.
71

m

22
' -

 0
"

6.
46

m

21
' -

 2
 1

/8
"

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

19' - 11" 22' - 0" 51' - 10" 1' - 0"8" 25' - 0" 1' - 6" 15' - 6" 22' - 0" 19' - 0"

3.
94

m

12
' -

 1
1"

0.
76

m

2'
 -

 6
"

4.
01

m

13
' -

 2
"

0.
91

m

3'
 -

 0
"

6.
82

m

22
' -

 4
 3

/8
"

0.
47

m

1'
 -

 6
 1

/2
"

11
.7

3m

38
' -

 6
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

6.
93

m

22
' -

 9
"

6.
46

m

21
' -

 2
 1

/8
"

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

54.69m

179' - 5"

0.11m

0' - 4 1/8"

0.
07

m

0'
 -

 2
 7

/8
"

42
.4

9m

13
9'

 -
 5

"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

54.86m

179' - 11 3/4"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

42
.4

9m

13
9'

 -
 5

"

0.
08

m

0'
 -

 3
"

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 3
/8

"

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

54.69m

179' - 5"

0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 1
/4

"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

5.82m

19' - 1 1/8"

43.76m

143' - 6 7/8"

2.11m

6' - 11"

3.00m

9' - 10"

1.
53

m

5'
 -

 0
 1

/4
"

5.
18

m

16
' -

 1
1 

3/
4"

35
.7

9m

11
7'

 -
 5

"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

P4 
EXHAUST

P3 
EXHAUST

UNEXCAVATED
P3 INTAKE

P4 INTAKE

STORAGE

3.61m

11' - 10"

0.46m

1' - 6"

5.15m

16' - 10 7/8"

54.87m

180' - 0 3/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

7.67m

25' - 2"

6 LOCKER 
STORAGE

6.
46

m

21
' -

 2
 1

/8
"

6.
93

m

22
' -

 9
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

1.
63

m

5'
 -

 4
"

2.
76

m

9'
 -

 0
 1

/2
"

1.
88

m

6'
 -

 2
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

5.
02

m

16
' -

 5
 1

/2
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

9.
85

m

32
' -

 3
 5

/8
"

6.
61

m

21
' -

 8
 1

/4
"

STORAGE

0.
31

m

1'
 -

 0
 3

/8
"

5.
25

m

17
' -

 2
 3

/4
"

37
.2

4m

12
2'

 -
 2

 1
/4

"

SEE NOTE 11

SEE NOTE 11

S
E

E
 N

O
T

E
 1

1

S
E

E
 N

O
T

E
 1

1

SEE NOTE 11

1' - 0" 7' - 6" 8' - 2" 5' - 0"

18
' -

 0
"

18
' -

 0
"

15
' -

 1
" W

A
L

L
 O

R
 C

O
L

U
M

N

W
A

L
L

 O
R

 C
O

L
U

M
N

R SML 000 R STD 000 R HC 000

ADDITIONAL WIDTH NEXT TO 
WALL OR COLUMN

ADDITIONAL WIDTH NEXT TO 
WALL OR COLUMN

SMALL STALL REGULAR STALL HANDICAP STALL

PARKING LEGEND:
CITY PARKING : NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, CANADA

OCCUPANCY 
STALL TYPE 
STALL NUMBER

PARKING TAG

OCCUPANCY LEGEND:

V        VISITOR
R        RESIDENTIAL 

STYLE TYPE:
STC      STANDARD

HC        HANDICAP
SML      SMALL

13' - 2"9' - 2"8' - 6"

1' - 0" 8' - 2"

RREG000RREG000RREG000

24' - 6"

18
' -

 0
"

1'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

1'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

C        COMMERCIAL/ RETAIL 

R REG 000

PARKING COLOR CODE LEGEND

REGULAR STALL

SMALL STALL

HANDICAP STALL

O        OFFICE

PARKING SCHEDULE P3

DESCRIPTION COMMENT COUNT

LEVEL P3
SML RESIDENTIAL - SMALL

STALL
12

HC RESIDENTIAL- HC 3
REG RESIDENTIAL- REGULAR

STALL
42

57
57

FLOOR PLAN
LEVEL P3



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

60 APRIL 2022

UP

1
A3.01

DN

TOWER OUTLINE

283.6'

276.8'

5.0% SLOPE

5.
0%

 S
LO

P
E

5.
0%

 S
LO

P
E

4.7% SLOPE

R 22' - 0"

R 22' - 0"

R 2
2' 

- 0
"

R 22' - 
0"

1
A3.02

ELEVATOR 
VESTIBULE

RESIDENTIAL 
LOBBY

135' - 8 5/8"

13
7'

 -
 5

"

1

1

9

9

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

BB

CC

DD

EE

AA

FF

REGR

SMLV

REGV

SMLV

SMLV SMLVSMLVSMLR

REGR

REGR

REGR

REGR

REGR

HCR REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR REGR

REGO

REGO

REGO

SMLO

REGR

STORAGE

REGR

UNEXCAVATED

STORAGE STORAGE STORAGE

REGR

DN

DN

DN

283.6'
286.3'

282.1'

282.1'
278.7'

278.7'

22
' -

 0
"

REGO REGO REGO REGO REGOREGV

STORAGE

ELEVATOR 
VESTIBULE

ELEVATOR 
   LOBBY

REGR

REGR

179' - 5"

STORAGE

HCO

SMLO

6'
 -

 0
 1

/2
"

9' - 3"

26 LOCKERS/ STORAGE

5 LOCKERS/ 
STORAGE

E
LE

V
 #

01
 

F
IR

E
 F

IG
H

T
H

E
R

 
E

LE
V

A
T

O
R

E
LE

V
 #

02
 

ELEV #03 

R
A

M
P

D
O

W
N

O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D

 G
A

T
E

ELECT

MECH SHAFT

P2 STAIR #1

4LOCKERS/ 
STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE
STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE

STORAGE STORAGE STORAGE

285.7'

6 LOCKERS/ STORAGE

MECH

3'
 -

 4
 3

/4
"

STORAGESTORAGE

REGV

SHAFT

REGR

5' - 0"

5' - 0"

3'
 -

 1
1 

3/
8"

STORAGE

STORAGE

5' - 10" 5' - 0" 8' - 8" 13' - 2"

8' - 5" 5' - 7"

9'
 -

 4
 1

/2
"

5'
 -

 7
 1

/2
"

5'
 -

 7
 1

/2
"

5'
 -

 5
"

STORAGE

STORAGE

TYP.

REGR

STORAGE

STORAGE

TR
A

VEL D
ISTA

N
C

E = 44.49 m

T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 2
5.

75
 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 18.31 m

T
R

A
V

E
L 

D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 =

 3
9.

29
 m

REGR

5'
 -

 0
"

11 LOCKERS/ 
STORAGE

STORAGE

4'
 -

 5
 9

7/
25

6"

8.
09

m

26
' -

 6
 1

/2
"

7.
47

m

24
' -

 6
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

5.
27

m

17
' -

 3
 1

/2
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

7.
52

m

24
' -

 8
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

3.
15

m

10
' -

 4
"

9.
63

m

31
' -

 7
"

7.77m

25' - 6"

0.46m

1' - 6"

4.88m

16' - 0"

0.46m

1' - 6"

7.59m

24' - 11"

0.46m

1' - 6"

3.64m

11' - 11 1/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

3.68m

12' - 0 7/8"

5.54m

18' - 2"

0.36m

1' - 2"

7.54m

24' - 9"

0.36m

1' - 2"

5.05m

16' - 7"

0.36m

1' - 2"

6.10m

20' - 0"

6.
46

m

21
' -

 2
 1

/8
"

5.
00

m

16
' -

 4
 7

/8
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

6.
20

m

20
' -

 4
"

2.
44

m

8'
 -

 0
"

0.
00

m

0'
 -

 0
"

5.
50

m

18
' -

 0
 5

/8
"

9.
74

m

31
' -

 1
1 

3/
8"

6.
71

m

22
' -

 0
"

6.05m

19' - 10 1/8"

0.33m

1' - 0 7/8"

1.09m

3' - 7"

0.46m

1' - 6"

4.98m

16' - 4"

0.46m

1' - 6"

2.54m

8' - 4"

0.46m

1' - 6"

4.17m

13' - 8 1/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

7.90m

25' - 10 7/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

5.91m

19' - 4 5/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

6.18m

20' - 3 3/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

6.94m

22' - 9 1/8"

2.41m

7' - 11"

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

6.38m

20' - 11"

6.64m

21' - 9 3/8"

7.99m

26' - 2 5/8"

0.46m

1' - 6"

7.42m

24' - 4"

0.46m

1' - 6"

7.62m

25' - 0"

0.46m

1' - 6"

5.08m

16' - 8"

6.40m

21' - 0"

5.79m

19' - 0"

P2 - STAIR #2

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

54.69m

179' - 5"

0.11m

0' - 4 1/8"

0.
07

m

0'
 -

 2
 7

/8
"

42
.4

9m

13
9'

 -
 5

"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

54.86m

179' - 11 3/4"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

42
.4

9m

13
9'

 -
 5

"

0.
08

m

0'
 -

 3
"

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 3
/8

"

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

54.69m

179' - 5"

0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

54.87m

180' - 0 3/8"

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 1
/4

"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

49.58m

162' - 8"

2.11m

6' - 11"

3.00m

9' - 10"

6.
71

m

22
' -

 0
"

35
.7

9m

11
7'

 -
 5

"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

P4 
EXHAUST

P3 
EXHAUST

P2 
EXHAUST

LOW 
HEADROOM

UNEXCAVATED

9' - 9"

4' - 8"

STORAGE

P4 
INTAKE

P3
INTAKE

P2 
INTAKE

SHAFT

3.61m

11' - 10"

0.46m

1' - 6"

5.15m

16' - 10 7/8"

4.
14

m

13
' -

 7
"

5.
49

m

18
' -

 0
"

6.
71

m

22
' -

 0
"

5.
61

m

18
' -

 4
 7

/8
"

1.
70

m

5'
 -

 7
"

5.
69

m

18
' -

 8
"

6.
71

m

22
' -

 0
"

6.
46

m

21
' -

 2
 1

/8
"

6.
46

m

21
' -

 2
 1

/8
"

6.
93

m

22
' -

 9
"

2.
08

m

6'
 -

 1
0"

2.
76

m

9'
 -

 0
 1

/2
"

2.
02

m

6'
 -

 7
 1

/2
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

4.
88

m

16
' -

 0
"

0.
46

m

1'
 -

 6
"

0.
12

m
0'

 -
 4

 7
/8

"

0.46m

1' - 6"

7.17m

23' - 6 1/4"

0.46m

1' - 6"

7.72m

25' - 4"

0.46m

1' - 6"

7.67m

25' - 2"

0.46m

1' - 6"

4.72m

15' - 6"

6.71m

22' - 0"

5.79m

19' - 0"

REGR

VOID
SMLO

SMLR
SMLR SMLR

SMLV

REGO

REGR

SEE NOTE 11

SEE NOTE 11

1' - 0 3/4"

1' - 0 1/4"

REGR

1'
 -

 0
"

REGR

REGV

SEE NOTE 12

SEE NOTE 12

1' - 0" 7' - 6" 8' - 2" 5' - 0"

18
' -

 0
"

18
' -

 0
"

15
' -

 1
" W

A
L

L
 O

R
 C

O
L

U
M

N

W
A

L
L

 O
R

 C
O

L
U

M
N

R SML 000 R STD 000 R HC 000

ADDITIONAL WIDTH NEXT TO 
WALL OR COLUMN

ADDITIONAL WIDTH NEXT TO 
WALL OR COLUMN

SMALL STALL REGULAR STALL HANDICAP STALL

PARKING LEGEND:
CITY PARKING : NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, CANADA

OCCUPANCY 
STALL TYPE 
STALL NUMBER

PARKING TAG

OCCUPANCY LEGEND:

V        VISITOR
R        RESIDENTIAL 

STYLE TYPE:
STC      STANDARD

HC        HANDICAP
SML      SMALL

13' - 2"9' - 2"8' - 6"

1' - 0" 8' - 2"

RREG000RREG000RREG000

24' - 6"

18
' -

 0
"

1'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

1'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

C        COMMERCIAL/ RETAIL 

R REG 000

PARKING COLOR CODE LEGEND

REGULAR STALL

SMALL STALL

HANDICAP STALL

O        OFFICE

PARKING SCHEDULE P2

DESCRIPTION COMMENT COUNT

LEVEL P2
HC OFFICE - HANDICAP

STALL
1

REG OFFICE - REGULAR STALL 9
SML OFFICE - SMALL STALL 3
SML RESIDENTIAL - SMALL

STALL
4

HC RESIDENTIAL- HC 1
REG RESIDENTIAL- REGULAR

STALL
25

REG VISITOR - REGULAR 4
SML VISITOR - SMALL 6

53
53

FLOOR PLAN
LEVEL P2



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

61APRIL 2022

BIKE
LOCKERS

EVEV

EV EV

EV EV EV

EV

EV

EV2

EV2

EV2

FLOOR PLAN
LEVEL P1



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

62 APRIL 2022

FLOOR PLAN
LEVEL 01



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

63APRIL 2022

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

A2.05

1

1
A3.01

ELEV. 03

OFFICE 
DECK

54.86m

179' - 11 3/4"

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 1
/4

"

1638 SF
OFFICE

1569 SF
OFFICE

1365 SF
OFFICE

1754 SF
OFFICE

1232 SF
OFFICE

520 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

1
A3.02

TOWER OUTLINE

LEVEL 1 OUTLINE

1

1

9

9

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

BB

CC

DD

EE

AA

FF

0.09m
0' - 3 5/8"

171 SF

L02 STAIR
#3

OPEN TO 
BELOW

0.
61

m

2'
 -

 0
"

14
.0

0m

45
' -

 1
1"

17
.0

8m

56
' -

 0
 5

/8
"

3.
30

m

10
' -

 9
 3

/4
"

7.
69

m

25
' -

 2
 7

/8
"

0.08m
0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"
0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

0.
08

m

0'
 -

 3
"

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

0.11m

0' - 4 1/8"

319.8'

55 SF
IT

93 SF
CORRIDOR

262 SF

WASHROOM-
F

BUILT UP FOR 
ADVERTISMENT

1026 SF
OFFICE

1624 SF
OFFICE

58 SF
ELEC

ELECT

MECH SHAFT

E
LE

V
 #

01
 

F
IR

E
 F

IG
H

T
H

E
R

 
E

LE
V

A
T

O
R

E
LE

V
 #

02
 

L02 STAIR #1

0.
61

 m

2'
 -

 0
"

A2.02

2

MECH

90 SF
UNIVERSAL

231 SF

WASHROOM-
M

xB0.02

4

xB0.02

3

BENCH,  REFER TO 
LANDSCAPE

PL
AN

TE
R

TYP.

TRELLIS , REFER TO 
LANDSCAPE

2.10m

6' - 10 5/8"

2
A3.03

1
A3.04

SETBACK LINE

PROPERTY LINE

5'
 -

 0
"17' - 3 31/128"

ENTRANCE 
CANOPY

1533 SF
CORRIDOR

6.
72

m

22
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

2.10m

6' - 10 5/8"

48.21m

158' - 2 1/8"

SHAFT

15
.9

3m

52
' -

 3
"

19
.4

3m

63
' -

 8
 7

/8
"

2.10m
SETBACK

6' - 10 5/8"

14
.0

0m

45
' -

 1
1"

3.
24

m

10
' -

 7
 3

/8
"

10
.8

6m

35
' -

 7
 1

/2
"

9'
 -

 9
 3

/4
"

10
' -

 9
 3

/4
"

3'
 -

 2
 1

/2
"

35
.3

5m

11
5'

 -
 1

1 
7/

8"

0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

52.62m

172' - 7 1/2"

2.15m

7' - 0 5/8"

35
.3

5m

11
5'

 -
 1

1 
7/

8"

REFER TO 
LANDSCAPE

REFER TO 
LANDSCAPE

14' - 9" 158' - 2 1/8"

5.54m

18' - 2 1/4"

8.19m

26' - 10 1/4"

4.36m

14' - 3 1/2"

11.26m

36' - 11 1/2"

21.79m

71' - 5 7/8"

1.48m

4' - 10 1/8"

2
A3.04

KITCHEN 
EXHAUST 
SHAFT

SEE NOTE 7

SHAFT

9.12m

29' - 11 1/4"

5.58m

18' - 3 5/8"

33.51m

109' - 11 1/4"

172' - 7 1/2"

14' - 5 3/8" 158' - 2 1/8"

158' - 2 1/8"

FLOOR PLAN
LEVEL 02



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

64 APRIL 2022

UP

UP

UP

A2.05

1

1
A3.01

1
A3.02

TYP. TOWER OUTLINE

1

1

9

9

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

BB

CC

DD

EE

AA

FF

0.08m
0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"
0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

0.
08

m

0'
 -

 3
"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

0.
07

m

0'
 -

 2
 7

/8
"

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

0.11m

0' - 4 1/8"
54.87m

180' - 0 3/8"

AMENITY DECK/ LANDSCAPE

319.8'

LEVEL 2 
OFFICE DECK 

315.06 (TBC)+-

4.
98

m

16
' -

 4
"

30
.9

8m

10
1'

 -
 7

 7
/8

"

6.
72

m

22
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

ELECT

MECH SHAFT

E
LE

V
 #

01
 

F
IR

E
 F

IG
H

T
H

E
R

 
E

LE
V

A
T

O
R

E
LE

V
 #

02
 

ELEVATOR 
LOBBY

L03 STAIR #1 ELEV. 03

L03 STAIR 
#02

A2.02

2

MECH

BALCONY

BALCONY

1155 SF
AMENITY

1000 SF
C5

677 SF
E1

987 SF
C1

665 SF
B1

1377 SF
G1

945 SF
C4

VESTIBULE

xB0.02

4

xB0.02

2

LANDSCAPE

LANDSCAPE

PLANTER

LANDSCAPE

PLANTER

PLANTER

PLANTER

REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS

TERRACE

STORAGE

YOGA

BALCONY OUTLINE

1
A3.03

SETBACK LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PATIO

PATIO

REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS

BENCH

BENCH

LANDSCAPE

6.
10

m

20
' -

 0
"

5'
 -

 0
"

SHAFT

4.50m

14' - 9"

47.91m

157' - 2 1/8"

2.46m

8' - 0 5/8"

1.14m

3' - 8 7/8"

8.19m

26' - 10 1/4"

0.00m

0' - 0"

2.81m

9' - 2 5/8"

4.52m

14' - 10"

6.39m

20' - 11 5/8"

1.83m

5' - 11 7/8"

0.86m

2' - 10"

22.17m

72' - 8 7/8"

35
.9

0m

11
7'

 -
 9

 3
/8

"

4.
91

m

16
' -

 1
 1

/2
"

0.
86

m

2'
 -

 1
0"

15
.3

6m

50
' -

 4
 3

/4
"

7.
27

m

23
' -

 1
0 

1/
8"

3.
59

m

11
' -

 9
 1

/4
"

3.
91

m

12
' -

 9
 3

/4
"

8.19m

26' - 10 1/4"

35
.9

0m

11
7'

 -
 9

 3
/8

"

3.
42

m

11
' -

 2
 5

/8
"

27
.5

7m

90
' -

 5
 1

/4
"

3.
45

m

11
' -

 4
"

1.
52

m

5'
 -

 0
"

0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

52.58m

172' - 6"

2.20m

7' - 2 3/4"

8.35m

27' - 4 5/8"

4.40m

14' - 5 3/8"

25.74m

84' - 5 1/4"

22.44m

73' - 7 3/8"

6.
72

m

22
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

35
.9

0m

11
7'

 -
 9

 1
/4

"

2
A3.04

SEE NOTE 2

KITCHEN 
EXHAUST FROM 
CRU

TRELLIS, 
REFER TO 
LANDSCAPE 
DRAWINGS

SEE NOTE 7

COUNTER WITH BAR STOOLS
REFER TO LANDSCAPE

METAL TRELLIS OVERHEAD, 
REFER TO LANDSCAPE

REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS

10
1'

 -
 7

 7
/8

"
16

' -
 4

"

59
' -

 5
 7

/8
"

8'
 -

 0
 5

/8
"

28
' -

 9
 7

/8
"

8'
 -

 9
 3

/4
"

96
' -

 4
 3

/8
"

84' - 5 1/4"

NOTES:
1. BYCICLE PARKING:  POWER 
OUTLET PER 4 STALLS TO BE 
PROVIDED
2. 5-TURNING RADIUS OUTSIDE THE 
FRONT ENTRANCE OF G1 
ADAPTABLE UNIT - LEVEL 03
3. COMMERCIAL HANDICAPPED 
PARKING PROVIDED. POTENTIAL CAR 
SHARE PARKING IN THE FUTURE
4. AREA ALLOCATED TO PLAZA 
LANDSCAPING
5.  15 SHORT-TERM RESIDENTIAL 
BICYCLE PARKING SPACES MOVED 
FROM EAST TO WEST SIDE OF 
RESIDENTIAL ENTRY  TO CLEAR THE 
ENTRY WAY FOR RESIDENTIAL 
PEDESTRIAN ENTRY
6. 11 LARGE BIKE STORAGE 
7. KITCHEN EXHAUST FOR 
RESTAURANT CRU AND MAKE-UP  
AIR
8.   BICYCLE PARKING ROOM  HAS A 
MINIMUM CLEARANCE OF 2.5M (8.20ft)
9.  CROSS-HATCHED AREA : 
POTENTIAL AREA FOR PUBLIC ART 
PIECE INCORPORATED IN SEATING 
ELEMENT.  PLAN TO BE SUBMITTED 
TO THE CITY PUBLIC ART 
COORDINATOR.
11.     EV  = PROVIDE 1 EV OUTLET, 
LEVEL 2 CHARGING.
12. EV2 = PROVIDE 1 ENERGIZED 
OUTLET CAPABLE OF SUPPORTING 
OPPORTUNITY CHARGING

FLOOR PLAN
LEVEL 03



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

65APRIL 2022

UP
1

A3.01

1
A3.01

1
A3.02

1
A3.02

4.65m

15' - 3 1/8"

50.22m

164' - 9 1/8"

1

1

9

9

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

BB

CC

DD

EE

AA

FF

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 3
/8

"

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 1
/4

"

0.08m
0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"
0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

0.
08

m

0'
 -

 3
"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

0.
07

m

0'
 -

 2
 7

/8
"

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

0.11m

0' - 4 1/8"
54.87m

180' - 0 3/8"

1126 SF
C2

1000 SF
C5 677 SF

E1
987 SF

C1

665 SF
B1

1372 SF
G1

945 SF
C4

ELECT

MECH SHAFT
E

LE
V

 #
01

 
F

IR
E

 F
IG

H
T

H
E

R
 

E
LE

V
A

T
O

R

E
LE

V
 #

02
 

ELEVATOR 
LOBBY

L5-21  
TYP.STAIR #1

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

MECH

BALCONY

LEVEL 03 

PENTHOUSE 
ABOVE

LINE OF  
BALCONY 
PENTHOUSE

LINE OF  
CONCRETE 
OVERHANG  

ABOVE

LINE OF  
PENTHOUSE 
BALCONY

LINE OF  
PENTHOUSE 
BALCONY

LINE OF  
PENTHOUSE 

PENTHOUSE 
ABOVE

4'
 -

 6
"

4'
 -

 6
"

3'
 -

 3
 3

/8
"

4'
 -

 5
 5

/8
"

3'
 -

 3
"

SETBACK LINE

PROPERTY LINE

20
' -

 0
"

1.14m

3' - 8 7/8"

8.19m

26' - 10 1/4"

2.81m

9' - 2 5/8"

4.52m

14' - 10"

6.39m

20' - 11 5/8"

1.83m

5' - 11 7/8"

0.86m

2' - 10"

6.
72

m

22
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

30
.9

8m

10
1'

 -
 7

 7
/8

"

4.
98

m

16
' -

 4
"

27
.5

7m

90
' -

 5
 1

/4
"

3.
42

m

11
' -

 2
 5

/8
"

4.50m

14' - 9"

25.74m

84' - 5 1/4"

24.64m

80' - 10"
17.39m

57' - 0 5/8"

3.80m

12' - 5 5/8"

4.55m

14' - 11"

0.
91

m

2'
 -

 1
1 

3/
4"

3.
00

m

9'
 -

 1
0"

3.
59

m

11
' -

 9
 1

/4
"

7.
27

m

23
' -

 1
0 

1/
8"

15
.3

6m

50
' -

 4
 3

/4
"

0.
86

m

2'
 -

 1
0"

4.
98

m

16
' -

 4
"

30
.9

8m

10
1'

 -
 7

 7
/8

"

6.
72

m

22
' -

 0
 1

/2
"

4.50m

14' - 9"

25.74m

84' - 5 1/4"

24.63m

80' - 9 1/2"

FLOOR PLAN
TYPICAL FLOOR LEVEL



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

66 APRIL 2022

UP

UP
1

A3.01

1
A3.01

A3.02

54.86m

179' - 11 3/4"

1

1

9

9

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

BB

CC

DD

EE

AA

FF

0.08m
0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"
0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

0.
08

m

0'
 -

 3
"

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

0.11m

0' - 4 1/8"

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 3
/8

"

54.87m

180' - 0 3/8"

1348 SF
D4

1414 SF
D1

1516 SF
D2

1622 SF
D3

ELECT

MECH SHAFT

E
LE

V
 #

01
 

F
IR

E
 F

IG
H

T
H

E
R

 
E

LE
V

A
T

O
R

E
LE

V
 #

02
 

ELEVATOR 
LOBBY

L22 STAIR #1

BALCONY

BALCONY
BALCONY

BALCONY

MECH

TYP. TOWER OUTLINE

54.86m

179' - 11 3/4"

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 3
/8

"

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 3
/8

"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

54.87m

180' - 0 1/4"

BALCONY

LINE OF TYP 
PLAN BELOW

LINE OF TYP 
PLAN BELOW

LINE OF TYP 
PLAN BELOW

2' - 0"2' - 0"

32
.7

4m

10
7'

 -
 5

"

2.
14

m

7'
 -

 0
 1

/8
"

15
.0

3m

49
' -

 3
 3

/4
"

11
.8

1m

38
' -

 9
"

1.04m

3' - 5 1/8" 0.20m
0' - 8"

1.91m

6' - 3"

6.96m

22' - 10 1/8"

8.81m

28' - 10 7/8"

6.27m

20' - 7"

1.15m

3' - 9 1/8"

1.52m

5' - 0"

0.30m

0' - 11 3/4"

25.77m

84' - 6 5/8"

0.20m

0' - 8"

0.
64

m

2'
 -

 1
 1

/4
"

0.
51

m

1'
 -

 8
"

3.
25

m

10
' -

 8
 1

/8
"

27
.7

2m

90
' -

 1
1 

3/
8"

1.
20

m

3'
 -

 1
1 

1/
8"

0.15m

0' - 6"

1.
26

m

4'
 -

 1
 1

/2
"

27
.7

2m

90
' -

 1
1 

3/
8"

3.
76

m

12
' -

 4
 1

/8
"

84' - 6 5/8" 0' - 8"

FLOOR PLAN
PENHOUSE LEVEL



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

67APRIL 2022

DN

1
A3.01

1
A3.02

547.7'

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 3
/8

"

4.27m

14' - 0 1/8"

50.59m

165' - 11 3/4"

4.27m

14' - 0 1/8"

50.60m

166' - 0 1/4"

945 SF
MECHANICAL

1

1

9

9

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

BB

CC

DD

EE

AA

FF

0.08m
0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"
0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

0.
08

m

0'
 -

 3
"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

0.
07

m

0'
 -

 2
 7

/8
"

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

0.11m

0' - 4 1/8"

MECH DECK

MECH DECK

STAIR #1 
MECH LVLELEVATOR 

MACHINE ROOM

27' - 5 7/8"

10
' -

 3
 3

/4
"

22
' -

 1
 1

/8
"

COOLING 
TOWER

MUA

LINE OF ROOF ABOVE

LINE OF ROOF ABOVE

30.46m

99' - 11 1/4"

3.
73

m

12
' -

 2
 7

/8
"

38
.9

5m

12
7'

 -
 9

 1
/2

"

30.46m

99' - 11 1/4"

24.41m

80' - 1 1/8"

8.
45

m

27
' -

 8
 3

/4
"

30
.5

0m

10
0'

 -
 0

 3
/4

"

3.
73

m

12
' -

 2
 7

/8
"

30
.5

0m

10
0'

 -
 0

 3
/4

"

17.39m

57' - 0 1/2"

30
.5

0m

10
0'

 -
 0

 3
/4

"

0.17m

0' - 6 1/2"

FLOOR PLAN
MECHNICAL LEVEL



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

68 APRIL 2022

UP

UP

UP

UP

UPUP

1
A3.01

1
A3.02

1

1

9

9

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

BB

CC

DD

EE

AA

FF

0.08m
0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"
0.09m

0' - 3 5/8"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

0.
08

m

0'
 -

 3
"

0.
11

m

0'
 -

 4
 3

/8
"

7.
19

m

23
' -

 7
"

10
.3

1m

33
' -

 1
0"

8.
66

m

28
' -

 5
"

8.
71

m

28
' -

 7
"

7.
62

m

25
' -

 0
"

0.
07

m

0'
 -

 2
 7

/8
"

0.08m

0' - 3 1/8"

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

0.11m

0' - 4 1/8"

ROOF LEVEL

LEVEL 21 
BALCONY

LEVEL 2 
OFFICE 
DECK

LEVEL 1 OUTLINE

PH OUTLINE

TOWER OUTLINE

16
.6

8m

54
' -

 8
 3

/4
"

16
.1

1m

52
' -

 1
0 

3/
8"

9.
89

m

32
' -

 5
 1

/4
"

9.
89

m

32
' -

 5
 1

/4
"

16
.1

1m

52
' -

 1
0 

3/
8"

16
.6

8m

54
' -

 8
 5

/8
"

13.16m

43' - 2 1/8"

8.07m

26' - 5 7/8"

9.07m

29' - 9 1/4"

24.56m

80' - 7 1/8"

13.16m

43' - 2 1/8"

8.07m

26' - 5 7/8"

33.62m

110' - 3 3/4"

LEVEL 4 
ROOF

343.1'

LE
V

E
L 

22
 

R
O

O
F

LEVEL 2 
OFFICE 
DECK

528.7' 547.7'

DECORATIVE FIN

B
A

LC
O

N
Y

@
 L

E
V

E
L 

21

LEVEL 1 
ENTRY 

CANOPY

DECORATIVE FIN

528.7'

TYP.

10
' -

 3
 7

/8
"

MECHANICAL 
LEVEL

LEVEL 3 
AMENITY  

DECK

LEVEL 4 
ROOF

ROOF LEVEL

LEVEL 03 
TERRACE

LEVEL 3 
AMENITY 

DECK

LEVEL 22 
BALCONY

LEVEL 3 
AMENITY 

DECK

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 3
/8

"

52.73m

173' - 0 1/8"

2.13m

7' - 0"

42
.6

8m

14
0'

 -
 0

 1
/4

"

6.
10

m

20
' -

 0
"

SETBACK LINE

SETBACK LINE

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 L

IN
E

2.10m

6' - 10 5/8"

1.
52

m

5'
 -

 0
"

2
A3.04

3
A3.03

FLOOR PLAN
ROOF LEVEL



ELEVATIONS AND SECTIONS



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

70

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

AVERAGE GRADE

MAXIMUM HEIGHT

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

18 STOREYS

LANE

LANE LONSDALE AVE

CHESTERFIELD AVE

AVERAGE GRADE

MAXIMUM HEIGHT

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

18 STOREYS

LANE

LANE CHESTERFIELD AVE

LONSDALE AVE

A2.01 Scale:  1" = 40'-0"
1 Street Elevation - South

A2.01 Scale:  1" = 40'-0"
2 Street Elevation - North

STREET ELEVATION

APRIL 2022

SOUTH AND NORTH ELEVATION



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

71

AVERAGE GRADE

MAXIMUM HEIGHT

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

15 STOREYS
15 STOREYS

WEST 15TH STREET LANE WEST 16TH STREET

14 STOREYS

LANE

AVERAGE GRADE

MAXIMUM HEIGHT

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

15 STOREYS

15 STOREYS

WEST 15TH STREETLANEWEST 16TH STREET

14 STOREYS

LANE

A2.02 Scale:  1" = 40'-0"
1 Street Elevation - East

A2.02 Scale:  1" = 40'-0"
2 Street Elevation - West

STREET ELEVATION

APRIL 2022

WEST AND EAST ELEVATION



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

72 APRIL 2022

GEODETIC
LEVEL 01

92.964 m
305' 0"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 01

92.964 m
305' 0"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 02

97.83 m
320' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 03

101.64 m
333' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 04

104.586 m
343' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 05

107.533 m
352' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 06

110.479 m
362' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 07

113.425 m
372' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 08

116.372 m
381' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 09

119.318 m
391' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 10

122.265 m
401' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 11

125.211 m
410' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 12

128.157 m
420' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 13

131.104 m
430' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 14

134.05 m
439' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 15

136.997 m
449' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 16

139.943 m
459' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 17

142.889 m
468' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 18

145.836 m
478' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 19

148.782 m
488' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 20

151.729 m
497' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 21

154.675 m
507' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 22

157.875 m
517' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
MECHANICAL

161.152 m
528' 8 9/16"

GEODETIC
ROOF LEVEL

166.943 m
547' 8 9/16"

5.
79

m

19
' -

 0
"

3.
28

m

10
' -

 9
"

3.
20

m

10
' -

 6
"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

3.
81

m

12
' -

 6
"

4.
87

m

15
' -

 1
1 

5/
8"

5.
79

m

19
' -

 0
"

68
.1

9m

22
3'

 - 
8 

5/
8"

73
.9

8m

24
2'

 - 
8 

5/
8"

1 92 3 4 5 6 7 8

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

305.67'
93.17m

AVERAGE GRADE

MAXIMUM HEIGHT

528.77'
161.17m

M
AX

IM
U

M
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 H

EI
G

H
T

22
3'

 - 
1 

1/
8"

   
 6

8.
00

m

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

2.10m
6' - 10 5/8"

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

7

4

3

6

13

1

7

2

9

7124 9 6

11

9

2

9

9

2

4

3

3

2

4 4 10 22

10

7

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

A2.03 Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"
1 Building Elevation - South

MATERIAL LEGEND

NUMBER MATERIAL

1 PAINTED CONCRETE - GREY
2 TYPICAL VISION GLASS
3 SPANDREL PANEL - GREY
4 SPANDREL PANEL - CHARCOAL

GREY
6 METAL PANEL - COPPER
7 METAL PANEL - GREY
8 STONE - GREY
9 GLASS RAILING - CLEAR GLASS

WITH SILVER RAILING
10 ARCHITECTURAL LOUVRE
11 CANOPY - METAL PANEL
12 SIGNAGE
13 TRELLIS - CHARCOAL GREY

(REFER TO LANDSCAPE)

BUILDING ELEVATION
SOUTH ELEVATION



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

73APRIL 2022

GEODETIC
LEVEL 01

92.964 m
305' 0"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 01

92.964 m
305' 0"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 02

97.83 m
320' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 03

101.64 m
333' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 04

104.586 m
343' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 05

107.533 m
352' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 06

110.479 m
362' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 07

113.425 m
372' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 08

116.372 m
381' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 09

119.318 m
391' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 10

122.265 m
401' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 11

125.211 m
410' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 12

128.157 m
420' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 13

131.104 m
430' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 14

134.05 m
439' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 15

136.997 m
449' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 16

139.943 m
459' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 17

142.889 m
468' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 18

145.836 m
478' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 19

148.782 m
488' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 20

151.729 m
497' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 21

154.675 m
507' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 22

157.875 m
517' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
MECHANICAL

161.152 m
528' 8 9/16"

GEODETIC
ROOF LEVEL

166.943 m
547' 8 9/16"

5.
79

m

19
' -

 0
"

3.
28

m

10
' -

 9
"

3.
20

m

10
' -

 6
"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

3.
81

m

12
' -

 6
"

4.
87

m

15
' -

 1
1 

5/
8"

5.
79

m

19
' -

 0
"

68
.1

9m

22
3'

 - 
8 

5/
8"

73
.9

8m

24
2'

 - 
8 

5/
8"

19 2345678

305.67'
93.17m

528.77'
161.17m

M
AX

IM
U

M
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 H

EI
G

H
T

22
3'

 - 
1 

1/
8"

   
 6

8.
00

m

AVERAGE GRADE

MAXIMUM HEIGHT

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

2.10m

6' - 10 5/8"

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

7

9 28 136

6

8

2 4

79

9

17 10 92 3 261010 813

2

4

3

9

4

9

3

2

7

4.57m

15' - 0"

8.51m

27' - 11"

7.98m

26' - 2"

8.05m

26' - 5"

7.98m

26' - 2"

5.49m

18' - 0"

7.19m

23' - 7"

4.93m

16' - 2"

8' - 2"

10 10

A2.04 Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"
1 Building Elevation - North

MATERIAL LEGEND

NUMBER MATERIAL

1 PAINTED CONCRETE - GREY
2 TYPICAL VISION GLASS
3 SPANDREL PANEL - GREY
4 SPANDREL PANEL - CHARCOAL

GREY
6 METAL PANEL - COPPER
7 METAL PANEL - GREY
8 STONE - GREY
9 GLASS RAILING - CLEAR GLASS

WITH SILVER RAILING
10 ARCHITECTURAL LOUVRE
11 CANOPY - METAL PANEL
12 SIGNAGE
13 TRELLIS - CHARCOAL GREY

(REFER TO LANDSCAPE)

BUILDING ELEVATION
NORTH ELEVATION



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

74 APRIL 2022

MATERIAL LEGEND

NUMBER MATERIAL

1 PAINTED CONCRETE - GREY
2 TYPICAL VISION GLASS
3 SPANDREL PANEL - GREY
4 SPANDREL PANEL - CHARCOAL

GREY
6 METAL PANEL - COPPER
7 METAL PANEL - GREY
8 STONE - GREY
9 GLASS RAILING - CLEAR GLASS

WITH SILVER RAILING
10 ARCHITECTURAL LOUVRE
11 CANOPY - METAL PANEL
12 SIGNAGE
13 TRELLIS - CHARCOAL GREY

(REFER TO LANDSCAPE)

GEODETIC
LEVEL 01

92.964 m
305' 0"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 01

92.964 m
305' 0"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 02

97.83 m
320' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 03

101.64 m
333' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 04

104.586 m
343' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 05

107.533 m
352' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 06

110.479 m
362' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 07

113.425 m
372' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 08

116.372 m
381' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 09

119.318 m
391' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 10

122.265 m
401' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 11

125.211 m
410' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 12

128.157 m
420' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 13

131.104 m
430' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 14

134.05 m
439' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 15

136.997 m
449' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 16

139.943 m
459' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 17

142.889 m
468' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 18

145.836 m
478' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 19

148.782 m
488' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 20

151.729 m
497' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 21

154.675 m
507' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 22

157.875 m
517' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
MECHANICAL

161.152 m
528' 8 9/16"

GEODETIC
ROOF LEVEL

166.943 m
547' 8 9/16"

5.
79

m

19
' -

 0
"

3.
28

m

10
' -

 9
"

3.
20

m

10
' -

 6
"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

3.
81

m

12
' -

 6
"

4.
87

m

15
' -

 1
1 

5/
8"

5.
79

m

19
' -

 0
"

68
.1

9m

22
3'

 - 
8 

5/
8"

73
.9

8m

24
2'

 - 
8 

5/
8"

B C D EA F

305.67'
93.17m

AVERAGE GRADE

528.77'
161.17m

MAXIMUM HEIGHT

M
AX

IM
U

M
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 H

EI
G

H
T

22
3'

 - 
1 

1/
8"

   
 6

8.
00

m

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

2.10m

6' - 10 5/8"

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

6.10m

20' - 0"

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

7 64

2

6

1

13

1

4

3

9

9

1 6
9

2

3

4

9

9

7.62m

25' - 0"

8.71m

28' - 7"

8.66m

28' - 5"

10.31m

33' - 10"

7.19m

23' - 7"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 01

92.964 m
305' 0"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 01

92.964 m
305' 0"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 02

97.83 m
320' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 03

101.64 m
333' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 04

104.586 m
343' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 05

107.533 m
352' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 06

110.479 m
362' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 07

113.425 m
372' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 08

116.372 m
381' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 09

119.318 m
391' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 10

122.265 m
401' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 11

125.211 m
410' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 12

128.157 m
420' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 13

131.104 m
430' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 14

134.05 m
439' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 15

136.997 m
449' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 16

139.943 m
459' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 17

142.889 m
468' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 18

145.836 m
478' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 19

148.782 m
488' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 20

151.729 m
497' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 21

154.675 m
507' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 22

157.875 m
517' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
MECHANICAL

161.152 m
528' 8 9/16"

GEODETIC
ROOF LEVEL

166.943 m
547' 8 9/16"

5.
79

m

19
' -

 0
"

3.
28

m

10
' -

 9
"

3.
20

m

10
' -

 6
"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

2.
95

m

9'
 - 

8"

3.
81

m

12
' -

 6
"

4.
87

m

15
' -

 1
1 

5/
8"

5.
79

m

19
' -

 0
"

68
.1

9m

22
3'

 - 
8 

5/
8"

73
.9

8m

24
2'

 - 
8 

5/
8"

BCDE AF

305.67'
93.17m

AVERAGE GRADE

528.77'
161.17m

MAXIMUM HEIGHT

M
AX

IM
U

M
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 H

EI
G

H
T

22
3'

 - 
1 

1/
8"

   
 6

8.
00

m

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

2.10m

6' - 10 5/8"

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

6.10m

20' - 0"

6

3

7 6 1

2

11
7

9

1

2

13462 7 4 4 2 138 1

3

9
1

2

4

13

9

9

3

2

2

4

17.50m

57' - 5"

8.66m

28' - 5"

8.71m

28' - 7"

7.62m

25' - 0"

A2.05 Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"
1 Building Elevation - West

A2.05 Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"
2 Building Elevation - East

MATERIAL LEGEND

NUMBER MATERIAL

1 PAINTED CONCRETE - GREY
2 TYPICAL VISION GLASS
3 SPANDREL PANEL - GREY
4 SPANDREL PANEL - CHARCOAL

GREY
6 METAL PANEL - COPPER
7 METAL PANEL - GREY

BUILDING ELEVATION
WEST AND EAST ELEVATION



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

75APRIL 2022

GEODETIC
LEVEL 01

92.964 m
305' 0"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 02

97.83 m
320' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL P1

89.154 m
292' 6"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 03

101.64 m
333' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 04

104.586 m
343' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 05

107.533 m
352' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 06

110.479 m
362' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 07

113.425 m
372' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 08

116.372 m
381' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 09

119.318 m
391' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 10

122.265 m
401' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 11

125.211 m
410' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 12

128.157 m
420' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 13

131.104 m
430' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 14

134.05 m
439' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 15

136.997 m
449' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 16

139.943 m
459' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 17

142.889 m
468' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 18

145.836 m
478' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 19

148.782 m
488' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 20

151.729 m
497' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 21

154.675 m
507' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 22

157.875 m
517' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
MECHANICAL

161.152 m
528' 8 9/16"

19
' -

 0
"

10
' -

 9
"

10
' -

 6
"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

12
' -

 6
"

15
' -

 1
1 

5/
8"

12
' -

 6
"

10
' -

 0
"

10
' -

 0
"

10
' -

 0
"

GEODETIC
ROOF LEVEL

166.943 m
547' 8 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL P2

86.106 m
282' 6"

GEODETIC
LEVEL P3

83.058 m
272' 6"

GEODETIC
LEVEL P4

80.01 m
262' 6"

86
.9

3m
28

5'
 - 

2 
5/

8"

AM
EN

IT
Y

19
' -

 4
"

O
FF

IC
E

12
' -

 6
"

R
ET

AI
L

15
' -

 1
1 

5/
8"

PA
R

KA
D

E
42

' -
 6

"

AMENITY DECK

12
' -

 8
 1

/8
"

11
' -

 4
 1

/8
"

9'
 - 

5 
3/

4"
9'

 - 
6"

9'
 - 

6"
9'

 - 
6"

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

4.74%

LA
N

E

N
EI

G
H

BO
R

4.74%

5.00%

1 92 3 4 5 6 7 8

AMENITYRESIDENTIAL

AVERAGE GRADE

MAXIMUM HEIGHT

15' - 0" 27' - 11" 26' - 2" 26' - 5" 26' - 2" 18' - 0" 23' - 7" 16' - 2"

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIALRESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

PARKADE

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

9'
 - 

4 
1/

8"
9'

 - 
5 

3/
4"

9'
 - 

6"
9'

 - 
6"

9'
 - 

6"

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

2.10m

6' - 10 5/8"

RESIDENTIAL

315.1'
305.67'
93.17m

528.77'
161.17m

M
AX

IM
U

M
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 H

EI
G

H
T

22
3'

 - 
1 

1/
8"

   
 6

8.
00

m

LEVEL 2  
OFFICE 
DECK

ENTRY 
PLAZA

ST
AI

R
S

EL
EV

AT
O

R
 S

H
AF

T

GEODETIC
LEVEL P5

76.962 m
252' 6"

4.74%

4.74%

A3.01 Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"
1 Section A-A

BUILDING SECTION
SECTION A-A



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

76 APRIL 2022

GEODETIC
LEVEL 01

92.964 m
305' 0"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 01

92.964 m
305' 0"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 02

97.83 m
320' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL P1

89.154 m
292' 6"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 03

101.64 m
333' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 04

104.586 m
343' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 05

107.533 m
352' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 06

110.479 m
362' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 07

113.425 m
372' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 08

116.372 m
381' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 09

119.318 m
391' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 10

122.265 m
401' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 11

125.211 m
410' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 12

128.157 m
420' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 13

131.104 m
430' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 14

134.05 m
439' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 15

136.997 m
449' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 16

139.943 m
459' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 17

142.889 m
468' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 18

145.836 m
478' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 19

148.782 m
488' 1 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 20

151.729 m
497' 9 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 21

154.675 m
507' 5 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 22

157.875 m
517' 11 9/16"

GEODETIC
MECHANICAL

161.152 m
528' 8 9/16"

1
A3.01

GEODETIC
ROOF LEVEL

166.943 m
547' 8 9/16"

GEODETIC
LEVEL P2

86.106 m
282' 6"

GEODETIC
LEVEL P3

83.058 m
272' 6"

GEODETIC
LEVEL P4

80.01 m
262' 6"

SERVICE

28
5'

 - 
2 

5/
8"

19
' -

 0
"

10
' -

 9
"

10
' -

 6
"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

9'
 - 

8"
9'

 - 
8"

12
' -

 6
"

15
' -

 1
1 

5/
8"

12
' -

 6
"

10
' -

 0
"

10
' -

 0
"

10
' -

 0
"

R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

19
5'

 - 
3"

O
FF

IC
E

12
' -

 6
"

R
ET

AI
L

15
' -

 1
1 

5/
8"

52
' -

 6
"

20
' -

 4
 5

/8
"PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

PARKADE

15
TH

 W
ES

T 
ST

R
EE

T

LA
N

E

BCDE AF

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

305.67'
93.17m

AVERAGE GRADE

528.77'
161.17m

MAXIMUM HEIGHT

M
AX

IM
U

M
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 H

EI
G

H
T

22
3'

 - 
1 

1/
8"

   
 6

8.
00

m

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIALRESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

13
' -

 4
 1

/4
"

9'
 - 

6 
1/

4"
9'

 - 
6"

9'
 - 

6"
9'

 - 
6"

9'
 - 

6"
9'

 - 
6"

10
' -

 6
"

16
' -

 4
 5

/8
"

23' - 7" 33' - 10" 28' - 5" 28' - 7" 25' - 0"

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

6.10m

20' - 0"

2.10m

6' - 10 5/8"

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

9'
 - 

6"

GEODETIC
LEVEL P5

76.962 m
252' 6"

10' - 0"

A3.02 Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"
1 Section B-B

BUILDING SECTION
SECTION B-B



GFA OVERLAY



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

78 APRIL 2922

GFA OVERLAY
LEVEL 01



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

79APRIL 2922

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

1 92 3 4 5 6 7 8

B

C

D

E

A

F

ELEV. 03

OFFICE 
DECK

1638 SF
OFFICE

1569 SF
OFFICE

1365 SF
OFFICE

1754 SF
OFFICE

1232 SF
OFFICE

520 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

1750 SF
OFFICE

171 SF

L02 STAIR
#3

OPEN TO 
BELOW

55 SF
IT

93 SF
CORRIDOR

262 SF

WASHROOM-
F

231 SF

WASHROOM-
M

1026 SF
OFFICE

1624 SF
OFFICE

58 SF
ELEC

ELECT

MECH SHAFT

EL
EV

 #
01

 
FI

R
E 

FI
G

H
TH

ER
 

EL
EV

AT
O

R
EL

EV
 #

02
 

L02 STAIR #1

AMENITY

BIKE

COMMERCIAL

GARBAGE

LOBBY

OFFICE

RESIDENTIAL

MECH

GFA OVERLAY - Level 02

Comments Usage Type Area

OFFICE 15189 SF
15189 SF

GFA OVERLAY
LEVEL 02



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

80 APRIL 2922

GFA OVERLAY
LEVEL 03



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

81APRIL 2922

UP

1 92 3 4 5 6 7 8

B

C

D

E

A

F

1126 SF
C2

1000 SF
C5

677 SF
E1 987 SF

C1

665 SF
B1

1372 SF
G1

945 SF
C4

ELECT

MECH SHAFT

EL
EV

 #
01

 
FI

R
E 

FI
G

H
TH

ER
 

EL
EV

AT
O

R
EL

EV
 #

02
 

ELEVATOR 
LOBBY

L5-21  
TYP.STAIR #1

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY
BALCONY

AMENITY

BIKE

COMMERCIAL

GARBAGE

LOBBY

OFFICE

RESIDENTIAL

MECH

BALCONY

BALCONY

GFA OVERLAY - Level 05

Comments Usage Type Area

RESIDENTIAL 7752 SF
7752 SF

GFA OVERLAY
LEVEL 05



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

82 APRIL 2922

GFA OVERLAY
LEVEL 22



LONSDALE&15TH REZONING APPLICATION

83APRIL 2922

DN

1 92 3 4 5 6 7 8

B

C

D

E

A

F

945 SF
MECHANICAL

MECH DECK

MECH DECK

STAIR #1 
MECH LVL

297 SF

ELEVATOR
MACHINE

ROOM

AMENITY

BIKE

COMMERCIAL

GARBAGE

LOBBY

OFFICE

RESIDENTIAL

GFA OVERLAY - Mechanical

Comments Usage Type Area

RESIDENTIAL 239 SF
EXCLUSION SERVICE 1242 SF

1481 SF

GFA OVERLAY
MECHNICAL LEVEL 



1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

Cover Page

n/a

Drawing List

Lonsdale and 15th Avenue

L0.00 Landscape Rationale
L1.01 LV 1 - Illustrative Plan
L1.02 LV 2 - Illustrative Plan
L1.03 LV 3 - Illustrative Plan
L1.11 LV 1 - Landscape Plan
L1.12 LV 2 - Landscape Plan
L1.13 LV 3 - Landscape Plan
L1.21 LV 1 - Planting Plan
L1.22 LV 2 - Planting Plan
L1.23 LV 3 - Planting Schedule
L1.24 LV 3 - Planting Plan
L2.11 LV 1 - Landscape Sections
L2.12 LV 1 - Landscape Sections
L2.21 LV 2 - Landscape Sections
L2.31 LV 3 - Landscape Sections
L3.11 Paving Details
L3.21 Planting Details

April 06th, 2022

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 3�



1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

Landscape Rationale

L0.00n/a

LITTLE LONSDALE

Use paving, lighting, planting and site furnishings to
create a material palette that gives the lane a sense of
place and identity. Themes are inspired by the specific
cultural and natural characteristics of the area and can
be expanded onto the broader neighourhood to create a
unique district within the city.

STREET HIERARCHY

Take advantage of different qualities in planting
strategies to generate layers of streets with different
priorities and uses. Locate large shade trees on main
thoroughfares, that protect the pedestrian and provide
comfort, and use columnar trees on laneways, to create
linear continuity and visual interest, enhancing their
current use as pedestrian routes.

A FUTURE PEDESTRIAN LANE

Set precedent for an indoor/outdoor use of the lane, that
spills out building uses onto the lane to create a more
inviting and active public realm. It can be replicated and
augmented to establish an interconnected series of
engaging lanes.

AN INVITATION INTO THE LANE

Pursue a strategy of visually engaging elements that
invite passersby into the lane and provide a reason to
stay and linger. Ensure elements are visible from
adjacent streets and create a memorable experience to
encourage more active uses of the lane.

Feature paving treatment makes the lane special Fastigiate Cherry Trees Active and comfortable public realm Gobo Lights create a pleasant lane throughout the day



ACTIVE LANE
-Row of Fastigiate Cherry Trees in

grates with light bollards and Gobo
lighting enliven the space and
invite passersby into the lane.

THE RUNNER PAVING
-Non-slip paving in two

colours to create special
pattern. Large wood top
bench offers protection

and seating

WEST 15TH STREET

LANE

ENTRY CARPET
-Non-slip paving to match

colour/size of lobby flooring
with 1 piece bench complete a

welcoming entry

LA
NE

W 15th STREET FRONTAGE
-Existing Public Realm, including
Paving and Trees, to be retained *

POTENTIAL PUBLIC ART
LOCATION
-To be Submitted to the
City Public Art Coordinator

THE AREA RUG PLAZA
Concrete Unit Paving in two colours
form a rug decorative pattern. A
medium-sized tree in a planting bed
and wide bench create an intimate
pocket plaza with overhead catenary
lighting

BACK LANE
-Planting beds with small trees and

vine trellis help soften the space.

N

LV 1 - Illustrative Plan

L1.011:100

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

WEST 15TH FRONTAGE
Existing public realm to be
improved as required by CNV.
Existing street trees to be
preserved.



WEST 15TH STREET

LANE

LA
NE

LONG BENCH
Continuous Wood Top
Bench complimented
with movable seating to
allow for multiple
arrangements

OVERHEAD TRELLIS
Metal Trellis with Vines
provides comfort and
protection.

SCREEN PLANTING
Planting selection
provides enclosure and
creates a buffer from
neighbouring building

N

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

LV 2 - Illustrative Plan

L1.021:100



OUTDOOR COUNTER
Counter and bar
stools for exterior
food prep and al
fresco dining.
Planters and Pots
with edible planting

THE LEISURE LOUNGE
Outdoor lounge seating and

fire pit for socializing

ACTIVE DECK
Area for outdoor fitness/yog

NORTH LOUNGE
Outdoor lounge seating
around fire pit

EXTERIOR OFFICE
Long Desk and Chairs for

outdoor work

OPEN LAWN
Flexible artificial turf for a va
of outdoor activities

THE CARPET
Concrete unit paving in two
colours creating decorative

'carpet' pattern

WEST 15TH STREET

LANE

LA
NE

N

LV 3 - Illustrative Plan

L1.031:100

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22



92.45

92.48

92
.66

92
.96

93
.09 93
.23

93.25

93.2393.1693.1192.9792.9592.8792.6392.58

92
.27

92
.08

93.33

93
.41 93
.52

TW94.14

93
.75

93.94

TW94.14

TW94.14

TW94.1594.01

93.98

94.00

93
.99

94
.1

1

TW94.03

93
.45

93
.29

93
.23

92.06 92.09 92.39 92.54

91.98

91.97

TW
92

.9
3

TW93.30

TW93
.25

92
.77

DN

UP

UP

DN
UP

DN

522 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

308 SF

BIKE
ROOM

828 SF

RESIDENTIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

95 SF
MAIL

118 SF
PARCEL

883 SF

RESIDENTIAL
LOBBY

404 SF
CORRIDOR

750 SF

BOH
CORRIDOR

1095 SF
CRU 1277 SF

CRU
1065 SF

CRU

892 SF
CRU 979 SF

CRU

369 SF

COMMERCIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

141 SF

BIKE
ROOM

37 SF
MAIL

330 SF

OFFICE
LOBBY

359 SF
CORRIDOR

83 SF

OFFICE
ENTRY

175 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

807 SF
CRU

122 SF
CORRIDOR

197 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

238 SF

END OF
TRIP

FACILITY
EXIT

273 SF
CORRIDOR

REGC REGC REGC

136 SF

CUSTODIAL
CLOSET

338 SF

BIKE
ROOM

282 SF

BIKE
ROOM

278 SF

BIKE
ROOM

173 SF

RESIDENTIAL
ENTRY

132 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

324 SF
AMENITY

REGC

567 SF

END OF
TRIP

FACILITY

1.0%

0.1%

TTTTWTTTTTT
9393939393939393939

TW9W9W9WW9WW9W9WWW9
93.93939393.93.933.3.

93
.753 753.7

5
3.7

5
3.7

5
3.7

5
3.7

5
3.7

5
3 73.7

5

FFE 93.60FFE 92.84

EX 93.17 EX 93.43 EX 93.73EX 93.55

FFE 92.96

FFE 93.95

EX 94.00

EX 93.99

EX 92.56

EX 91.95

FFE 92.33 FFE 92.51 FFE 92.99

EX 93.98

FFE 93.51

FFE 92.65
FFE 92.96

FFE 92.96

FFE 93.95

EX 94.01

EX 93.94

EX 93.75

EX 92.87 EX 93.11

1.9%

EX 93.62

2.5%

1.0%

PA

PA PA

FFE 92.96

EX 92.21
EX 92.19

EX 92.49 EX 92.57 EX 92.83

FFE 93.95

999999959

92
9

9292929292
9

92929292
99222222 9

929292929292929299999992929292929292922999292929222

.95.95.95.95.9599955595959555.9.95.9.959.999999999955555555

RRRERRRREGRRRRRRREGRREECCC

92929292922 87878787878787 2222222222.2.22. 9292929929292929.87.8788.8788788872222
77777777

PA

93
23 23.2
3

3.2
3

3.2
3

333.2
3

3.2
333322232322223 23 23 23 2

933393999393993333
223333 23 23 22223232323232323

9
1693.1699939993999

PA

Retail Visitor
Bike Parking
(4 spaces)

Residential Visitor
Bike Parking
(10 spaces)

1 piece Bench C.I.P. Concrete
-Broom finish,
Saw cut

Retail Visitor
Bike Parking
(4 spaces)

Retail Visitor
Bike Parking

(4 spaces)

Ex. Exposed Aggregate
Concrete Band
-to be left in situ

Office & Retail Visitor
Bike Parking
(16 spaces)

GOBO LIGHT (1)
-Cast patterns onto
ground activating
the laneway

Shade Tree

Metal Trellis
with vines
-over parking ramp

Cornus kousa in 6" high
concrete planters

LOADING AREA

COMMERCIAL
PARKING

Proposed paving to match
adjacent CNV exposed
aggregate concrete banding

Ex. Trees to be retained and improved
as per CNV standards. All offsite trees
and planting to be irrigated

Row of Fastigiate
Cherry Trees in
tree grates to be
irrigated

WEST 15TH STREET

91
4

1523

Wide Wood Bench,
Intake Shaft louvers
incorporated to
base, refer to arch.

1524

21
34

1461

424

1321

15
24

914

COMMERCIAL
PARKING

LANE

Concrete Wheel
Stop, typ.

2489

BUILDING ABOVE

BU
IL

DI
NG

 A
BO

VE

BUILDING ABOVE

LA
NE

BUILDING ABOVE

POCKET PLAZA

5
L3.11

Paving Type D
Concrete Unit Paver

9
L3.11

Paving Type H
Vehicular Unit Paver

2
L3.11

Paving Type B
CIP Concrete on Slab

5
L3.11

Paving Type D
Concrete Unit Paver

5
L3.11

Paving Type D
Concrete Unit Paver

GOBO LIGHT (1)

GOBO LIGHT (1)

BOLLARD LIGHT (2)

BOLLARD LIGHT (1)

BOLLARD LIGHT (1)

UPLIGHT (1)

WALL LIGHT (3)

*
Potential area for Public
Art Piece incorporated
in seating element. Plan
to be Submitted to the
City Public Art
Coordinator

Parking Grate Shaft,
-refer to arch

9
L3.11

Paving Type H
Vehicular Unit Paver

Vista Switch
-refer to arch

1737

5725

600
Bollard, typ.

Exhaust Vents,
refer to arch.

Retail Visitor
Bike Parking

(4 spaces)

Retail Visitor
Bike Parking
(4 spaces)

Office Visitor Bike Parking
along trees in grates
(12 spaces)

Asphalt in lane
w/ concrete

curb- refer to
civil

UB-12-2 continuous root barrier
to be installed as per manufacturer
on all offsite tree planting

Parkade Outline- refer to Arch

structural soil trench
over parkade slab and
under walkway (20
cu/m of structural soil
per tree)

Detention Tank in parkade
- refer to civil

Drinking Fountain to
the CNV
Engineering/streetscape
standard.

Proposed sanitary
connection- refer to
civil

Proposed water connection-
refer to civil

Existing benches to remain
in planting bed inlets as per
CNV

Proposed storm- refer to
civil

2134

Pocket Plaza TBD
during detailed
design stage

MATERIALS LEGEND

GENERAL LEGEND

X

PROPERTY LINE

BUILDING OVERHANG

x
Lx.x

x
Lx.x

SHEET ON WHICH
DETAIL IS SHOWN

DETAIL NUMBER

REVISION

ELEVATION

SECTION

PROPOSED TREE

EXISTING TREE

CIP CONCRETE
SIDEWALK,
CITY OF NORTH
VANCOUVER
STANDARD

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE NOMINAL; DIMENSIONS ARE BASED ON
ARCHITECTURAL GRID;

2. REFER TO DETAILS AND SECTIONS FOR ALL LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS;

3. REFER TO CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER STANDARDS FOR
WORK ON TYPICAL SIDEWALKS;

4. TRENCHING FOR UTILITY CONNECTIONS TO BE COORDINATED
WITH ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT TO ENSURE SAFE ROOT
ZONES OF RETAINED TREES. METHODS OF TREE PROTECTION
FOR STREET TREES TO BE APPROVED BY PARK BOARD;

5. INSTALLATION OF PARKING REGULATORY SIGNAGE ON
STREETS ADJACENT THE SITE TO THE SATISFACTION OF
THE GENERAL MANAGER OF ENGINEERING SERVICES.

PROPOSED ELEVATION

BOTTOM OF WALL

TOP OF WALL

DIRECTION OF SLOPE

FINISH FLOOR ELEVATION

TOP OF STAIRS

BOTTOM OF STAIRS

0.0 %

TOP OF BENCH

00.00

TW

BW

FFE

TB

TS

BS

TC

BC

EX 00.00

TOP OF CURB

BOTTOM OF CURB

EXISTING SPOT ELEVATION AS PER SURVEY

TOP OF FINISHED GRADETG

EXISTING LAMP STANDARD
TO BE RETAINED AND
PROTECTED

EXISTING UTILITY POLE,
TO BE RETAINED AND
PROTECTED

GRADING LEGEND

Lx.x
X

NOTES

EXISTING POWER POLE,
TO BE RETAINED AND
PROTECTED

WALL-MOUNTED LIGHT

PLANTING UPLIGHT

LIGHTING LEGEND

1. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS AND  LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE;
2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO CENTRE OF LIGHT;
3. CONFIRM ALL LIGHT LOCATIONS ONSITE WITH LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT;
4. DO NOT SUBSTITUTE FIXTURE TYPES WITHOUT PRIOR

APPROVAL BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

NOTES

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE NOMINAL; DIMENSIONS ARE BASED ON
ARCHITECTURAL GRID;

2. REFER TO DETAILS AND SECTIONS FOR ALL LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS;

3. REFER TO MECH FOR DRAIN BODY AND CATCH BASIN WITH
CONNECTION TO STORM

GRADING NOTES

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE NOMINAL; DIMENSIONS ARE BASED ON
ARCHITECTURAL GRID;

2. REFER TO DETAILS AND SECTIONS FOR ALL LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS;

3. DRAINAGE OF SURFACE WATER BETWEEN PAVERS, REFER TO
ARCH FOR ROOF DRAIN LOCATION

GRADING NOTES

PLANTING AREAPA

BOLLARD LIGHT

GOBO LIGHT

HOSE BIB
SEE MECH. DWG. (TBC)

IRRIGATION STUB-OUT
SEE MECH. DWG.

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

N

LV 1 - Landscape Plan

L1.111:100

L2.11
2

L2.11
1

L2.12
1

L2.12
2

L2.12
3

Existing public realm to be
improved as required by CNV.
Existing street trees to be
preserved.

Existing public realm
to be improved as
required by CNV.

Install structural soil and/or
soil cells to increase soil
volume.



UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

1638 SF
OFFICE

1569 SF
OFFICE

1365 SF
OFFICE

1754 SF
OFFICE

1232 SF
OFFICE

520 SF

STAIR &
ELEV. 171 SF

L02 STAIR
#3

55 SF
IT

93 SF
CORRIDOR

262 SF

WASHROOM-
F

1026 SF
OFFICE

1624 SF
OFFICE

58 SF
ELEC

90 SF
UNIVERSAL

231 SF

WASHROOM-
M

1533 SF
CORRIDOR

FFE 97.83

TB 98.23

Small Multi-stem Tree

450mm [18"] Ht. C.I.P. Concrete
Planter Wall

Metal Trellis overhead
with vertical slats
on posts for privacy
Concrete Paving Slabs

Cafe Tables and Chairs

Long Wood Bench Top on
Concrete Planter Wall
450mm [18"] Ht.

Small Multi-stem Tree

Mound soil
at Rootball, typ.

Vines
over trellis

915 (3')

WEST 15TH STREET

1070/42" Ht. Guardrail
on back of parapet wall

615 [2']

2696

3810 [12'-6"]

Guardrail on face of
Planter Wall

LANE

LA
NE

BU
IL

DI
NG

 A
BO

VE

6
L3.11

Paving Type E
Precast Hydrapressed Slab Paving

WALL LIGHT (5)

UPLIGHT (1)

UPLIGHT (2)

MATERIALS LEGEND

GENERAL LEGEND

X

PROPERTY LINE

BUILDING OVERHANG

x
Lx.x

x
Lx.x

SHEET ON WHICH
DETAIL IS SHOWN

DETAIL NUMBER

REVISION

ELEVATION

SECTION

PROPOSED TREE

EXISTING TREE

CIP CONCRETE
SIDEWALK,
CITY OF NORTH
VANCOUVER
STANDARD

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE NOMINAL; DIMENSIONS ARE BASED ON
ARCHITECTURAL GRID;

2. REFER TO DETAILS AND SECTIONS FOR ALL LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS;

3. REFER TO CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER STANDARDS FOR
WORK ON TYPICAL SIDEWALKS;

4. TRENCHING FOR UTILITY CONNECTIONS TO BE COORDINATED
WITH ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT TO ENSURE SAFE ROOT
ZONES OF RETAINED TREES. METHODS OF TREE PROTECTION
FOR STREET TREES TO BE APPROVED BY PARK BOARD;

5. INSTALLATION OF PARKING REGULATORY SIGNAGE ON
STREETS ADJACENT THE SITE TO THE SATISFACTION OF
THE GENERAL MANAGER OF ENGINEERING SERVICES.

PROPOSED ELEVATION

BOTTOM OF WALL

TOP OF WALL

DIRECTION OF SLOPE

FINISH FLOOR ELEVATION

TOP OF STAIRS

BOTTOM OF STAIRS

0.0 %

TOP OF BENCH

00.00

TW

BW

FFE

TB

TS

BS

TC

BC

EX 00.00

TOP OF CURB

BOTTOM OF CURB

EXISTING SPOT ELEVATION AS PER SURVEY

TOP OF FINISHED GRADETG

EXISTING LAMP STANDARD
TO BE RETAINED AND
PROTECTED

EXISTING UTILITY POLE,
TO BE RETAINED AND
PROTECTED

GRADING LEGEND

Lx.x
X

NOTES

EXISTING POWER POLE,
TO BE RETAINED AND
PROTECTED

WALL-MOUNTED LIGHT

PLANTING UPLIGHT

LIGHTING LEGEND

1. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS AND  LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE;
2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO CENTRE OF LIGHT;
3. CONFIRM ALL LIGHT LOCATIONS ONSITE WITH LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT;
4. DO NOT SUBSTITUTE FIXTURE TYPES WITHOUT PRIOR

APPROVAL BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

NOTES

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE NOMINAL; DIMENSIONS ARE BASED ON
ARCHITECTURAL GRID;

2. REFER TO DETAILS AND SECTIONS FOR ALL LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS;

3. REFER TO MECH FOR DRAIN BODY AND CATCH BASIN WITH
CONNECTION TO STORM

GRADING NOTES

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE NOMINAL; DIMENSIONS ARE BASED ON
ARCHITECTURAL GRID;

2. REFER TO DETAILS AND SECTIONS FOR ALL LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS;

3. DRAINAGE OF SURFACE WATER BETWEEN PAVERS, REFER TO
ARCH FOR ROOF DRAIN LOCATION

GRADING NOTES

PLANTING AREAPA

BOLLARD LIGHT

GOBO LIGHT

HOSE BIB
SEE MECH. DWG. (TBC)

IRRIGATION STUB-OUT
SEE MECH. DWG.

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

N

L2.21
1

L2.21
2

L2.21
3

LV 2 - Landscape Plan

L1.121:100



UP

UP

UP

1155 SF
AMENITY

1000 SF
C5

677 SF
E1

987 SF
C1

665 SF
B1

1377 SF
G1

945 SF
C4

FFE 101.64

TB 102.09

TB 102.09

Wide Wood Bench
Top on Concrete
Planter Wall

Metal Trellis
overhead

Dining Table
and Chairs

Flower Pots
with Herbs and

Edible Plants

Metal Trellis overhead

Wall Bench

Small Tree

Cedar Decking

Private Patio

Private Patio

Metal Gate

12
20

1825

12
20

1000

Breezeway

12
00

75
1

Small Shade Tree
in Concrete Planter

Stone Paving Band

Medium Sized
Shade Trees to
buffer views
across lane

Parapet Wall

Concrete Planter Wall

EXIT STAIR

BALCONY OVER

BA
LC

ON
Y 

OV
ER

5
L3.11

Paving Type D
Concrete Unit Paver

Wood Desk with Tables and
Chairs

UPLIGHT (2)

ARTIFICIAL TURF

Counter with bar
stools

6
L3.11

Paving Type E
Precast Hydrapressed Slab Paving

6
L3.11

Paving Type E
Precast Hydrapressed
Slab Paving

7
L3.11

Paving Type F
Wood Deck

Lounge Seating
and Fire Pit

WALL LIGHT (4)

WALL LIGHT (8)

WALL LIGHT (3)

DESK LIGHT (2)

UPLIGHT (1)

WEST 15TH STREET

LANE

LA
NE

Urban Agriculture
planter

MATERIALS LEGEND

GENERAL LEGEND

X

PROPERTY LINE

BUILDING OVERHANG

x
Lx.x

x
Lx.x

SHEET ON WHICH
DETAIL IS SHOWN

DETAIL NUMBER

REVISION

ELEVATION

SECTION

PROPOSED TREE

EXISTING TREE

CIP CONCRETE
SIDEWALK,
CITY OF NORTH
VANCOUVER
STANDARD

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE NOMINAL; DIMENSIONS ARE BASED ON
ARCHITECTURAL GRID;

2. REFER TO DETAILS AND SECTIONS FOR ALL LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS;

3. REFER TO CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER STANDARDS FOR
WORK ON TYPICAL SIDEWALKS;

4. TRENCHING FOR UTILITY CONNECTIONS TO BE COORDINATED
WITH ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT TO ENSURE SAFE ROOT
ZONES OF RETAINED TREES. METHODS OF TREE PROTECTION
FOR STREET TREES TO BE APPROVED BY PARK BOARD;

5. INSTALLATION OF PARKING REGULATORY SIGNAGE ON
STREETS ADJACENT THE SITE TO THE SATISFACTION OF
THE GENERAL MANAGER OF ENGINEERING SERVICES.

PROPOSED ELEVATION

BOTTOM OF WALL

TOP OF WALL

DIRECTION OF SLOPE

FINISH FLOOR ELEVATION

TOP OF STAIRS

BOTTOM OF STAIRS

0.0 %

TOP OF BENCH

00.00

TW

BW

FFE

TB

TS

BS

TC

BC

EX 00.00

TOP OF CURB

BOTTOM OF CURB

EXISTING SPOT ELEVATION AS PER SURVEY

TOP OF FINISHED GRADETG

EXISTING LAMP STANDARD
TO BE RETAINED AND
PROTECTED

EXISTING UTILITY POLE,
TO BE RETAINED AND
PROTECTED

GRADING LEGEND

Lx.x
X

NOTES

EXISTING POWER POLE,
TO BE RETAINED AND
PROTECTED

WALL-MOUNTED LIGHT

PLANTING UPLIGHT

LIGHTING LEGEND

1. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS AND  LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE;
2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO CENTRE OF LIGHT;
3. CONFIRM ALL LIGHT LOCATIONS ONSITE WITH LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT;
4. DO NOT SUBSTITUTE FIXTURE TYPES WITHOUT PRIOR

APPROVAL BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

NOTES

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE NOMINAL; DIMENSIONS ARE BASED ON
ARCHITECTURAL GRID;

2. REFER TO DETAILS AND SECTIONS FOR ALL LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS;

3. REFER TO MECH FOR DRAIN BODY AND CATCH BASIN WITH
CONNECTION TO STORM

GRADING NOTES

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE NOMINAL; DIMENSIONS ARE BASED ON
ARCHITECTURAL GRID;

2. REFER TO DETAILS AND SECTIONS FOR ALL LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS;

3. DRAINAGE OF SURFACE WATER BETWEEN PAVERS, REFER TO
ARCH FOR ROOF DRAIN LOCATION

GRADING NOTES

PLANTING AREAPA

BOLLARD LIGHT

GOBO LIGHT

HOSE BIB
SEE MECH. DWG. (TBC)

IRRIGATION STUB-OUT
SEE MECH. DWG.

DESK LIGHT

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

N

L2.31
1

LV 3 - Landscape Plan

L1.131:100



92.45

92.48

92
.66

92
.96

93
.09 93
.23

93.25

93.2393.1693.1192.9792.9592.8792.6392.58

92
.27

92
.08

93.33

93
.41 93
.52

TW94.14

93
.75

93.94

TW94.14

TW94.14

TW94.1594.01

93.98

94.00

93
.99

94
.1

1

TW94.03

93
.45

93
.29

93
.23

92.06 92.09 92.39 92.54

91.98

91.97

TW
92

.9
3

TW93.30

TW93
.25

92
.77

DN

UP

UP

DN
UP

DN

522 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

308 SF

BIKE
ROOM

828 SF

RESIDENTIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

95 SF
MAIL

118 SF
PARCEL

883 SF

RESIDENTIAL
LOBBY

404 SF
CORRIDOR

750 SF

BOH
CORRIDOR

1095 SF
CRU 1277 SF

CRU
1065 SF

CRU

892 SF
CRU 979 SF

CRU

369 SF

COMMERCIAL
GARBAGE

&
RECYCLING

141 SF

BIKE
ROOM

37 SF
MAIL

330 SF

OFFICE
LOBBY

359 SF
CORRIDOR

83 SF

OFFICE
ENTRY 308.3'

93.95 m

305.0'

307.1'

305.0'

305.0'

305.0'

305.0'

302.33'
92.15m

304.72'
92.88m

301.84'
92.00m

175 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

807 SF
CRU

122 SF
CORRIDOR

197 SF

STAIR &
ELEV.

238 SF

END OF
TRIP

FACILITY
EXIT

273 SF
CORRIDOR

136 SF

CUSTODIAL
CLOSET

306.9'

308.3'

338 SF

BIKE
ROOM

282 SF

BIKE
ROOM

278 SF

BIKE
ROOM

173 SF

RESIDENTIAL
ENTRY

305.0'

305.0'

308.3'

132 SF

EXIT
CORRIDOR

305.1'

324 SF
AMENITY

305.1' 306.8'

307.1'

304.6'

304.6'304.6'

305.0'

305.0'

304.0'

567 SF

END OF
TRIP

FACILITY

308.8'
94.11

301.84.84848484848444444
2.00m000000000000092.0002.000

PA

PA PA

PA PA

93
.75

93
.75

93
7

93
7

93
.7

93
.7

93
7393
.7

93
.7

93
.75

TW9TWTWTWTWTW9TWTWTWW
93.939393.939933.993.93

TW
9939993939939393

7
PA

95

92
.9

92
9992 9

92
.9

92
.9

92
9

92
.9

92
.9

.9..95.99999929992 87 222222229292929292229999977777.8787878777772.9292

PA

2323232323

9

33333

93

93
.23.3.2

323 2323.232323

111616693.1693.1693.1693.16393.1693.163.13.93.1693.1693.193.193.1693.1693.93.1693939 6633

PA

A

1
CF

1
CF 1

PS

GROUNDCOVER MIX (5.6 m²)
(33) Galium odoratum
(33) Pachysandra terminalis

4
aq

5
aq

TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS REMARKS

CF 2 Carpinus betulus `Fastigiata` / Pyramidal European Hornbean 7cm cal. B&B 1.8m ht, Standar

PA 7 Prunus serrulata `Amanogawa` / Japanese Flowering Cherry 7cm cal. B&B 1.8m ht, Standard

PS 1 Prunus serrulata `Snow Goose` / Japanese Flowering Cherry 12cm cal. B&B 1.8m ht, Standard

VINES CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS REMARKS

aq 9 Akebia quinata `Shirobana` / Shirobana Chocolate Vine #5 Pot Staked

SHRUB AREAS CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS REMARKS

51.7 m² PLANTER MIX
as 89 Asplenium scolopendrium / Hart`s Tongue Fern 10cm pot 45cm
cc 89 Cornus canadensis / Bunchberry Dogwood 10cm pot 45cm
pm 89 Polystichum munitum / Western Sword Fern #2 Pot 45cm

GROUND COVERS CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS REMARKS

10.5 m² GROUNDCOVER MIX
go 61 Galium odoratum / Sweet Woodruff 10cm Pot 30cm
pt 61 Pachysandra terminalis / Japanese Spurge 10cm Pot 30cm

PLANT SCHEDULE

WEST 15TH STREET

LANE

LA
NE

GROUNDCOVER MIX (4.9 m²)
(29) Galium odoratum
(29) Pachysandra terminalis

PLANTER MIX (29.1 m²)
(50) Asplenium scolopendrium
(50) Cornus canadensis
(50) Polystichum munitum

PLANTER MIX (11.3 m²)
(20) Asplenium scolopendrium
(20) Cornus canadensis
(20) Polystichum munitum

PLANTER MIX (11.3 m²)
(20) Asplenium scolopendrium
(20) Cornus canadensis
(20) Polystichum munitum

PLANTING PLAN LEGEND

X

PROPERTY LINE

BUILDING OVERHANG

x
Lx.xSHEET ON WHICH

DETAIL IS SHOWN

DETAIL NUMBER

REVISION

PROPOSED TREE

EXISTING TREE

1. ALL PLANT MATERIAL TO CNLA AND BCSLA STANDARDS.
REFER TO THE CNLA LANDSCAPE STANDARD, LATEST EDITION;

2. AREA OF SEARCH FOR PLANT MATERIAL:  PACIFIC NORTHWEST,
INCLUDING BRITISH COLUMBIA, WASHINGTON AND OREGON.
FURTHER SEARCH TO BE TAKEN IF NECESSARY;

3. REFER TO SPECIFICATION FOR GENERAL CONDITIONS,
MATERIALS AND INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS;

4. CONFIRM TREE PLANTING LOCATIONS, AND PLANTING LAYOUT
WITH LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT ON SITE:

5. NO SUBSTITUTIONS OF ANY PLANT MATERIAL WILL BE
APPROVED WITHOUT SUBMITTAL REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY
THE CLIENT/LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT;

6. FOR STREET TREES: FINAL SPACING, QUANTITY, AND TREE
SPECIES TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE GENERAL MANAGER OF
ENGINEERING SERVICES.  NEW TREES MUST BE OF GOOD
STANDARD, MINIMUM 6CM CALIPER, AND INSTALLED WITH
APPROVED ROOT BARRIERS, TREE GUARDS AND APPROPRIATE
SOIL.  PLANTING DEPTH OF ROOTBALL MUST BE BELOW
SIDEWALK GRADE. CALL PARK BOARD STREET TREES DIVISION,
FOR INSPECTION AFTER TREE PLANTING COMPLETION;

7. CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND ABIDE BY CURRENT
REGULATIONS OF JAPANESE BEETLE INFESTATION THAT
AFFECTS MOVEMENT AND OR TRANSPORTATION OF MATERIAL
TO AND FROM THE SITE. REFER TO CURRENT CANADIAN FOOD
INSPECTION AGENCY REGULATIONS:
http://www.inspection.gc.ca/plants/
l t t i i i /

PLANTING NOTES

HOSE BIB
SEE MECH. DWG. (TBC)

IRRIGATION STUB-OUT
SEE MECH. DWG.

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

LV 1 -  Planting Plan

L1.211:100

N



UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

1638 SF
OFFICE

1569 SF
OFFICE

1365 SF
OFFICE

1754 SF
OFFICE

1232 SF
OFFICE

520 SF

STAIR &
ELEV. 171 SF

L02 STAIR
#3

55 SF
IT

93 SF
CORRIDOR

262 SF

WASHROOM-
F

1026 SF
OFFICE

1624 SF
OFFICE

58 SF
ELEC

90 SF
UNIVERSAL

231 SF

WASHROOM-
M

1533 SF
CORRIDOR

2
CV

6
aq

1
CV

TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS REMARKS

CV 3 Cornus x `KN30-8` TM / Venus Dogwood 3.0m ht. B&B, Shrub Form/Multi-Stemmed, 3 Branch min.

VINES CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS REMARKS

aq 6 Akebia quinata `Shirobana` / Shirobana Chocolate Vine #5 Pot Staked

SHRUB AREAS CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS REMARKS

58.4 m² PLANTER MIX
as 100 Asplenium scolopendrium / Hart`s Tongue Fern 10cm pot 45cm
cc 100 Cornus canadensis / Bunchberry Dogwood 10cm pot 45cm
pm 100 Polystichum munitum / Western Sword Fern #2 Pot 45cm

dd 37 Daphne x transatlantica `BLAFRA` / Eternal Fragrance Daphne #2 Pot 45cm

PLANT SCHEDULE

PLANTER MIX (58.4 m²)
(100) Asplenium scolopendrium
(100) Cornus canadensis
(100) Polystichum munitum

37
dd

WEST 15TH STREET

LANE

LA
NE

PLANTING PLAN LEGEND

X

PROPERTY LINE

BUILDING OVERHANG

x
Lx.xSHEET ON WHICH

DETAIL IS SHOWN

DETAIL NUMBER

REVISION

PROPOSED TREE

EXISTING TREE

1. ALL PLANT MATERIAL TO CNLA AND BCSLA STANDARDS.
REFER TO THE CNLA LANDSCAPE STANDARD, LATEST EDITION;

2. AREA OF SEARCH FOR PLANT MATERIAL:  PACIFIC NORTHWEST,
INCLUDING BRITISH COLUMBIA, WASHINGTON AND OREGON.
FURTHER SEARCH TO BE TAKEN IF NECESSARY;

3. REFER TO SPECIFICATION FOR GENERAL CONDITIONS,
MATERIALS AND INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS;

4. CONFIRM TREE PLANTING LOCATIONS, AND PLANTING LAYOUT
WITH LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT ON SITE:

5. NO SUBSTITUTIONS OF ANY PLANT MATERIAL WILL BE
APPROVED WITHOUT SUBMITTAL REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY
THE CLIENT/LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT;

6. FOR STREET TREES: FINAL SPACING, QUANTITY, AND TREE
SPECIES TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE GENERAL MANAGER OF
ENGINEERING SERVICES.  NEW TREES MUST BE OF GOOD
STANDARD, MINIMUM 6CM CALIPER, AND INSTALLED WITH
APPROVED ROOT BARRIERS, TREE GUARDS AND APPROPRIATE
SOIL.  PLANTING DEPTH OF ROOTBALL MUST BE BELOW
SIDEWALK GRADE. CALL PARK BOARD STREET TREES DIVISION,
FOR INSPECTION AFTER TREE PLANTING COMPLETION;

7. CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND ABIDE BY CURRENT
REGULATIONS OF JAPANESE BEETLE INFESTATION THAT
AFFECTS MOVEMENT AND OR TRANSPORTATION OF MATERIAL
TO AND FROM THE SITE. REFER TO CURRENT CANADIAN FOOD
INSPECTION AGENCY REGULATIONS:

PLANTING NOTES

HOSE BIB
SEE MECH. DWG. (TBC)

IRRIGATION STUB-OUT
SEE MECH. DWG.

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

LV 2 -  Planting Plan

L1.221:100

N



TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS

CF 4 Carpinus betulus `Fastigiata` / Pyramidal European Hornbean 7cm cal. B&B

CV 3 Cornus x `KN30-8` TM / Venus Dogwood 3.0m ht. B&B, Shrub Form/Multi-Stemmed, 3 Branch min.

HI 6 Hamamelis x intermedia `Arnold Promise` / Arnold Promise Witch Hazel 3.0m ht. B&B

MA 1 Malus x domestica / Apple 5cm cal. B&B

VINES CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS

ca 2 Clematis armandii / Evergreen Clematis #5 Pot Staked

ws 3 Wisteria sinensis / Chinese Wisteria #5 Pot Staked

SHRUB AREAS CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS

dd 72 Daphne x transatlantica `BLAFRA` / Eternal Fragrance Daphne #2 Pot 45cm

th 115 Taxus x media `Hillii` / Hill`s Anglo-Japanese Yew 1,2m height 35cm

EDIBLE PLANTS CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS

asc 5 Allium schoenoprasum / Common Chives 10cm pot

fe 92 Fragaria chiloensis `Everbearing` / Beach Strawberry 10cm pot 30cm

mp 10 Mentha x piperita / Peppermint 10cm pot

ov 5 Origanum vulgare / Oregano 10cm pot

sg 6 Salvia officinalis / Garden Sage 10cm pot

tc 5 Thymus vulgaris / Common Thyme 10cm pot

vb 82 Vaccinium x `Northcountry` / Northcountry Blueberry #7 Pot 50cm

GRASSES CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS

mi 86 Miscanthus sinensis `Little Kitten` / Little Kitten Eulalia Grass #7 Pot 50cm

PERENNIALS CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS

Ic 136 Iberis sempervirens / Evergreen Candytuft #1 Pot 35cm

GROUND COVERS CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING COMMENTS

rn 43 Rosa x `Noaschnee` TM / Flower Carpet White Groundcover Rose #2 Pot

PLANT SCHEDULE PLANTING PLAN LEGEND

X

PROPERTY LINE

BUILDING OVERHANG

x
Lx.x

x
Lx.x

SHEET ON WHICH
DETAIL IS SHOWN

DETAIL NUMBER

REVISION ELEVATION

SECTION

PROPOSED TREE

EXISTING TREE

1. ALL PLANT MATERIAL TO CNLA AND BCSLA STANDARDS.  REFER TO THE CNLA
LANDSCAPE STANDARD, LATEST EDITION;

2. AREA OF SEARCH FOR PLANT MATERIAL:  PACIFIC NORTHWEST, INCLUDING BRITISH
COLUMBIA, WASHINGTON AND OREGON. FURTHER SEARCH TO BE TAKEN IF
NECESSARY;

3. REFER TO SPECIFICATION FOR GENERAL CONDITIONS, MATERIALS AND INSTALLATION
REQUIREMENTS;

4. CONFIRM TREE PLANTING LOCATIONS, AND PLANTING LAYOUT WITH LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT ON SITE:

5. NO SUBSTITUTIONS OF ANY PLANT MATERIAL WILL BE APPROVED WITHOUT
SUBMITTAL REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE CLIENT/LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT;

6. FOR STREET TREES: FINAL SPACING, QUANTITY, AND TREE SPECIES TO THE
SATISFACTION OF THE GENERAL MANAGER OF ENGINEERING SERVICES.  NEW TREES
MUST BE OF GOOD STANDARD, MINIMUM 6CM CALIPER, AND INSTALLED WITH
APPROVED ROOT BARRIERS, TREE GUARDS AND APPROPRIATE SOIL.  PLANTING DEPTH
OF ROOTBALL MUST BE BELOW SIDEWALK GRADE. CALL PARK BOARD STREET TREES
DIVISION, FOR INSPECTION AFTER TREE PLANTING COMPLETION;

7. CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND ABIDE BY CURRENT REGULATIONS OF JAPANESE BEETLE
INFESTATION THAT AFFECTS MOVEMENT AND OR TRANSPORTATION OF MATERIAL TO
AND FROM THE SITE. REFER TO CURRENT CANADIAN FOOD INSPECTION AGENCY
REGULATIONS: http://www.inspection.gc.ca/plants/plant-pests-invasive-species/
insects/japanese-beetle/japanese-beetle-infested-place-order/eng/1525272391906/1525272448971

8. PROVIDE DESIGN BUILD IRRIGATION FOR ALL PLANTER AREAS ONSITE IN COMPLIANCE
WITH PROJECT SPECIFICATION. STUBOUT LOCATIONS AS PER MECHANICAL.

9. PROVIDE HIGH EFFICIENCY IRRIGATION

Lx.x
X

PLANTING NOTES

HOSE BIB
SEE MECH. DWG. (TBC)

IRRIGATION STUB-OUT
SEE MECH. DWG.

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

LV 3 - Planting List

L1.231:100



UP

UP

UP

319.8'

1155 SF
AMENITY

1000 SF
C5

677 SF
E1

987 SF
C1

665 SF
B1

1377 SF
G1

945 SF
C4

FFE 101.64

TB 102.09

TB 102.09

3
CF

2
CV

34
mi

1
CV

23
Ic

3
HI

22
vb

52
mi

60
vb

92
fe

3
sg

3
sg

5
mp

1
MA

5
ov

5
tc

5
asc

5
mp

1
HI

42
th

13
Ic

25
dd

2
HI

78
th

8
dd

7
Ic

26
Ic

49
rn

73
Ic

3
ws

2
ca

WEST 15TH STREET

LANE

LA
NE

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

N

LV 3 - Planting Plan

L1.241:100



PL

EX 92.56 EX 92.49

7303 [24'-2"] 2297 [7'-6"]3129 [10'-5"]

Entry Carpet Existing CIP Concrete City Sidewalk Existing Planting Area

Non-slip paving to match
colour/pattern of interior

lobby flooring

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l L

ob
by

Residential Visitor Bike
Parking

(10 spaces)

CR
U 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Fa
ce

Existing curb

W 15th Street

Existing curb around
planting area

Canopy Over
-Refer to Arch

Existing Tree behind

Structural soil
under sidewalk

GEODETIC
LEVEL 01

92.964 m
305' - 0"

GEODETIC
LEVEL 02

97.83 m
320' - 11 9/16"

EL 93.32

FFE 93.51

3777 [12'-6"]

Existing CIP Concrete City SidewalkCIP CONCRETE BAND

CR
U

CR
U 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Fa
ce

Canopy Over
-Refer to Arch

2168 [7'-1"]

Existing Unit Pavers to be removed
and replaced with

CIP Concrete Sidewalk
t Cit f N th V St d rd

W 15th Street

Existing Curb and Gutter

Existing Tree to be Retained
and Protected

PL

Suspended
Slab/Parking Wall

-below Grade

Expansion Joint at PL

2
L3.11

Paving Type B
CIP Concrete on Slab

Structural soil trench under
city sidewalk. 25 cu/m per
tree

10
00

 [3
'-4

"]

4000 [12'-11"]

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

Level 1 - Sections

L2.11as noted

Section through Lobby Enrtance
1:25

1
L2.11

Section through 15th Ave Frontage
1:25

2
L2.11



Suspended Slab

EL 93.94

76
2 

[2
'-6

"]

PL

45
0 

[1
'-8

"]

4980 [16'-3"] 1532 [5']

Fastigiate Cherry Tree
behind

Wide Wood BenchEntrance Plaza N-S Lane

CR
U 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Fa
ce

CR
U

Seating element
incorporated into
public art feature tbd

8
L3.11

Paving Type G
Vehicular Unit Paver

5
L3.11

Paving Type D
Concrete Unit Paver

Void

Building Above

Of
fic

e 
Lo

bb
y 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Fa
ce

 B
eh

in
d

68
6 

[2
'-1

"]

EL 94.00

PL

FFE 93.97

2110 [7'-1"] 1260 [4'-2"]

Walkway Cherry Tree
in Grate

N-S Lane

Fastigiate Cherry Tree

8
L3.11

Paving Type G
Vehicular Unit Paver

Bu
ild

in
g 

Fa
ce

Bi
ke

 R
ep

ai
r

5
L3.11

Paving Type D
Concrete Unit Paver

Bollard Light

Linear Tree Grate

Suspended Slab

Structural Soil

11
70

 [3
'-9

"]

ODETIC
L 02

EL 93.97

EL 93.52

PL

1830 [5'-10"] 4800 [15'-10"] 1570 [5'] 5410 [17'-11"]

Walkway Planter Bed with Large Shade Tree Walkway Commercial Parking E-W Lane

12
10

 [4
'-2

"]

5
L3.11

Paving Type D
Concrete Unit Paver

9
L3.11

Paving Type H
Vehicular Unit Paver

Flush Concrete Band

Wheel Stop

Bu
ild

in
g 

Fa
ce

En
d 

of
 T

ri
p 

Fa
ci

lit
y

Suspended Slab

Medium-size
Shade Tree

Metal Trellis with Vines
behind

530 [1'-8"]

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

Level 1 - Sections

L2.12as noted

Section through 15th Street Plaza
1:25

1
L2.12

Section through N-S Lane Frontage
1:25

2
Lx.x

Section through E-W Lane Frontage
1:25

1
L2.12



WP-F

WP-E
Guardrail

mounted to inside
of Parapet

FG 97.83

FG 98.28

Metal Trellis with
vines with vertical

slats to screen
adjacent building

Wood Bench over
Concrete Wall

PL

450 [1'-6"]

350 [1'-2"]

915 [3']

600 [2']

Parapet Wall

Concrete Planter
Wall/Bench base

6
L3.11

Paving Type E
Precast Hydrapressed
Slab Paving

Bu
ild

in
g 

Fa
ce

Of
fic

e

GEO
LEVEL 02

97.83 m
320' - 11 9/16"

GEO
LEVEL 03

101.64 m
333' - 5 9/16"

WP-F

WP-E

FG 97.83

FG 98.28

Guardrail
mounted to inside

of Parapet

Metal Trellis
with vines and

vertical slats
for privacy

PL

350 [1'-2"]

915 [3']

450 [1'-6"]

600 [2']
6

L3.11
Paving Type E
Precast Hydrapressed
Slab Paving

Building Column
refer to Arch

Bu
ild

in
g 

Fa
ce

Of
fic

e

Residential
Balcony Above

Wood Bench over
Concrete Wall

Parapet Wall

Concrete Planter
Wall/Bench base

818 [2'-8"]610 [2']

W 15th StreetLevel 1 CRU Below

Concrete Planter
Wall

Small Multi-stem
Tree

Guardrail mounted
to Backface of
Parapet Wall

Parapet Wall

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

Level 2 - Sections

L2.21as noted

Landscape Section through Office Patio
1:25

1
L2.21

Landscape Section through Office Patio
1:25

2
L2.21

Landscape Section through Parapet
1:25

3
L2.21



95 6 7 8

SUITE

TERRACE PLANTER

PLANTER

TERRACE
WP-F

WP-E

WP-F

WP-E

WP-F
795 [3']

5000 [16'] 1825 [6'] 11040 [36'] 3450 [11']

1267 [4']

Raised Planter behind

FG 101.64

Outdoor Lounge Walkway Artificial Lawn Raised Planter

Structural Slab

Am
en

ity
 R

oo
m

Bu
ild

in
g 

Fa
ce

Parapet Wall

Guardrail mounted
to Back Face of
Parapet Wall

Concrete Planter
Wall

Medium-sized
Shade Tree

Exit Stair behindMetal Trellis with
Vines, behind

6
L3.11

Paving Type E
Precast Hydrapressed Slab Paving

5
L3.11

Paving Type D
Concrete Unit Paver

Level 3 - Sections

L2.31as noted

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

Section through Amenity Courtyard
1:50

1
Lx.x



EXISTING SUBGRADE TO BE COMPACTED TO
MIN. 95% MOD. PROCTOR

BASE MATERIALS (19mm MINUS WELL
GRADED CRUSHED ROCK) COMPACTED TO
MIN. 95% MOD. PROCTOR.

CIP CONCRETE NATURAL COLOUR,
MEDIUM SANDBLAST FINISH

10
0

10
0 

M
IN

.

PREPARED SUBGRADE TO BE REVIEWED BY
GEOTECH

10M @ 300mm HOR. IN BOTH
DIRECTIONS
AT CL.

ON GRADE - PEDESTRIAN USE

PAVING TYPE A - CIP CONCRETE ON GRADE
1:10

1
L3.11

3
##### CIP CONCRETE PAVING JOINTS

ON SLAB

MIN. INSULATION ADD. VOID FILL AS
REQUIRED; SLAB DRAINAGE AND
WATERPROOFING; STRUCTURAL
CONCRETE SLAB; REFER TO ARCH.

FILTER FABRIC

BASE MATERIALS (19mm MINUS WELL
GRADED CRUSHED ROCK) COMPACTED
TO MIN. 95% MOD. PROCTOR.

10M @ 400mm HOR. IN BOTH
DIRECTIONS
AT CL.

CIP CONCRETE NATURAL COLOUR,
MEDIUM SANDBLAST FINISH

PAVING TYPE B - CIP CONCRETE ON SLAB
1:10

2
L3.11

10
0

10
0 

M
IN

.

3
L3.11 CIP CONCRETE PAVING JOINTS

CONTROL JOINTS

ISOLATION JOINTS

3. C-2 SAWCUT CONTROL JOINTS WITHIN 18 HOURS OF FINISHING
SLABS REFER TO LAYOUT PLAN.

6mm WIDTH SAWN JOINT TO 1/4 SLAB
DEPTH

CIP CONCRETE PAVING JOINTS
1:10

3
L3.11

X
XX CIP CONCRETE PAVING

12mm MAX. WIDTH ISOLATION JOINT
WITH JOINT FILLER

X
XX CIP CONCRETE PAVING

PAVING TYPE C - PEDESTRIAN UNIT PAVER
1:10

4
L3.11

PRECAST CONC. UNIT PAVER ON SLAB;
HAND TIGHT WITH FINE SWEPT JOINTS
TO MAX 3mm WIDTH

BASE MATERIALS (19mm MINUS WELL
GRADED CRUSHED ROCK) COMPACTED TO
MIN. 95% MOD. PROCTOR.

SAND SETTING BED

10
0

60
25

NOTES:

1. DO NOT CUT PAVERS TO MEET DIMENSIONS ON PLAN. CONFIRM
WITH LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IN FIELD.

ON GRADE

EXISTING SUBGRADE TO BE COMPACTED TO
MIN. 95% MOD. PROCTOR; PREPARED
SUBGRADE TO BE REVIEWED BY GEOTECH

ON SLAB - PEDESTRIAN

PAVING TYPE D - CONCRETE UNIT PAVER
1:10

5
L3.11

SAND SWEPT 3mm JOINTS

PRECAST CONC. UNIT PAVER

BASE MATERIALS (19mm MINUS WELL
GRADED CRUSHED ROCK) COMPACTED TO
MIN. 95% MOD. PROCTOR.

SAND SETTING BED

15
0

60
25

MIN. INSULATION, ADD. VOID FILL AS
REQUIRED; SLAB DRAINAGE AND
WATERPROOFING; ROOT BARRIER;
STRUCTURAL CONCRETE SLAB;
REFER TO ARCH.

NOTES:

1. REFER TO MATERIALS AND LAYOUT PLAN FOR PATTERN;

2. ENSURE DRAINAGE THROUGH VOIDING.

FILTER FABRIC

ON SLAB - PEDESTRIAN

PAVING TYPE E - PRECAST HYDRAPRESSED SLAB PAVING
1:10

6
L3.11

25
10

0

600mm x 600mm x 40mm PRECAST
CONCRETE PAVER

3mm JOINT WITH SAND FILLING

DRAINAGE ROCK

SAND SETTING BED

MIN. INSULATION ADD. VOID FILL AS
REQUIRED; SLAB DRAINAGE AND
WATERPROOFING; STRUCTURAL
CONCRETE SLAB; REFER TO ARCH.

FILTER FABRIC

NOTES:

1. REFER TO MATERIALS AND LAYOUT PLAN FOR PATTERN;

2. ENSURE DRAINAGE THROUGH VOIDING.

PAVING TYPE F - WOOD DECK
1:10

7
L3.11

64 X 140 SLEEPER; 800 O.C.  STACK TO
FIT THE SLAB DEPTH AS REQUIRED

600mm X 600mm IPE DECK TILES

PEDESTAL ADJUSTED TO MEET FINISH
GRADE

ON PEDESTAL

MIN. INSULATION ADD. VOID FILL AS
REQUIRED; SLAB DRAINAGE AND
WATERPROOFING; STRUCTURAL
CONCRETE SLAB; REFER TO ARCH.

NOTES:

1. REFER TO MATERIALS AND LAYOUT PLAN FOR PATTERN;

2. ENSURE DRAINAGE THROUGH VOIDING.

ON GRADE

PLAN

PAVING TYPE G - VEHICULAR UNIT PAVER
1:10

8
L3.11

POLYMERIC SAND SWEPT JOINT

PRECAST CONC. UNIT PAVER

EXISTING SUBGRADE TO BE COMPACTED TO
MIN. 95% MOD. PROCTOR

BASE MATERIALS (19mm MINUS WELL
GRADED CRUSHED ROCK) COMPACTED TO
MIN. 95% MOD. PROCTOR.

PREPARED SUBGRADE TO BE REVIEWED BY
GEOTECH

SAND SETTING BED

11
0

CIP CONCRETE BASE

15M @ 300 O.C. HORZ. IN BOTH
DIRRECTIONS AT CL.

25
15

0
15

0

ON GRADE

PLAN

PAVING TYPE H - VEHICULAR UNIT PAVER
1:10

9
L3.11

POLYMERIC SAND SWEPT JOINT

PRECAST CONC. UNIT PAVER

BASE MATERIALS (19mm MINUS WELL
GRADED CRUSHED ROCK) COMPACTED TO
MIN. 95% MOD. PROCTOR.

SAND SETTING BED

11
0

CIP CONCRETE BASE

15M @ 300 O.C. HORZ. IN BOTH
DIRRECTIONS AT CL.

25
15

0
15

0

MIN. INSULATION, ADD. VOID FILL AS
REQUIRED; SLAB DRAINAGE AND
WATERPROOFING; ROOT BARRIER;
STRUCTURAL CONCRETE SLAB;
REFER TO ARCH.

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

Paving Details

L3.111:100



25
0

51
M

IN
. 4

50
 S

HR
UB

S;
M

IN
. 9

00
 T

RE
ES

LAWN PLANTING

SHRUB/TREE PLANTING

GROWING MEDIUM

MULCH

GROWING MEDIUM

SODDED LAWN

SOIL PROFILES ON SLAB
1:10

1
L3.12

MIN. INSULATION, ADD. VOID FILL AS
REQUIRED; SLAB DRAINAGE AND
WATERPROOFING; ROOT BARRIER;
STRUCTURAL CONCRETE SLAB;
REFER TO ARCH.

FILTER FABRIC

DRAIN ROCK

MIN. INSULATION, ADD. VOID FILL AS
REQUIRED; SLAB DRAINAGE AND
WATERPROOFING; STRUCTURAL
CONCRETE SLAB; REFER TO ARCH.

FILTER FABRIC

DRAIN ROCK

76
76

2 x ROOTBALL

90
0 

GR
OW

IN
G 

M
ED

IU
M

 D
EP

TH
VO

ID
IN

G 
BE

LO
W

 A
S 

RE
QU

IR
ED

ARBOR-TIE STRAP WITH BOWLINE
LOOP-END

SET CROWN OF ROOTBALL 1" ABOVE
FINISH GRADE AND REMOVE BURLAP AND
TWINE FROM TOP HALF OF ROOTBALL

(2)  4 X 4" X 4' TIMBER DEAD-MAN (ONE
ON EITHER SIDE)

FINISH GRADE

MULCH

GROWING MEDIUM

STYROFOAM VOIDING BUILDUP TO
PROPOSED FINISH GRADE - REFER TO
GRADING PLAN. ALLOW FOR SOIL DEPTHS
AS PER SOIL DETAIL *X/LX.XX* AND
PROVIDE REQUIRED SOIL VOLUME FOR
EACH TREE.

TREE PLANTING - ON SLAB
1:10

2
L3.12

MIN. INSULATION ADD. VOID FILL AS
REQUIRED; SLAB DRAINAGE AND
WATERPROOFING; ROOT BARRIER;
STRUCTURAL CONCRETE SLAB;
REFER TO ARCH.

O.C.SPACING

O.
C.

SP
AC

IN
G

50
 M

IN
. COMPACTED SUBGRADE

GROWING MEDIUM, REFER TO SPEC.

ENSURE FULL CONTACT BETWEEN
ROOTBALL AND GROWING MEDIUM

MULCH

TRIANGULAR SPACING AT SPECIFIED
ON-CENTRE DISTANCE, REFER TO PLANT
SCHEDULE

PLANT CENTRE

ROW

DISTANCE FROM EDGE IS HALF THE
SPECIFIED ON-CENTRE SPACING

EDGE OF GROUNDCOVER AREA,
SIDEWALK EDGE

GROUND COVER PLANTING
1:10

3
L3.12

SPACING PLAN

MULCH

2 x ROOTBALL

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

GROWING MEDIUM

FERTILIZER TABLETS

FINISH GRADE

SET CROWN OF ROOTBALL 25mm ABOVE
FINISH GRADE AND REMOVE BURLAP AND
TWINE FROM TOP HALF OF ROOTBALL

SHRUB PLANTING
1:10

4
L3.12

1 Issued for RZ/DA Jn. 03/21

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
it

ec
tu

re
U

rb
an

 D
es

ig
n

40
3 

- 
37

5 
W

es
t 

Fi
ft

h 
Av

en
ue

Va
nc

ou
ve

r 
B

C,
  V

5Y
 1

J6
6

0
4 

9
0

9
 4

15
0

ha
pa

co
bo

.c
om

Drawing Number

Drawn|Checked

Project No.

Scale

Date

Copyright Reserved.  This drawing is and remains at all
times the exclusive property of Hapa Collaborative and
cannot be used modified or copied without the expressed
written consent of the landscape architect.

No. Description Date

Lonsdale and 15th

114-132 West 15th Street
North Vancouver, B.C.

Ap. 06/22

2050

TY | JS

2 Issued for Rezoning Jn. 16/21

3 Issued for Rezoning Se. 30/21

4 Issued for Rezoning/DP Ap. 06/22

Planting Details

L3.121:100



 
 

Document Number: 2120924-v1 

 
 
November 26, 2021 
 
Lorne Wolinksy, Vice President Development 
Polygon Homes 
1333 West Broadway Unit #900 
Vancouver, BC V6H 4C2 
 
Dear Mr. Wolinsky: 
 
Re: 114-132 West 15th Street (Rezoning Application) 
 
This will confirm that at their meeting on November 17, 2021 the Advisory Design Panel 
reviewed the above application and endorsed the following resolution: 

 
“THAT the Advisory Design Panel has reviewed the rezoning application for 
114-132 West 15th Street and recommends approval of the project. The Panel 
commends the applicant for the quality of the proposal and their presentation.” 

 
The recommendations of the Advisory Design Panel pertain only to site-specific design 
and site planning considerations and do not, in any way, represent Council and staff 
approval or rejection of this project. 

 
Yours truly, 
 

 
T. Huckell 
Committee Clerk-Secretary 
 
Cc: M. Menzel, Planner 2, Planning and Development 
 G. Vose, Director, IBI Group Architects (Canada) Inc. 
 J. Stamp, Project Manager, HAPA Collaborative 

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 4�



 
 
 
 

Document Number: 2143190-v1 

February 2, 2022 
 
Lorne Wolinsky 
Polygon Homes 
1333 West Broadway #900 
Vancouver, BC V6H 4C2 
 
Dear Lorne, 
 
Re:  Rezoning application for 114-132 West 15th Street 
 
At their regular committee meeting on January 5, 2022, the Integrated Transportation 
Committee received a presentation from Polygon Homes, IBI Group, and Howes 
Technical Advantage regarding the above mentioned.  Following review and discussion, 
the following motion was made: 
 

THAT the Integrated Transportation Committee has reviewed the Rezoning 
application for 114-132 West 15th Street and supports the project. 
 
The Committee makes the following recommendations: 
 

 That the developer include larger bike parking facilities to accommodate 
cargo bikes; and, 

 That the developer explore opportunities for car share parking in the 
building.  
 

CARRIED UNANMIOUSLY 
 
The recommendations of the Integrated Transportation Committee do not, in any way, 
represent Council and/or staff approval or rejection of this proposal. 
 
 
Yours truly, 

Hayley Reiss 
Committee Clerk/Secretary 
 
c. M. Menzel, Planner 2, City of North Vancouver 
 D. Watson, Transportation Planner, City of North Vancouver 
 K. Graham, Corporate Officer, City of North Vancouver 

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 5�



114-132 West 15th Avenue Rezoning Application - Polygon Development 338 Ltd. 
Virtual Developer Information Session (DIS) Summary Report

Wednesday, December 14th, 2021 
6:00PM-8:00PM 
Online Zoom Webinar

Event Date:
Time:
Location:

Attendance: 28 members of the public attended virtually.
The Polygon team was in attendance, as was a representative of the City of 
North Vancouver Planning Department.

Four (4) comment forms and three (3) emails were submitted following the DIS.Comments:

1) To present development application materials to the community
2) To provide an opportunity for the community to ask questions about the 
development
3) To provide an opportunity for the community to comment on the proposal

Meeting Purpose:

Notification:
In accordance with City of North Vancouver policies:

Invitation Flyers
DIS Invitation flyers were delivered to 354 addresses within a 40m radius of the site, provided by the 
City of North Vancouver. Appendix A: Notification includes a copy of this material.

Newspaper Ad
A DIS newspaper ad was placed in the North Shore News on December 1st, 2021 and December 8,h, 
2021. A copy of the ad is included in Appendix A: Notification.

Notification Sign
Two DIS notification signs were erected on the site on December Is', 2021. Photos of the installed site 
signs are included in Appendix A: Notification.

Lobby Notification
Notifications were placed in the lobbies of 121 West 16th Street; 121 West 15th Street; and 150 West 
15th Street. Photos of the installed notifications are included in Appendix A: Notification.

Attendance:
28 members of the public signed in for the virtual meeting. A copy of the attendee list is included in 
Appendix B: Attendee List.

The following City staff and project team members were in attendance:

City of North Vancouver:
• Matthew Menzel, Planner 1

Page 1Urban Forum Associates

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 6�



114-132 West 15th Avenue Rezoning Application - Polygon - Developer Information Session Summary Report

Project Team:
• Lome Wolinksy, Polygon Homes
• Jacqueline Garvin, Polygon Homes
• Gwyn Vose, IBI Group
• Emmanuel San Miguel, IBI Group
• Joseph Fry, HAPA Collaborative
• Donna Howes, Howes Technical Advantage

Facilitators:
• Lance Berelowitz, Urban Forum Associates
• Katrina May, Katrina May Consulting

Overview:
In accordance with the City of North Vancouver's COVID-19 state of emergency community consultation 
guidelines, the DIS meeting was held in an online Virtual Developer Information Session format. Meeting 
participants watched a PowerPoint presentation and a virtual 3D “fly-through" video by members of the 
Polygon Group project team.

Participants were invited to use the Zoom Webinar Q&A function to ask questions or submit comments 
during the DIS, which were addressed at the end of the presentation during the Question & Answer 
period. The facilitator read all questions received aloud and directed questions to the appropriate 
project team member to respond verbally for all participants to hear.

The project presentation and facilitated Question & Answer period took approximately 120 minutes. 
The facilitators received several questions and comments about the project and recorded them for 
inclusion in this summary report, attached as a separate Appendix C: Public Dialogue.

Participants were invited to submit written comments (using the City's standard comment form) to the 
applicant and/or the municipal development planner, following the DIS. Four (4) comment forms and 
three (3) emails were submitted after the DIS.

The key themes of the questions during the Developer Information Session related to the height and 
siting of the building and how that relates to private views from the adjacent buildings. The suggestion 
was made to lower the height of the building, however the applicant noted that they had conditional 
approval to purchase transfer density from the City for this site, that the height complies with the OCP 
for the area, and that a lower building would also be wider, potentially blocking more views. There were 
suggestions to relocate the proposed building further east on the site, to maximize the distance 
between it and the tower to the immediate west. The consultants advised that this had been examined 
but that the current siting of the proposed building optimizes views from several surrounding buildings.

Questions arose over the number of parking stalls, the location of the parkade ramp, and other street 
improvements, and how this would impact traffic along 15th St and the lanes. The traffic consultant 
advised that the proposed improvements and on-site parking facilities would likely ameliorate the 
current traffic flow and parking challenges.

Questions also arose over the landscape design and the public realm and retail spaces. The applicant 
noted that a restaurant use would be targeted to occupy the southeast corner retail unit, with space

Page 2Urban Forum Associates



114-132 West 15th Avenue Rezoning Application - Polygon - Developer Information Session Summary Report

provided for an outdoor patio. The suggestion was made to retain the mature trees along IS1'1 St, 
however the applicant stated that they are not planning to replace the trees along 15th Street, unless 
they were in poor health. However, an arborist assessment of the trees along the lane has 
recommended that these trees be replaced.

Comment Sheet and Email Summary:
Participants were invited to submit comments during a 5-day response period after the DIS meeting. 
Four (4) comment forms and three (3) emails were submitted after the DIS. Three (3) of the responses 
were in support and four (4) were opposed to the proposed project. These are submitted as a separate 
Appendix D: Public Comments.

Those in favour of the project noted support for the building design, in particular the improvements to 
the street, the number of parking stalls, and the public realm, and how this will all help to ameliorate the 
current traffic congestion along 15th St and the lane. The suggestion was made to add gas stoves and 
BBQ hookups for all units, as well as a larger awning along 15th street to facilitate more covered space 
for patios. The suggestion was made to include a longer covered bus stop on 15,h Street to encourage 
transit use. The suggestion was made to include affordable/social housing as part of this project.

Those opposed to the project noted concern over the building height and proximity to neighbouring 
buildings, blocking private views. The suggestion was made to make the builder shorter (5 storeys or 18 
storeys were noted). There was concern over traffic and parking challenges becoming exacerbated in 
the area. Support was noted for the EV charging stations for all parking stalls. Concern was raised over 
the suggested copper cladding accents and how this may become tarnished over time (citing the rental 
building on Lonsdale and 13th as a precedent).

Conclusion:
The purpose of this online Virtual Developer Information Session was to present to the community the 
proposed rezoning application and the development concept, and to provide attendees with an 
opportunity to ask clarifying questions and comment on the proposal. 354 DIS notification flyers were 
distributed by mail to the surrounding community, and 28 community members signed into the DIS. Two 
newspaper ads notified the community of the DIS, and two DIS notification signs were posted on the 
property. A total of four (4) comment forms and three (3) e-mails were submitted to the project 
Development Manager.

Members of the public could participate in this consultation process in three ways:
• Watching a virtual project presentation during the DIS, including a 3D virtual "fly-through" video
• Asking questions of the project team and/or City Planner during the DIS
• Submitting written comments after the DIS

The DIS meeting length and format was sufficient to provide all participants an opportunity to learn 
more about the proposed project, ask questions, and make any comments they wished to provide that 
evening. Participants asked the development team and City Planner a variety of specific questions, 
mostly related to building height, siting, view impacts, parking and traffic, and the overall design, 
landscaping and public realm.

Page 3Urban Forum Associates



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8921 Document: 2158824-v3 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8921 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8921” (Polygon Development 338 Ltd. / IBI Group 
Architects, 114-132 West 15th Street, CD-752), and Text Amendment to Centennial 
Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street, and Norseman Park (Harry 
Jerome Neighbourhood Lands, CD-165). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lots as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of CD-752 (Comprehensive Development 752 Zone): 

 
 Lots Block D.L. Plan 
 
 E & F 38 548 18002 from C-1B 
 
3. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning 

Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Adding the following section to Section 1100, thereof, after the designation “CD-751 
Comprehensive Development 751 Zone”: 

 
“CD-752 Comprehensive Development 752 Zone” 

 
B. Adding the following to Section 1101, thereof, after the “CD-751 Comprehensive 

Development 751 Zone”: 
 

“CD-752 Comprehensive Development 752 Zone” 
 

In the CD-752 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for 
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking 
shall be as in the C-1B Zone, except that: 

 
(1) The permitted Principal Use on the Lot shall be limited to: 
 

(a) Retail Service Group 1A Use; 
(b) Retail Service Group 1 Use, except these uses are permitted only at the 

second storey or higher; 
(c) Accessory Apartment Use subject to Section 607(1) of this Bylaw; 
(d) Accessory Home Occupation Use, subject to Section 507(6); 
(e) Accessory Home Office Use, subject to Section 507(6); 
(f) Child Care Use, subject to Section 607(9); 
(g) Accessory Off-Street Loading Use; 
(h) Accessory Off-Street Parking Use; 
(i) Off-Site Parking Use.  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8921 Document: 2158824-v3 

(2) Gross Floor Area 
 
(a) The maximum Gross Floor Area is 2.6 FSR;  
(b) Not withstanding (2)(a) the Gross Floor Area may be increased as follows: 

 
ADDITIONAL (BONUS) DENSITY 

ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
CATEGORY  

DESCRIPTION ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
(BONUS) 

POLICY 
REFERENCE  

Community 
Benefit Cash 
Contribution 

Provision of a 
Community 
Benefit Cash 
Contribution of 
$3,553,200 and 
provision of a 
Mini Plant sized 
and located in 
accordance with 
the requirements 
of the Director of 
the Lonsdale 
Energy 
Corporation  

Maximum  
 
3,278.4 sq. m. 
(35,288.4 sq. ft.) 
1.4 FSR   

As per OCP 
Policy Section 
2.2.1 

TOTAL BONUS  1.4 FSR  
 

DENSITY TRANSFER 
DONOR SITE DESCRIPTION TRANSFERRED 

GROSS FLOOR 
AREA 

POLICY 
REFERENCE  

Transferred from 
Harry Jerome 
Lands (at 2300 
Lonsdale Avenue 
and 116 East 
23rd Street, 
Comprehensive 
Development 
Zone 165) 

Residual density 
that is not to be 
utilized on donor 
site 

7,152.9 sq. m. 
(76,993 sq. ft.) / 
3.05 FSR 

As per OCP 
Policy  
Section 2.3 

TOTAL 
TRANSFER 

 3.05 FSR  

   
Such that the total effective on-site Gross Floor Area is not to exceed 7.05 FSR. 

 
(3) A minimum of 21 units shall have 3 bedrooms; 

 
(4) Building Height: 

 
(a) The Principal Building shall not exceed a Building Height of 68 metres (223 

feet) as measured from the average Building Grades; 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8921 Document: 2158824-v3 

(b) Elevator and mechanical penthouses may project beyond the defined 
height in (a) by a maximum of 6.1 metres (20 feet) including elevator shafts 
and mechanical rooms; 

 
(5) Section 610(5) Siting shall be waived and replaced with the following siting 

requirements: 
 

(a) The Principal Building shall be sited not less than: 
 

(i)  2.1 meters (7 feet) from the lane (flanking lane) to the east; 
 

(6) Section 612(6) Building Width and Length shall be waived; 
 

(7) Section 402(6) within Prohibited Uses of Land, Buildings, and Structures shall 
be waived;  

 
(8) Off-Street Parking, Short-Term and Secure Bicycle Parking, and Accessory Off-

Street Loading Spaces shall be provided in conformity with the requirements of 
Division IV, Parts 9, 10, and 10A, except that: 

 
(a)  A minimum of 143 residential vehicle Parking Spaces shall be provided; 
 
(b)  A minimum of 10 residential visitor Parking Spaces shall be provided; 
 
(c)  A minimum of 30 commercial vehicle Parking Spaces shall be provided, of 

which, four shall be identified as shared residential visitor and commercial 
parking;  

 
(d)  Two Loading Spaces shall be provided; 

 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8921 Document: 2158824-v3 

C. Amending Section 1101, CD-165, Schedule 141, ‘Record of Density Transfer’, by:  
 

(1) Creating a new entry recording 7,152.9 sq. m. of Transferred Gross Floor Area 
to the 144 – 132 W 15th Street Recipient site and subtracting 7,152.9 sq. m. from 
the Remaining Residual Density on the Site.  

 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2022. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2022. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



To: 

From: 

� � 
[/11 

Department Director CAO 

Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Michael Epp, Director, Planning & Development 

REPORT 

Subject: STREAMLINING OF DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT REQUESTS 

Date: April 13, 2022 · File No: 01-0125-01-0001/2022 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, Planning & Development, dated April 13, 
2022, entitled "Streamlining Development Variance Permit Requests": 

THAT staff be directed to bring forward a bylaw to amend the Development 
Procedures Bylaw, with proposed provisions to delegate authority for issuance of 
Development Variance Permits for minor variances. 

ATTACHMENT 

1. Delegation and Assessment Criteria for Development Variance Permits (Citydocs
#2158234)

PURPOSE 

In response to the adoption of new Provincial legislation (Bill 26) amending the Community 
Charter and Local Government Act, the purpose of this report is to outline a draft set of 
provisions regarding Council delegation to staff for the consideration of some 
Development Variance Permit (DVP) applications. Should Council approve the DVP 
provisions outlined in the report, staff will bring forward a bylaw to amend the 
Development Procedures Bylaw reflecting the changes, for Council consideration. 

BACKGROUND 

In 2018, the Ministry of Municipal Affairs initiated the Development Approvals Process 
Review (DAPR), aimed at identifying improvements to the municipal and provincial 

Document Number: 2158192 V3 



REPORT: Streamlining Development Variance Permit Requests 
Date: April 13, 2022 

approval processes required for land development. The review issued recommendations 
in 2019, and on November 25, 2021, the Province gave Royal Assent to Bill 26 -
Municipal Affairs Statutes Amendment Act (No. 2) , (2021) ("Bill 26"); the first legislative 
changes arising from the review. Some of the legislative amendments in Bill 26 will come 
by a future regulation, but some came into force on Royal Assent. 

Amongst those changes, the legislation has two key implications to development planning 
at the local government level : 

• it altered the procedures for notification and public hearings with respect to 
rezoning applications that are compliant with the Official Community Plan (OCP); 
and 

• it introduced a new authority enabling Councils to delegate decision-making on 
DVPs for minor zoning variances. 

This report responds to the second item and discusses the implications for development 
planning . 

In 2021, the City was successful in a grant application for a comprehensive development 
approval review, which includes exploring opportunities to reduce the complexity of 
approval processes and other changes to allow the City to effectively manage permit 
volumes. This review includes both a third party process evaluation, as well as staff's 
effort in identifying ongoing process improvement and regulatory streamlining. The recent 
legislative changes present an opportunity to advance this work and explore further 
options to enhance our process, which are discussed in this report. 

DISCUSSION 

Bill 26 introduced changes to the Local Government Act that required the City to change 
its procedures in respect to development applications and public notifications. These 
changes were discussed with Council in rezoning reports that were introduced in 
December 2021 and are discussed in more detail in this report. In addition, the changes 
also allow consideration of how or whether to apply new authority introduced by the 
legislation with respect to DVPs for minor variances. These changes, their implications 
and recommendations are set out below. 

Delegation of Minor Development Variance Permits 

Bill 26 allows a municipality to consider delegating the authority for issuing DVPs for minor 
variance requests to staff. This includes variances to the siting, size and dimension of 
buildings and structures, the regulation of signs, and off-street and loading space 
requirements. Changes to use and density are not permitted by way of a variance and can 
only be conferred through the Zoning Bylaw, which is within Council 's sole authority. The 
legislation requires, should Council wish to delegate minor variance DVPs, that Council 
establish, by bylaw: 

(a) criteria for determining whether a proposed variance is minor; and, 

(b) guidelines the delegate must consider in deciding whether to issue a DVP. 

Page 2 of 7 



REPORT: Streamlining Development Variance Permit Requests 
Date: April 13, 2022 

Development in the City currently occurs primarily through site specific, case by case 
rezoning applications, which result in individual Comprehensive Development Zones 
tailored to each application received . With this system, development variance requests are 
relatively uncommon, as shown in Table 1 below. However, the City, on occasion, 
receives requests for minor changes to established zoning parameters. These requests 
can arise as a result of unforeseen conditions on-site where complying with the zoning 
would present a challenge or a "hardship" for a property owner or where an alternative on
site development configuration allows for a preferred outcome when compared with what 
is permitted as-of-right on a site. An example would be preserving an on-site tree by 
repositioning a development away from the tree and into an established zoning bylaw 
setback. Another example would be a desire to reallocate a required vehicle parking 
space to better accommodate e-bike parking or storage or the variance of setbacks to 
allow for the preservation of a heritage building. 

Table 1. Development Variance Permit Requests, 2018- 2021 

Year # of Variance Types 
Requests 

2021 1 Lot coverage 

2020 1 Antenna configuration 

2019 5 Parking requirement, setbacks, lot coverage, heritage 

2018 3 Height, parking 

The trade-offs suggested by these requests are currently evaluated through a staff review 
process, public consultation (through notification and, in some instances, an information 
session), and, ultimately, a Council decision. This process currently requires between four 
and seven months to complete. As some variance requests result from unforeseen 
difficulties in complying with the established zoning, timeliness is very important to 
applicants for a variance. 

Delegating authority for minor variances to staff would substantially reduce the time and 
cost required to process variance requests. Under the new regulations, a delegated 
variance does not require a statutory notice to be published. Staff therefore recommend 
that Council consider delegating the following types of minor variance requests to staff. 
Details of rationale and assessment criteria are outlined in Attachment 1. 

1. Sign Bylaw: 
• All variance requests regarding size, number and placement of signs. 

2. Parking Variances: 
• Variances of 10% or less of the Zoning Bylaw required minimum number of 

spaces (vehicles, bicycles), 
• Variances of up to 25% where such a request is required for the preservation of 

mature on-site trees, 
• Variances related to loading requirements including number of required loading 

spaces, design and technical provisions such as dimensions and access, 

Page 3 of 7 



REPORT: Streamlining Development Variance Permit Requests 
Date: April 13, 2022 

• Variances of technical and design requirements pertaining to design, location of 
parking, 

• All parking variance requests up to one space in R1 and R2 designated areas. 

3. Garbage and Recycling Storage Facility: 
• Any variance to the requirements can be considered by staff. 

4. Building Siting: 
• Variances of 25% or less of Zoning Bylaw minimum requirements regarding 

setbacks, building separations, lot coverage, open site space, permeable 
surfaces and general building siting dimensions. 

5. Patios and Decks: 
• Variances to patios and decks of all configurations and sizes. 

6. Building Envelope: 
• Variances of less than 10% or less than one storey, whichever is the lesser, to 

building height and variances of less than 10% to other building envelope 
dimensions such as building width and length, upper storey step-backs and 
angular planes, as applicable. 

In addition to specific criteria outlined in the draft provisions, general criteria would also be 
adopted, which would be used to establish consistent guidance and fairness in the 
evaluation of all Development Variance requests: 

1. The request should be consistent with the goals, objectives and policies within the 
OCP and any other relevant policy documents including, but not limited to, the 
City's housing policies, Mobility Strategy, Well-Being Strategy, Climate and 
Environment Strategy and Economic Strategy. 

2. The request should be supported by a sound justification based on one or more of 
the following: 

a. An inability to reasonably develop a site in an efficient and effective manner 
while complying with bylaw requirements; 

b. A benefit to the community or surrounding properties as a result of a 
preferable form of development or outcome that is enabled through the 
requested variance. 

3. The request should not result in an unacceptable negative impact on neighbouring 
properties and should fully consider mitigation measures to reduce any identified 
negative impacts. 

4 . The request should not impose any costs on the municipality. 

5. The variance should not defeat the explicit or implicit intent of the bylaw 
requirement being varied. 

Page 4 of 7 



REPORT: Streamlining Development Variance Permit Requests 
Date: April 13, 2022 

As with other development matters currently delegated to staff, such as Development 
Permits, staff would exercise professional judgment and retain the ability to rely on input 
from the City's advisory bodies or to elevate a request to Council. Under the provisions of 
the Act, should Council opt to delegate approval of minor variances to staff, the applicant 
who is subject to a staff decision would remain entitled to have Council reconsider a 
decision of staff. 

Should Council proceed with a delegation, for reasons outlined above, staff do not 
anticipate a significant volume of requests, with the vast majority of development 
applications proceeding through Development Permit (staff-approval) or rez\>ning (Council 
approval). 

It should be noted that the City's appointed Board of Variance would continue to consider 
applications based on hardship circumstances. 

Options for DVP Delegation 

In considering delegation of DVP authorities, the following options are presented for 
Council consideration: 

Option 1 (Recommended) - Endorse the delegation and criteria for minor variances as 
outlined in Attachment #1 and instruct staff to bring back a bylaw to amend the 
Development Procedures Bylaw to reflect these provisions. This is the staff recommended 
option. 

Option 2 - Approve a revised version of the delegation provisions as outlined in the 
Attachment #1 and instruct staff to bring back a bylaw to amend the Development 
Procedures Bylaw to reflect Council directions. In this case, the active clause of the 
recommendation should read: 

"THAT staff be directed to bring back a revised Development Procedures Bylaw, for 
Council consideration, with draft provisions relating to Development Variance 
Permits (DVPs), as modified and directed by Council as follows __ ·" 

Option 3 - Maintain the current practice of Council reviewing and approving all DVPs (the 
status quo option). Should Council wish to maintain present practice, no resolution or 
further action is required . 

Alternative Public Input Prototype Update 

Changes to section 464 of the Local Government Act (the "Act") remove the default 
requirement for local governments to hold public hearings for zoning bylaw amendments 
that are consistent with the Official Community Plan (OCP). Instead, the Provincial 
legislation contemplates that approval of zoning bylaws would proceed by default without 
public hearings, thereby removing the need for local governments to go through the 
process of waiving these hearings (as was previously required). The Act allows for public 
hearings to be held as an option, if desired by Council, on a case-by-case basis. At 

Page 5 of 7 



REPORT: Streamlining Development Variance Permit Requests 
Date: April 13, 2022 

present, a Council motion to hold or not hold a public hearing is required with each 
rezoning application. 

While the intent of the changes to the Act were to simplify this aspect of the approval 
process, in practice, the current process requires similar steps to the previous approval 
process, as outlined below. 

Table 1. Previous and New Zoning Bylaw Consideration and Approval Process 

Previous Process New Process 

1. Staff Report and first and second 1. Staff Report and recommendation of 
readings of bylaw, including decision whether a public hearing will be held 
to hold or waive public hearing or no public hearing 

2. Publish public hearing notices 2. If referred to public hearing, first and 
second readings of bylaw at same 
meeting as introduction and then 
notice of public hearing published. 

3. Public hearing, followed by third 3. If no public hearing held, then notice 
reading of bylaw of first reading published after 

introduction 
4. Finalize legal agreements 4. Public hearing (if held), followed by 

third reading of bylaw OR, if no publ ic 
hearing, first, second and third 
reading at Regular meeting 

5. Final adoption of bylaw 5. Finalize legal agreements 

6. Final adoption of bylaw 

As done previously, Council makes a case-by-case determination whether or not to refer a 
zoning amendment bylaw to a public hearing . Council will either make a motion to hold a 
public hearing or not hold a public hearing when an application is introduced, and there is 
no longer a requirement to waive a public hearing . 

The City has long placed importance on public engagement in municipal affairs , 
emphasizing principles of access and equity and has been proactive in exploring 
alternative means of gathering public input on development applications. In 2019, under 
the City-initiated Balanced Housing Lab, staff had started to revisit the standard approach 
to community consultation through rezoning to encourage earlier consultation and include 
a wider array of participants in the development review process. A pilot project (for a 
rezoning proposal at 115 East Keith Road) is currently underway, exploring alternative 
approaches for early community consultation and engagement, and staff will be reporting 
back to Council with lessons learned and recommendations . 

Following the evaluation of this pilot, staff will report back on findings and potential 
changes to improve the level of representation of the community and responsiveness of 
the consultation process. 

Page 6 of7 



REPORT: Streamlining Development Variance Permit Requests 
Date: April 13, 2022 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The measures outlined in this report have limited financial implications, though are 
expected to result in reductions in staff time allocated to processing variance requests and 
minor reductions in City costs for statutory notices. 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

This report has been reviewed by the Policy and Project Team, the Organizational Policy 
Review Committee and was prepared in coordination with the Corporate Officer and the 
City Solicitor. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

The recommendations of this report will help the efficient implementation of the OCP, as 
well as Council Strategic Plan . 

CONCLUSION 

The provisions outlined in the report for administering minor DVP applications by staff 
represent a potential measure to further the City's streamlining initiatives. The measures 
will significantly reduce processing time for minor Development Variance Permit requests. 
Staff's recommendations are guided by the City's corporate values of efficient, high-quality 
customer services and continued innovation in engaging with our citizens. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

M~ 
Director, Planning & Development 

Page 7 of? 



Document Number: 2158234 

 
 
 
 

These draft provisions or any modifications of these draft provisions, as directed 
by Council, will be incorporated into the City’s Development Procedures Bylaw.  
 
PURPOSE 

 
These provisions set out assessment criteria to be applied in the consideration of 
requests to vary the provisions of a bylaw through a Development Variance Permit 
(DVP). The provisions also determine when a request is considered ‘minor’ and 
delegated to staff. The intent is to ensure fair and consistent processing of DVP 
applications, while providing applicants and the public with clarity on the factors that are 
considered during the evaluation.  
 
Provisions apply to all requests for DVPs to vary requirements of the Zoning Bylaw, 
Sign Bylaw, Subdivision and Development Control Bylaw or other bylaw provisions for 
which a Development Variance Permit can be considered, in accordance with the Local 
Government Act.  
 
Types of Development Variances 
 
These provisions outline assessment criteria for two types of variance requests:  
 

1. Standard Variance Requests – Council Authority 
 
Variances to bylaw provisions that may be considered in conjunction with a 
rezoning application or outside of a rezoning application through a DVP. DVP 
requests are evaluated in accordance with the General Assessment Criteria 
below, with the results of the evaluation presented to Council for consideration.  
 

2. Minor Variance Requests – Staff Delegated Authority 
 

Variances to be considered by Council’s delegate in accordance with the 
evaluation framework outlined in this policy. These requests must be within the 
thresholds to be determined as minor (by these provisions) and are evaluated in 
accordance with both the General Assessment Criteria and Minor Variances – 
Assessment by Categories as outlined below. The results of this evaluation are to 
be compiled in a decision memorandum, recording the evaluation’s findings and 
decision to authorize or reject the variance request. Applications which do not 
meet the criteria would be referred to Council for consideration.  

 
DVPs may be in association with a development proposal (ie rezoning) or may be 
stand-alone DVP applications which do not accompany a development proposal. All 
DVP requests in association with rezoning would be considered by Council.  

DRAFT  
DELEGATION AND ASSESSMENT CRITERIA FOR 
DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMITS (DVPs) 

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 1�



Page 2 of 5 

 
General Assessment Criteria 

 
The following criteria shall be applied to the evaluation of all DVP applications: 
 

1. The request should be consistent with the goals, objectives and policies within 
the Official Community Plan and any other relevant policy documents including, 
but not limited to, the City’s housing policies, Mobility Strategy, Well-being 
Strategy, Climate and Environment Strategy, and Economic Strategy. 
 

2. The request should be supported by a sound justification based on one or more 
of the following: 
 

a. an inability to reasonably develop a site in an efficient and effective 
manner while complying with a bylaw requirements; 
 

b. a benefit to the community or surrounding properties as a result of a 
preferable form of development or outcome that is enabled through the 
requested variance.  

 
3. The request should not result in an unacceptable negative impact on 

neighbouring properties and should fully consider mitigation measures to reduce 
any identified negative impacts. 

 
4. The request should not impose any costs on the municipality.  

 
5. The variance should not defeat the explicit or implicit intent of the bylaw 

requirement being varied. 
 
Minor Variances – Assessment by Categories 
 

1. Sign Bylaw: All variance requests respecting size, number and placement of 
signs. 
 
Rationale – The City’s Sign Bylaw was last comprehensively reviewed in 1992 
and does not adequately reflect all signage scenarios or types. Staff routinely 
negotiate alternative signage configurations through on-site Signage Plans.  
 
Staff Assessment Criteria – Director of Planning & Development shall consider: 
 

 the variance request respecting size, number and placement of signs 
does not result in a significant increase in the total number or size of on-
site signage and is in keeping with the aesthetic and character of the 
buildings and surrounding area; and 
 



Page 3 of 5 

 the effect of the variance does not result in safety concerns or adverse 
impact to neighbouring properties, such as light pollution. 

 
2. Parking Variances:  

a. variances of 10% or less of the Zoning Bylaw required minimum number 
of spaces (vehicles, bicycles); 

b. variances of up to 25% where such a request is required for the 
preservation of mature on-site trees;  

c. variances related to loading requirements including number of required 
loading spaces and design and technical provisions such as dimensions 
and access;  

d. variances of technical and design requirements pertaining to design, 
location of parking; and 

e. all parking variance requests up to one space, in areas designed ‘R1’ and 
‘R2’ in the Official Community Plan.  

 
Rationale – This would allow expedited consideration of requests resulting from 
unique on-site considerations or where an alternative is demonstrated to result in 
a preferable outcome.  
 
Staff Assessment Criteria – Director of Planning & Development shall consider: 
 

 the reduction is not expected to have undue impact on the on-street 
parking in the area; 
 

 if there is a reasonable alternative to the minimum parking standard, 
particularly taking the intended uses of the building into consideration. 
These alternatives may include bicycle parking, personalized mobility aids 
parking, public transit passes or other measures as the Director of 
Planning & Development may deem appropriate; 
 

 in the case of a parking variance for the protection of mature on-site trees, 
the parking variance is a direct result of the reduction of parking stalls to 
ensure adequate soil volume for the long term health of said trees; and 

 
 any variance to the parking design, location would not result in any safety 

concerns or operational issues. 
 

3. Garbage and Recycling Storage Facility: Any variance to the requirements can 
be considered by the Director of Planning & Development. Consultation with the 
facility operator, as well as consultation with City Engineer, is required. 

 
4. Building Siting: Variances of 25% or less of Zoning Bylaw minimum requirements 

regarding setbacks, building separations, lot coverage, open site space, 
permeable surfaces and general building siting dimensions.  
 



Page 4 of 5 

Rationale - While the majority of development in the City occurs through 
rezoning, during which a review of setbacks is conducted, unique conditions on 
as-of-right sites occasionally curtail the ability to proceed with an effective 
development. Slope, tree preservation, adjacency to a stream or ravine, etc. are 
examples of site constraints where variances are occasionally warranted.  
 
Staff Assessment Criteria – Director of Planning & Development shall consider: 
 

 that the variance to building siting requirements does not decrease the 
liveability of residential units and that there is a demonstration that the 
variance request does not result in undue impact on access to light and 
privacy.  

 
5. Patios and Decks: Variances to patios and decks of all configurations and sizes. 

 
Rationale – Patios and decks are extensions to buildings that, due to the diverse 
existing conditions of the buildings, often do not conform to zoning regulations. 
However, they are important for liveability reasons and are of relatively low 
impact when it comes to neighbourliness.  
 
Staff Assessment Criteria – Director of Planning & Development shall consider: 
 

 variance not to create undue privacy impact on adjoining neighbours; and 
 variance does not result in a significant increase of site coverage or 

impermeable surface on the lot; 
 

6. Building Envelope: Variances of less than 10% or less than one storey, 
whichever is the lesser, to building height and variances of less than 10% to 
other building envelope dimensions, such as building width and length, upper 
storey step-backs and angular planes, as applicable.  
 
Rationale – On occasion, rooftop features, such as access hatches, elevator 
overruns and architectural elements, are proposed to extend moderately beyond 
maximum bylaw heights. A desire for greater floor to ceiling height on 
commercial levels can contribute to the desire for minor height variances as can 
changing building technologies to support decarbonization.  
 
Staff Assessment Criteria – Director of Planning & Development shall consider: 
 

 variance to the building envelope or height be accompanied by 
supporting information clearly illustrating shadow and view impacts in a 
format acceptable to the Director of Planning & Development; 
 

 variance to building envelope and height be assessed for compatibility 
with adjacent land uses (both existing and as proposed in the OCP); 
 



Page 5 of 5 

 variance does not result in significant incremental shadow impacts, 
particularly where such an impact is to a sensitive public site, such as a 
park or greenspace; and 
 

 variance does not result in significant public view impacts as seen from 
the street or public spaces. 

 
 

 
 


	1 Agenda
	2 Minutes�
	Proclamations
	Day of Mourning
	Youth Week�
	Child Care Month�
	MS Awareness Month�

	*3 Bylaw 8924
	PH - 364 E 14
	Report - 364 E 14
	1-Map
	2-Architectural Plans
	3-Landscape Plans
	4-Tree Retention Plan
	5-Conservation Plan
	6-HAC Resolution

	Staff PP - 364 E 14�
	Applicant PP - 364 E 14�
	Submissions - 364 E 14�
	Notice - 364 E 14�

	4 Bylaw 8904�
	5 Bylaw 8905�
	Pres - Fire Department 2021 Annual Report�
	IR Fire Department 2021 Annual Report�
	IR 2021 Bylaw Services Overview�
	Pres - Upper Levels Greenway�
	6 Upper Levels Greenway�
	6-1 Engagement Summary Report
	6-2 Phase 1 Engagement Summary�
	6-3 Design Approaches�
	6-4 Comparative Route Evaluation�

	7 2022 Tax Rates Bylaw�
	8 Bylaw 8919�
	9 115 E Keith Road�
	9-1 Report Oct 6 2021�
	9-2 Plans
	9-3 Tenant Relocation Update�

	10 Bylaw 8777 Rescind and Amend�
	11 Bylaw 8777�
	12 Bylaw 8923�
	13 114-132 W 15
	13-1 Map�
	13-2 Architectural Plans
	13-3 Landscape Plans
	13-4 ADP Resolution Nov 17 2021�
	13-5 ITC Resolution Jan 5 2022�
	13-6 Consultation�

	14 Bylaw 8921�
	15 Streamlining DVP Requests�
	15-1 Draft Assessment Criteria�




